Public Document Pack
Mr Dylan Williams

CYNGOR SIR Prif Weithredwr — Chief Executive
A YNYS MON )
i ISLE OF AN‘GLESEY CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

COUNTY COUNCIL Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices

LLANGEFNI

Ynys Mén - Anglesey

LL77 7TW

Ffon / tel (01248) 752500

Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839
RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD NOTICE OF MEETING
PWYLLGOR POLISI CYNLLUNIO PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
DYDD IAU, THURSDAY,
15 IONAWR, 2026 am 2.00 o’r gloch yp 15 JANUARY 2026 at 2.00 pm
CYFARFOD HYBRID - YSTAFLL BWYLLGOR, | HYBRID MEETING - COMMITTEE ROOM,
SWYDDFEYDD Y CYNGOR, LLANGEFNI AC COUNCIL OFFICES, LLANGEFNI AND
YN RHITHIOL DRWY ZOOM VIRTUALLY THROUGH ZOOM

Mrs Mairwen Hughes

01248 752518 Committee Officer

Swyddog Pwyligor

AELODAU / MEMBERS
Cynghorwyr / Councillors:-

Y Grwp Annibynnol / The Independent Group

leuan Williams (Cadeirydd/Chair)

Plaid Lafur Cymru / Wales Labour Party

Pip O'Neill

Plaid Cymru / The Party of Wales

John Ifan Jones, Jackie Lewis, Llio Angharad Owen, Nicola Roberts,
Ken Taylor (Is-gadeirydd/Vice-Chair) and Robin Williams

Annibynnwyr Mén/Anglesey Independents

Jeff Evans, Kenneth P Hughes, Robert LI Jones,




Please note that meetings of the Committee are streamed for live and subsequent broadcast on
the Council’s website. The Authority is a Data Controller under the Data Protection Act and data
collected during the live stream will be retained in accordance with the Authority’s published policy.

AGENDA
1 APOLOGIES
2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declaration of interest by any Member or Officer in respect of any item of
business.
3 MINUTES (Pages 1-4)
To submit, for confirmation, the minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 September,
2025.
4 PRESENTATION OF CANDIDATE SITE REGISTER (Pages 5 - 322)

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

5 DRAFT SETTLEMENT STRATEGY TOPIC PAPER (Pages 323 - 370)

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

6 WASTE TOPIC PAPER (Pages 371 - 394)

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

7 MINERALS - TOPIC PAPER (Pages 395 - 422)

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

8 RETAIL STUDY RESULTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FOR NEW LOCAL
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Pages 423 - 584)

To submit a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

9 DATES OF MEETINGS

To discuss dates of future meetings.



Agenda Item 3

PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the hybrid meeting held on 10 September 2025

PRESENT: Councillor leuan Williams (Chair)
Councillor Ken Taylor (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Jeff M Evans, Kenneth P Hughes, Jackie Lewis,
Llio Angharad Owen, Nicola Roberts and Robin Williams

IN ATTENDANCE: Planning Policy Manager (JIW),
Planning Policy Team Leader (LW),
Committee Officer (MEH),
Webcasting Committee Services Officer (FT)

APOLOGIES: Councillors John Ifan Jones, Robert LI Jones and Pip O'Neill

ALSO PRESENT: None

1 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
None received.
2 MINUTES

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 11 June, 2025 were confirmed as correct.
3 OVERVIEW OF THE CALL FOR SITES PROCESS OUTCOME

Submitted — a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

The Planning Policy Team Leader reported that the Call for Sites process was opened on
12 May, 2025 for an initial period of six-weeks, concluding on 23 June, 2025. Due to the
relatively low submissions during this initial process, the period was extended for a further
six weeks, with a closing date on 4 August, 2025. In total, 280 sites were submitted
covering a wide range of proposed uses including housing, employment/retail and
renewable energy sites. The methods of submission were 85% via the Council’s online
submission portal; 10% via email; and 5% paper submission. The Call for Sites has now
formally closed and any submissions received following the closing date will be stored in a
late submission folder. The late submissions will not automatically be considered as part of
the Plan process, but should there be a shortfall of appropriate sites following the validation
and assessment processes, the sites may be considered as a means of making any
deficiencies. She further noted that the sites submitted on time are currently undergoing a
validation process to ensure completeness and compliance with submission requirements.
A draft Candidate Site Register will be published and the results of the Initial filtering
exercise will be submitted to the December 2025 meeting prior to being published on the
Council’'s website. This register will provide a comprehensive list of all sites submitted.
Following the validation and initial filtering of Candidate Sites, a gap analysis will be
undertaken to identify any shortfalls in the emerging site register. This will assess whether
sufficient and appropriate land has been identified to meet the Local Development Plan’s
strategic objectives. Where gaps are identified, the Council may take further action,

Page 1



including targeted engagement with stakeholders, reconsideration of filtered sites (subject
to new evidence), or additional calls for sites to address specific needs.

It was RESOLVED to accept the report.

CONSULTATION SUMMARY: INTEGRATED SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL AND
HABITATS' REGULATIONS ASSESSMENT SCOPING REPORTS

Submitted — a report by the Head of Regulation and Economic Development.

The Planning Policy Manager referred to the statutory requirement for sustainable
development to be at the heart of the development plan process and the need to undertake
Sustainability Appraisals (SA) and Strategic Environmental Assessments (SEA) of Local
Development Plans. These requirements are set out in s39 (2) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2024 and SEA Regulations 5 (2) and 5 (4) respectively. The
Development Plan Manual advocates an integrated approach to these requirements
through the undertaking of an ISA given that it enables a more transparent, holistic and
rounded assessment of the sustainability implications of growth options, objectives, policies
and proposals. The ISA Scoping Report provides the context for and determines the scope
of the ISA of the Local Development Plan and sets out the framework for undertaking the
later stages of the ISA. The Development Plan Manual advises consulting on the ISA
Scoping Report with statutory authorities (NRW and CADW) over a period of 5 weeks,
whilst it is considered to be best practice to make the scoping report publicly available also.
As such, a commitment was made in the Delivery Agreement to publish the Scoping Report
for public consultation. NRW’s response made observations about flood risk, protected
sites, water quality and designated landscapes where as CADW'’s response referred to
certain omissions in relation to historic environment documentation, the updated legislative
position and a need to provide appropriate assessment criteria to assess the protection and
enhancement of historic landscapes. Outside of the statutory consultees, the response of
Heneb made observations relating to legislative changes, a key omission in relation to the
Beaumaris World Heritage Site and suggested amendments to certain sections of the
scoping report to more accurately reflect the Welsh context of the subject matter. Copies
of the responses received in relation to ISA consultation was attached as Appendix 1 to the
report.

The Planning Policy Manager further referred to the requirements to undertake a HRA of
development plans confirmed by the amendments to the Habitats Regulations 2007; the
currently applicable version being the Habitats Regulations 2017, as amended. Given the
content and technical nature of the HRA, consultation on the Scoping Report was limited to
NRW. NRW responded to the consultation in a letter dated 22 August (which was attached
to the report) which stated that they agreed that the proposed approach to the HRA was
reasonable and that the correct sites and sensitivities had been identified in most cases but
provided further advice that should be considered further prior to the preparation of a HRA
screening report and appropriate assessment where required.

He further reported that overall, the responses received to both the ISA and HRA Scoping
Report consultations are generally supportive of the approach outlined, except for making
minor amendments considering the observations received, the scoping reports are
considered robust and fit for purpose.

It was RESOLVED to accept the report.
ANNUAL MONITORING REPORT

Submitted — the Annal Monitoring Report 2024/2025.

Page 2



The Planning Policy Manager reported that Local Development Plans are required to be
monitored annually and a report summarising such monitoring must be submitted to Welsh
Government by 31 October each year. The purpose of this report is to present a draft of
the seventh Annual Monitoring Report, which reports on the period 1 April, 2024 to 31
March, 2025. The Annual Monitoring Report provides important evidence base for the
review of the Joint Local Development Plan and over time the Annual Monitoring Reports
can show trends, clarify which policies are delivering or otherwise and highlights whether
there are any voids or omissions in policy provision . The Annual Monitoring Report listed
the key findings as was noted within the report. The key findings demonstrate that house
completions for the period exceed those of previous years, but overall completion remains
lower in comparison with the target figures set out in the Plan. He further said that the
building of residential units is lower than the target within the Joint Local Development Plan
which may be a result of the Wylfa development having not been developed at present. In
terms of diversifying the rural economy, the policies are facilitating a variety of small
businesses to establish. In considering the planning appeals, the policies appear to be
performing well with almost 70% of appeals being dismissed. This year's Annual
Monitoring Report reports on the data from Anglesey only given the termination of the joint
working arrangements with Gwynedd Council on planning policy matters in April 2023. It
follows the same format as previous reports and documents the performance of the Joint
Local Development Plan relative to Anglesey.

Councillor Jeff Evans ascertained as to the percentage of planning appeals that have been
rejected and approved as it highlights in the report that 1 in every 3 appeals have been
allowed. The Planning Policy Manager responded that it is difficult to comment as to the
appeals that have been allowed without having the details of those proposed
developments. It was noted that the decisions on all planning appeals are provided
Elected Members.

Councillor Nicola Roberts said that each planning application is considered on its own merit
and when an appeal is allowed Planning Officer’s scrutinised the decision taken by the
Planning Inspectorate.

Councillor Jackie Lewis ascertained as to the reasons why affordable housing with regards
to tenure is not monitored within the Monitoring Report.

The Planning Policy Manager responded that it is the type of units that is reported within
the Monitoring Report rather than the type of tenure. However, he agreed that the
affordable housing element as regards to the type of tenure i.e. shared equity or rented
properties, should be included in the new Local Development Plan.

Councillor Kenneth P Hughes referred that the North Wales Corporate Joint Committee
(CJC) will need to publish a Regional Plan by 2030. He ascertained whether the CJC’s
Regional Plan, when published, will have priority over local authorities Local Development
Plans.

The Planning Policy Manager responded that there is a hierarchy as regards to the
National Plans, Regional Plans and Local Development Plans. He noted that if the Local
Development Plan is published before the Regional Plan there will be a need to review the
planning policies within the Local Development Plan to conform with the Regional Plan.

Councillor Nicola Roberts said that the Council has a representative on the CJC, and it is
anticipated that both the Regional and Local Plans will coincide.

It was RESOLVED to endorse the Annual Monitoring Report 2024/2025 for
submission to Welsh Government by 31 October, 2025.

3
Page 3



The meeting concluded at 2.40 pm

COUNCILLOR IEUAN WILLIAMS
CHAIR

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén

Adroddiad i: Pwyllgor Polisi Cynllunio

Dyddiad: 15 lonawr 2026

Pwnc: Cyflwyno’r Gofrestr Safleoedd Posib

Aelod(au) Portffolio: Y Cynghorydd Nicola Roberts (Cynllunio, Gwarchod y

Cyhoedd a Newid Hinsawdd)

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth / Christian Branch

Cyfarwyddwr: Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Rheoleiddio a Datblygu
Economaidd

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Lowri Williams (Arweinydd Tim Polisi Cynllunio)

Ffon:

E-bost: lowriwilliams3@ysmon.llyw.cymru

Aelodau Lleol: Mae’n berthnasol i bob Aelod Lleol

1.0 Pwrpas yr Adroddiad

1.1 Cyflwyno’r Gofrestr Safleoedd Posib ar gyfer Cynllun Datblygu Lleol newydd
Ynys Mon a hysbysu Aelodau o’i chynnwys, ei diben, a’r camau nesaf yn y
broses asesu.

2.0 Penderfyniad sydd ei angen
2.1 Nodi cynnwys yr adroddiad.
3.0 Cefndir

3.1 Mae Rheoliadau Cynllunio Gwlad a Thref (Cynlluniau Datblygu Lleol) (Cymru)
2005 (fel y’i diwygiwyd), Polisi Cynllunio Cymru a Llawlyfr Cynlluniau Datblygu
(Argraffiad 3) yn gofyn i Awdurdodau Cynllunio Lleol gwblhau Galwad am
Safleoedd fel un o’'r camau cyntaf wrth baratoi ar gyfer y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol
newydd. Rhaid i'r broses newydd hon fod yn dryloyw a chynhwysfawr, a
chaniatau perchnogion tir, datblygwyr a chymunedau i gynnig tir fydd yn cael ei
amddiffyn neu ei ddatblygu.

3.2 Rhaid asesu’r holl geisiadau yn erbyn amcanion polisi cenedlaethol a lleol, a
chyfyngiadau cyflawni ac amgylcheddol. Mewn perthynas ag Ynys Mén, bydd
y Galwad am Safleoedd yn helpu i adnabod tir addas er mwyn bodloni gofynion
tai, gwaith a seilwaith yn y dyfodol, yn unol & Cymru’r Dyfodol: y cynllun
cenedlaethol 2040 a chanllawiau cynllunio Cymru.

3.3  Felrhan o’r gwaith casglu gwybodaeth a pharatoi cynllun, cynhaliodd y Cyngor
broses Galw am Safleoedd Posib rhwng 12 Mai 2025 am gyfnod o chwe
wythnos yn y lle cyntaf, gan ddod i ben ar 23 Mehefin 2025. Oherwydd bod nifer

Page 5


mailto:lowriwilliams3@ysmon.llyw.cymru

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

gymharol isel o safleoedd wedi'u cyflwyno yn ystod yr alwad gychwynnol hon,
cafodd y cyfnod ei ymestyn am chwe wythnos arall, gan ddod i ben ar 4 Awst
2025.

Roedd y broses hon yn caniatau i berchnogion tir, datblygwyr a'r cyhoedd
gyflwyno tir posibl i'w gynnwys yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol newydd, boed hynny
ar gyfer ei ddatblygu neu ei warchod. Mae'r safleoedd a gyflwynwyd drwy'r
broses honno wedi'u cynnwys yn y Gofrestr Safleoedd Posib, sy'n ganolbwynt
i'r adroddiad hwn.

Mae'r Gofrestr Safleoedd Posib yn ddogfen dystiolaeth allweddol yng
nghyfnodau cynnar paratoi Cynllun Datblygu Lleol. Mae'n darparu cofnod
ffeithiol o'r holl safleoedd a gyflwynwyd i'r Cyngor yn ystod y cyfnod Galw am
Safleoedd ac nid yw'n dynodi cefnogaeth y Cyngor na'u haddasrwydd i'w
dyrannu.

Cofrestr Safleoedd Posib
Mae’r Gofrestr yn cynnwys crynodeb o bob safle a gyflwynwyd, gan gynnwys:

e Cyfeirnod safle unigryw;
o Enw'r safle:

e Enw'’rardal;

e Defnydd arfaethedig;

Yn dilyn y broses ddilysu, derbyniwyd cyfanswm o 312 safle ar gyfer defnyddiau
unigol ledled yr ynys, gan gynrychioli ystod o ddefnyddiau tir. Cyhoeddir y
Gofrestr ar wefan y Cyngor er mwyn sicrhau tryloywder a bydd hefyd yn rhan
o’r sylfaen dystiolaeth ar gyfer y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol. Mae'r Gofrestr yn rhoi
arwydd cynnar o ddiddordeb mewn datblygu a chapasiti, ond nid yw’n nodi pa
safleoedd fydd yn cael eu cynnwys yn y Strategaeth a Ffafrir na’r Cynllun
Adneuo.

Y Camau Nesaf

Cam nesafy broses fydd cynnal asesiad cynhwysfawr o’r holl Safleoedd Posib.
Bydd hyn yn cynnwys:

e Hidlo cychwynnol er mwyn dileu safleoedd sydd yn amlwg yn anaddas (e.e.
safleoedd mewn parth risg llifogydd, tirweddau gwarchodedig neu
ardaloedd heb fynediad addas);

e Asesiadau safle manwl, gan ystyried y cyd-destun cynllunio, argaeledd
isadeiledd, hygyrchedd, bioamrywiaeth, tirwedd, treftadaeth a ffactorau
amgylcheddol eraill;

e Ymgynghori & chyrff statudol perthnasol er mwyn profi'r gallu i gyflawni
safleoedd a chapasiti gwasanaeth y safleoedd.

Page 6



5.2

6.0
6.1

e Arfarniad Cynaladwyedd ac Asesiad Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd er mwyn
sicrhau fod yr opsiynau o ran safleoedd yn cyfrannu at ddatblygu cynaliadwy
a’'u bod yn cydymffurfio & gofynion amgylcheddol statudol.

Yn dilyn y cam hwn, paratoir Cofrestr Safleoedd Posib a Fireiniwyd er mwyn
nodi safleoedd y mae posibilrwydd gwirioneddol y byddant yn cael eu datblygu.
Bydd y safleoedd hyn wedyn yn cael eu cynnwys yn y cam Strategaeth a Ffafrir
yn y broses o lunio’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol, fydd yn destun ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus.

Argymhelliad

Nodi cynnwys y Gofrestr Safleoedd Posib ar gyfer Cynllun Datblygu Lleol
newydd Ynys Mén.

Page 7



Isle of Anglesey County Council

Report to: Planning Policy Committee

Date: 15" January 2026

Subject: Presentation of the Candidate Site Register

Portfolio Holder(s): Clir. Nicola Roberts (Planning, Public Protection and
Climate Change)

Head of Service / Christian Branch

Director: Head of Regulation & Economic Development Service

Report Author: Lowri Williams (Planning Policy Team Leader)

Tel:

E-mail: lowriwilliams3@ysmon.llyw.cymru

Local Members: Applicable to all Elected Members

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To present the Candidate Site Register (CSR) for the new Anglesey Local
Development Plan (LDP) and inform Members of its content, purpose, and next
steps in the assessment process.

2.0 Decision required

2.1 To note the content of this report.

3.0 Background

3.1  The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales)
Regulations 2005 (as amended), Planning Policy Wales and the Development
Plans Manual (Edition 3) require Local Planning Authorities to carry out a Call
for Sites as an early stage in preparing the new LDP. This process must be
transparent and inclusive, allowing landowners, developers and communities
to suggest land for development or protection.

3.2  All submissions must be assessed consistently against national and local policy
objectives, deliverability and environmental constraints. For Anglesey, the Call
for Sites will help identify suitable land to meet future housing, employment and
infrastructure needs, in line with Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 and
Welsh planning guidance.

3.3 As part of the early evidence-gathering and plan preparation, the Council

conducted a Call for Candidate Sites between 12 May 2025 for an initial six-
week period, concluding on 23 June 2025. Owing to a relatively low level of
submissions during this initial call, the period was extended for a further six
weeks, closing on 4 August 2025.

Page 8


mailto:lowriwilliams3@ysmon.llyw.cymru

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

5.0

5.1

This process allowed landowners, developers, and the public to submit land for
potential inclusion in the new LDP for development or protection. The
submissions received through that process have been compiled into the CSR,
which forms the focus of this report.

The CSR is a key evidence document in the early stages of LDP preparation.
It provides a factual record of all sites submitted to the Council during the Call
for Sites period and does not indicate Council support or suitability for
allocation.

Candidate Site Register

The Register, appended to this report as Appendix 1, contains a summary of
each site submitted, including:

e Site unique reference number;
e Site name;

e Site area;

e Suggested use(s);

Following the validation process, a total of 313 sites for individual uses were
received across the island, representing a range of land uses. The Register will
be published on the Council’s website to ensure transparency and will also form
part of the evidence base for the LDP. The Register provides an early indication
of development interest and capacity but does not indicate which sites will be
taken forward into the Preferred Strategy or Deposit Plan.

Next Steps

The next stage of the process involves a comprehensive assessment of all
Candidate Sites. This will include:

e Initial filtering to remove clearly unsuitable sites (e.g., those within flood risk
zones, protected landscapes, or areas lacking access);

e Detailed site assessments considering planning context, infrastructure
availability, accessibility, biodiversity, landscape, heritage, and other
environmental factors;

e Consultation with relevant statutory bodies to test the deliverability and
service capacity of sites.

e Sustainability Appraisal (SA) and Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)
to ensure that site options contribute to sustainable development and
comply with statutory environmental requirements.

Page 9



5.2

6.0
6.1

Following this stage, a Refined CSR will be prepared to identify sites with
genuine potential for allocation. These will then feed into the Preferred Strategy
stage of the LDP, which will be subject to public consultation.

Recommendation

Note the contents of the CSR for the new Anglesey Local Development Plan

Page 10



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 292

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Play Space

I
m 25 50 75 100

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Aberffraw Glebe

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Aberffraw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235144 368675","0osGridRef":"SH351687"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.1043 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 11
Page 1



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 21

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Caer rheinws

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244340 393143","0osGridRef":"SH443931"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.6497 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 12
Page 2



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 23

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Lastra

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242997 392191","0osGridRef":"SH430922"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.3176 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 13
Page 3



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 34

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Rheinws Amlwch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244340 393142","osGridRef":"SH443931"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.6266 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 14
Page 4



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 47

Crowin copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACOODDB25374

Tennis Court

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Madyn Farm

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244179 392266","0sGridRef":"SH442923"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.2588 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 15
Page 5



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 68

©=Crowen copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000B25374
: Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

f Land adj B5111
: Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
. {"eastingNorthing":"244464 392433","0osGridRef":"SH445924"}
| Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
£ 1.9427 ha
| Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 16
Page 6



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 74

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Cemetery =
Play Space &
&

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Amlwch

Land to the rear of the Town Hall, Amlwch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244352 392824","0osGridRef":"SH444928"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.7894 ha
- £ Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 17
Page 7



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 120

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374 i,
", Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir ger Maes Mona, Amlwch
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243852 392970","0osGridRef":"SH439930"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
Mags Mot 1.7463 ha
L Suggested Use / Defnydd 4 Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 18
Page 8



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 157

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Syr Rhys, Lon Bach Amlwch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243495 392916","0osGridRef":"SH435929"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

w3 0099 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

25 EBD 75 100 - . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 19
Page 9



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 191

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Grogan field

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244357 392215","osGridRef":"SH444922"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.7774 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

T
25 EBD 75 100 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 20
Page 10



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 229

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Rhos Place
Location / Lleoliad:
. layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244508 393166","0sGridRef":"SH445932"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4147 ha

e _ Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 21
Page 11



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 235

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land at Groeslon, Amlwch
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

«,, Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243297 392522","0sGridRef":"SH433925"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.2412 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 22
Page 12



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 260

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Tyddyn Sion Goch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243658 392971","0osGridRef":"SH437930"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.46 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 B0 B0 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 23
Page 13



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 299

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Mynydd Madyn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245416 393084","0osGridRef":"SH454931"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4324 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

)
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 24
Page 14



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 335

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Grogan Field

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244358 392214","osGridRef":"SH444922"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.8025 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 B0 75100

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 25
Page 15



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 339

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Syr Rhys, Lon Bach Amlwch
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Amlwch, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243295 392902","0sGridRef":"SH433929"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.5185 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 26
Page 16



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 63

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Point Fields North
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"259779 375538","0sGridRef":"SH598755"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.8402 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 27
Page 17



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 64

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Suney ACOD00B25374 oo M01
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Point Fields
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"259667 375362","0sGridRef":"SH597754"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.6433 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ .
m 50 100 150 200

Residential / Preswyl

Page 28
Page 18



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 245

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

3t Catherine's Church

N
m 50 100 150 200

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Former Lairds Site
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"260897 377562","osGridRef":"SH609776"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

14.899 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 29
Page 19



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 297

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

llanfaes glebe
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

o Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"260854 378330","osGridRef":"SH609783"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.9782 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 30
Page 20



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 311

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llanfaes Glebe
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"260856 378413","0sGridRef":"SH609784"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.0696 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 31
Page 21



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 318

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

I .
m B0 100 150 200

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Former Lairds Site
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Biwmares / Beaumaris, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"260896 377562","0osGridRef":"SH609776"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

14.8909 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 32
Page 22



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 44

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Nantwich Farm/Caermeirch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodedern, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"232971 379694","0osGridRef":"SH330797"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.0139 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 33
Page 23



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 128

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir Ger Yr Allt, Bodedern

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodedern, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"233054 380509","0sGridRef":"SH331805"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.7756 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 34
Page 24



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 214

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Treangharad

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodedern, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"233193 379784","0sGridRef":"SH332798"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2838 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

)
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 35
Page 25



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 228

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Sarn Gannu, Bodedern
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodedern, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Bodedern

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"233378 379938","0sGridRef":"SH334799"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.3383 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

——
20 40 BO &0 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 36
Page 26



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 264

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land near Maes yr Orsedd/Haulfryn, Bodffordd
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"242823 376954","0sGridRef":"SH428770"}
By & & Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

N 0.4068 ha

[
m 200 40 60 80

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 37
Page 27



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 45

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Eron Heulog

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir ger Cae'r Delyn, Bodffordd.

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242424 376826","0osGridRef":"SH424768"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1583 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 38
Page 28



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 70

Crown copyright & databasefights 2025 Ordrance Survey ACODD0325374

Bron Heulog

90 Rodffordd

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Ty Du Bodffordd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242575 376641","osGridRef":"SH426766"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1263 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 39
Page 29



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 77

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adj to the wenallt, Bodffordd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242548 376957","osGridRef":"SH425770"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1682 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 40
Page 30



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 92

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Ny,

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adj to Maglyn, Trefor LL65 3YT

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"237382 379978","0sGridRef":"SH374800"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1272 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 41
Page 31



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 277

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

The Barn

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

PARC CYNEFIN

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"240835 378158","0osGridRef":"SH408782"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4876 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 42
Page 32



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 293

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
M Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

"1 Bodffordd

Hen Eglwys Glebe Bodffordd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodffordd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242412 376386","0sGridRef":"SH424764"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4217 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
200 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 43
Page 33



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 37

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Bach

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodorgan, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"238141 369277","0osGridRef":"SH381693"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3497 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 44
Page 34



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 321

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Bach

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodorgan, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"238140 369278","0osGridRef":"SH381693"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.346 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 45
Page 35



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 322

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Bach

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bodorgan, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"238140 369278","0osGridRef":"SH381693"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.346 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 46
Page 36



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 24

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Cemetary - Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

F Land at Bro Crigyll, Bryngwran
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Bryngwran, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"235003 377273","0osGridRef":"SH350773"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.1372 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 47
Page 37



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 25

Crowen copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000825374
= Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Bro Crigyll, Bryngwran

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bryngwran, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235065 377259","osGridRef":"SH351773"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.0837 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 48
Page 38



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 26

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Bro Crigyll, Bryngwran

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Bryngwran, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"234989 377263","0osGridRef":"SH350773"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.6599 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 49
Page 39



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 94

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjoining Bro Llechylched, Bryngwran
Location / Lleoliad:
15 layer: 12324, title: Bryngwran, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"234662 377650","osGridRef":"SH347777"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.0982 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 50
Page 40



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 65

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Y Graig
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"256370 376800","osGridRef":"SH564768"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6217 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 51
Page 41



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 220

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Cedrwydd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"256106 376538","0osGridRef":"SH561765"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2508 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 52
Page 42



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 225

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to south of Lon Ganol, Llandegfan

Location / Lleoliad:

Sron-y-Felin layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"257082 373850","0sGridRef":"SH571739"}
Loy, Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2789 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 53
Page 43



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 273

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374 £S5
~F Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Bron Haul
+*  Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"256508 373782","osGridRef":"SH565738"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.7649 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 &0 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 54
Page 44



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 276

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to the north west of Carreg Felin, Llandegfan
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

R Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"256559 374193","osGridRef":"SH566742"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.8485 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 55
Page 45



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 288

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Otdnance Survey ACO000E25374
%, oy Feiin Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

> e
2 &

Gwel y Don Land
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cwm Cadnant, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"256942 373690","osGridRef":"SH569737"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.0362 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 B0 75 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 56
Page 46



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 67

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land on South West side of Cae Bach Eithen
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"232509 388094","0osGridRef":"SH325881"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.1207 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 57
Page 47



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 119

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land west of Bodfair, Llanrhuddlad
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"232955 388886","0osGridRef":"SH330889"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.8901 ha

Llanrhuddlad

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 58
Page 48



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 148

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land of Cae Crin
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

G Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"233154 389139","0sGridRef":"SH332891"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.0815 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 59
Page 49



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 178

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Maes Gwelfor, Rhydwyn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"231394 389222","0osGridRef":"SH314892"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.7738 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 60
Page 50



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 192

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land of Cae Crin c/o Stewart White 1 School Terrace
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"233146 389181","0osGridRef":"SH331892"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2957 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 61
Page 51



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 336

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land opposite Tan y Felin, Rhydwyn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Cylch-y-Garn, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Rhyd-wyn

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"231692 388944","osGridRef":"SH317889"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9911 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 62
Page 52



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 303

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374,
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

.ok Road
South Stack

Gors 'y Twr
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"222812 382319","0sGridRef":"SH228823"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.4299 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 63
Page 53



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 48

Crown copyright & databage rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gorswen Farm
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
- {"eastingNorthing":"223992 382003","0osGridRef":"SH240820"}
Allotments Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

8.3023 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o — T —
B0 100 150 200 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 64
Page 54



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 91

Crown copyright & databasze rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land south east of Hirfron.

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"223011 382436","0sGridRef":"SH230824"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.8162 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 BO 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 65
Page 55



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 114

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

4 Land adjacent to 43-44 Gilbert Street
Yoy Location / Lleoliad:
| layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
\ Q Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
‘ {"eastingNorthing":"225117 381987","osGridRef":"SH251820"}
/ Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.068 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 66
Page 56



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 127

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

St Mary's Roman
Cath

Cyn safle Ysgol Thomas Ellis, Caergybi

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"224554 381707","osGridRef":"SH246817"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.5058 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 67
Page 57



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 223

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO00E25374
o Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Holyhead Sports Centre

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"224728 381138","0osGridRef":"SH247811"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.3902 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 68
Page 58



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 256

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land north of Llanfair Bach Camp Site

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225954 381688","0sGridRef":"SH260817"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.7207 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 69
Page 59



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 300

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ysgubor Leinw
f'\“. Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"224239 381428","0osGridRef":"SH242814"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.8858 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 70
Page 60



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 319

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Holyhead Sports Centre

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Holyhead, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"224779 380964","0osGridRef":"SH248810"}

& Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.8437 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
25 BD 75 100 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 71
Page 61



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 215

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bryn Awelon Land
Capel Bethesc

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanbadrig, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"236393 393022","0sGridRef":"SH364930"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1875 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

)
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 72
Page 62



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 224

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Wylfa

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanbadrig, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235093 393906","0sGridRef":"SH351939"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

30.2108 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 73
Page 63



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 239

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
® Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Pen-y-bryn newydd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanbadrig, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"236999 392824","0sGridRef":"SH370928"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3992 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 74
Page 64



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 315

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
b Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Wylfa

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanbadrig, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235092 393905","0sGridRef":"SH351939"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

30.1315 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 75
Page 65



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 50

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

SH4970 3244 Field adjacent to Old People’s Homes Llanddaniel

Llanddaniel Fab

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
z none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249310 370441","osGridRef":"SH493704"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.2284 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 76
Page 66



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 76

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordii_ance Survey ACOOO0B25374
L Raligious Grouns % Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Opposite Y Wenllys
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249450 370322","0sGridRef":"SH495703"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1106 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 77
Page 67



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 162

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Sorvey ACOD00E25374

Llanddaniel Fab

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Gilfach fawr
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249424 370656","osGridRef":"SH494707"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3553 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 78
Page 68



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 182

Crown/copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Field- SP148
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249330 370262","osGridRef":"SH493703"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2181 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 79
Page 69



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 183

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land off Parc Deiniol Sant
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"249426 370193","0osGridRef":"SH494702"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.707 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 80
Page 70



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 195

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Graianbwll Farm
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249238 370678","osGridRef":"SH492707"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.4885 ha

Llanddaniel Fab

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 B0 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 81
Page 71



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 205

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to South of Tyddyn Llywarch, Llanddaniel Fab, LL60 6EG
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249734 370246","osGridRef":"SH497702"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9861 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 82
Page 72



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 206

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjoining Tyddyn Eurach
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249942 370592","0sGridRef":"SH499706"}
i3 Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
: 0.2024 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 83
Page 73



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 209

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land North of Tyddyn Llywarch (Adjacent of Ffordd Penmynydd)
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249843 370372","0osGridRef":"SH498704"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.2351 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 84
Page 74



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 219

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordfi;ance Survey ACD000825374
L Raligious Grouns % Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land opposite Y Wenllys
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249450 370322","0sGridRef":"SH495703"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1106 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 85
Page 75



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 252

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Rllgions Grounds 5 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

» Land north of Parc Deiniol Sant
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddaniel Fab, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249485 370320","osGridRef":"SH495703"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.0337 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 86
Page 76



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 62

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Llanddona

—

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to side of 1 Pentre Bolion

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddona, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"257662 379638","0osGridRef":"SH577796"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1123 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 87
Page 77



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 90

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Qrdnance Survey ACO000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adj to Arwel, Llanddona
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddona, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"257459 379284","osGridRef":"SH575793"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

< 0.1978 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 88
Page 78



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 159

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Llanddona

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Tyn Y Gongl

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddona, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"257527 379782","osGridRef":"SH575798"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7127 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 89
Page 79



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 174

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plot Adj Gwelfryn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddona, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
? Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"257314 379616","0osGridRef":"SH573796"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.0572 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 90
Page 80



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 11

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Brynrwy 2
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

- Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248753 377281","osGridRef":"SH488773"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.2315 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 91
Page 81



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 14

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Maes y Coed 2
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248599 377060","0osGridRef":"SH486771"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.679 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 92
Page 82



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 35

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land on the east of Bryn Tirion
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:

none
% } Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248421 377171","osGridRef":"SH484772"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.105 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 93
Page 83



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 36

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Talwrn Bryn Tirion
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248452 377320","osGridRef":"SH485773"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1361 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 94
Page 84



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 73

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty'n Beudu
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248208 378188","0osGridRef":"SH482782"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.4449 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 95
Page 85



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 101

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Site to the North of Bryn Hyfryd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248636 377349","osGridRef":"SH486773"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.1376 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

.
m 25 B0 75 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 96
Page 86



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 106

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Qrdnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Cae Pella, Talwrn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248520 377275","0osGridRef":"SH485773"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.2823 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 97
Page 87



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 107

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Ysgol Talwrn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248603 377591","osGridRef":"SH486776"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6953 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 98
Page 88



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 108

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land north west of Fron Goch, Talwrn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248675 377581","osGridRef":"SH487776"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6897 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 99
Page 89



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 238

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
3 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Gwaunynog
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249049 376738","0sGridRef":"SH490767"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3341 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 100
Page 90



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 250

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land part of Frogwy Bach
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanddyfnan, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

D Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243649 378344","0sGridRef":"SH436783"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.0356 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 101
Page 91



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 22

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plot 3 Glan Llyn,
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
O Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
' {"eastingNorthing":"245133 391418","0osGridRef":"SH451914"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.0813 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 102
Page 92



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 137

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land in Nebo, Amlwch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246852 390347","0osGridRef":"SH469903"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3751 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 103
Page 93



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 180

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Penrallt

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246803 390572","0osGridRef":"SH468906"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9725 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 104
Page 94



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 237

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

ot

'pg] Street

N )
m 20 40 60 80 &

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Pensarn Fawr

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246023 390480","osGridRef":"SH460905"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.036 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 105
Page 95



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 296

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

llaneilian glebe

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247164 392566","0sGridRef":"SH472926"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.8143 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 106
Page 96



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 340

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Penrallt

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llaneilian, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246804 390572","0osGridRef":"SH468906"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9718 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 107
Page 97



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 271

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land west of Minffordd, Llanfachraeth
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfachraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231317 382432","0osGridRef":"SH313824"}
Playing Field Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6546 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 108
Page 98



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 301

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Roebuck Land
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfachraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls:
2 none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
lanfachraett {"eastingNorthing":"231509 382538","0sGridRef":"SH315825"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0458 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N . )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 109
Page 99



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 330

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land west of Minffordd, Llanfachraeth
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfachraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231317 382432","0osGridRef":"SH313824"}
Playing Field Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6585 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 110

Page 100



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 142

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

s

Land ajoining Trewyn Cottage

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231948 373451","0osGridRef":"SH319735"}

B L Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.523 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

20 40, 6080 m”“'-., . .
y : Residential / Preswyl

Page 111
Page 101



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 149

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land ajoining Trewyn Cottage

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231944 373450","0osGridRef":"SH319735"}

s, ~ Size (ha)/Maint (ha):

0.5525 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 112
Page 102



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 227

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Station Road, Llanfaelog

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"233488 373419","0sGridRef":"SH335734"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.3459 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 113
Page 103



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 230

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Four Crosses Field Pencarnisiog

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235288 373573","0sGridRef":"SH353736"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.5086 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 114
Page 104



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 231

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adjacent to Llain Delyn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235425 373638","0osGridRef":"SH354736"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1905 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 115
Page 105



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 232

.Erown copytight & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACOD00825374
' Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land east of Pencarnisiog Farm

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235322 373684","0osGridRef":"SH353737"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3904 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 116
Page 106



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 233

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land north east of Pencarnisiog Primary School

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235351 373752","0osGridRef":"SH354738"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.453 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

——
20 40 60 B0 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 117
Page 107



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 234

Crown copyright & database rights 2005 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land south of Pencarnisiog Farm

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
D Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235309 373624","0osGridRef":"SH353736"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2093 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 118
Page 108



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 257

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Pencarnisiog

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to the rear of Garreg Lwyd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235161 373673","0sGridRef":"SH352737"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9228 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 119
Page 109



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 258

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land south west of Ysgol Gynradd Pencarnisiog
Location / Lleoliad:
g layer: 12324, title: Llanfaelog, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"235164 373673","0osGridRef":"SH352737"}

penamE Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.6932 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

)
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 120
Page 110



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 13

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Kiln Site Llanfaethlu

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaethlu, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231510 387275","0osGridRef":"SH315873"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.4746 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

e e
B0 100 150 200 . .
= Residential / Preswyl

Page 121
Page 111



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 140

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Parc Eglwys

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaethlu, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231187 387097","osGridRef":"SH312871"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3396 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 122
Page 112



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 141

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjto Tany Bryn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaethlu, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231480 386807","0osGridRef":"SH315868"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0641 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 123
Page 113



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 173

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

O R Jones & Co

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfaethlu, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"231741 387191","osGridRef":"SH317872"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.0372 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 124
Page 114



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 96

Crown copyfightsdedatabaze rights 2005 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjoining Stad Wern Gethin, Llanfairpwll
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"253332 372205","0sGridRef":"SH533722"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.3672 ha

- L Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

m’ 20 40 B0 C80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 125
Page 115



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 153

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj. Peny Berth
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"253713 372012","0osGridRef":"SH537720"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.5879 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 126
Page 116



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 163

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Infill Land, Central South East Llanfairpwll
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,

ge B2t urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"253632 371549","0osGridRef":"SH536715"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4891 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 127
Page 117



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 168

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
2 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Known as Column fields (1.67 Ha)
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"253307 371567","0osGridRef":"SH533716"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.6763 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 128
Page 118



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 169

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO0DE25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Lon Refail
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"253544 372051","0osGridRef":"SH535721"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
. 1.6076 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 129
Page 119



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 189

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
pant Lodge EStale Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land East of Llanfairpwll (South A5)
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"253698 371439","0osGridRef":"SH537714"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.8642 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 130
Page 120



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 190

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO00E25374 &
L Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

o
2

0.7 Ha Site Adjacent to A5, East Llanfairpwll
Location / Lleoliad:

o layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"253348 371485","0osGridRef":"SH533715"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7206 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N .
m 20 40 EO @0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 131
Page 121



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 201

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

3.7 Acre (1.5 hec) Land to South of Llanfairpwll, Adjacent to Station Road
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"252947 371476","osGridRef":"SH529715"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.5088 ha
——— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 132
Page 122



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 202

© Crown copyright & database rights, 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plas Llanfair Farm
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"253318 371380","0sGridRef":"SH533714"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.2097 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 50 75 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 133
Page 123



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 203

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to South of the A5/A55 corridor, South Llanfairpwll
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"253596 371291","0sGridRef":"SH536713"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

St Mary's Church 3.3137 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 134
Page 124



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 32

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae R'efail Newydd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251789 383527","0sGridRef":"SH518835"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7815 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 135
Page 125



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 46

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACO000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Josnor
Location / Lleoliad:
Bwich
g layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250891 382073","0osGridRef":"SH509821"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.342 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 136
Page 126



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 78

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Cae Ysgawen
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249598 382826","0sGridRef":"SH496828"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0904 ha

Grynteg Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 137
Page 127



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 86

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Brynteg

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land adjacent to Cae Rhos, Brynteg
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"249633 382552","0sGridRef":"SH496826"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1012 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 138
Page 128



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 161

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir Ty Coch, Brynteg
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

G

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"249388 382535","0sGridRef":"SH494825"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.049 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 139
Page 129



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 164

Crown copyright_&s.détabase tights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000825374
o Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Donkey Derby Field
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251938 383243","0sGridRef":"SH519832"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.7855 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 140
Page 130



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 196

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
“y Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to the east of Lon Pant y Cudyn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251479 382787","osGridRef":"SH515828"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.8691 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 141
Page 131



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 198

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000825374
& Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land West of Lon Pany y Cudyn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
7 none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251405 382649","0osGridRef":"SH514826"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.2241 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 142
Page 132



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 199

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land north of Benllech
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251707 383430","0sGridRef":"SH517834"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9105 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 B0 7& 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 143
Page 133



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 217

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tyddyn Dylifws
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250236 383272","0sGridRef":"SH502833"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7909 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 144
Page 134



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 272

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374 Loctie Lkl
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bryn Engan Quarry
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250840 381530","0osGridRef":"SH508815"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.9091 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

.
m 25 B0 75 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 145
Page 135



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 283

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
B354 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Benllech
Plot B, Land adj to Stryd y Brithlis
&, Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

g Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"251686 382711","osGridRef":"SH517827"}
& Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2272 ha

&

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N . )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 146
Page 136



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 302

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir Bryn Eleri Benllech
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250211 382046","0osGridRef":"SH502820"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.6022 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N . )
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 147
Page 137



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 337

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tyddyn Dylifws
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250237 383272","0sGridRef":"SH502833"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7872 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 148
Page 138



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 344

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374 Loctie Lkl
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bryn Engan Quarry
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-Mathafarn-Eithaf, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"250840 381530","0osGridRef":"SH508815"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.9091 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

.
m 25 B0 75 100

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 149
Page 139



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 54

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACODD0B25374
ppinffordd B Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cerrig Cynrig
Location / Lleoliad:

B layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-yn-Neubwll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
)ther Sparts Facility {"eastingNorthing":"231740 376372","osGridRef":"SH317764"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.6269 ha

. — Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:
m wying M0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 150
Page 140



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 81

© Grown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACODD0B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Rhos Ifan
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-yn-Neubwll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"230562 378703","osGridRef":"SH306787"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.9069 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N .
m 25 B0 75 100

Residential / Preswyl

Page 151
Page 141



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 129

Crownscopyright & databaze rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Ysbylltir Farm Caergeiliog
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-yn-Neubwll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"231010 378698","0sGridRef":"SH310787"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.2646 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 152
Page 142



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 200

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land off Bryn Trewan
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair-yn-Neubwll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"231926 377114","osGridRef":"SH319771"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.2866 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 153
Page 143



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 31

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey, ACOO00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

5 Cerrig Seintwar Pentre Berw
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247041 372603","0osGridRef":"SH470726"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2551 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 154
Page 144



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 93

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

West of Cynlas
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248006 372030","osGridRef":"SH480720"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4795 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 155
Page 145



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 105

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

East of Lon Graig
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248156 372216","0osGridRef":"SH482722"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
24.8618 ha
———— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 156
Page 146



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 109

Crown copyright & databasze rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

_,;':' Gaerwen Ganol
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248369 371297","osGridRef":"SH484713"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.6444 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 157
Page 147



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 110

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gaerwen Bellach
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248239 370991","osGridRef":"SH482710"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

14.4091 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m B0 100 150 200

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 158
Page 148



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 111

Crawn copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACOOD0B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gaerwen Uchaf
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248455 371602","osGridRef":"SH485716"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.1042 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m B0 100 150 200

Residential / Preswyl

Page 159
Page 149



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 124

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land off Holyhead Road, Pentre Berw
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"247179 372487","osGridRef":"SH472725"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.0593 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 160
Page 150



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 135

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bwlich Gwyn Quarry
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"248165 372716","osGridRef":"SH482727"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.9446 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 20 40 B0 &0

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 161
Page 151



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 204

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
5 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

7 Gaerwen Arms

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
d {"eastingNorthing":"248811 371807","0osGridRef":"SH488718"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3167 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 162
Page 152



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 207

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Islwyn & Dolydd, Gaerwen

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248765 371982","osGridRef":"SH488720"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.8474 ha
——— & Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 163
Page 153



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 284

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Y Gorlan
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"246818 372615","osGridRef":"SH468726"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5" 2.1242 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 164
Page 154



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 286

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Capel Berea
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247245 372222","osGridRef":"SH472722"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0835 ha
——— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 165
Page 155



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 287

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Stad Glan y Gors
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
& urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246848 372731","0osGridRef":"SH468727"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.1761 ha
——— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 166
Page 156



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 310

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cerrig Seintwar Pentre Berw
£ Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247071 372664","0osGridRef":"SH471727"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1815 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 167
Page 157



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 331

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

East of Lon Graig
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanfihangel Ysgeifiog, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"248156 372216","0osGridRef":"SH482722"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
24.8207 ha
———— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 168
Page 158



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 9

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

& Parc y Coed phase 7
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"246489 376225","osGridRef":"SH465762"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.5914 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 169
Page 159



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 10

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Clai

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246447 376347","osGridRef":"SH464763"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.5892 ha
N Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 170
Page 160



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 20

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Dolfeurig

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244691 376338","0sGridRef":"SH447763"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.7691 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

e e
B0 100 150 200 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 171
Page 161



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 49

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adjacent to Clai, Lon Clai, Llangefni, LL77 8YQ

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246518 376438","0sGridRef":"SH465764"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1295 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 172
Page 162



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 60

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Sumvey ACOO00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty Hen, To the rear of Ysgol Gyfyn Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245148 375470","osGridRef":"SH451755"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.0883 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

—
B0 100 150 200 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 173
Page 163



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 69

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Dol Feurig

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244694 376338","0osGridRef":"SH447763"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.7779 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

—
B0 100 150 200 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 174
Page 164



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 72

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Merddyn Poeth

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245731 376361","0sGridRef":"SH457764"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

e % 18.5436 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

|
B0 100 150 200 . .
P Residential / Preswyl

Page 175
Page 165



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 80

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to the east of Llangefni link road

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247292 375616","osGridRef":"SH473756"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.837 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

—-——
20 40 BO &0 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 176
Page 166



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 85
Crown copyr.i\_ght & database rights 2025 Ordnanc,e{’SuNg‘y_‘ ACO000825374

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Y . \ Land near Fron Farm
N p) Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245646 375421","osGridRef":"SH456754"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

< Ts 1488ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 177
Page 167



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 121

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plas Penlan, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246414 375842","osGridRef":"SH464758"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.5687 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 178
Page 168



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 126

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Sumey. ACOO00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cyn safle Ysgol Corn Hir, Llangefni, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245199 376366","0sGridRef":"SH452764"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
y 1.535 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 179
Page 169



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 146

Crowin copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Surey ACODD0B25374
g Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Parc Bryn Cefni and Tan Capel, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
H {"eastingNorthing":"246463 375295","0sGridRef":"SH465753"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.3906 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
25 EBD 75 100 . .
i Residential / Preswyl

Page 180
Page 170



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 151

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Argraig Lon Clai

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246640 376673","0osGridRef":"SH466767"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3965 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 181
Page 171



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 175

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374

Llangefni

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Lauderette Site

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245923 375618","0osGridRef":"SH459756"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.0901 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 182
Page 172



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 210

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Saith Aelwyd Land 1

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245549 377057","osGridRef":"SH455771"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9733 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

——
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 183
Page 173



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 211

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Saith Aelwyd Land 2

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245668 376989","0osGridRef":"SH457770"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3186 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 184
Page 174



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 222

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Ffridd Farm and to the south-east of Llangefni Golf Club, Llangefni
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246237 376306","osGridRef":"SH462763"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

e 5.4652 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Play Space

14 polafon
Ffordd Dola

_:_:I
50 W ling Filor200 . .
m 80, tin 1500 2 Residential / Preswyl

Page 185
Page 175



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 226

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Gwernhefin

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245454 374779","osGridRef":"SH455748"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.0392 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 186
Page 176



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 242

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Cae Mawr, Rhostrehwfa
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
S8 Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244863 375660","0sGridRef":"SH449757"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
2.6841 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 BO BO . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 187
Page 177



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 262

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

[ EE. S
m 500 ce@Dl, 300400

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
penlan
wrcnn  Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"245659 376488","0osGridRef":"SH457765"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
14.2166 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 188
Page 178



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 278

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to 1 Tyn Pwll, Llangefni
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
D Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244622 376180","0osGridRef":"SH446762"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
¢ 0.039 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

_——
20 40 60 80 . .
i Residential / Preswyl

Page 189
Page 179



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 280

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC00008253745420
fan Capey Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Tan Capel Farm, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246779 375292","osGridRef":"SH468753"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.9619 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

e ——
25 50 75 100 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 190
Page 180



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 313

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOOO0S253785420
a0 Capgy Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Tan Capel Farm, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"246779 375292","osGridRef":"SH468753"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

6.956 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 B0 7A 100

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 191
Page 181



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 316

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

penlan
Langemi corcn - LOCAtion / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"245659 376488","0osGridRef":"SH457765"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

o+ 2 14.2115 ha

g ~ Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

o Ly e Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 192
Page 182



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 341

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

penlan
nemicarcn LOcCation / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"245659 376488","0osGridRef":"SH457765"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

. 142277 ha

Pl - Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

ol e Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 193
Page 183



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 51

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bryn Llewelyn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"260618 379446","osGridRef":"SH606794"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4591 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 194
Page 184



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 61

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Tawel Fan
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"260840 379426","osGridRef":"SH608794"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
_ 03196 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 195
Page 185



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 100

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Tros yr Afon Cottages

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"261407 379049","0osGridRef":"SH614790"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0904 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 196
Page 186



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 102

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Bryn Penmon

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"261703 380249","osGridRef":"SH617802"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4976 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 197
Page 187



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 103

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Porth y Lloer

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"262037 379971","0sGridRef":"SH620800"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4306 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 198
Page 188



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 104

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Coedwig Terrace

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"262325 380412","0osGridRef":"SH623804"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1223 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 199
Page 189



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 166

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Playing Flels
Land adj to Tyddyn y Paun Llangoed
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangoed, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"260928 379032","0sGridRef":"SH609790"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3462 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 200
Page 190



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 79

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land At Cornhir to rear of Primary School
< Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
"y, NONE
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244690 376013","osGridRef":"SH447760"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.4842 ha
—_—— )
m 50 100 160 200

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 201
Page 191



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 89

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Llys Noddfa, Llangefni

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
Ir:a(;/r;er: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244523 376139","0osGridRef":"SH445761"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1774 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 202
Page 192



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 116

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
W Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

FFerm Ty Hen, Llangefni.

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
Ir:a(;/r;er: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244899 375493","0osGridRef":"SH449755"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.5787 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 203
Page 193



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 275

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374 o
Gl Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Mo, Land at and adjoining Electrical Supplies Site
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none
layer: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244819 375630","0osGridRef":"SH448756"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.5011 ha
-—
m 25 50 75 100

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 204
Page 194



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 312

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO00B25374
9 o Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at and adjoining Electrical Supplies Site

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
Ir:a(;/r;er: 12324, title: Llangefni, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244819 375630","0sGridRef":"SH448756"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.5272 ha
-—
m 25 RO 7A 100

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 205
Page 195



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 15

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000825374

Llangristiolus

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Tir Ger Craig Eithin
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243070 373048","osGridRef":"SH431730"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6608 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 206
Page 196



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 16

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Top Cae LLog
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244557 375635","0osGridRef":"SH446756"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6899 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 207
Page 197



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 30

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

adjacent to Rhos Ellen Llangristiolus

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243043 373337","0sGridRef":"SH430733"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6896 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 208
Page 198



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 59

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

DOLAWEN.
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"242977 373646","0sGridRef":"SH430736"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2172 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 209
Page 199



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 71

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Lledwigan Fields
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"245440 373629","0osGridRef":"SH454736"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

8.8903 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N .
m 50 100 150 200

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 210

Page 200



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 75

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land to the rear of Penterfyn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

& {"eastingNorthing":"244025 374849","osGridRef":"SH440748"}
Play Spac Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.4218 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 211
Page 201



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 83

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Rhostrehwfa

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land adjacent to Felinwen, Rhostrehwfa
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244107 374874","osGridRef":"SH441749"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2755 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 212
Page 202



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 212

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

Rhostrehwfa

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Canol Rhos Land 1
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244107 374756","0osGridRef":"SH441748"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9086 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 213
Page 203



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 213

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

Rhostrehwia

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Canol Rhos Land 2
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244179 374949","osGridRef":"SH442749"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3051 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 214
Page 204



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 240

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Swn y Gwynt
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243798 374666","0sGridRef":"SH438747"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2428 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 215
Page 205



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 241

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Field behind Swn y Gwynt, Rhostrehwfa
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243690 374624","osGridRef":"SH437746"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.8913 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 216
Page 206



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 247

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llys Wen Adjacent Field 1
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242271 371516","0sGridRef":"SH423715"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6512 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 217
Page 207



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 248

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llys Wen Adjacent Field 2
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"242233 371440","osGridRef":"SH422714"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9809 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 60 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 218
Page 208



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 249

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land in Llangristiolus

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243267 373599","0sGridRef":"SH433736"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.9331 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N .
m 20 40 ED @0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 219
Page 209



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 254

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ystum-Werddon
Land to the rear of Ty Newydd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"244423 374315","0sGridRef":"SH444743"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4656 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 220
Page 210



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 255

Crown copyright & databasze rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Llangristiolus

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Bwlich Coch
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243090 373266","0osGridRef":"SH431733"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4076 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 221
Page 211



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 261

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Swn y Gwynt
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243691 374624","0osGridRef":"SH437746"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.8897 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 222
Page 212



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 324

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Swn y Gwynt
Pengy,, Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243798 374664","0sGridRef":"SH438747"}
° Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
" 0.158 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 223
Page 213



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 326

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Swn y Gwynt

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

ﬁ Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"243789 374691","osGridRef":"SH438747"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.0377 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 224
Page 214



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 333

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llangristiolus, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"245439 373635","0osGridRef":"SH454736"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

8.8375 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

— Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy
m 50 100 150 200

Page 225
Page 215



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 156

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adj Carn Farm
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Llanidan, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

Other Sports Fac
Brynsiencys

{"eastingNorthing":"248482 367045","0sGridRef":"SH485670"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.6389 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 226
Page 216



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 194

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Tyn Cwrt

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llanidan, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"247904 367215","0sGridRef":"SH479672"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.874 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 227
Page 217



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 8

Crown copyright & dﬁla‘b_ase tights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACODO0B25374
£ Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llanerchymedd

Cae ar gefn Maes Athen, Llanerchymedd. Land to rear of Maes Athen,
Llanerchymedd.

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"241784 383973","0osGridRef":"SH418840"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.0338 ha
-_—
mo 20 40 B0 &0

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 228
Page 218



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 42

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir Ger Tyn Ffynnon
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"241431 384024","0osGridRef":"SH414840"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.7158 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 229
Page 219



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 43

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Play Space Cae Bryn Llwyd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"241982 384464","0osGridRef":"SH420845"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

Allotments

0.4552 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 230
Page 220



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 122

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Llanerchymedd

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Tan y Foel, Llannerchymedd
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"242057 384187","osGridRef":"SH421842"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3121 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 231
Page 221



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 176

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
5 2, Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

g Bwthyn yr Onnen
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"241947 383892","0sGridRef":"SH419839"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3082 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 232
Page 222



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 320

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACDD00E25374
Y Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Llanerchymedd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Llannerch-y-Medd, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"241783 383973","0sGridRef":"SH418840"}

Stry

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.0345 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

—— Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 233
Page 223



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 270

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Wylfa, Cemaes
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
layer: 12324, title: Llanbadrig, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Cemaes
Torman Cottage

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

Tyddyn-Goronwy

{"eastingNorthing":"235527 393454","0osGridRef":"SH355935"}

Trefifle

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

Tyddyn-Gele

261.1985 ha

Mynydd-Lthe! Gors
Nanner

necas Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:
m 200,400,600, 800 % Y o

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 234
Page 224



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 97

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Builders yard and adjacent land
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
_.__\ ’;":-,_‘? Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
- {"eastingNorthing":"236839 391182","0osGridRef":"SH368912"}

"o, Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4958 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 235
Page 225



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 263

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Stables, Llanfechell

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"236184 391261","0osGridRef":"SH362913"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.735 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 236
Page 226



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 265

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land east of Bodorwedd, Llanfechell

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"236447 391414","osGridRef":"SH364914"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.5404 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 237
Page 227



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 294

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llanfechell Glebe

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"237051 391324","osGridRef":"SH371913"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.5412 ha

Sy, -4 Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 BO 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 238
Page 228



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 317

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Stables, Llanfechell

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"236184 391261","0osGridRef":"SH362913"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.7318 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 239
Page 229



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 117

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

TYDDYN Y FFRWD

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Moelfre, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"250778 385766","0osGridRef":"SH508858"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3625 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 240
Page 230



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 125

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

land adjacent to Gwel y Nant

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Moelfre, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"250611 385223","0sGridRef":"SH506852"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3771 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 241
Page 231



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 155

Crown copyright & database rights 2025, Ordnance Survey ACO000525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj Pen Siwrna

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Moelfre, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251018 386157","osGridRef":"SH510862"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3027 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 242
Page 232



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 160

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Caeau Dolywern

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Moelfre, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"250790 385882","0sGridRef":"SH508859"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.4778 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 BD 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 243
Page 233



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 17

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Eryri, Star

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Penmynydd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Q Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251553 372403","0osGridRef":"SH516724"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.1707 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 244
Page 234



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 87

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land Adjacent to Almshouses, Penmynydd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Penmynydd, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251373 374211","osGridRef":"SH514742"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9975 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 245
Page 235



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 28

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Rhos Farm Pentraeth

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251765 379515","0osGridRef":"SH518795"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.8543 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 246
Page 236



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 29

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

v

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Rhos Fram Pentraeth (Site 2)

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251940 379384","osGridRef":"SH519794"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3596 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 247
Page 237



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 218

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
7 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plas Gwyn Land adjacent to Ysgol Pentraeth

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
, Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251936 378231","0osGridRef":"SH519782"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.4657 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 248
Page 238



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 243

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land South of Pentraeth Nurseries

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"252120 378601","0osGridRef":"SH521786"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.1359 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 249
Page 239



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 253

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
3 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

' Llys Liwydiarth Expansion

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
it Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"252448 379062","osGridRef":"SH524791"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.0648 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 BO 80 . .
3 Residential / Preswyl

Page 250
Page 240



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 279

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374 '5
£ Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Pandy Mill
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"252102 378506","0sGridRef":"SH521785"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
2.0171 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

——
20 40 BO 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 251
Page 241



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 342

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
7 Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plas Gwyn Land adjacent to Ysgol Pentraeth

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Pentraeth, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
, Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"251936 378231","0osGridRef":"SH519782"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

7.4657 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 252
Page 242



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 53

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Vacant Land, Holyhead Road, Menai Bridge, LL59 5AA
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none
layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"254572 371788","osGridRef":"SH546718"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
e — 10.2095 ha
“Smtt B0 100 150 200

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 253
Page 243



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 290

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374 Ye-Alle
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land between Porthaethwy and Llanfairpwll

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

layer: 12324, title: Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, description: none, policies: none,
urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

¥ {"eastingNorthing":"254319 372262","0osGridRef":"SH543723"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
e — T — 90.0329 ha
m 200 400 BOD 800 Ynys Gorad Goch

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 254
Page 244



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 98

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Bryniau
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"255322 372895","0sGridRef":"SH553729"}
£ Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.6302 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[
m 20 40 EO- 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 255
Page 245



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 99

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bwthyn yr Allt
Tyddyn Isaf
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"255132 372904","osGridRef":"SH551729"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.1191 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ E .
m 20 40 B0 B0 Tfnlog

Residential / Preswyl

Page 256
Page 246



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 165

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land adj to Mon Caravans
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"254541 373010","osGridRef":"SH545730"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.9518 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 257
Page 247



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 193

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACQ§00825374

B54

Menai Bridge : ]
S & F

N )
m 20 40 60 80

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
The Mostyn Arms, Menai Bridge
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"255830 372034","0sGridRef":"SH558720"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.0648 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 258
Page 248



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 289

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

5 vacant land adjacent to Druid road
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"255700 372809","osGridRef":"SH557728"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

I 15.8113 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N .
m 50 100 150 200

Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 259
Page 249



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 291

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

track from Pen y Clip to the Pentraeth Road adjacent to Yr Allt
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"255287 373100","osGridRef":"SH553731"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

16.0637 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ e —
m 100 200 300 400

Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 260
Page 250



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 298

Candidate Sites Register
© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACD000825374

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:
Land rear of Wrentnall

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Porthaethwy / Menai Bridge, description: none, policies:
§ none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"255717 372637","osGridRef":"SH557726"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

m 20 40

0.036 ha
€0 80

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 261
Page 251



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 246

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty Mair Extant and Approved Planning Area
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Rhoscolyn, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"227758 378321","0osGridRef":"SH278783"}
» Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
Four Mile Bridge
. 0.2165 ha
e cvivm Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 262
Page 252



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 251

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

]

Four Mile Bridge

N .
m .20 40 60 80

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty Mair Corner Land Infill

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhoscolyn, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"227730 378283","0sGridRef":"SH277783"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.116 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 263
Page 253



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 281

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty Mair Infill Continuation
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Rhoscolyn, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Q Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
Four Mile Bridge {"eastingNorthing":"227706 378279","osGridRef":"SH277783"}
Florg, Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.0596 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 264
Page 254



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 216

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374

Gorslwyd Bach

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gorslwyd Bach Land

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosybol, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242403 388071","osGridRef":"SH424881"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1729 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 265
Page 255



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 221

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Hafan Deg

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosybol, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242517 389434","osGridRef":"SH425894"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.5532 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 266
Page 256



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 267

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Cae Cwta, Rhosybol

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosybol, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242359 388908","osGridRef":"SH424889"}
D Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4919 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

)
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 267
Page 257



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 19

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Swn y Fraint, Dwyran

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244975 365721","osGridRef":"SH450657"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.8452 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 268
Page 258



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 27

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tafarn Bridd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244165 367930","osGridRef":"SH442679"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7232 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 269
Page 259



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 66

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tir ger Fron Deg Isaf

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"244226 368017","osGridRef":"SH442680"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.3456 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 270
Page 260



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 130

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Helyg, Waen and Fron Niwbwrch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
oA, A Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242676 365680","0sGridRef":"SH427657"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

4.2696 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

e — —
50 100 150 200 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 271
Page 261



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 133

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Coch Erw Goch
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"242762 365900","osGridRef":"SH428659"}
“ Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

\ 0.3817 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 272
Page 262



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 139

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Plas

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242236 365934","0sGridRef":"SH422659"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.1904 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 273
Page 263



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 158

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Llain Cerrig Gwydd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242803 365904","osGridRef":"SH428659"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4365 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 274
Page 264



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 167

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj to Bryn Felin Newxborough

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"241759 366167","0osGridRef":"SH418662"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.1581 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 275
Page 265



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 179

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Pen-Lon

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj to the Wern, Penlon Niwbwrch

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243119 365099","osGridRef":"SH431651"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3104 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 276
Page 266



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 181

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Dafarn Bridd LLangaffo

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"243929 367613","0osGridRef":"SH439676"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.7086 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 BO 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 277
Page 267



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 236

Crown copyright & databé‘se,_[ights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOOD0E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Liwyn Celyn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Dwyran

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"245050 365712","osGridRef":"SH451657"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7564 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 278
Page 268



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 268

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Bryn Celyn, Llangaffo
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
Llangaffo
{"eastingNorthing":"244231 368325","0sGridRef":"SH442683"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.7656 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

-——
20 40 BO 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 279
Page 269



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 282

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adj to Tal y Braich

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242615 365328","0sGridRef":"SH426653"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.7182 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
20 40 60 20 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 280
Page 270



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 285

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Pen y Bonc Newborough

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Rhosyr, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"242369 365896","0sGridRef":"SH424659"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.8904 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

—-——
20 40 60 80 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 281
Page 271



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 38

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ynys y Gof

Location / Lleoliad:

A layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"226364 378852","0sGridRef":"SH264789"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

15.4589 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:
nM ANENG Residential / Preswy!

Page 282
Page 272



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 39

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjoining Overdale, Mill Road, Holyhead.

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"224370 380431","0sGridRef":"SH244804"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2823 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 283
Page 273



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 52

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land North of 6 Trearddur Mews

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225966 379861","0osGridRef":"SH260799"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.157 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 284
Page 274



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 82

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

The Old Cricket Field

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225760 378972","osGridRef":"SH258790"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

Trearddur 0.8773 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 285
Page 275



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 112

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

P

Trearddur Bay Recreation Ground
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

3owling Greer

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
FETI {"eastingNorthing":"225462 379277","osGridRef":"SH255793"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.3351 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 BO &80

Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 286
Page 276



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 115

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land North of 6 Trearddur Mews, Trearddur Bay

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"226001 379861","0osGridRef":"SH260799"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.5872 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 287
Page 277



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 118

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land North of 6 Trearddur Mews, Trearddur Bay

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225946 379861","0osGridRef":"SH259799"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2718 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 288
Page 278



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 138

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Beach Galf Caurse Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Site Adjacent to the Beach Golf Course

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"226045 378780","osGridRef":"SH260788"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4776 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 289
Page 279



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 147

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

PENRHYN GEIRIOL

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225463 380026","0sGridRef":"SH255800"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.4273 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 290
Page 280



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 154

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Eithiniog
& Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Q Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
& {"eastingNorthing":"225106 379702","0osGridRef":"SH251797"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.1896 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 291
Page 281



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 177

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordhance Survey ACOD00E25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Site Adjacent to the Beach Golf Course

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225976 378813","0sGridRef":"SH260788"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.3827 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 292
Page 282



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 208

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Vi Cap Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Morfa Site,

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225822 379187","osGridRef":"SH258792"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.7545 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

o
25 BO Y5 100 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 293
Page 283



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 259

Crown copyright &~database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOO00B25374
AL femanarch e Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Penrhos & Cae Glas
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"226874 379915","0osGridRef":"SH269799"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

46.5586 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

T
100 200 300 400 . .
" Residential / Preswyl

Page 294
Page 284



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 269

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACD000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

The Old Cricket Ground, Trearddur Bay

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225776 378978","osGridRef":"SH258790"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.441 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

O < Safeguard land / Diogelu tir

Page 295
Page 285



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 323

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ynys y Gof
Location / Lleoliad:
layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"226379 378860","osGridRef":"SH264789"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
& 15.4593 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

.
w50 1005150 200

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 296
Page 286



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 325

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ynys y Gof

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"226385 378856","0sGridRef":"SH264789"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

15.4586 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[
T Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 297
Page 287



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 338

Crown copyright & databasge rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
1 Cape Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Morfa Site

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trearddur, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"225822 379187","osGridRef":"SH258792"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.7496 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m 25 B0 75 100

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 298
Page 288



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 33

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Pant y Coli Carreglefn
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Tref Alaw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
layer: 12324, title: Mechell, description: none, policies: none, urls: none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"238333 388713","0sGridRef":"SH383887"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2386 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 299
Page 289



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 55

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Waen Capel

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Tref Alaw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235079 385521","0sGridRef":"SH351855"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.613 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 300
Page 290



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 56

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Cae Ffynnon, Elim

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Tref Alaw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235450 384691","0osGridRef":"SH355847"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.2742 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 301
Page 291



Reference / Cyfeirnod: 57

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374

Elim

Q

Candidate Sites Register

Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Plot 7 Ty Newydd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Tref Alaw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"235370 384854","0osGridRef":"SH354849"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.0545 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 302
Page 292



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 197

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Haulfryn

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Tref Alaw, description: none, policies: none, urls: none
Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"236375 383785","0osGridRef":"SH364838"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2125 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

——
20 40 60 80 . .
"l Residential / Preswyl

Page 303
Page 293



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 12

Crown copyright & databasze rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Ty corniog
Location / Lleoliad:

Gwalchmai Isaf

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"239065 376321","0osGridRef":"SH391763"}
- Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
‘ 1.7068 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 304
Page 294



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 88

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land adjacent to Llys Ainon, Gwalchmai
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"239018 376601","osGridRef":"SH390766"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.0116 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 305
Page 295



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 113

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
- Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Scotyn Bach
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"238513 376124","osGridRef":"SH385761"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2857 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 306
Page 296



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 123

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Bryn Cwr Gwalchmai
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"239781 376020","0osGridRef":"SH398760"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
1.0527 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 307
Page 297



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 184

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gwel y Felin
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"238606 376359","0osGridRef":"SH386764"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.241 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 308
Page 298



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 185

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Tan y Bryn, Gwalchmai
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"238584 376247","osGridRef":"SH386762"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.4475 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 309
Page 299



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 266

© Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gadleys Turnpike
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:

{"eastingNorthing":"239925 376021","0osGridRef":"SH399760"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.6103 ha
——— Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 310

Page 300



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 274

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Parc, Gwalchmai.
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"239017 376872","0osGridRef":"SH390769"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9593 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 311
Page 301



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 295

@ Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey AC0000825374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Gwalchmai Glebe
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"238944 376124","osGridRef":"SH389761"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):
0.2049 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N )
m 20 40 60 B0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 312
Page 302



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 332

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000525374
= Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Scotyn Bach
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"238513 376124","osGridRef":"SH385761"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.2809 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 313
Page 303



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 345

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Parc, Gwalchmai.
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Trewalchmai, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"239017 376872","0osGridRef":"SH390769"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.9593 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 314
Page 304



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 40

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
E Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

PABAS land to the south of station road
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"229074 378979","osGridRef":"SH291790"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

1.8887 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

Residential / Preswyl

Page 315
Page 305



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 41

Crown\g'hpyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00825374
& Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

K

Land opposite Bryn Hyfryd

Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"228958 378854","0osGridRef":"SH290789"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

3.9019 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[
m 20 40 EO 80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 316
Page 306



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 58

Crowrincopiright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Fields at Tabor Hall, Y Gorad, Valley Cae Rallt A Cae sgubor
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"229872 380580","osGridRef":"SH299806"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

o 10.362 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m B0 100 150 200

Residential / Preswyl

Page 317
Page 307



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 84

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00E25374
; Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Cleifiog Farm
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"229214 379941","osGridRef":"SH292799"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

5.8431 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 B0 &0

Residential / Preswyl

Page 318
Page 308



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 95

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACO000525374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Land at Valley Market, Valley
St Michael's Church Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
\ N {"eastingNorthing":"229157 379334","osGridRef":"SH292793"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

0.7423 ha
———— & Suggested Use / Defnydd & Awgrymir:
Residential / Preswyl
Page 319

Page 309



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 244

Crown copyright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

LAND AT LON SPENCER, VALLEY
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"228721 379090","0osGridRef":"SH287791"}

Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

2.6002 ha

Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

[ |
m 20 40 EBO @80

Residential / Preswyl

Page 320
Page 310



Candidate Sites Register
Reference / Cyfeirnod: 327

Crowrivcopiright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Fields at Tabor Hall, Y Gorad, Valley Cae Rallt A Cae sgubor
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"229872 380580","osGridRef":"SH299806"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

e 10.3623 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m B0 100 150 200

Employment/retail / Cyflogaeth/Manwerthu

Page 321
Page 311



Candidate Sites Register

Reference / Cyfeirnod: 329

Crowrinoopdright & database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey ACOD00B25374
Site Name / Enw’r Safle:

Fields at Tabor Hall, Y Gorad, Valley Cae Rallt A Cae sgubor
Location / Lleoliad:

layer: 12324, title: Y Fali / Valley, description: none, policies: none, urls:
none

Grid Reference / Cyfeirnod grid:
{"eastingNorthing":"229872 380581","0sGridRef":"SH299806"}
Size (ha) / Maint (ha):

o Morfa 10.36 ha
Suggested Use / Defnydd a Awgrymir:

N
m B0 100 150 200

Renewable energy / Ynni adnewyddadwy

Page 322

Page 312



Agenda Item 5

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Report to: Planning Policy Committee
Date: 15 January 2026
Subject: Draft Settlement Strategy Topic Paper
Portfolio Holder(s): CliIr. Nicola Roberts (Planning, Public Protection and
Climate Change)
Head of Service / Christian Branch
Director: Head of Regulation & Economic Development Service
Report Author: John I. Williams (Planning Policy Manager)
Tel:
E-mail: johnwilliams2@ynysmon.llyw.cymru
Local Members: Applicable to all Elected Members
1.0 Purpose of Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to introduce the draft Settlement Strategy Topic
Paper, which sets out the proposed settlement hierarchy as part of the
preparation of the new Local Development Plan (LDP), for initial discussion.
The paper:
e Reviews the current policy guidance in relation to the requirement to
undertake a settlement assessment to inform the emerging LDP;
e Reviews the approach taken in the existing JLDP methodology as well as
by neighbouring authorities;
e Outlines the assessment methodology undertaken to identifu the current
role of settlements within the Anglesey LPA area;
¢ |dentifies settlement tiers within which all settlements are categorised.
2.0 Decision required
2.1 That the Committee provides input into, and endorses the draft Settlement
Strategy Topic Paper as the basis for the settlement hierarchy to be used in the
emerging Anglesey LDP .
3.0 Planning Policy Context
3.1 The paper sets out the policy requirement to establish a settlement hierarchy

as part of the process of developing a LDP:

Page 323


mailto:johnwilliams2@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

e Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
e Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11 (2021)
e Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (March 2020)

Planning Policy guidance emphasises that an essential task with the creation
of any land use plan is the creation of the settlement hierarchy. It defines the
role of different settlements within an area and influences the distribution of the
plan’s housing and employment requirements.

The purpose of the Topic Paper is to assess and to identify settlements that
have the potential to accommodate future growth in terms of their location, role
and function. This involves an assessment of the current role and function of
settlements, as well as an understanding of the relationships between
settlements and their potential future roles.

The topic paper seeks to assess the role of settlements within the Plan Area
and subsequently group settlements into different tiers / types based upon their
role and function.

Settlement Strategy Methodology

The Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP was formally adopted by both Councils in
July 2017. The assessment underpinning the JLDP was carried out in February
2015 and the results informed the settlement hierarchy adopted by the Plan.

The approach taken in the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP was a detailed
assessment to identify the current role of centres within the JLDP area.
Different facilities and services were identified within each settlement and a
score was given for these. The score given to each settlement was then used
to categorise these settlements into different types of settlement within the area.
Individual settlements were subsequently placed in the relevant category with
a description of the type of development anticipated within such categories.

Following consideration of the approach undertaken for the Anglesey and
Gwynedd JLDP, the approach adopted by other Local Planning Authorities and
updated national planning policy guidelines, it was decided to base the
assessment under the following broad categories:

e Population Size

e Transport and Accessibility - the level of sustainable transport and
accessibility to transport networks in and around settlements.

e Employment Opportunities - the level of employment opportunities in and
around settlements.

e Services and Facilities - the availability of local services and facilities in
and around settlements.

Page 324



4.4

4.5

4.6

A total of 87 settlements have been included in the appraisal. The settlements
in Anglesey considered in the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP have been re-
assessed for the purposes of establishing a settlement hierarchy for the LDP.

To ensure that full consideration was given towards the different roles of
settlements, it was decided that a wide range of services be part of the
assessment. These were in six broad categories being Education, Health,
Leisure, Retail, Transport and Economy and includes the services that are part
of the Welsh Index of Multiple Depravation (2019) access to services.

The final indicators used for the purpose of the assessment were therefore as
follows:

Assessment Criteria Identified Service Facility

Population Size Number of Residents

Transport and . Transport Node
Accessibility . Bus Service

. Train Service

. Highway Network
Employment . Employment Site
Opportunities . Shops and Small Businesses

Services and Facilities Primary Schools
Secondary Schools
Doctor’s Surgery

Dentist

Library

Sports Facility/Leisure Centre
Post Office

Pharmacy

Broadband Coverage
Mobile Phone Coverage
Large Food Store
Convenience Food Shop
Hospital

Community Centre/Village Hall
Public House
Café/Restaurant/Takeaway
Bank/Building Society
Petrol Station

College

Cash Point

Place of Worship

Optician

(Services identified in WIMD
2019 in bold)

Page 325



4.7

4.8

5.0
5.1

Cinema/Theatre
Other Retail Shop
Nursery/Playgroup
Police Station

Fire Station

A desktop assessment of existing services and facilities was undertaken for all
settlements early in 2025. The desktop study, using available data by means
of local knowledge, information on the internet and the Council’'s mapping
system was used to establish a baseline of facilities and services that are known
to be present within the settlements, such as the location of village halls,
doctors’ surgeries, post offices, bus stops and employment opportunities.

Each settlement was then assessed against a scoring system and ranked
according to its overall score. The ranking provides an initial quantitative
sustainability assessment which is limited to the measurable factors identified.
These criteria have graded the settlements and shaped the hierarchy so that
development is directed to sustainable settlements. Such settlements ensure
that alongside homes, jobs and transport infrastructure, all local people have
ready access to those services and facilities they need for their everyday lives
and that contribute positively to the health and well-being of the community.
Many factors influence the community’s health, including lifestyles, the living
environment, the opportunities to exercise and the access to health facilities,
education, community facilities, childcare, provision for youths, sporting
facilities, natural green spaces and open space. A wider sense of well-being is
influenced by a variety of factors such as opportunities for work and recreation,
personal relations, feelings of safety and community.

Settlement Tiers

The next stage of the settlement hierarchy assessment was to identify the broad
categories of settlements that exist within the Plan area. Five broad categories
of settlements within the Plan area have been identified. The tiers set out within
the settlement hierarchy are as follows:

e Sub-regional Service Centre - Centres which have a comprehensive
range of employment, retail, community and service facilities that serve their
own population as well as a wide catchment area;

¢ Urban Service Centre - Centres that provide the essential service needs of
own population and the wider catchment area. Have a relatively high number
and variety of employment, retail, service and community opportunities that
serve their own population as well as a wide catchment area. Has good
public transport links.

e Local Service Centres - Centres that provide the essential service needs
of own population and immediate catchment area. Has some employment,

Page 326



5.2

5.3

54

6.0

retail, service and community opportunities and good accessibility by public
transport to higher order centres;

¢ Villages — settlements that have at least one of the identified Key Services
and a limited number of other services that serve the settlement and lower
level Clusters in its immediate vicinity;

e Clusters - these are mostly small settlements containing a tight, sufficient
and easily defined cluster of houses. However, none of the clusters contain
a sufficient supply of facilities or services and are therefore dependent on
higher order centres;

¢ Undefined Rural Settlements — these settlements have no development
boundary and instead, development is guided by national and local policies
designed to protect the countryside.

The cut off point between each tier has been determined using professional
planning judgement based on the general sustainability of settlements. The cut
off points also occur at natural breaks in the data.

Based on the scoring for each settlement assessed, all settlement were
subsequently grouped into different tiers based upon their role and function.
The majority of settlements have remained within their relative tiers as
categorised in the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP. Where settlements have been
upgraded to a higher tier, it means that the services and facilities (as identified
in the assessment methodology) that are available in those settlements have
increased in number/availability since the situation in the JLDP. Conversely,
where settlements have been downgraded to a lower tier, the
availability/number of those facilities/services have reduced. The following
settlements have been re-classified to reflect the results of the scoring
methodology used for this assessment:

¢ Holyhead has been re-classified as a Sub-regional Centre;

e Menai Bridge has been upgraded from a Local Service Centre to an Urban
Service Centre;

e Brynsiencyn and Penysarn have been upgraded from Local Villages to
Service Villages;

¢ Newborough has been downgraded from a Service Village to a Local
Village;

e Pentre Canol, Pentre Berw and Rostrehwfa have been upgraded from a
Cluster to a Local Village;

e Llanrhuddlad, Pencaernisiog, Carreglefn, Llanfaethlu, Llanddona, and
Llanbedrgoch have been downgraded from Villages to Clusters.

The Settlement Strategy Topic Paper will inform the Growth Strategy of the new
Plan in due course.

Questions to Consider

Page 327



7.0
7.1

Question 1 - Should all the present settlements be considered whilst
developing the new hierarchy? Should any additional settlements be
considered for inclusion?

Question 2 — Are there any other facilities / services that should be considered
in the assessment?

Question 3 - Do you agree with this process for assessing the settlements?

Recommendation

It is recommended that Members consider and endorse the draft Settlement
Hierarchy methodology which is included in Appendix 1.

Page 328



CYNGOR SIR ynysmon.llyw.cymru
YNYS MON anglesey.gov.wale
ISLE OF ANGLESEY

—— COUNTY COUNCIL

Ynys Mon Local
Development Plan

Topic Paper 4:
Settlement Strategy

m Anglesey County Council X angleseycouncil n angleseycouncil angleseycouncil

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn y Gymraeg
This document is also available in Welsh.




Background

This is one of a range of topic papers prepared to offer more detailed information and
explain the approach of the Plan to different topics and issues affecting the Anglesey Local
Development Plan (LDP) Area. This paper will look specifically at developing the settlement
strategy. It will explain the background which will help to identify the issues, objectives and
options for the LDP.

The Local Development Plan (LDP) shapes the future growth of communities in the Local
Development Plan Area and will set out the policies and land allocations against which
planning applications will be assessed.

The purpose of this assessment is to identify settlements that have the potential to
accommodate future growth in terms of their location, role and function. This involves an
assessment of the current role and function of settlements, as well as an understanding of
the relationships between settlements and their potential future roles

The topic paper will seek to assess the role of settlements within the Plan Area and
subsequently group settlements into different tiers / types based upon their role and
function.

The paper should be read in conjunction with the Growth and Spatial Distribution Topic
Papers which provide the link on housing and economic supply figures throughout the
county.

Page 330



. Introduction

. National Planning Policy

. Settlement Hierarchy Assessment Methodology in

Other Authorities

. Settlement Appraisal Methodology For The Anglesey

LDP

. Settlement Tiers

CONTENTS

Page 331

Page

11

25



11

1.2

1.3

14

Introduction

A key requirement for the new Anglesey Local Development Plan (LDP) is to
establish a Sustainable Settlement Hierarchy. The purpose of a Sustainable
Settlement Hierarchy is to ensure that the right development takes place in theright
locations with the best access to a wide range of services, facilities, and employment
opportunities, whilst minimising car usage and the need to travel.

This paper uses the principles of sustainability to assess the hierarchy of settlements
to establish the most suitable locations for new development. It identifies the
national objectives to be considered in establishing a settlement hierarchy and
compares these with key local characteristics of the area.

The adopted Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan set a settlement
hierarchy based on analysis of the characteristics of each settlement. The hierarchy
and policies within the Plan controlled the rate and location of new development.

There is a need to review the settlement hierarchy in the new LDP for the following
reasons:

e Theneed to ensure that the LDP has regard to local and national planning policy
including the Future Wales the National Plan 2040;

e The need to ensure that the LDP is consistent, as far as practical, with LDP’s
produced by neighbouring authorities;

¢ Some settlements have experienced losses/gains in community facilities, which
may impact on their overall sustainability and capacity to accommodate future
growth.

1

Page 332



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

National Planning Policy

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040

Future Wales: The National Plan 2040 (Future Wales) is a development plan, which
outlines how Wales will change over the period 2020-2040. This relates to both
urban and rural development. One of the visions contained in the Plan states that “In
rural areas, job opportunities and community services will be supported to help attract and
retain people. A balance will be found between development and preserving the character
of rural Wales, ensuring our small towns and villages have bright futures as attractive
places to live and work. The rural economy will be thriving and communities will be well
connected digitally and physically.”

The Plan states that “The spatial strategy and settlement hierarchy of a development
plan are powerful tools in influencing where growth is located and how much land is
developed. They define whether development will be concentrated in one place or
dispersed across a wide area. These aspects of a plan determine whether the size and
character of a place remain constant or are gradually changed, whether people live in
places near or far away from places of work, and whether they need a car to access day-to-
day services and community facilities. These are important decisions, affecting people’s
quality of life and influencing how resilient places are.”

Future Wales identifies Anglesey as being within the North Region which also
includes Gwynedd, Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham. Within the
North Region, Future Wales identifies the following Regional Growth Areas:

e Holyhead

e Caernarfon and Bangor

e Llandudno and Colwyn Bay
e Rhyland Prestatyn

Only Holyhead is located within the Anglesey LPA. Policy 21 supports sustainable
growth and regeneration in regionally important towns along the northern Coast.
Holyhead, Caernarfon, Bangor, Llandudno, Colwyn Bay, Rhyl and Prestatyn will be a
focus for managed growth and they have an important subregional role
complementing the National Growth Area of Wrexham and Deeside. It advises that
Local Development Plans should recognise the roles of these places as a focus for
housing, employment, tourism, public transport and key services within their wider
areas and support their continued function as focal points for subregional growth.

2

Page 333



Diagram 1: Regional Strategy for the North Region (Future Wales)

7 Londudne Colwyn Prestotyn
Holybead .4 ) Bay A
syt ® @ © Mostyn
Bangor —
® Y ,t, Iy
= ’ ) i
e e @ Deeside
Coernarton @ 8 Mola @

Porthmodeg @ 1 .gan
@ Pwihell ’ _Scoes Wrexham

and Deeside Tiawslyraod *

Dolgetion @ =+ o ¢

ES

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 11 (2021)

25 PPW sets out the land use planning policies and overarching sustainable
development goals for Wales. PPW does not provide specific guidance on
establishing a settlement hierarchy for LDP’s.

2.6  Toachieve sustainable placemaking PPW states that development plans should:

e identify areas and sites for new development...based not only on the
consideration of the needs of existing urban and rural areas but also future
relationships between urban settlements and their rural hinterlands,
particularly in the light of ensuring strong rural and urban communities,
maintaining places which are resilient to the effects of social and economic
change and are resilient in the light of the impacts of climate change (para 3.41);

e include a spatial strategy covering the lifetime of the plan which establishes a
pattern of development improving social, economic, environmental and cultural
well-being (para 3.42);

e prioritise the use of suitable and sustainable previously developed land and/or
underutilised sites for all types of development (para 3.43);

e promote viable urban and rural retail and commercial centres as the most
sustainable locations to live, work, shop, socialise and conduct business (para
4.3.3);

3

Page 334



2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

e ensure new development is located and designed in a way which minimises the
need to travel, reduces dependency on the private car and enables sustainable
access to employment, local services and community facilities (para 4.0.3);

e conserve and, where possible, enhance the countryside for the sake of its
ecological, geological, physiographic, historical, archaeological, cultural and
agricultural value and for its landscape and natural resources...balanced against
the economic, social and recreational needs of local communities and visitors
(para 3.38); and

e foster adaptability and resilience for rural places in the face of the considerable
challenge of maintaining the vibrancy of communities and availability of services
as well as contributing to the Cohesive Communities well-being goal (para. 3.38).

PPW also seeks to emphasise the link between the number of homes to be provided
and the expected job opportunities, as well as the location of any new development
in relation to existing or planned infrastructure. This is seen as important to
minimise the need to travel, reduce private car reliance and increase opportunities
for cycling, walking and the use of public transport. Development plans are deemed
to “...provide the main means for achieving integration between land use and transport
planning” (para 4.1.5).

Paragraph 3.40 states that “Local service centres, or clusters of smaller settlements
where a sustainable functional linkage can be demonstrated, should be designated by local
authorities as the preferred locations for most new development including housing and
employment provision. The approach should be supported by the service delivery plans of
local service providers.”

Paragraph 3.51 advises that higher densities should be encouraged in urban centres
and near major public transport nodes or interchanges, to generate a critical mass of
people to support services such as public transport, local shops and schools.

At the same time, PPW recognises that for most rural areas the opportunities for
reducing private vehicle use and increasing walking, cycling and use of public
transport are more limited than in urban areas. Consequently, it advises that,
“Development in the countryside should be located within and adjoining those settlements
where it can best be accommodated in terms of infrastructure, access, habitat, and
landscape conservation. Infilling or minor extensions to existing settlements may be
acceptable, in particular where they meet a local need for affordable housing or it can be
demonstrated that the proposal will increase local economic activity. However, new
building in the open countryside away from existing settlements or areas allocated for

4

Page 335



211

212

2.13

2.14

development in development plans must continue to be strictly controlled. All new
development should be of a scale and design that respects the character of the surrounding
area” (Para 3.1.2).

Paragraph 3.39 of PPW states that in rural areas most new development should be
located in settlements which have relatively good accessibility by non-car modes
when compared to the rural area as a whole. Development in these areas should
embrace the national sustainable placemaking outcomes and, where possible, offer
good active travel connections to the centres of settlements to reduce the need to
travel by car for local journeys.

The wording of PPW indicates the value that should be given to the open
countryside and the protection of it. Development boundaries therefore provide an
opportunity for policy to direct development towards more sustainable locations,
avoiding impacts on the open countryside.

Development Plans Manual Edition 3 (March 2020)

Paragraph 5.1.5 of the development Plans Manual advises that “LPAs should consider
the most practicable way of presenting the results of the assessments, such as scoring
system, or RAG (Red, Amber or Green) analysis. This assessment should form the basis for
the settlement hierarchy, identifying which settlements are most sustainable and have
capacity to deliver growth”.

In summary, therefore, the key messages from national guidance and existing
documents are that:

Most development should be directed to existing settlements to help maximise
accessibility to employment, education and services by walking, cycling and public
transport.

The focus for development should be in urban areas and key service centres that are
well served by public transport and other services and facilities. Development may
be provided for in villages and other small rural communities where needed to
contribute to their sustainability and wellbeing goals.

Inrural areas, development should be focused on settlements that can act as centres
for surrounding areas.

Settlement Hierarchy Assessment Methodology in Other Authorities

5

Page 336



3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

Existing JLDP Methodology

This section reviews the Settlement Hierarchy contained within the current
Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP for contextual purposes. The Anglesey and Gwynedd
JLDP was formally adopted by both Councils in July 2017. The assessment
underpinning the JLDP was carried out in February 2015 and the results informed
the settlement hierarchy adopted by the Plan.

The approach taken in the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP was a detailed assessment
to identify the current role of centres within the JLDP area. Different facilities and
services were identified within each settlement and a score was given for these. The
score given to each settlement was then used to categorise these settlements into
different types of settlement within the area. Individual settlements were
subsequently placed in the relevant category with a description of the type of
development anticipated within such categories.

The methodology used was based on i) size of settlements; ii) the range of services
and facilities present; and iii) public transport provision. Scoring of each settlement
was based upon the type of services as defined by the Welsh Index of Multiple
Deprivation with certain services given a higher score dependent upon their size; a
higher score given for a number of certain services in a settlement; and for certain
services their individual score is multiplied by the number of services available in a
settlement.

This led to a 6-tier settlement hierarchy which is shown in table 1 and diagram 2
below:

e Sub-regional Centre (1 settlement - not in Anglesey)

e Urban Service Centres (7 settlements - 3 in Anglesey)

e Local Service Centres (20 settlements - 10 in Anglesey)

e Service Villages (11 settlements - 3 in Anglesey)

e Local Rural & Coastal Villages (76 settlements - 30 in Anglesey)
e Clusters (87 settlements - 42 in Anglesey).

The JLDP defined development boundaries around the Sub-Regional Centre, Urban
Service Centres, Local Service Centres, and Service/ Local/ Coastal/ Rural Villages.
Clusters do not have development boundaries. Here development is required to
relate well to the existing built form, which is shown on the Proposals Maps by
colouring buildings that form their core. Development boundaries and Clusters
were drawn in order to:

6

Page 337



i) Prevent unacceptable development in the countryside and provide certainty and
clarity as to where the exception policies (on the edge of settlements) could be
applied;

ii) Avoid the coalescence of settlements or parts of the same settlement, new ribbon
development or a fragmented development pattern;

iii) Identify areas where development proposals could be approved; and
iv) to promote the efficient and appropriate use of land.
Table 1: Settlement Hierarchy in the Anglesey and Gwynedd
JLDP - Anglesey settlements only

Adopted LDP (2011 - 2026) Settlement Hierarchy

Urban Service Centres

Amlwch, Holyhead, LIangefni

Local Service Centres

Benllech, Bodedern, Cemaes, Gaerwen, Llanfair Pwllgwyngyll, Menai Bridge, Pentraeth,
Valley, Beaumaris, Rhosneigr

Service Villages

Gwalchmai, Newborough, Llanerchymedd

Local Villages

Bethel, Bodffordd, Bryngwran, Brynsiencyn, Caergeiliog, Dwyran, Llandegfan,
Llanddaniel-fab, Llanfachraeth, LIanfaethlu, Llanfechell, LIanfihangel-yn-Nhywyn,
Llangaffo, Llangristiiolus, Llanrhuddlad, Pencaernisiog, Penysarn, Rhosybol, Talwrn,
Tregele

Coastal / Rural Villages

Aberffraw, Carreglefn, Llanbedrgoch, Llanddona, Llanfaelog, Llangoed, Malltraeth, Four
Mile Bridge, Moelfre, Trearddur bay

Clusters

Bodorgan, Bro larddur (Trearddur Bay), Bryn Du, Brynminceg (Old Llandegfan),
Brynrefail, Brynteg, Bryny Mor (Valley), Bwlch Gwyn, Capel Coch, Capel Mawr, Carmel,
Cerrig-man, Cichle, Glan-yr-afon (LIangoed), Glyn Garth, Gaerwen Station, Haulfre
(Llangoed), Hebron, Hendre Hywel (Pentraeth), Hermon, Llan-faes, Llangadwaladr,
Llansadwrn, Llanynghened|, Llynfaes, Marian-glas, Nebo, Pen y Marian, Penlon, Penmon,
Pentre Berw, Pentre Canol (Holyhead), Bull Bay, Rhoscefnhir, Rhos-meirch,

7

Page 338



Rhostrehwfa, Rhyd-wyn, Star, Red Wharf Bay, Trefor, Tyn Lon (Glan yr Afon), Tyn-y-
gongl

Diagram 2: Distribution of settlements in the JLDP:

Nodiant / Notation

Canolifan Is-Ranbarthol
'."\. Sub-Regional Centres

.

A . Canolfannau Gwasanaeth Trefol
(( - p .. = \:!r . Urban Service Centres
) A .

% - P g, VO &
. e o7 Canolfannau Gwasanaeth Lleol
T NI o * 3 o
0

¥4 Local Service Centres

Gwasanaeth Pentrefi
Service Villages

Pentrefi Lieol
Local Villages

Pentrefi Arfordirol / Gwledig
Coastal / Rural Villages

. Clystyrau
Clusters

Parc Cenedlasthol Eryni
Snowdonia National Park

Approach in Neighbouring Local Planning Authorities

3.6  This section reviews the approach undertaken in neighbouring authorities for
comparison purposes, before outlining the agreed approach for undertaking an
assessment of the current role of settlements within the Anglesey Plan Area. Below

is a summary of the approach undertaken in neighbouring authorities in creating
their own settlement strategy:

8

Page 339



Table 2: Settlement Hierarchy Methodology in Neighbouring Authorities

Local Planning Authority

Approach Undertaken

Conwy Local Development Plan
2018-2033

A tiered process is adopted to group
settlements of similar characteristics in
terms of population size, facilities, growth
pressures and available services.

The Plan follows a six-tier approach as
follows:

- Urban Areas

- Key Service Centre

- Tier One Main Villages
- Tier Two Main Villages
- Minor Villages

-Hamlets

Eryri Local Development Plan
2016-2031

Three elements looked at being:

e Services and facilities
e Public transport provision
e Estimated population of settlements

This led to a 4-tier settlement hierarchy as
follows:

e Local Service Centres (2 settlements)

e Service Settlements (5 settlements)

e Secondary Settlements (39
settlements)

e Smaller Settlements (29 settlements)

9

Page 340




Denbighshire Replacement Local Settlements were classified with
Development Plan 2018-2033 consideration given to the following
factors:

e Sijze of settlement
e Available services
e Transport provision

This led to a 5-tier settlement hierarchy as
follows:

e Main Centre (6 settlements)

e Local centre (5 settlements)

e Village (21 settlements)

e Unserviced villages (7 settlements)

e Open countryside (all other
settlements)

Powys Classification of settlements based on 4
principles:

e Transport provision and accessibility

e Availability of local facilities and
services

¢ Level of employment opportunities

e Broadband provision within
settlements.

This led to a 6-tier settlement hierarchy.

Whilst variations exist in the methodology undertaken by different authorities,
there are certain factors that form part of the assessment used by all authorities
namely:

e size of settlements;
e range of services and facilities; and
e public transport provision.

10

Page 341



4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Settlement Appraisal Methodology For The Anglesey LDP

Methodology
This chapter outlines the detailed assessment undertaken to identify the current

role of settlements within the Anglesey LPA area. A total of 88 settlements have
been included in the appraisal. The settlements in Anglesey considered in the
Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP have been re-assessed for the purposes of
establishing a settlement hierarchy for the LDP.

Following consideration of the approach undertaken for the Anglesey and Gwynedd
JLDP, the approach adopted by other Local Planning Authorities and updated
national planning policy guidelines, it was decided to base the assessment under the
following broad categories:

e Population Size

e Transport and Accessibility - the level of sustainable transport and
accessibility to transport networks in and around settlements.

e Employment Opportunities - the level of employment opportunities in and
around settlements.

e Services and Facilities - the availability of local services and facilities in and
around settlements.

To ensure that full consideration was given of the different roles of settlements, it
was decided that a wide range of services be part of the assessment. These were in
six broad categories, these being Education, Health, Leisure, Retail, Transport and
Economy and includes the services that are part of the Welsh Index of Multiple
Depravation (2019) access to services.

Identifying key services and giving greater weight to these should provide clarity in
categorising settlements, especially for smaller settlements which have fewer
facilities than the larger centres. The Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD)
2019 collects data based on access to services. The access to services domain
contains nine indicators of travel time to various services and facilities considered
necessary for day to day living. These services include public and private travel
times to food shops, GP surgeries, primary and secondary schools, post offices,
public libraries, pharmacies, petrol stations, and sports facilities.

A digital services indicator was newly added in WIMD 2019, measuring access to
superfast broadband. Digital connectivity is becoming increasingly important to

11

Page 342



4.6

4.7

consider both in the context of wider settlement connectivity as well as the growing
importance of people working from home. In WIMD 2019, digital access was
measured though access to superfast broadband (speeds of at least 30Mbs), with the
indicator being the proportion of residential properties in a Lower Super Output
Areaunableto achieve these speeds. This speed is considered the minimum required
to be able to carry out online tasks essential to day-to-day life.

In order to ensure consistency, it is suggested that the services and facilities
identified in the settlement hierarchy methodology be broadly the same as the nine
indicators used in the WIMD.

The final indicators used for the purpose of the assessment were therefore as
follows:

Assessment Criteria Identified Service Facility

Population Size e Number of Residents

Transport and Accessibility Transport Node
Bus Service
Train Service

Highway Network

Employment Opportunities

Employment Site
e Shops and Small Businesses

Services and Facilities Primary Schools
Secondary Schools
Doctor’s Surgery
Dentist

Library

Sports Facility/Leisure Centre
Post Office

Pharmacy

Broadband Coverage
Mobile Phone Coverage
Large Food Store
Convenience Food Shop
Hospital

(Services identified in WIMD 2019 in
bold)

Community Centre/Village Hall

12

Page 343



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

e PublicHouse

e Café/Restaurant/Takeaway
Bank/Building Society
Petrol Station
College

Cash Point

Place of Worship
Optician
Cinema/Theatre
Other Retail Shop
Nursery/Playgroup
Police Station

e Fire Station

A desktop assessment of existing services and facilities was undertaken for all
settlements early in 2025. The desktop study, using available data by means of local
knowledge, information on the internet and the Council’s mapping system was used
to establish a baseline of facilities and services that are known to be present within
the settlements, such as the location of village halls, doctors’ surgeries, post offices,
bus stops and employment opportunities.

Each settlement was then assessed against a scoring system and ranked according
to its overall score. The ranking provides an initial quantitative sustainability
assessment which is limited to the measurable factors identified. These criteria have
graded the settlements and shaped the hierarchy so that development is directed to
sustainable settlements.

Scoring System

The Development Plans Manual (2020) suggests either using a scoring system or
RAG analysis (Red, Amber, Green analysis) to present the results of the assessment.
For continuity purposes, and as the original methodology used in the JLDP process
is still considered robust, the same scoring methodology used in the JLDP has been
adopted for each of the broad categories outlined in paragraph 4.2. Appendix 1
outlines the source and method used to collect data relating to each assessment
category.

It was considered that giving the same score for each service would be too simplistic
and could lead to problems in identifying variations between medium and smaller
settlements in terms of their role in the area.

Certain services are given a scaled score based upon the size of the service. This
method allows for a higher score to be given towards larger facilities within certain

13

Page 344



centres. Due to the difficulty in gathering information and the suitability of
categorising certain services this will not be suitable for all the facilities considered
in this assessment. The following services will have a score based on their size:

e populationsize;
e largefood store;
e busservice;

e trainservice; and
e employment.

4.13 Itwas considered that a higher score should be provided for the number of the same
service within a settlement. This option would ensure that there is variation in the
score between settlements with a different number of facilities. This should ensure
greater variation between different settlement types to make it easier to categorise
them. The following services will have a variation score based upon the number of
these within a settlement:

e nursery/playgroup;

e college;

e hospital;

e pharmacy;
e optician;

e community centre/ village hall;
e cinema/theatre;

e place of worship;

e largefood stores;

e public house;

e otherretail shops;

e petrol station;

e bank /building society; and

e cash point.

4.14 For most of the key services identified in paragraph 4.4 above, their score should be
multiplied by the number of services in a settlement e.g. if primary schools score
4pts each then a total score of 12pts would be given if there are 3 primary schools in
asettlement. The following services’ score will be multiplied based upon the number
of services within a settlement:

14

Page 345



e primary school;
e secondary school;
e doctor’s surgery;

e dentist;
e leisure Centre;
e library;

e post office;

4.15 Thetable below identifies the services and facilities that are included within this
methodology and the basis of their scoring.

Table 3 Scoring Methodology Applied to Identify Role of Centres Within the LDP Area

Service Scored Basis of Score
Key Service (as | Score based on Number of units
identified in size of service given a higher
WIMD) score
Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
Transport Node X X X
Bus Service X v X
Train Service X v X
Highway Network X X X
Availability of Local Services and Facilities

Primary Schools v X X
Secondary Schools v X X
Doctor’s Surgery v X X
Dentist v X X
Library v X X
Leisure Centre v X X
Post Office v X X
Pharmacy v X X
Broadband v X X
Coverage

Large Food Store X v v
Hospital X X v
Community Centre X X v
Public Houses X X v
Bank / Building X X v
Society

Petrol Station X X v
College X X v

15

Page 346



4.16

Cash Point

Place of Worship
Optician

Cinema/ Theatre
Other Retail Shops
Nursery / Playgroup
Police Station

Fire Station

XXX XX XXX
XXX XXX | XX
IR SENENE N NN

ities

=

Employment Opportu
Employment Site v

Shops and Small v
Businesses

<<
<X

Population
Estimated X v X
Population

Scoring of Individual Services
Transport and Accessibility

Transport and Accessibility focuses on sustainable transport on the basis that its
provision reduces the need to travel by car and enables access to a wider range of
amenities by sustainable transport modes. It also assesses accessibility to transport
networks. In order to measure the principles, the following factors have been
assessed:

e thefrequency of public transport services within / in proximity to a settlement;
e accessibility to a railway station; and
e asettlement’s proximity to a strategic highway network.

Table 4: Scoring System for Sustainable Transport and Accessibility

Transport Node

Method For the purposes of this assessment they have been defined
as a settlement that has either:

(i) main Bus Route and Railway Station in the settlement; or
(ii) more than one Main Bus Route passing through the
settlement.

Main bus route is based on maps in the Anglesey bus
timetable.

Scoring System | 3ptsifitisa Transport Node

Bus Service within settlement

Method \ Each Monday to Friday journey in any direction has been

16

Page 347



recorded. This gives an overall total number of daily journeys
Scoring System | O=0pt

1to11=1pt
12to 19 = 2pts
20+ = 3pts
Train Service
Method Each Monday to Friday journey in any direction has been

recorded. This gives an overall total number of daily journeys
for each settlement with a rail station.

Scoring System | O=0pt

1to11=1pt

12to 19 = 2pts

20+ = 3pts

Proximity of settlement to the strategic highway network
Scoring System | Less than 3 miles = 3pts

Between 3 and 5 miles = 2pts

Greater than 5 miles = Opts

Employment Opportunities

4.17 This principle relates to employment opportunities in or around settlements. This
gives an indication of the economic sustainability of a settlement, including the
potential to reduce the distance needed to travel to work. In order to measure the
above, the following factors have been assessed:

e Proximity of settlement to employment sites;
e Number of shops and small businesses in the settlement

Table 5: Scoring System for Employment Opportunities

Employment Site

Method Active Employment Site within the settlement

Scoring System | Safeguarded Employment Site within Settlement = 10 pts
Less than 3 miles = 5 pts

Between 3 - 5 miles = 2 pts

Greater than 5 miles = Opts

Shops and Small Businesses

Method Centres categorised based upon the scale of employment in
the centre. Whilst not exclusive, below is the broad guide for
this categorisation:

None (D) - no shops or businesses in the settlement.

17

Page 348



Small (B) - 2 shops / businesses and /or a workplace such as a
primary school.

Medium (C) - 3 or 4 shops with workshops and a workplace
such as a primary school.

Large (M) - A number of shops and small businesses with a
large employment estate

Scoring System | None (D) = Opt
Small (B) = 2pts
Medium (C) = 5pts
Large (M) = 10pts

Services and Facilities

4.18 This principle considers the ability of a settlement to provide for the daily needs of
residents by assessing the availability of services and facilities including digital
connectivity. Each settlement has been analysed in terms of the number and range
of services and facilities available as follows:

Table 6: Scoring System for Availability of Key Facilities and Services

KEY SERVICES
(As identified in WIMD 2019)

Primary Schools

Method Identify how many schools were within individual
settlements. Only those within 800 metres to the edge of the
settlement were chosen.This means that some of the area’s
schools fall into the open countryside.

Scoring System | 4pts for each school

Secondary Schools
Method Identify how many schools were within individual
settlements. Only those within 800 metres to the edge of the
settlement were chosen this means that some schools fall into
the open countryside.

Scoring System | 5pts for each school.

Doctor’s Surgery
Method Identify all those settlements which contain a GP surgery
Scoring System | 3pts for each surgery.

18

Page 349



Dentist

Method

Identify all settlements with a Dentist surgery

Scoring System

3pts for each surgery.

Library

Method

Identify those listed on the Council’s website as libraries
within individual settlements.

Scoring System

3pts for each library

Leisure centre

Method

Identify those listed on the Council’s website as leisure
centres within the area.

Scoring System

3pts for each Leisure centre

Post Office

Method

It involved counting all the post offices within the area even if
they are only open on certain days in a week. Mobile post
office services and post offices within other shops have also
been counted.

Scoring System

3pts for each post office

Convenience Sho

p

Method

Any convenience shop within a centre should be given 3pts
but not to multiply this by the number of convenience shops
in a Settlement for weighting purposes..

Scoring System

3pts if the settlement has a convenience shop.

Pharmacy

Method

Consideration is given within this assessment to pharmacies
which are part of an associated shop selling pharmaceutical
Products.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts

Broadband Coverage

Method

Broadband coverage - % of premises receiving (1) superfast
broadband speeds (30-100MB/s) and (2) ultrafast broadband
speeds (>100MB/s).

Scoring System

+95% premises receiving superfast broadband = 1 pts

+50% premises receiving ultrafast broadband = 2 pts

OTHER SERVICES

19

Page 350




Large Food Store

Method

Based upon stores of over 500 square metres floorspace.

Scoring System | O=0pt
1=1pt
2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts
Hospital
Method Identify all those settlements which contain either a

Community Hospital or a General Hospital

Scoring System

Community Hospital = 3pts

Community Centre

Method

Number of village halls / community centres in the
settlement.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts

Public Houses

Method

Number of public houses within the settlement.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt
2to5=2pts
6+ = 3pts

Bank / Building Society

Method

Number of facilities within the settlement.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts

Petrol Station

Method

Identify those in settlements or within 800 metres of a
settlement.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts

College

20

Page 351




Method

Identify settlements which contain a College site.

Scoring System

Further Education College = 3pts
Higher Education College = 8pts

Cash Point

Method

For the purpose of this work it is only those that are available
24 hours a day that have been assessed.

Scoring System

0=0pt
1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts

Place of Worship

Method

Count the number in each individual settlement.

Scoring System | O =0pt
1=1pt
2to 5 =2pts
6+ = 3pts
Optician
Method Identification over the number of opticiansin each
settlement.
Scoring System | O=0pt
1=1pt
2to5=2pts
6+ = 3pts
Cinema/ Theatre
Method Number of cinemas and/or theatres in each settlement.

Scoring System

0 =0pt
1=1pt

2to 5=2pts
6+ = 3pts

Other Retail Shops

Method

Shops that would be counted as being in another category
were not counted within this category e.g. convenience shop,
optician etc. The primary use of a unit is considered in
defining whether it is categorised as a shop for this
assessment.

Scoring System

0 =Opts
1to5=1pt
6to 10 = 5pts
11+ =10pts

21

Page 352




Nursery / Playgroups

Method Counting how many different groups e.g. playgroups, pre-
schools etc. were within a particular settlement.

Scoring System | O =0pts

1=1pt

2to 5 =2pts

6+ = 3pts.

Police Station
Method Identify those within settlements.
Scoring System | 1pt for each police station

Fire Station
Method Identify those within settlements.
Scoring System | 1pt for each police station

Mobile Phone Coverage

Method Mobile phone coverage - (EE, Vodaphone, O2 and Three)
Scoring System | 4G - signal with 2 or more networks = 1 pts

5G - signal with 2 or more networks = 1 pts

4.19 The Development Plans Manual (2020) recommends that the size of a settlement be
taken into account in the settlement assessment. In order to do this, the size of the
settlement will be considered in apportioning the growth within each tier. For the
purposes of this assessment, population numbers are derived from the 2021 Census
using output areas which constitute each settlement. The scoring for population
size has been applied based on the categories set out in Table 7 below.

Table 7: Scoring System for Population Size

Population Size Score
0-100

101 - 250
251- 500

501 - 1,000
1,001 - 2,500
2,501 - 5,000
5,001 +

NN B WIN (-

420 The range of services in each settlement was gathered in line with their
categorisation as outlined in Appendix 1. Table 8 below provides the overall score

22

Page 353



for each settlement. Appendix 2 provides a detailed schedule of settlements and the
points allocated to the range of facilities and services found in each one.

Table 8: Settlement Scores

Settlement Score Settlement Score
Holyhead 141 Llanbedrgoch 17
Llangefni 128 Bull Bay 17
Amlwch 93 Rhosmeirch 17
Menai Bridge 89 Gaerwen Station 16
Llanfair PG 70 Star 16
Beaumaris 66 Bryny Mor 15

(Valley)
Benllech 64 Nebo 15
Valley 60 Llanddona 14
Cemaes 53 Llanfaes 14
Gaerwen 52 Red Wharf Bay 14
Rhosneigr 49 Bodorgan 13
Bodedern 44 Bo Larddur 13

(Trearddur Bay)
Pentraeth 42 Brynteg 13
Llannerchymedd 40 Bwlch Gwyn 13
Trearddur Bay 38 Cerrigman 13
Gwalchmai 36 Glyn Garth 13
Penysarn 36 Llynfaes 13
Brynsiencyn 34 Rhoscefnhir 13
Llandegfan 33 Trefor 13
Llanfechell 32 Bynminceg 12
Moelfre 31 Brynrefail 12
Rhosybol 31 Tynygongl 12
Caergeiliog 30 Marianglas 12
Llanfihangel- yn 30 Llanrhyddlad 11
Nhywyn
Bodffordd 29 Pencarnisiog 11
Bryngwran 29 Bryn Du 11
Newborough 28 Capel Coch 11
Dwyran 26 Capel Mawr 11
Llanddaniel-fab 26 Cichle 11
Llangristiolus 24 Glan yr Afon 11

(Llangoed)
Bethel 24 Hermon 11
Llanfachraeth 24 Penlon 11
Aberffraw 24 Haulfre (Llangoed) 10

23

Page 354



Llangoed 24 Hendre Hywel 10
(Pentraeth)

Four Mile Bridge 23 Llangadwaladr 10

Llanfaelog 23 Llansadwrn 10

Pentre Berw 21 Carreglefn 9

Rhostrehwfa 21 Hebron 9

Llangaffo 20 Llangynhenedl| 9

Talwrn 20 Tyn L6on (Glan yr 9
Afon

Tregele 19 Peny Marian 8

Pentre Canol 19 Rhydwyn 8

(Holyhead)

Malltraeth 18 Penmon 7

Llanfaethlu 17 Carmel 5

Settlement Tiers
Settlement Tiers

Identifying the characteristics of each settlement allows the Plan to adopt a
hierarchical approach to grouping settlements and thus controlling the rate and
location at which new development occurs.

The relevant considerations from national planning policy and guidance are that:
24

Page 355



53

54

5.5

e most development should be directed to existing towns to help maximise
accessibility to employment, education and services by walking, cycling and
public transport;

e in rural areas, development should be focused on settlements that can act as
centres for surrounding areas; and

e In the case of housing, only a limited amount of growth should be expected
through the expansion of villages, with significant development being
appropriate only where a) it can be shown to be necessary for maintaining local
services, and b) the houses are required to meet local needs, and c) it will be in
keeping with the character of the village.

The new Anglesey LDP seeks to distribute the growth in a way which reflects the
diversity of the settlements and to do so in a sustainable manner. It should have
regard to the role and function of the settlements but also accepts that some
settlements which, by virtue of the services and facilities available, may not
necessarily be the most appropriate options for all housing and economic growth.
Additionally, cross-border influences and proximity to adjacent settlements are
influencing factors to varying extents.

The focus for significant development should be in larger urban areas that are
reasonably well served by public transport and other facilities. Development may be
provided for in villages and other small rural communities where needed to
contribute to their sustainability and wellbeing goals and to serve their hinterlands.
The priority for development is to make the best use of brownfield land, but where
this is insufficient or unavailable, suitable greenfield land is likely to be needed. The
approach should avoid any assumption that every settlement must contribute
towards growth. Rather, it will consider the settlements on their merits whilst
having regard to their sustainability and position within the hierarchy. The approach
in the new LDP is consistent with the emphasis placed within national planning
policy on place-making.

The next stage of the settlement hierarchy assessment is to identify the broad
categories of settlements that exist within the Plan area. Five broad categories of
settlements within the Plan area have been identified. The tiers set out within the
settlement hierarchy are as follows:

e Urban Service Centre;
e Service Centres;

25

Page 356



o Villages;
e Clustersand
e Undefined Rural Settlements

5.6 The key characteristics and thresholds for the categorisation of each settlement in
the hierarchy are outlined in table 8 below:

Table 8: Broad Categorisation of Tiers

Tier Characteristics of Tier
Sub-Regional | Centres which have acomprehensive range of employment,
Service retail, community and service facilities that serve their own
Centres population as well as a wide catchment area. Has good

accessibility by public transport.

Service Centres that provide the essential service needs of own
Centres population and immediate catchment area. Has a limited but
broad range of employment, retail, community and service
facilities and good accessibility by public transport to higher
order centres. Itis considered that there are two types of
Service Centres within the locality:

Urban - Have a relatively high number and variety of
employment, retail, service and community opportunities that
serve their own population as well as a wide catchment area.
Has good public transport links.

Local - Provides the essential service needs of its own
population and immediate catchment area. Has some
employment, retail, service and community opportunities and
good accessibility by public transport to higher order centres.

Villages Villages have at least one of the identified Key Services and a
limited number of other services that serve the settlement and
lower level Clusters in its immediate vicinity. It is considered
that there are four broad types of Villages within the locality
being:

i)Service - Have a higher number of services as compared with
the majority of other Villages and have good accessibility by
public transport to higher order centres. They are considered
to have a more strategic role compared to other Villages.

26

Page 357



5.7

ii)Local - A more limited number of services and limited
accessibility by public transport to higher order centres when
compared with Service Villages.

iii)Rural - A limited number of services and with poor public
transport links to higher order centres.

Clusters

Clusters are mostly small settlements containing a tight,
sufficient and easily defined cluster of houses. There are
occasional settlements of comparatively larger size amongst
them. However, none of the clusters contain a sufficient supply
of facilities or services and are therefore dependent on higher
order centres. Selection of Clusters based on national planning
policy advice - a cohesive group of 10 or more houses, with a
functional link with a higher order centre based on its location
on a bus route with a bus stop or within 800 metres to a bus
stop is the threshold for differentiating between a Cluster and
the Countryside. This is considered to align with the need to
focus development in settlements with existing services. Given
the dispersed nature of housing throughout the area a lower
threshold would lead to less development in more sustainable
locations throughout the Plan area.

Note: This is a preliminary categorization of ‘tiers’. The tiers may change following an assessment of the
spatial growth, housing need and affordability need of areas in the LPA for the purpose of this paper.

The cut off point between each tier has been determined using professional planning
judgement based on the general sustainability of settlements. The cut off points also
occur at natural breaks in the data. Based upon the score for each settlement and an
analysis of the services within each settlement, the settlements were categorised as

follows:
Table 9: Settlements By Category
Category Settlements Identified
Sub-regional Centre Holyhead
Urban Service Centres Amlwch, Llangefni, Menai Bridge
27

Page 358



Local Service Centres Beaumaris, Benllech, Bodedern, Cemaes,
Llanfair PG, Gaerwen, Pentraeth,
Rhosneigr, Valley

Service Villages Brynsiencyn, Gwalchmai,
Llannerchymedd, Penysarn

Local Villages Bethel, Bodffordd, Bryngwran,
Caergeiliog, Dwyran, Llanddaniel Fab,
Llandegfan, LIanfachraeth, Llanfechell,
Llanfihangel-yn Nhywyn, LIangaffo,
Llangristiolus, Newborough, Pentre Berw,
Pentre Canol, Rhostrehwfa, Rhosybol,
Talwrn, Tregele

Coastal / Rural Villages Aberffraw, Four Mile Bridge, Llanfaelog,
Llangoed, Malltraeth, Moelfre, Trearddur
Bay

Clusters Bodorgan, Bro Larddur (Trearddur Bay),

Bryn Du, Brynminceg, Brynrefail, Brynteg,
,Bryny Mor (Valley), Bwich Gwyn, Bull
Bay, Capel Coch, Capel Mawr, Carmel,
Cerrigman, Cichle, Carreglefn, Glan yr
Afon (Llangoed), Glyn Garth, Gaerwen
Station, Haulfre (Llangoed), Hebron,
Hendre Hywel (Pentraeth), Hermon,
Llanbedrgoch, Llanddona, Llanfaes,
Llanfaethlu, Llangadwaladr, Llansadwrn,
Llangynhenedl, Llanrhyddlad, Llynfaes,
Marianglas, Nebo, Pencarnisiog, Penlon,
Penmon, Pen y Marian, Rhoscefnhir,
Rhosmeirch,, Rhydwyn, Star, Red Wharf
Bay, Trefor, Tyn Lon (Glan yr Afon),

Tynygongl

As can be seen from the table above, the majority of settlements have remained
within their relative tiers as categorised in the Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP. The
following settlements have been re-classified to reflect the results of the scoring
methodology used for this assessment:

28

Page 359



Holyhead has been re-classified as a Sub-regional Centre;

Menai Bridge has been upgraded from a Local Service Centre to an Urban Service
Centre;

Brynsiencyn and Penysarn have been upgraded from Local Villages to Service
Villages;

Newborough has been downgraded from a Service Village to a Local Village;
Pentre Canol, Pentre Berw and Rostrehwfa have been upgraded from a Cluster
to a Local Village

Llanrhuddlad, Pencaernisiog, Carreglefn, Llanfaethlu, Llanddona, and
Llanbedrgoch have been downgraded from Villages to Clusters.

5.9  This paper will inform the Growth Strategy of the new Plan in due course.

Appendix 1

The table below identifies the sources for gathering the information for each individual
service that forms part of the methodology for undertaking the score for each separate

settlement.
Service Estimate of Population
Source 2021 Census

29

Page 360



Service Primary Schools

Source Authority mapping system

Service Secondary Schools

Source Authority mapping system

Service College

Source Local college’s Websites

Service Doctor’s Surgery

Source Betsi Cadwaladr website

Service Dentist

Source Betsi Cadwaladr website and local retail surveys.

Service Pharmacy

Source Recent retail studies and Local knowledge

Service Optician

Source Recent retail studies and local knowledge

Service Leisure Centres

Source Local Authority website.

Service Town / Village Hall

Source Recent retail studies and local knowledge

Service Library

Source Local Authority website

Service Cinema/ Theatre

Source Local knowledge within the Council

Service Place of Worship

Source Authority mapping system, ),
previous retail surveys and local knowledge

Service Public Houses

Source Local knowledge

Service Post Office

Source Official Royal Mail Website.

Service Convenience Food Shop

Source Previous retail surveys and local knowledge

Service Large Food Store

Source Previous retail surveys, information from retail impact
assessment studies on previous applications and local
knowledge

Service Other Shops

Source Previous retail surveys and local knowledge within the
Council.

Service Petrol Station

Source Local knowledge

Service Police Station

Source Information from the Police service website

30

Page 361




Service

Fire Station

Source Information from the Fire Service’s website

Service Bank / Building Society

Source Bank and building society websites as well as previous retail
surveys and local knowledge

Service Cash Point

Source Bank and building society websites.

Service Transport Node

Source Local rail and bus timetables

Service Bus Service

Source Local bus timetables

Service Train Service

Source Arriva (Summer 2012) Timetable

Service Employment

Source 2001 Census data, employment survey and locallKnowledge

Service Mobile Phone Coverage

Source Signalchecker.co.uk

Service Broadband Coverage

Source OFCOM

Appendix 2

This appendix provides tables of the score given for the range of services / facilities
(referred to as services in the remainder of the appendix) found in each settlement listed in
the settlement hierarchy. The score corresponds with the scoring of services shown in

Appendix 1. Due to the range of services the information has been split into two tables:

Table A - Transport and Accessibility, and Employment Opportunities; and

31

Page 362




Table B - Local Services and Facilities)

The total score of both tables have been combined to produce the overall score for each
settlement. This is shown in table 8 paragraph 4.17 of this Topic Paper.

32

Page 363



¥9¢ abed

YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

Table A: Transport and Accessibility / Employment Opportunities Points Per Service

Settlement Population Transport and accessibility Employment opportunities

Estimated Transport Buse Train Highway Safeguarded Shops and Small L

Population Node Service Service | Network Employment Site Businesses §

©

S

Aberffraw 4 0 2 0 3 0 2 1
Amiwch 6 3 3 0 3 10 10 35
Beaumaris 5 3 3 0 3 2 5 21
Benllech 6 3 3 0 3 0 5 20
Bethel 2 0 2 0 3 2 2 1
Bo larddur (Trearddur bay) 1 0 2 0 3 5 0 1
Bodedern 4 0 3 0 3 2 5 17
Bodffordd 3 0 3 0 3 5 2 16
Bodorgan 1 0 2 0 3 5 0 11
Bryn Du 2 0 2 0 3 2 0 9
Bryn y Mor (Valley) 2 0 3 0 3 5 0 13
Bryngwran 4 0 3 0 3 2 2 14
Brynminceg 2 0 3 0 3 2 0 10
Brynrefail 1 0 3 0 3 2 0 9
Brynsiencyn 4 0 2 0 3 5 2 16
Brynteg 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 9
Bull Bay 1 0 2 0 3 5 2 13
Bwich Gwyn 1 0 2 0 3 5 0 1
Caergeiliog 3 0 3 0 3 5 2 16
Capel Coch 1 0 2 0 2 2 0 7
Capel Mawr 1 0 1 0 3 2 0 7
Carmel 1 0 2 0 0 0 0 3
Carreglefn 2 0 1 0 0 2 0 5
Cemaes 5 0 3 0 3 2 5 18

33



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

Gog abed

Cerrigman 1 0 3 0 3 5 0 12
Cichle 2 0 3 0 3 2 0 10
Dwyran 4 0 2 0 3 2 2 13
Four Mile Bridge 4 0 3 0 3 5 2 17
Gaerwen 5 0 3 0 3 10 10 31
Gaerwen Station 1 0 3 0 3 5 2 14
Glan yr Afon (Llangoed) 2 0 3 0 3 0 0 8
Glyn Garth 1 0 3 0 3 5 0 12
Gwalchmai 3 0 3 0 3 5 2 16
Haulfre (Llangoed) 1 0 3 0 3 0 0 7
Hebron 1 0 2 0 0 2 0 5
Hendre Hywel (Pentraeth) 1 0 2 0 3 2 0 8
Hermon 2 0 2 0 3 2 0 9
Holyhead 7 3 3 3 3 10 10 39
Llanbedrgoch 2 0 2 0 3 2 0 9
Llanddaniel-fab 3 0 3 0 3 5 2 16
Llanddona 3 0 3 0 0 0 2 8
Llandegfan 5 0 3 0 3 2 2 15
Llanfachraeth 3 0 2 0 3 2 2 12
Llanfaelog 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 10
Llanfaes 3 0 3 0 3 0 0 9
Llanfaethlu 2 0 2 0 3 0 0 7
LlanfairPG 6 3 3 3 3 5 5 28
Llanfechell 4 0 2 0 3 2 2 13
Llanfihangel-yn-Nhywyn 4 0 3 0 3 5 2 17
Llangadwaladr 1 0 2 0 3 2 0 8
Llangaffo 3 0 1 0 3 5 2 14
Llangefni 7 3 3 0 3 10 10 36
Llangoed 4 0 3 0 3 0 2 12
Llangristiolus 2 0 2 0 3 5 2 14
Llannerchymedd 5 0 2 0 0 2 5 14
Llanrhyddlad 1 0 1 0 3 0 2 7
Llansadwrn 2 0 3 0 2 2 0 9
Llynfaes 1 0 3 0 3 2 0 9

34



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

99¢ abed

Llyngynhenedi 1 0 2 0 3 2 0 8
Malltraeth 3 0 2 0 3 2 2 12
Marianglas 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 9
Menai Bridge 6 ) 3 0 3 5 5 25
Moelfre 4 0 3 0 3 0 2 12
Nebo 1 0 1 0 3 5 0 10
Newborough 4 0 2 0 3 2 2 13
Panysarn 4 0 3 0 3 5 2 17
Pen y Marian 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 4
Pencaernisiog 2 0 2 0 3 0 0 7
Penlon 1 0 1 0 3 2 0 7
Penmon 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 4
Pentraeth 4 3 3 0 3 2 5 20
Pentre Berw 2 0 3 0 3 5 2 13
Pentre Canol (Holyhead) 1 0 3 0 3 10 0 17
Red Wharf Bay 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 10
Rhoscefnhir 1 0 3 0 3 2 0 9
Rhosmeirch 2 0 2 0 3 5 0 12
Rhosneigr 5 3 2 3 3 0 2 18
Rhostrehwfa 3 0 3 0 3 5 0 14
Rhosybol 4 0 2 0 3 5 2 16
Rhyd-wyn 2 0 2 0 3 0 0 7
Star 2 0 1 0 3 5 0 11
Talwrn 3 0 1 0 2 5 2 13
Trearddur Bay 5 0 3 0 3 5 5 21
Trefor 1 0 3 0 3 2 0 9
Tregele 2 0 2 0 3 2 2 1
Tyn Lon (Glan yr Afon) 1 0 1 0 3 2 0 7
Tynygongl 3 0 3 0 3 0 0 9
Valley 5 3 3 3 3 5 5 27

35



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

Table B: Local Services and Facilities Points Per Service

© (¢ (1 (¢ |™ ~ o )
FWODSVIOL [P |« |IF | |« [V N = (e e e
uopjeisally |~ o [« [« |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
uonelsAljod o |o |o |o |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
dnoiBheld (v o |~ |o |o |o -~ | o |o |o -~ |lo |o
doysiez@yaypo (2 [~ (2 |2 |~ |o - |« |o |o |o o |o |o
aljesyj/ewdBul) (o o (o |o (o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
uepndo |~ o |~ |o |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
diysioppJoadeld (o [N [N [~ |~ |o N |~ o |o |o — |~ |+
wiodsyed (N (o |~ | |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
939)|0) o |o |o |o |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
" uoneis|olled |~ (o [« [« o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
9
= Ajaos Suipjingpjueg o o |[o |o |o |o o o |o |o |o o (o |o
‘o
_...ra Aemeasjel/jueinelsa/gged (oo |« | (o o (o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
2
] asNoHIIgNd [ |~ | | |o |o N o o o |o — |o |o
0
[]
L anua) Ajlunwwo) (N [~ (o |+~ |« |o -~ |o |o |o |o o (O |+
g
..wcu |eyidsoH o |o |o |o |o |o o o |o |o |o o o |o
©
m doys poo4 @dusiudAu0) [ | [ | (o |o ™ o |o |o |o o |o |o
-l
210}5poo4adie] [+~ o o |o |o |o o o |o |o |o o (o |o
98e49A0) 3UOYG IO [~ [+~ | |~ |+~ |+ NN (NN e N [~ [
a8eJan0) pueqgpeolg ([~ (o [« |~ |o |+~ o o |o |o |o o (o |o
Adeuwleyd [~ (o |~ | |o |o o |o o |o |o o |o |o
NDYOIS0d [ [ [ o | (O ™ | o |o o ™ |o o
anuddainse] (» o o |o |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
Aeig] (o o o | o |o o o |o |o |o o o |o
Isueg | o |» | |o |o o |o |o |o |o o |o |o
A1e8ings 10pog (n (o [ ™ | |o ™ |o |o |o |o ™ |o o
sjooyds Alepuodss (v |o o |o |o |o v o |o |o |o o |o |o
sjooyds Aewld |« o |« [« |o |o < |¢ |o |o |o < |o |o
>
5 S
(o))
i [
7)) - clo
m 3T .W S5 c|T|le o ©|lO|=
= O | &= (5] B iy © ] o (o)) a > w r— [}
0 w | E O Dlc =T - > k=) €9
n 3 m SIZIS|4 38 ﬁ Slele=|E|E|E
Elc|lo|g|@loElo|o|o(2 2l 22
<|<|0MmMmonTmononmonmonmnmmmm

Page 367

36



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

N
Lt v [N TNt B~ R0 |T|N|o - | |» < | NS | |2
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |~ |o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |~ |o |o
o |o|lo|o|-|o|lo|o|o |- |o|o |o |o |o (o |o o |+~ |o o |o o [ o |
~ o |lojlo|o|o|o|o|o|w |o|o |o |~ |~ |o|o o |~ |o ~ |o o |2 |o |+
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |~ |o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o |o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |N o |o
— O |O |O |N |« |O |« |O |N |O |0 |« |« |« |O |O o |« |O — |O O |N |« |+
o |o|lo|jo|o|o|o|o|o |- |o|o|o |o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o | o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o |o|o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |m |o |o
o |o|lo|jo|o|o|o|o|o |- |o|o |~ |o |- |o|o o |o |o o |o o |N o |o
o |lo|lo|jo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o |o |o |o |o |o (o o |o |o o |o o |N o |o
N |« O ||~ |0 |o|o|o|N | |0 |o |o|N o (o o |o |o o |o o |m |o |o
~ |« |N O |o |o|o|o|o | |o |o |o |+~ |o |o (o o |+~ |o o |o o | o |o
~— [« [O |O |« [O |O |O |« [N |O |O [« |O |« |O (O o [« |O o |O o M |+~ |O
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |m o |o
Mmoo |lojo|o|lo|o|o|o|m|o|o|o o |m o |o o |m |o o |o o |m o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o |o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |m o |o
~ |[v¥~ |v |v~ [~ |v~ | NN [~ [« |v~ |~ (v~ |~ [N [N [+ |+ — ([N |ONN AN [N AN ([« |« |N
— O |« |« |O |N [N | O |N |« |O |0 M|« |O |« |N o O |+ o |O O |« |« |O
o |o|lo|jo|o|o|o|o|o |- |o|o |o |o|o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |N o |o
m|olojo|jlo|jlo|jo|o|o|m|o|o|®m|o|m o |o o | |o o |o o |o |o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |m o |o
o |o|lojo|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |m o |o
o |o|lojo|o|lo|o|o|o|m|o|o |o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o |o |o |o
ololojlo|jlojlo|lo|lo|o|m|o|o|m|o|m o |o o |m |o o |o o |o |o |o
o |o|lo|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o (o |o o |o |o o |o o | o |o
< |O O |Oo |0 |Oo |o |o|o |« | |o |o |o |« |o (o o |« |O o |o o Y |« |«
O c
{=2] o 2
=N = o < |8
S Slolsls o =5 3 8 ls
-— —
7) Wocw = c I EgE s T |>=E o2
c =|0|® u— @© (] < t T + T ||
>0 (= Dy =S| S Qs @ O c|®|T|®
AR 2O =2|=53|E c 0|0 (= O CloOc|lo® o
2 Cmls|oglz/ 28R 2es=|2|2/>09 6|t ds 552283
clel=|C|5 QIS E2EIEIS|Ss cSlec|®|ECSS|TEEISEIE
W.W.l O Q Q== = "o Ueeaaywuabnerlaa
520|080 860 0.2 306 ©.2=S= g 5o oo o8|
MMM AMoOooooIOALOOIOSV0|O TS T T Jd

Page 368

37



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

0 (N (™ O N (OO ™ AN (N [N |© < (O n
611151411 2691124141636151444
o [0 | | |o |[o |o (o |o o O |« |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 o o |« |0 (o |o |o |o o
o [0 | | |o |[o |o (o |o O |O |~ |O |0 |o|o|o|o|o|o |o|o o |o o |o o |o
O N |O |O |O |« |N |« |O O |O|N |O |« |N O |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |N |« |O |« |O |« |O

o o o
O |O |v~ [« |O |0 |& |[© [© O IO |& v v |« |© |© |© |O|«x |0 |& |~ | |o|o |o o
o [0 | | |o |[o |o |[o |o O |O |~ |0 |0 |0 |o|o|o|o|o |o|o o |o o |o o |o
o O | |0 |o o |o (o |o o |O|N O |0 |0 |o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o
O (v |« | O [O |« |[N [« [+ O [« N |« [« [N |« [O [O |©O [« |O N |« [« |« |[v«™ [« |O
o |O O [« |©O |©O |N |[O O O |OMm |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |N | |0 |0 |0 |o |o
o O | | |o o |o o |o o |O|m O |0 |0 |o|o|o|o|o|o|o o |o o |o o |o
o |O O O |0 |0 |« |[O |O O |O N |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |« |0 |0 |0 |0 |o |o
o O |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |O |Oo o |O N O O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 (||| |0 |o |o o |o |o
— O |O |[O |O [©O |N [« |O o O |m O |©O [N O |0 | [0 |« [O0|m [N |O N |O O |~
~ [~ [« [©O |©O |© |[N [« |O O |O N O O |N O |0 |0 O |(|(r |vx ™|« |0 |+~ [0 |0 O
~ |~ |v |+« |« |© |N |N |O O |v~ |N |« |« |« |O |0 |0 |0 |v |« |N |« |O|N O |O |O
o |O O O |0 | O | O o O MmO O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 (||| |0 |o|o o |o |o
O M MmO ™M MmMmm O oM Mmoo Mmoo |0 |0 0com ;Mmoo m (o o (o
o O | O |o o |« O |o O |O|N O |0 |0 |o|o|o|o|o o |« |0 |o |o|o o |o
~— [N [N |~ [N |[v~ |~ [« [N AN [« N |« [N [N |v~ [« [N |~ [v«~ |~ |N |[v~™ [N |v~ |[vY™ [N |+
AN v~ O |O |N O ™M [N |~ O O v |« |N [« [N | O |N |©O O O |v |« [N [« |N |O N
o |O O O |0 | |«— |[O |O O |O N |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |« |0 |0 |0 |0 |o |o
O ™M M mMm|O [ |Mm[™mm o M| O |0 m|o |0 |oo|joo|m»m|o»mn|o o |o
o |O O O |0 | O | O o O MmO O |0 |0 |0 |0 0o |om|jo |0 |o |0 |o |o
o |O O O |0 | O | O o O MmO O |0 |0 |0 |0 0o |om|o | |o o |o |o
o O | O |o o |m o |o o O | O |0 |0 |o|o|o|o|o o | o |o o |o o |o
O O |OMm |0 |0 |0 | mMm O |O|© |O|0O0mMm |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 | |0 |0 |0 |0 |o |o
o O | |0 |o o |o (o |o o |O | O |0 |0 |o|o|o o |o o | o |o o |o o |o
O ¥ |© O |0 ¥ |¥ ¥ |© o O [0 ¥ |¥ ¥ [© |© |0 |0 0O 0O |¥ |¥ [0 o |©o |o |o
[ ©
S |5 2 ] =)
= © (2]
= = | & S ET o 8 < |9
c|® - _ e |8 = 5|8 c c 0| oS |»
S s8I £0913|2 S ol=|sl8|E|T|E Q-G8 S|E |2
CElE EO lplsla|le |2l 0T nl<ls|2E o|®|E
CAE- Al ® = © T E |22 |50 Clo D0|e s
Ol o|o|o|=s|0 o T o o 0| e
S8 ololccEloSET S clo2elS >Elcs|=|2 o
T | T b= [ [ [ [ [ [G= O D DS = | 0|v=DE B0c|E|o0|2>0|0
clc|leclelelc|e|ele S c|c|c|c|lc|lc|c|c|e|lE|=|E|c|o|la|[S|c|le|e
N800 0000 CCc/C 0000000 22000000000
AdddaAd A AdZAddd|d|dAAADDZEZE=E=E|ZZ00|n

Page 369

38



YNYS MON LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

TOPIC PAPER 5 - SPATIAL OPTIONS v1.0

o | |0 |~ it |t (0[S~ |2 |0 |~ =< [0 | » (3
o |O |O |O o OO |Oo |~ |0 |0 |o |o|o |o |o |o |o o |O
o |O |O |O o O |0 | |o o o |o |o|o |o o |o |o o |O
o |« |O |O — |O |O |O |« |O |« |O |O |+~ |O |0 |O |Oo o (v~
O |« [« |© ~ (v [© |©O | O [« |O |O |O |« O |O |O o (1B
o |O |O |O o O |0 | |o o o |o |o|o |o |o |o |o o |O
o |O |O |O o O O |0 | o o |0 |o|o o |o |o |o o |O
O |« [« |© — |O |0 |O |v |v [« |O O |« |« |O |O |O o |
o ([« |[O |O O |O |0 |0 |« |O |0 |0 |0 |Oo |« |0 |Oo |Oo o |O
o |O |O |O o O O |0 |o o |0 |0 |o|o |o |o |o |o o |O
o ([« |[O |O O |O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 | |0 |o |0 |o |« |Oo o |N
o |©O O O O O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 | |0 |o|o |o |o |o o |O
~— |[N |« |O O |v~ |O |0 M |v~ |O |0 |0 |0 |N O |0 |O o |N
o [N [« O O |v~ O O [N [« |©O |O O O [N [O |« |O o |N
o |« |O |[O — | O O [« [« [O |« |©O |O [« [« [O |O |O ~— |
o |©O O O O O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |o |0 |o|o |o |o |o o |O
o | O O M OO0 |0OMm |0 m|o |0 |om|o|m|o o |
o |O |O |O o OO |0 |o o o |0 |o|o |o o |o |o o |O
AN [« |N |« AN [~ N N [« [N |« [« [N N [N [N |v«v™ |« ~— |
O |« [N |+ ™ O |N [N |« [N [O |O O |N |« |N [N |« ~ |
o | |O O O O |0 |0 |« |O |0 |0 |0 |o |0 |o |o |o o |
o M |O |O M OO0 |0Om o m |0 || ¢m |Oo |0 |o [« 2 ep]
o |©O O O O O |0 |0 |0 |0 |0 |o |0 |o|o |o |o |o o |O
o |©O |O O O OO |O0Om |0 |0 |0 |0 | |0 |o |o |o o |O
o |O |O |O o OO | |o o o |o |o|o |o |o |o |o o |
o |©O |O O O OO |0 |0 |0 |0o|om|o |0 |Oo |o |o o |
o |O |O |O o OO | |o o o |o |o|o |o |o |o |o o |O
o | |[© |© <t |O |©O |O |¥ |©O [« |© o |o |o |o |o |o o |
[
>
> c
— >
2|9 Blelel |8 @ e
€ = c(0|-|% 0 |35
— S
cERa ST EEE|S|DETS 5 - |2
Q () = ©
S|clololl3|S|8EIE S 3 cls||2|6_|8
Pl Il et SW - . ru g (g~ >
S > > 0w ln on o ol () > o
=2 e = = (S| |D <
clcc|lcolE|v|@|C|/Q(C|Q > g|l=lolD|ld|lEOEc|=
00 O O 0|0 |S|S S (L LI 0|0 s s s | >0
oaoo—n ¥ EXEXCEDEF|FF|FFE-|>

Page 370

39



Agenda Item 6

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Report to: Planning Policy Committee
Date: 15 January 2026
Subject: Waste Topic Paper
Portfolio Holder(s): Clir. Nicola Roberts (Planning, Public Protection and
Climate Change)
Head of Service / Christian Branch
Director: Head of Regulation & Economic Development Service
Report Author: John Ifan Williams (Planning Policy Manager)
Tel:
E-mail: DewiJones@ynysmon.llyw.cymru
Local Members: Applicable to all Elected Members
1.0 Purpose of report
1.1 This report summarises the content of the topic paper on waste which supports
the preparation of the new Anglesey Local Development Plan (LDP). The paper:
¢ Reviews the existing evidence base for waste management;
e considers the effectiveness of current JLDP waste policies; and
e identifies changes in circumstances that may require amendments to
policy or land allocations.
2.0 Decision required
2.1 The information, objectives and options reported in the paper are noted and
accepted by the Committee as the basis for developing waste planning policies
for inclusion in the new LDP. Members are requested to formally note the
findings of the Waste Topic Paper and endorse Option B (Policy Enhancement)
as the preferred approach for the development of waste management policies
within the new Local Development Plan (LDP).
2.2  This endorsement will allow officers to prepare detailed draft policies that:

e enable the provision of new Household Waste Recycling Centres
(HWRCs) in Holyhead and North Anglesey;

e strengthen policy support for Construction and Demolition (C&D)
recycling and the development of secondary aggregates;

e safeguard existing waste infrastructure from incompatible development;
and

Page 371


mailto:DewiJones@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

3.0
3.1

3.2

4.0
4.1

4.2

e ensure that waste planning policies fully reflect the circular economy
principles set out in Beyond Recycling (2021) and Planning Policy Wales
Edition 12.

Waste policy context

The paper sets out the policy context for waste planning and lists the following
hierarchy of national policy documents and statutory requirements as the basis
to inform the development of sustainable waste planning policies:

¢ Planning Policy Wales (PPW12)

e Technical Advice Note (TAN) 21: Waste

e Towards Zero Waste (TZW)

e Collections, Infrastructure & Markets Sector Plan (CIMSP)
e Municipal Sector Plan (MSP)

e Construction & Demolition (C&D) Sector Plan

e Food Manufacture, Service & Retail Sector Plan

e Beyond Recycling

e Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017

The current Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP provides the local context for
determining waste-related planning applications and contains three waste-
specific policies.

Contextual changes since JLDP adoption

Several contextual changes since the adoption of the JLDP in 2017 are
identified in the topic paper and how these will impact upon the development of
future waste planning policies.

The following issues are highlighted as having implications for policy
development in the new LDP:

e Landfill Tax and Disposal Trends — increased taxation levels should
reduce reliance on landfill and prioritise reuse and recycling, particularly
of inert construction and demolition wastes;

e Regional Infrastructure Developments — The establishment of the Parc
Adfer Energy-from-Waste (EfW) facility at Deeside, as part of the North
Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project (between Anglesey, Gwynedd,
Conwy, Denbighshire and Flintshire), provides long-term regional
capacity for the treatment of residual municipal household waste.
Complementing this, the GwyriAD Anaerobic Digestion (AD) facility at
Liwyn Isaf, near Caernarfon, processes food wastes collected from
Anglesey and Gwynedd. Together, these facilities deliver secure and
sustainable regional treatment capacity, supporting diversion from
landfill and progression up the waste hierarchy.

Page 372



4.3

5.0
5.1

5.2

6.0
6.1

e Local Authority Waste Performance - Anglesey’s recycling rates are
regularly around/above 65% and on track to meet the 70% target by
2025

e Local waste-related issues — the lack of household recycling facilities to
serve the Holy Island and North Anglesey areas are seen as potential
barriers to achieving higher recycling rates;

e Improper use of U1 Exemptions — misuse of this mechanism undermines
the effectiveness of the waste hierarchy, poses environmental risks, and
creates difficulties for the planning enforcement team;

e Waste stream profile and risks — C&D waste is identified as the dominant
waste stream and much of this does not have a clear recovery outlet and
is landfilled at inert facilities. It can also lead to fly-tipping in certain
circumstances. Policy should support treatment facilities thereby
supporting stronger secondary and recycled aggregate markets.

Given that several large projects that may include Anglesey Freeport, Wylfa,
third Menai Strait crossing, and major coastal defence could be implemented
during the lifetime of the new LDP and that C&D wastes represents the largest
proportion of waste generation on Anglesey, the paper suggests that the new
LDP should prioritise C&D recycling, ensure that sufficient laydown and bulking
facilities can be accommodated on employment land in addition to addressing
shortfalls in local service provision related to household recycling facilities.

Provision and need

In outlining the current provision of waste management sites on the Island,
including civic amenity sites, waste transfer facilities and access to regional
residual and organic treatment capacity noted above, the paper identifies a wide
range of both public and private sector capacity catering for numerous waste
types. However, despite acknowledging the general adequacy in relation to
current arrangements, the paper identifies two areas of concern where
provision should be made to ensure continued high rates of reuse and recycling.

The shortfalls in provision that are identified in the paper relate to the need to:
e Strengthen support for C&D recycling and secondary aggregates; and
e Provide HWRCs for Holy Island/Holyhead and North Anglesey/Amlwch
either through the allocation of appropriate sites or by developing a
policy that enables the development of such sites on employment land
should there be a lack of available sites for allocation.

Facility safeguarding

The paper identifies existing sites on the Island that should be safeguarded
from inappropriate or non-compatible development to ensure the continuity of
provision, thereby contributing to continued high levels of reuse and recycling.

Page 373



The currently available facilities include the following:

Bridge

Facility | Location | Operator
Municipal
HWRC Penhesgyn, Menai IACC
Bridge
Cae’r Glaw, Gwalchmai
Composting Penhesgyn, Menai

Waste Transfer Station

Penhesgyn, Menai
Bridge

Residual Municipal

Parc Adfer, Deeside
Industrial Estate

Regional Contract

Organic Waste

Gwyriad AD, Llwyn Isaf,
Clynnog

Commercial

Waste Transfer Station

Bryngwran

Humphries Waste

Mona Industrial Estate

Veolia

Gaerwen Industrial Green Skips
Estate Cymru Lan
Inert/C&D/aggregate Cae’r Glaw Quarry, Hogan Aggregates
recycling Gwalchmai
Rhuddlan Bach Quarry, | Clive Hurt
Brynteg
Nant Newydd Quarry,
Brynteg
Bwich Gwyn Quarry, Anglesey Aggregates
Gaerwen
Anaerobic Digestion Mona Industrial Estate
(AD)
Composting Star, Gaerwen Maple

Metal recycling and
ELV depollution

Gaerwen Industrial
Estate

Phoenix Metals

Pentre Berw

K. Matthews

7.0
7.1

Issues, objectives and options

The following are identified as the key issues for consideration in relation to
policy development:

e Strategic capacity — residual and organic needs met via Parc
Adfer/Gwyriad; no strategic shortfall.

e C&D - >160,000t managed (2022); reliance on inert landfill for a
proportion; strengthen C&D recycling/secondary aggregates. Benefits
are twofold — helps lessen reliance on primary aggregates and increases
recycling rates.

e Agricultural/organic — significant stream; maintain flexible provision via
AD/composting.

Page 374



7.2

7.3

8.0
8.1

8.2

e Recycling performance — consistently strong; continued investment
needed to sustain/advance.

e Holyhead and North Anglesey service gaps — absence of HWRCs at
large conurbations on the Island.

e Safeguarding — protect HWRCs, transfer, composting and bulking
infrastructure from incompatible development.

e Demand pressures — major projects and growth (Freeport, Wylfa, Menai
crossing, coastal defence, housing need) to be planned for so flexibility
needs to be added into large scale development policies.

The following are identified as the main objectives for the new Plan:

e Maintain strategic adequacy via regional treatment contracts.

e Promote C&D recycling and secondary aggregates, reducing reliance on
inert landfill and increasing the use of recycled aggregates.

e Embed circular economy principles (Beyond Recycling, 2021) across
policies.

e Secure Holyhead and North Anglesey HWRCs to close the service gap.

e Safeguard key infrastructure (HWRCs, transfer, composting, bulking).

e Monitor and respond using NRW, StatsWales, Annual Waste Monitoring
Reports (need to be kept up to date). NMWPS and Waste Department
needs to collaborate on the ground intelligence patterns.

The options in relation to the policy response are considered to be:

e Option A: Do Nothing — retain JLDP approach; would not address
Holyhead and North Anglesey HWRCs or strengthen C&D recycling.
e Option B: Policy Enhancement (Preferred) — update policies to:
o support delivery of HWRCs in Holyhead and North Anglesey
(allocation or enabling on employment land);
o strengthen C&D recycling/secondary aggregates — in line /
synergy with Minerals paper;
o embed safeguarding of key facilities;
o reflect circular economy priorities in line with PPW12 and Beyond
Recycling.

Conclusion

Reuse and recycling rates on the Island are generally strong with a good variety
of facilities available in both the public and private sectors. The regional
capacity provided by both Parc Adfer and Gwyriad AD mean that there is no
strategic shortfall in terms of treatment capacity.

However, the lack of inert/C&D treatment capacity for certain types of waste
and the reliance on landfill to meet management needs requires attention and
strengthening to ensure that recycling rates with regard to lower grade
recycled/secondary aggregates can be increased with the added benefit of
reducing pressures on primary aggregate resources.

Page 375



8.3

8.4

9.0
9.1

9.2

9.3

Additionally, the lack of HWRCs to serve Holy Island/Holyhead and North
Anglesey represent an opportunity to address shortcomings in this regard. The
increase in capacity can contribute to increased rates of recycling and,
potentially, reduce instances of fly-tipping.

Option B, outlined above, provides a means to update existing JLDP policies
whilst addressing shortfalls in current waste management capacity.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Members formally endorse the findings of the Waste
Topic Paper and approve Option B (Policy Enhancement) as the preferred
approach for developing waste management policies within the new Local
Development Plan (LDP).

This endorsement will authorise officers to proceed with the preparation of draft
LDP policies that:

e support the provision of new Household Waste Recycling Centres
(HWRCs) to serve Holyhead and North Anglesey;

e strengthen support for Construction and Demolition (C&D) recycling and
secondary aggregate production, reducing reliance on inert landfill;

e embed the safeguarding of key waste management and recycling
infrastructure to maintain long-term capacity and operational resilience;
and

e align local policy with the circular-economy objectives of Beyond
Recycling (2021) and Planning Policy Wales Edition 12.

Following Committee endorsement, officers will incorporate these principles
into the draft policy framework for consultation and inclusion within the Deposit
Plan stage of the new LDP.

Page 376



CYNGOR SIR

YNYS MON ynysmon.llyw.cymru
; ISLE OF ANGLESEY anglesey.gov.wales
" COUNTY COUNCIL

Anglesey Local
Development
Plan 2024—2039

Topic Paper — Waste

Draft vl1.1

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yny Gymraeg
This document is also available in Welsh.

m_ Anglesey County Council X angleseycouncil n angleseycouncil angleseycouncil



Document history

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039

TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Version | Author | Reviewed | Authorised Comments
1.0 RWW First draft for circulation and observations
1.1 RWW Updated following observations

Page 378



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

CONTENTS

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

INTRODUCTION

The Role of Waste Planning in Anglesey
Relationship to the 2015 JLDP Waste Topic Paper
Scope and Limitations

POLICY CONTEXT

Overview

Planning Policy Wales

Technical Advice Note 21: Waste

Towards Zero Waste

Collections, Infrastructure & Markets Sector Plan
Municipal Sector Plan

Construction & Demolition Sector Plan

Food Manufacture, Service & Retail Sector Plan
Beyond Recycling (2021)

Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017
Current JLDP Policy Context

FINDINGS OF MONITORING REPORT

Waste Arisings and Recycling Performance (StatsWales - headline)
Waste Managed by Facilities in Anglesey (NRW WDI 2022)

Waste Removed from Anglesey Facilities (NRW WDI 2022)
Comparison with the 2015 Baseline

CONTEXTUAL CHANGES

Landfill Tax and Disposal Trends

Regional Infrastructure Developments

Local Authority Waste Performance

Localised Issues - Holyhead Fly-Tipping

North Anglesey - Service Access and Recycling
U1 Exemptions - Proper use and abuse

Waste Stream Profile and Risks

Implications for the new LDP

Growth and Major Projects - Demand Pressures

PROVISION & NEED

Local authority provision & regional contracts
Merchant & private sector facilities

Assessment of Adequacy

Identified Gap - Holyhead and North Anglesey
Implications for the new LDP

Future Demand - Major Projects and Growth Scenarios
Inert Landfill & Quarry Restoration Capacity

Approach to material selection

Page 379



6.0

7.0

8.0

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Point of search

SAFEGUARDING

Current Position

Facilities Requiring Safeguarding in Anglesey
Policy Implications for the new LDP

MONITORING
Data Sources
Review Approach

ISSUES, OBJECTIVES AND OPTIONS
Key Issues

Objectives for the new LDP

Options for Policy Response

Page 380



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Background

This is one of a range of Topic and Background Papers prepared to offer more detailed
information and to explain the approach of the Plan to different topics and issues
affecting the Local Development Plan Area. This Paper focuses specifically on waste
management. It provides the background, evidence base and monitoring which inform
the identification of issues, objectives and options for the Deposit Plan.

The Deposit Plan is the second statutory stage in the preparation of the Local
Development Plan (LDP). The LDP will shape the future growth and development of
communities in the Local Development Plan Area and will set out the policies and land
allocations against which planning applications will be assessed.

The Deposit Plan will be submitted to the Welsh Government, which will appoint an
independent inspector to assess the soundness of the Plan in the Examination in
Public. If the Inspector considers the Plan to be sound, it will be recommended for
adoption. Once adopted, the new LDP will supersede the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint
Local Development Plan (2017) as the statutory development plan for the Ynys Mén
Local Planning Authority.

This Topic Paper can be read in isolation or in conjunction with the other Topic and
Background Papers that have been prepared to provide a full picture of the Local
Development Plan Area.

You may refer to this Topic Paper as a basis for engagement; however, only comments
made on the Deposit Plan itself will be considered by the Inspector during the
Examination in Public.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss any of the Topic or Background Papers
with a member of the Planning Policy Team, you can contact us:

planningpolicy@anglesey.llyw.cymru

or in writing to:

Planning Policy Team (LDP)
Anglesey County Council
Llangefni

Anglesey

LL77 7TW

Tel: 01248 752428

Page 381


mailto:planningpolicy@anglesey.llyw.cymru

1.0
11

1.2

1.3

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

INTRODUCTION

This Waste Topic Paper supports preparation of the new Anglesey LDP (2024-
2039). It reviews the existing evidence base for waste management, considers
the effectiveness of current JLDP waste policies, and identifies changes in
circumstances that may require amendments to policy or land allocations. It
builds upon Topic Paper 12 (Waste) prepared jointly with Gwynedd for the JLDP
(2015) but is updated to reflect Anglesey’s specific circumstances as a single
authority preparing a new plan.

The Role of Waste Planning in Anglesey

As defined in Article 3(1) of the Waste Framework Directive (Directive
2008/98/EC), waste management encompasses “the collection, transport, recovery
and disposal of waste, including the supervision of such operations and the after-care
of disposal sites.” Within this framework, the purpose of waste management is to
protect human health and the environment while moving materials up the waste
hierarchy through prevention, reuse, recycling and recovery. Effective waste
management is a statutory requirement within the planning system and Anglesey
has a strong track record in recycling and diversion from landfill and benefits
from established infrastructure, including civic amenity sites, waste transfer
facilities, and access to regional residual and organic treatment capacity at Parc
Adfer (Energy from Waste) and Gwyriad (Anaerobic Digestion). The new LDP will
ensure policies remain aligned with national objectives and provide a flexible
framework to respond to change and operational needs across the Island.

Relationship to the 2015 JLDP Waste Topic Paper

The JLDP Waste Topic Paper (2015) established that Anglesey’s waste
infrastructure was sufficient to meet projected needs, with residual treatment to
be secured through the North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Project. These
conclusions largely remain valid; this Paper updates the baseline using Natural
Resources Wales (NRW) Waste Data Interrogator (2022 and 2024) and
StatsWales, incorporates policy changes (Beyond Recycling, 2021), and aligns with
circular economy objectives. The map below indicates the locations of the
Island’s current municipal and private sector waste management facilities.

Page 382



14

2.0

2.1

2.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Figure 1: Map indicating location of Anglesey’s waste management facilities

A Municipal Waste Facility
A Commercial Waste Facility

Scope and Limitations

In terms of its scope, the paper covers non-hazardous municipal, commercial &
industrial (C&l), and construction & demolition (C&D) wastes within the Isle of
Anglesey. Hazardous and radioactive wastes fall under separate regimes. The
primary data reference year is 2022 (NRW WDI), with trends from the latest
Welsh Government statistics. In terms of its limitations, operator reporting can
lead to gaps/inconsistencies, particularly for exempt facilities or end-of-waste
materials. While recent statistics show a short-term increase in inert (“lower
rate”) landfill disposals, the long-term trajectory remains a reduction in landfill
reliance; policy should remain flexible.

POLICY CONTEXT

Overview

Waste planning in Wales is guided by a hierarchy of national policy documents
and statutory requirements that collectively steer Wales toward a circular
economy. The JLDP provides the current local policy framework for Anglesey and
Gwynedd.

Planning Policy Wales (PPW12)

PPW12 sets the land-use planning policies of the Welsh Government (supported
by TANs). It explains the role of the planning system in facilitating sustainable
waste management, recognising sector transition and the need to make best use

Page 383



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

of material resources. It promotes the circular economy through design choices
that prevent waste and provides a framework for decision-making to deliver an
integrated network of facilities close to source.

Technical Advice Note (TAN) 21: Waste

TAN 21 confirms that PPW, TAN 21, LDPs, Towards Zero Waste and the Sector
Plans together comprise the “overall waste management plan for Wales”. It
requires sufficient recovery and disposal capacity while avoiding over-provision
and sets regional monitoring requirements (including Waste Planning
Monitoring Reports and landfill void triggers at regional level).

Towards Zero Waste (TZW)

TZW is the overarching strategy: medium-term milestones to 2024/25 and
longer-term aspirations to 2050, including high recycling performance, caps on
energy-from-waste and landfill, and progression up the waste hierarchy.

Collections, Infrastructure & Markets Sector Plan (CIMSP)

CIMSP aligns collections systems, treatment infrastructure and end-markets to
deliver TZW. It stresses avoiding over-provision of recovery/disposal capacity
and projects the scale and type of capacity likely to be needed within regions.

Municipal Sector Plan (MSP)

MSP prioritises prevention, preparation for reuse and recycling for Local
Authority Collected (LAC) waste, clarifies caps for EfW/landfill, and reinforces
that residual treatment remains a last resort.

Construction & Demolition (C&D) Sector Plan

Sets actions to drive high-quality recycling and reuse of C&D materials,
segregation at source, and diversion from inert landfill—underpinning the role of
secondary aggregates (linking to the Minerals Topic Paper).

Food Manufacture, Service & Retail Sector Plan

Targets the food supply chain: prevention, closed-loop recycling, and the
anaerobic digestion (AD) of unavoidable food wastes, complementing municipal
food waste collections and supporting regional AD capacity.

Beyond Recycling (2021)

Sets the pathway to a zero-waste, net-zero carbon Wales, accelerating the
circular economy and pushing activity up the hierarchy (prevention, reuse, repair,
remanufacture, recycling). LDPs should enable the infrastructure and places
(reuse hubs, repair facilities, high-quality sorting/reprocessing) that support
these goals.

Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017 (in force 2018; rates updated April 2025)
LDT replaced the UK Landfill Tax in Wales and remains a central lever to
discourage disposal. Current rates (from April 2025): standard £126.15/t, lower
(inert) £6.30/t, and unauthorised disposals £189.25/t.

Page 384



211

3.0
3.1

3.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Current JLDP Policy Context (Waste)
The adopted JLDP includes the following waste policies:

Strategic Policy PS 21: Waste Management - commits to adequate availability
of land in appropriate locations to deliver an integrated network of waste
facilities in line with the waste hierarchy and regional obligations.

Policy GWA 1: Provision of Waste Management and Recycling Infrastructure -
allocates specific sites for waste/recycling infrastructure and allows, beyond
allocations, in-building facilities on suitable industrial estates, quarries and
appropriate brownfield sites (excluding landfill/open-windrow composting)
where local need is justified by a Waste Planning Assessment and effects on
landscape/environment/amenity/health are acceptable. Several allocations
function as “urban quarries” to store/recycle C&D waste.

Policy GWA 2: Waste Management and Allocated Sites - a criteria-based policy
supporting proposals (e.g., composting/AD, specialist facilities) where need is
demonstrated, a Waste Planning Assessment is submitted, the hierarchy is
respected, and impacts are mitigated (scale/design, amenity,
environment/heritage, transport, air/noise/odour).

Link to employment land policy (CYF1) - confirms acceptability of waste
management facilities (as in GWA1) on safeguarded/allocated employment land,
where GWA1/GWA?2 tests are met.

Monitoring and adoption - at JLDP adoption there was no identified need for
new landfill; ongoing monitoring was required and any proposals would be
considered against GWA2.

FINDINGS OF MONITORING REPORTS
Monitoring draws upon:

e NRW Waste Data Interrogator (WDI);

e StatsWales datasets on LAC waste arisings and recycling;

e Council Waste Department intelligence (e.g., fly-tipping);

e North Wales Minerals & Waste Planning Service (NMWPS); and

e the statutory Annual Waste Planning Monitoring Reports (most recent:
2019-2020 for North Wales).

Waste Arisings and Recycling Performance (StatsWales - headline)

StatsWales records show Anglesey continues to perform strongly on municipal
recycling, consistently around/above 65% and on track to meet the 70%
statutory target by 2025. This mirrors the trajectory identified in the 2019-2020
Annual Monitoring Report but uses more recent figures. Table 1 provides details
in relation to Anglesey’s recycling performance compared to national
performance.

Page 385



3.3

34

3.5

3.6

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Table 1: Percentage of LAC waste prepared for reuse/recycling/composting
(Statutory targets: 2015/16 = 58%; 2019/20 = 64%; 2023/24 = 64%)

2015/|(2016/2017/||2018/|[2019/|2020/|2021/ || 2022/ ||2023/
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

Anglesey [[59.0 [|66.0 |72.0 |69.9 |68.0 [66.0 |62.0 |(|63.5 |(65.0

Wales 60.2 ||63.8 |62.7 |62.8 |65.1 |654 |[65.2 (657 |66.6

In summary, Anglesey exceeded the statutory target in 2015/16, 2019/20 and
2023/24. A temporary dip occurred in 2021/22 and 2022/23, before recovery in
2023/24. Wales as a whole shows a steady upward trend from 60.2% (2015/16)
to 66.6% (2023/24).

Waste Managed by Facilities in Anglesey (NRW WDI 2022)

NRW WDI (2022) indicates that Anglesey facilities received significant tonnages
across categories. C&D wastes dominate (exceeding 160,000 t), municipal
wastes are c. 65,000 t, and agricultural/food wastes c. 45,000 t. Transfer stations

remain the principal route, supported by Household Waste Recycling Centres
(HWRCs).

Waste Removed from Anglesey Facilities (NRW WDI 2022)

The waste removed dataset shows reliance on inter-authority transfers to
regional facilities: residual to Parc Adfer; organics to Gwyriad AD (plus
Penhesgyn composting locally); recyclables to regional Material Recycling
Facilities (MRFs). This pattern was anticipated in the 2019-2020 Annual Report
and is now embedded.

Comparison with the 2015 Baseline

The 2015 JLDP evidence concluded Anglesey’s waste system was broadly
adequate with residual treatment secured regionally. The 2022 monitoring
confirms this at a strategic level. The following three changes are notable:

i. the prominence of C&D/inert arisings, reinforcing the need to promote
secondary aggregates (link to Minerals Topic Paper);

ii. anew localised service issue in Holyhead (absence of a HWRC) linked to
persistent fly-tipping; and

iii.  accessibility constraints in Amlwch and the wider catchment of North
Anglesey, where distance to existing HWRCs limits convenience and
participation. Provision of a new HWRC would significantly improve
proximity, encourage higher recycling rates and help reduce inappropriate
disposal.

Page 386



4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

CONTEXTUAL CHANGES

Since the JLDP (2017), policy, infrastructure, waste trends and local
circumstances have evolved, shaping how the new LDP should address waste.

Landfill Tax and Disposal Trends

The Landfill Disposals Tax (Wales) Act 2017 replaced UK Landfill Tax from April
2018. Rates were uplifted in April 2025 (standard £126.15/t; lower/inert
£6.30/t; unauthorised £189.25/t), reinforcing landfill as the least-preferred
optioninthe hierarchy. While overall reliance on landfill has declined, monitoring
indicates a short-term increase in lower-rate (inert) disposals in Wales linked to
construction activity. This is directly relevant to Anglesey’s profile, where
C&D/inert streams are significant and policy needs to prioritise recycling and
secondary aggregates. The higher gate fees resulting from increased landfill tax
rates are expected to strengthen the financial incentive to recycle and recover
materials rather than dispose of them.

Regional Infrastructure Developments
Two significant developments to regional infrastructure have occurred since the
adoption of the JLDP. These are:

e Parc Adfer (Deeside) operational from 2019 provides long-term EfW
capacity for North Wales authorities (including Anglesey).

e Gwyriad AD continuesto treat food/organic waste, supporting renewable
energy and diversion from landfill.

These deliver secure regional treatment capacity.

Local Authority Waste Performance
Anglesey’s recycling rates are currently around 65%. Plans are being developed
to ensure the statutory recycling target of 70% will be met.

Localised Issues - Holyhead Fly-Tipping
Persistent fly-tipping in Holyhead, the Island’s largest settlement, is linked to the
absence of an HWRC in or near the town. Options include:

i. aspecificsite allocation; or
ii. aflexible policy allowing HWRCs on employment land.

North Anglesey - Service Access and Recycling

North Anglesey contains a number of isolated settlements in terms of access to
recycling facilities and represents a strategic weak point in local service
provision. Journeys to the nearest HWRCs are lengthy, approximately 14 miles
to Gwalchmai and 16 miles to Penhesgyn, creating barriers to convenient
recycling and lawful disposal. Establishing a HWRC within or close to the largest
settlement, namely Amlwch, would significantly improve proximity and
accessibility, encourage higher local recycling participation, and help to reduce
incidences of inappropriate disposal.

Page 387



4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

U1 Exemptions - Proper use and abuse

The use of U1 (and other) waste exemptions can provide a legitimate route for
the beneficial recovery and recycling of suitable materials, and when applied
correctly they contribute positively to circular economy objectives. However,
local experience indicates that thereis also arisk of exemptions being misapplied,
with material deposited in locations and in ways that amount to disposal rather
than recovery. Such practices can undermine the effectiveness of the waste
hierarchy, pose environmental risks, and create difficulties for the Planning
Enforcement Department and NRW. The new LDP should encourage and enable
the proper use of exemptions, while introducing stronger planning controls and
clearer expectations—particularly through the use of materials management
planningin relation to major developments—to prevent abuse and misplacement
of arisings on sites which register U1 exemptions illegitimately.

Waste Stream Profile and Risks

Construction and demolition (C&D) wastes remains the dominant waste stream
onthe Island, exceeding 160,000 tonnes in 2022. A substantial proportion of this
is not hard construction rubble (brick, block, concrete, asphalt), but rather
excavation arisings - soils, clays and overburden. These materials present a
particular challenge for recycling because, at present, they rarely meet the end-
of-waste certification requirements set by the Waste Resources Action
Programme (WRAP). This issue, repeatedly highlighted by NRW, means that
large volumes of excavation arisings have no clear recovery outlet and are often
consigned to disposal at authorised inert facilities. In some cases, this can also
encourage unauthorised tipping. These pressures underline the need for policy
to support high-quality recycling of suitable materials, to create conditions which
promote stronger secondary and recycled aggregate markets, and to direct
unavoidable residual soils, clays and subsoils into schemes and developments
where they can be treated as beneficial recovery operations and not disposal.

Agricultural/food wastes are significant (~45,000 t, 2022). However, the closure
of the 2Sisters poultry plant (Llangefni, 2022) may reduce certain organic
streams. Regional capacity at Gwyriad AD, the local Penhesgyn composting site
and the merchant AD Plant at Mona continue to provide treatment routes.

Implications for the new LDP
The followingissues are considered to have the greatest implications for the new
LDP:
e Strategic treatment capacity is secure via Parc Adfer (EfW) and Gwyriad
(AD);
e Policy should place greater emphasis on C&D recycling and the
development of secondary aggregates, working in collaboration with
NRW to explore opportunities for moving the reuse of excavation soils
and arisings higher up the waste hierarchy; and
e Update policies to embed circular economy principles (Beyond Recycling,
2021)

Page 388



4.11

4.12

5.0
5.1

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Growth and Major Projects - Demand Pressures

Potential large-scale infrastructure and development projects in and around
Anglesey may possibly generate significant waste arisings, particularly during
construction. Key schemes may include Anglesey Freeport, Wylfa, a potential
third Menai Strait crossing, and major coastal defence schemes such as Holyhead
Breakwater. In addition, planned housing delivery, transport improvements, and
utility upgrades will cumulatively increase construction, commercial & industrial
(C&l), and municipal (LAC) wastes. Such schemes are expected to generate
wastes as follows:

e Construction phase: large volumes of inert C&D materials include soils
and stones; concrete, bricks and ceramics, asphalt plainings, site-
clearance arisings and packaging — reinforcing the need for C&D
recycling/reprocessing and robust transfer/bulking arrangements; and

e Operational phase: Freeport/employment growth and new housing are
expected to increase C&l and municipal (LAC) streams (paper/card,
plastics, timber, metals, household recyclables/residual).

In terms of policy implications, the new LDP should look to prioritise C&D
recycling/secondary aggregates; safeguard/enable temporary bulking/laydown
on employment land; ensure timely delivery of local service provision where
needed; and encourage construction resource management engagement with
project promoters.

PROVISION & NEED

This section considers whether Anglesey’s waste infrastructure is adequate to
meet current/future needs and whether any gaps require intervention. It draws
on NRW WDI 2022, StatsWales, Council intelligence, and the statutory 2019-
2020 Monitoring Report.

Existing Provision

(A) Local authority provision & regional contracts

e HWRC: Penhesgyn and Gwalchmai underpin high recycling performance.

e Compostrecycling: Penhesgyn processes green/organic wastes, diverting
biodegradable material from landfill.

e Waste transfer stations: licensed facility at Penhesgyn enable bulking and
onward movement of municipal, C&l and C&D wastes to regional
treatment/recovery.

e Treatment (regional): secure access to Parc Adfer (residual municipal) and
Gwyriad AD (organics).

(B) Merchant & private sector facilities (illustrative; expanded in Appendix A)

e Waste transfer stations: Humphries Waste, Veolia Mona, Green Skips,
Cymru Lan.

Page 389



52

5.3

54

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Inert/C&D transfer & aggregate recycling / restoration outlets: Caer
Glaw Quarry (Hogan Aggregates, Rhuddlan Bach Quarry (currently Hurt);
Nant Newydd Quarry (currently Hurt), Bwlch Gwyn Quarry (Anglesey
Aggregates).

Anaerobic Digestion: Mona

Composting: Gwyn Maple, Star, Gaerwen

Metal recycling & ELV depollution/dismantling: Operators serving the
Island-wide market.

Assessment of Adequacy
The following outlines the adequacy of existing arrangements in relation to
wastes:

Strategic capacity: no strategic shortfall identified; residual and organic
treatment needs are met via long-term regional contracts.
Recycling/diversion: HWRCs and collections support >65% recycling -
provision is adequate.

Inert & C&D: Inert and C&D wastes remain the dominant stream on the
Island (>160,000 tonnes in 2022) with similar trends associated with
2024 figures. While existing inert capacity can accommodate current
arisings, policy emphasis should shift towards higher-value C&D recycling
and the production of secondary aggregates. Historically, much of this
activity has been accommodated within quarries, but limited space and
the need to relocate operations as sites progress has often led to
fragmented provision. Building on the “urban quarry” approach
established in the JLDP, the new LDP should consider whether worked-
out quarries, as well as appropriate land outside or adjacent to quarry
sites, could be identified for long-term C&D recycling and aggregate
recovery. This would provide more stability for operators, lessen the
demand for primary aggregates and help move this material stream
further up the waste hierarchy.

Agricultural/organic: Gwyriad AD, Mona AD, Penhesgyn, Star
composting provide adequate provision

Identified Gap - Holyhead and North Anglesey

The only notable shortfall is at the local geographic level, reflecting the uneven
distribution of HWRC'’s in Holyhead and North Anglesey (Amlwch) which the
new LDP should address by:

Allocating specific HWRC sites within/near Holyhead and Amlwch; or
Enabling HWRC development on allocated employment land.

Implications for the new LDP
Given the current position in terms of facility provision and identified gapsin that
provision, the following implications are considered to arise for the new LDP:

No new strategic allocations required for residual/organic treatment.

Page 390



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

e Strengthen support for C&D recycling and secondary aggregates.
e Provide for a HWRC in Holyhead and Amlwch via allocation or enabling
policy on employment land.

Future Demand - Major Projects and Growth Scenarios

Given the anticipated short-term significant surges in C&D arisings and a
potential uplift in C&l waste during operation necessitate flexible local
infrastructure, it is suggested that the new LDP should respond as follows:

e C&D focus - strengthen on-Island recycling/reprocessing and use of
secondary aggregates, reducing inert landfill and long-distance haulage.
Urban Quarry concepts as noted in JLDP

e Bulking capacity - enable temporary/permanent bulking/transfer
solutions on employment land to manage peaks, ensuring compatibility
with  adjoining uses through design and management.

Inert Landfill & Quarry Restoration Capacity (TAN 21)

Evidence indicates substantial capacity for inert materials at Rhuddlan Bach and
Nant Newydd (Brynteg) as part of approved quarry restoration concepts. Both
sites benefit from inert waste transfer permissions and can accept suitable C&D
arisings (e.g., soils/subsoils, crushed brick/concrete) under permit/planning
controls to complete restoration landforms and reduce pressure on general inert
landfill capacity.

In policy terms, TAN 21: Waste treats landfill as the option of last resort and
requires proposals for new landfill capacity to demonstrate need, avoid over-
provision, and respect proximity and self-sufficiency. For inert disposal linked to
restoration, “need” typically focuses on:

e the volume and suitability of material required to deliver the approved
restoration;

e the availability of appropriate local arisings; and

e the absence of higher-tier options (reuse/recycling) / inability to meet end
of waste.

Approach to material selection

In light of Landfill Disposals Tax uplifts and the circular economy, only non-
recyclable residual inert wastes should be deposited as part of restoration at
these sites (typically soils and fines that cannot meet end of waste). While this
may extend restoration timescales (as landforms take longer to complete), it
provides a valuable short- to medium-term outlet for residual inert wastes that
cannot reasonably be recycled, consistent with the waste hierarchy.

Point of search

Consistent with TAN 21 and the regional approach, the primary point of search
for any additional inert disposal to support restoration should be within Anglesey
and the wider North Wales region, prioritising existing mineral sites under

Page 391



6.0
6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.0
7.1

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

restoration and previously developed land, with transport considerations
(proximity to arisings/strategic road network) taken into account. With only
non-recyclable residual inert wastes deposited to deliver approved landforms
(typically soils/fines that cannot meet end-of-waste). The CL:AIRE DoWCoP
should be applied where applicable in other developments (not restoration) to
facilitate legitimate reuse and minimise disposal

SAFEGUARDING

Safeguarding protects existing/planned waste infrastructure from incompatible
development; without it, encroachment of sensitive uses can constrain facilities
essential to statutory waste/recycling targets.

Current Position

The JLDP (2017) included strategic policies but no mapped safeguarding zones;
protection relied on general policies. TAN 21 advises safeguarding of sites
necessary to maintain an integrated and adequate network. Regional monitoring
has emphasised maintaining operational capacity, particularly HWRCs, transfer
stations, and regional treatment routes.

Facilities Requiring Safeguarding in Anglesey
The list of facilities included in paragraph 5.1 should be safeguarded from
inappropriate development.

Policy Implications for the new LDP
The following implications are identified for the new LDP in relation to
safeguarding:

e Formally identify and safeguard sites above

e Criteria-based policies should require that proposals for sensitive uses
located near safeguarded waste sites demonstrate that they would not
prejudice current or future operations. In addition, where proposals are
made for the change of use of sites in waste management use—
particularly on general industrial land—policy should require clear
evidence demonstrating that the facility is no longer needed for waste
purposes, and its change of use would not compromise Anglesey’s
recycling aspirations and targets.

e Acknowledge reliance on regional facilities (Parc Adfer, Gwyriad) and
their bulking/transfer infrastructure, ensuring continuity and flexibility if
contracts change.

MONITORING

Monitoring provides the evidence base to show whether the new LDP is securing
an adequate, integrated network of waste facilities and moving materials up the

Page 392



7.2

7.3

8.0
8.1

8.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

waste hierarchy. As arisings and treatment routes vary with economic cycles,
technology and regulation, the approach is intended to be practical,
proportionate and responsive, rather than prescriptive.

Data Sources

Monitoring draws primarily on the NRW Waste Data Interrogator (WDI) for
annual facility-level “received/removed” flows, and StatsWales/Welsh
Government series for Local Authority Collected (LAC) arisings, recycling
performance and statutory compliance. This is supplemented by Council Waste
Service intelligence (including fly-tipping, operational feedback/monitoring and
community engagement) and advice from the North Wales Minerals & Waste
Planning Service (NMWPS) on cross-boundary flows, capacity and operations.
The Annual Waste Planning Monitoring Reports remain a statutory reference for
regional context and methodology; publication presently lags newer datasets
(latest available to us: 2019-2020). Where figures diverge, the more recent
NRWY/StatsWales series provide the baseline, with the AWPMR cited for context.
Current evidence suggests no immediate capacity shortfalls; nonetheless,
continued observation is important to sustain statutory performance and Welsh
Government ambitions. A light-touch, qualitative approach—attentive to early
signals at the top of the hierarchy—appears proportionate at this stage.

Review Approach

Rather than fixed numerical thresholds at this point, the new LDP relies on
qualitative, evidence-led review points alongside TAN 21. A focused review may
be initiated where monitoring indicates, for example, a material shortfall against
the statutory recycling trajectory, loss or constraint at safeguarded facilities, a
sustained rise in inert deposition without corresponding progress in C&D
recycling, material change to regional treatment contracts/headroom, or
persistent service-access issues evidenced by fly-tipping trends (present at
Holyhead). With landfill as a last resort, emphasis remains on early action to
boost waste higher up the hierarchy—potentially exploring additional
bulking/reprocessing capacity and addressing local service access subject to
evidence and collaboration with partners.

ISSUES, OBJECTIVES AND OPTIONS

This section draws together the monitoring and site intelligence to set out the main
waste planning matters for Anglesey, the broad objectives the RLDP could work
towards, and a proportionate policy direction. As with Part 7, the emphasis is on a
practical, evidence-led approach that supports the waste hierarchy and avoids being
overly prescriptive.

Key Issues
The following are identified as the key issues for consideration in relation to
policy development:

Page 393



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - WASTE v1.1

Strategic capacity - residual and organic needs met via Parc
Adfer/Gwyriad; no strategic shortfall.

C&D - >160,000t managed (2022); reliance on inert landfill for a
proportion; strengthen C&D recycling/secondary aggregates. Benefits
are twofold - helps lessen reliance on primary aggregates and increases
recycling rates.

Agricultural/organic - significant stream; maintain flexible provision via
AD/composting.

Recycling performance - consistently strong; continued investment
needed to sustain/advance.

Holyhead and North Anglesey service gaps - absence of HWRCs at large
conurbations on the Island.

Safeguarding - protect HWRCs, transfer, composting and bulking
infrastructure from incompatible development.

Demand pressures - major projects and growth (Freeport, Wylfa, Menai
crossing, coastal defence, housing need) to be planned for so flexibility
needs to be added into large scale development policies.

Objectives for the new LDP
8.3 Thefollowing are identified as the main objectives for the new Plan:

Maintain strategic adequacy via regional treatment contracts.

Promote C&D recycling and secondary aggregates, reducing reliance on
inert landfill and increasing the use of recycled aggregates.

Embed circular economy principles (Beyond Recycling, 2021) across
policies.

Secure Holyhead and North Anglesey HWRCs to close the service gap.
Safeguard key infrastructure (HWRCs, transfer, composting, bulking).
Monitor and respond using NRW, StatsWales, Annual Waste Monitoring
Reports (need to be kept up to date). NMWPS and Waste Department
needs to collaborate on the ground intelligence patterns.

Options for Policy Response
8.4  Following on from the above, the options in relation to the policy response are
considered to be:

Option A: Do Nothing - retain JLDP approach; would not address
Holyhead and North Anglesey HWRCs or strengthen C&D recycling.
Option B: Policy Enhancement (Preferred) - update policies to:
o support delivery of HWRCs in Holyhead and North Anglesey
(allocation or enabling on employment land);
o strengthen C&D recycling/secondary aggregates - inline / synergy
with Minerals paper;
o embed safeguarding of key facilities;
o reflect circular economy priorities in line with PPW12 and Beyond
Recycling.

Page 394



Agenda Item 7

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Report to: Planning Policy Committee
Date: 15 January 2026
Subject: Minerals Topic Paper
Portfolio Holder(s): Clir. Nicola Roberts (Planning, Public Protection and
Climate Change)
Head of Service / Christian Branch
Director: Head of Regulation & Economic Development Service
Report Author: John I. Williams (Planning Policy Manager)
Tel:
E-mail: johnwilliams2@ynysmon.llyw.cymru
Local Members: Applicable to all Elected Members
1.0 Purpose of report
1.1 This report summarises the content of the topic paper on minerals which
supports the preparation of the new Anglesey Local Development Plan (LDP).
The paper:
e reviews the existing evidence base in relation to minerals development;
e addresses the requirement to maintain a minimum 10-year landbank of
crushed rock during the entire plan period of each development plan;
e considers the effectiveness of current JLDP minerals policies; and
e identifies changes in circumstances that may necessitate amendments
to policy or land allocations.
2.0 Decision required
2.1 The information, objectives and options reported in the paper are noted and
accepted by the Committee as the basis for developing minerals planning
policies for inclusion in the new LDP.
3.0 Minerals policy context
3.1 The paper sets out the policy context for minerals planning and lists the

following hierarchy of national and regional policy documents and statutory
requirements as the basis to inform the development of sustainable waste
planning policies:

¢ Planning Policy Wales (PPW12)

Page 395


mailto:johnwilliams2@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

3.2

3.3

4.0
41

4.2

5.0
5.1

e Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1: Aggregates
¢ National Minerals Safeguarding Maps (NASM)
e North Wales Regional Technical Statement (RTS) 2" Review

The current Anglesey and Gwynedd JLDP provides the local framework for
determining waste-related planning applications and contains five minerals-
specific policies. These are:

e MWYN 1 - Safeguarding Mineral Resources — designates and
protects Category 1 and Category 2 aggregate resources from
sterilisation.

¢ MWYN 2 - Safeguarding Mineral Infrastructure — protects wharves,
railheads, and associated facilities critical to the handling, processing,
and distribution of minerals.

e MWYN 3 — Mineral Development — supports proposals for mineral
working within permitted sites and safeguarded areas, subject to strict
environmental, amenity, and restoration conditions.

e MWYN 4 - Criteria for New Mineral Sites — sets out the criteria for
assessing new mineral sites or extensions, including demonstrated
need, environmental capacity, and community protection.

e MWYN 5 - Buffer Zones — defines buffer zones around permitted or
allocated mineral sites to protect both sensitive uses and the operational
viability of quarries.

In addition to national, regional and local policy documents, reports focusing on
aggregates’ production compiled by the North Wales Regional Aggregates
Working Party (NWaRAWP) provide an overview of production to meet demand
for aggregate products. The latest reports were published in 2023 and 2025.

Mineral production on Anglesey

Anglesey boasts a varied geology and this results in a wide range of mineral
production. Aggregates make up the bulk of production whilst building and
walling stone is also produced. Valid peat and marl extraction planning
permissions exist as does the permission for extracting metalliferous ores at
Mynydd Parys.

Coal deposits exist beneath Cors Ddyga, but these are economically unviable
to extract with this situation unlikely to change in the short to medium term.

Apportionment

The RTS 2nd Review apportions an annual requirement of 321,000 tonnes of
crushed rock per year to Anglesey, equating to 8.025 million tonnes to 2039.
This apportionment was calculated using a Plan—Monitor—Manage
methodology, drawing directly on data collected through the NWaRAWP Annual

Page 396



5.2

6.0
6.1

6.2

7.0
7.1

7.2

7.3

Surveys. However, local operator evidence (February 2025) indicates that the
three main aggregate producing sites collectively produced more than double
the RTS apportionment.

Operators estimate that remaining permitted reserves stand at between 4.3 and
5.3 million tonnes which equates to approximately 5—7 years’ supply at current
extraction rates. This is significantly below the MTAN 1 minimum 10-year
requirement, and far less than RTS2 assumptions of a 25-year landbank for
crushed rock (10 years plus 15 years for the plan period).

Contextual changes since JLDP adoption

Several changes have been identified since the adoption of the JLDP in 2017,
not least the concentration of production into a small number of quarries whilst
other sites have been exhausted or mothballed. Additionally, there have been
significant demand pressures from infrastructure and housing perspectives,
impact of environmental constraints and the need to reconcile RTS2
assumptions with more recent, local evidence.

Reliance on the three main quarries risks depleting reserves at a faster rate,
particularly if no replacement reserves are permitted in the interim. This could
result in threats to supply resilience. Furthermore, demand from large-scale
infrastructure projects could potentially increase aggregate demand over and
above current apportionment levels.

Mineral supply

The preceding section of this report highlights the potential deficiencies that
could arise in landbank provision if major infrastructure/construction projects
proceed and demand for minerals increases as a result. Whilst RTS2 concludes
that no new allocations for mineral extraction are required on Anglesey,
evidence gleaned from operators demonstrate supply rates have exceeded
apportionment rates in recent years meaning that reserves have depleted at a
faster than expected rate and with no recent permissions granted to replace
these reserves.

Environmental constraints prevent extension of existing limestone quarries
given their proximity to the Corsydd Mén SACs. As such, the limited current
resources are likely to further deplete with resultant impacts for maintaining built
heritage and the repair of historic structures.

Given the above, the new LDP, in terms of mineral supply, should seek to:

e Maintain a minimum 10 year landbank;

e Require annual operator returns to maintain current reserve estimates;

e Exclude or caveat reserves that are constrained due to environmental
designations;

Page 397



8.0
8.1

8.2

9.0
9.1

e Plan for shortfall scenarios;

e Balance heritage needs;

¢ Prioritise extensions to existing sites over new sites;

e Coordinate sub-regional collaboration and cross-boundary flexibility;
e Recognise potential reactivations; and

e Consider allocating preferred areas or areas of search.

Buffer zones

MTAN1 applies a default buffer zones around mineral sites. These are set at
200m for hard rock quarries and 100m for sand and gravel sites. Although there
are no sand and gravel sites on the island, the latter figure can be applied to
peat and marl sites of which two currently exist. Buffer zones are applied to
maintain amenity for neighbouring communities and can be applied to protect
heritage and environmental interests at historical mining sites.

In terms of buffer zones, the new plan should look to:

e Retain default distances;

e Comprehensively map buffers;

e Integrate ecological protection;

e Embed buffers into the supply strategy;
e Allow flexibility for extensions; and

e Clarify the dual purpose of buffer zones.

Monitoring

Site monitoring is a statutory requirement and without direct, site-specific
monitoring, the Council risks underestimating reserve depletion rates and
missing early warning signs of supply shortfall. As such, the new LDP should
contain a monitoring policy which should:

e Set the purpose of monitoring;
e Specify data sources — Mandate the use of:
o NWaRAWP and RTS2 data for regional benchmarking.
o Confidential annual operator returns for Anglesey-specific
reserves, sales, and operational status.
o Annual drone surveys to provide independent reserve depletion
and stockpile volume estimates
e Define reporting — Commit to publishing both RTS2/NWaRAWP
indicators and an Anglesey-only effective landbank in the AMR.
e Set action triggers — Establish clear thresholds for intervention
e Recognise heritage/dimension stone — Establish a parallel monitoring
strand for small-scale sites, recording their operational status and
reserves separately.

Page 398



10.0
10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

11.0
11.1

e Link to supply policy — Make clear that monitoring results will directly
inform decisions on mineral supply allocations, safeguarded area
release, and buffer zone adjustments.

e Ensure operational transparency — Use monitoring outputs to provide
public updates on Anglesey’s mineral supply position, while protecting
commercially sensitive data from operators.

Conclusion

Anglesey offers a range of mineral products with numerous operational and
dormant sites found on the island.

On the basis of operator information in terms of aggregate provision, there is a
discrepancy between the apportionment figure provided for Anglesey in the
RTS and recent annual production. This has the potential to accelerate the
depletion rate of permitted reserves and threaten the resilience of supply.

Due to the closure and mothballing of some sites, pressure to meet demand is
increasingly placed on a smaller number of sites with the result being that their
reserves deplete at a faster rate.

Expected large infrastructure and construction projects have the potential to
place disproportionate demand pressures on the remaining productive sites.

Current estimates, based upon operator provided information, suggest that
reserves of hard rock on Anglesey falls short of the MTAN1 landbank
requirement of a ten-year supply.

Buffer zones at default distances (100m and 200m) should be retained around
mineral production sites and applied to any new consents that may be granted.

Regular site monitoring should be used to better understand resource depletion
rates and to trigger the need to review landbank provision in line with MTAN1
requirements.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Members accept this report together with the findings
of the topic paper and endorse as a basis for developing minerals planning
policy for the new LDP.

Page 399



CYNGOR SIR
YNYS MON ynysmon.llyw.cymru
: ISLE OF ANGLESEY anglesey.gov.wales
n—angd COUNTY COUNCIL

Anglesey Local
Development
Plan 2024—2039

Topic Paper —
Minerals

Draft vl1.1

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yny Gymraeg
This document is also available in Welsh.

m_ Anglesey County Council X angleseycouncil n angleseycouncil @ angleseycouncil



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039

TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Document history
Version | Author | Reviewed | Authorised Comments
1.0 RWW First draft for circulation and observations
1.1 RWW Incorporating amendments following first

draft reviews

Page 401



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

CONTENTS

Page
1.0 INTRODUCTION
2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

3.0
4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

National Policy Framework

Current JLDP Policy Overview

RTS 2nd Review (2020) Position

Updated Evidence - NWaRAWP 2023 & 2025 Operator Data
Policy Implications

FINDINGS OF ANNUAL MONITORING REVIEW (AMR)

CONTEXTUAL CHANGES

Demand Pressures

Reserve Depletion vs RTS2 Assumptions
Infrastructure and Distribution

Policy and Monitoring Implications

SAFEGUARDING

Resource Categories

Sand & Gravel

Link to Supply Position

Infrastructure Safeguarding

Future Policy Direction for the new LDP

MINERAL SUPPLY

RTS 2nd Review Position

NWaRAWP 2023 Monitoring

Effective Landbank Calculation

Constraints on Future Allocations and Production

New LDP Policy Requirements - Mineral Supply

Current and Emerging Planning Applications

Dimension and Heritage Stone (Aberstrecht and Dinmor Quarries)
Metalliferous and Other Non-Aggregate Minerals

BUFFER ZONES

Current JLDP Policy Framework

National Policy Guidance

Link to Current Supply Position

New LDP Policy Requirements - Buffer Zones

MONITORING

Current JLDP Baseline

Issues Revealed by Recent Evidence
Strengthened New RLDP Monitoring Approach
Trigger Thresholds Tied to Policy Response
New LDP Policy Requirements - Monitoring

Page 402



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Background

This is one of a range of topic papers prepared to offer more detailed information and
explain the approach of the Plan to different topics and issues affecting the Local
Development Plan Area. This paper will look specifically at Minerals. It will explain the
background which will help to identify the issues, objectives and options for the Deposit
Plan.

The Deposit Plan is the second statutory stage in the preparation of the Local
Development Plan (LDP). The LDP shapes the future growth of communities in the Local
Development Plan Area and will set out the policies and land allocations against which
planning applications will be assessed.

The Deposit Plan will be submitted to the Welsh Government, which will appoint an
independent inspector to assess the soundness of the Plan in the Examination in Public.
If the inspector considers the Plan to be sound it will be recommended for adoption.
When adopted the LDP will supersede the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local
Development Plan (2011) for the Ynys Mén Local Planning Authority.

This topic paper can be read in isolation or in conjunction with the other Topic and
Background Papers that have been prepared to give a full picture of the Local
Development Plan Area.

You may refer to the Topic Paper as a basis for making comments about the Deposit Plan.
It must be noted that only comments on the Deposit Plan will be considered by the
Inspector at the Examination in Public rather than specific comment made on the Topic
Papers.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss any of the Topic or Background Papers
with a member of the Planning Policy Team, you can contact us:

planningpolicy@anglesey.llyw.cymru

or in writing to:

Planning Policy Team (LDP)
Anglesey County Council
Llangefni

Anglesey

LL77 7TW

Tel: 01248 752428

Page 403


mailto:planningpolicy@anglesey.llyw.cymru

1.0
11

1.2

1.3

14

15

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

INTRODUCTION

This Minerals Background Paper supports the preparation of the new Anglesey
Local Development Plan (LDP) 2018-2033. It reviews the existing evidence base
for mineral supply, considers the effectiveness of the current Joint Local
Development Plan (JLDP) policies, and identifies changes in circumstances that
may require amendments to policy or site allocations. It builds upon the
foundation of Topic Paper 11 (Minerals) prepared for the JLDP (2015), but is
updated to reflect Anglesey’s specific circumstances and evidence as a single
authority preparing a new LDP.

Minerals are an essential component of the Island’s economy and infrastructure
delivery. Anglesey has long been a net exporter of crushed rock aggregates to the
wider North Wales and North-West England markets, with several strategically
important quarries located on the island. Minerals not only underpin the
construction of new housing, roads, and major infrastructure, but also play an
important role in the conservation of the island’s built heritage and cultural
identity, through the supply of distinctive dimension and architectural products.
Theisland is also notable for its metalliferous mining heritage, most prominently
at Mynydd Parys, which was of worldwide importance as one of the largest
copper mining centres during the 18th century. In addition, there are live
permissions for peat and marl extraction at Brynteg, reflecting the historic and
ongoing diversity of mineral activity on Anglesey.

The current JLDP includes the following key minerals policies:
e MWYN 1 - Safeguarding Mineral Resources
¢ MWYN 2 - Safeguarding Mineral Infrastructure
e MWYN 3 - Mineral Development
e MWYN 4 - Criteria for New Minerals Sites
e MWYN 5 - Buffer Zones

These policies align with the requirements of Planning Policy Wales (PPW) and
Minerals Technical Advice Note 1: Aggregates (MTAN 1), focusing on
safeguarding, sustainable supply, and minimising environmental impacts. They
remain a robust starting point but require review to ensure they reflect the latest
evidence and challenges facing Anglesey’s minerals sector.

Updated evidence from the Regional Technical Statement (RTS) 2nd Review
(2020), the North Wales Regional Aggregates Working Party (NWaRAWP)
Annual Report 2023, Natural Resources Wales Waste Permit Returns, and direct
engagement with local operators in February 2025 indicates that the supply
position for Anglesey is more constrained than previously assumed. Operator
meetings have provided vital site-level information on actual reserves,
production levels, and operational constraints, which in many cases differ from
the headline RTS figures. To improve transparency, operators are now asked to
complete monitoring forms, supported by site visits and data returns
coordinated by the Council/Service. This approach, combined with new

Page 404



2.0

2.1

2.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

surveying technologies, will strengthen the evidence base for the new LDP and
ensure that the landbank and apportionment figures reflect operational reality
rather than outdated assumptions.

POLICY CONTEXT

National Policy Framework
Minerals planning in Wales is guided by:

Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 12 - which sets the overarching
policy framework for the sustainable management of mineral resources,
balancing supply with environmental and community considerations.
Minerals Technical Advice Note (MTAN) 1: Aggregates - which requires
Mineral Planning Authorities (MPAs) to maintain a minimum 10-year
landbank for crushed rock and a 7-year landbank for sand and gravel
throughout the plan period, calculated against apportionments in the
Regional Technical Statement.

National Minerals Safeguarding Maps (NASM), produced by the British
Geological Survey (BGS) - which define Category 1 (nationally important)
and Category 2 (regionally important) aggregate resources. These maps
underpin safeguarding policies that protect mineral resources from
permanent sterilisation by non-mineral development.

Current JLDP Policy Overview

At the local level, mineral planning policy in Anglesey is currently guided by the
Anglesey & Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP), which contains five
specific mineral policies:

MWYN 1 - Safeguarding Mineral Resources - designates and protects
Category 1 and Category 2 aggregate resources from sterilisation.
MWYN 2 - Safeguarding Mineral Infrastructure - protects wharves,
railheads, and associated facilities critical to the handling, processing, and
distribution of minerals.

MWYN 3 - Mineral Development - supports proposals for mineral
working within permitted sites and safeguarded areas, subject to strict
environmental, amenity, and restoration conditions.

MWYN 4 - Criteria for New Mineral Sites - sets out the criteria for
assessing new mineral sites or extensions, including demonstrated need,
environmental capacity, and community protection.

MWYN 5 - Buffer Zones - defines buffer zones around permitted or
allocated mineral sites to protect both sensitive uses and the operational
viability of quarries.

Page 405



2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

RTS 2nd Review (2020) Position

The RTS 2nd Review apportions an annual requirement of 321,000 tonnes of
crushed rock per year to Anglesey, equating to 8.025 million tonnes to 2039. This
apportionment was calculated using a Plan-Monitor-Manage methodology,
drawing directly on data collected through the North Wales RAWP Annual
Surveys. The RAWP provides the baseline evidence by reporting 10-year and 3-
year rolling sales averages and permitted reserves for each authority. The RTS2
then uses the higher of these sales averages, applies a 30% uplift to reflect
anticipated construction and housing demand, and distributes the national
requirement regionally and then to local authorities using a mix of past sales
patterns, housing completions, and professional judgement. For Anglesey, the
calculation was based on 2016 reported reserves of 8.015 Mt, which at that time
appeared sufficient to meet the apportionment requirement. On this basis, RTS2
concluded that no new allocations were required to be provided in Anglesey.

Updated Evidence - NWaRAWP 2023 & 2025 Operator Data

The NWaRAWP Annual Report 2023 records 1,212,563 tonnes of crushed rock
sales for Anglesey and Gwynedd combined (merged for confidentiality). This
figure is almost four times the RTS2 apportionment for Anglesey alone,
suggesting much higher production levels than anticipated.

Anglesey-only output is not separately published, but local operator evidence
(February 2025) indicates that the three main sites (Bwlch Gwyn, Cae’r Glaw, and
Gwyndy) collectively produced more than double the RTS apportionment of
321,000tpa and reflects Anglesey’s role as a net exporter of aggregates to the
wider North Wales and North West England markets.

Operators estimate that remaining permitted reserves (excluding Hengae, which
has a 18,000 t/year output restriction) stand at between 4.3 and 5.3 million
tonnes. At current extraction rates, this equates to only 5-7 years’ supply. This is
significantly below the MTAN 1 minimum 10-year requirement, and far less than
RTS2 assumptions of a 25 year landbank for crushed rock (10 years plus 15 years
for the plan period).

Policy Implications
While current JLDP minerals policies remain broadly aligned with national and
regional guidance, the new Anglesey LDP will need to consider whether:

e Additional allocations or extensions are necessary to maintain a
compliant landbank;

e Safeguarding boundaries should be refined to focus on viable, deliverable
reserves;

Page 406



3.0
3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

e Monitoring arrangements should be strengthened to ensure up-to-date,
site-specific reserve and production data informs decision-making.

In addition to aggregates, the new LDP must also consider safeguarding of non-
aggregate minerals. This includes metalliferous resources such as Mynydd Parys,
which remains safeguarded under JLDP policy, and live peat and marl
permissions at Ynys Uchaf and Ynys Ganol, Brynteg. These require appropriate
safeguarding and buffer policies given their current extant status, even though
national policy is moving towards restricting peat extraction.

FINDINGS OF ANNUAL MONITORING REVIEW (AMR)

Annual monitoring for Anglesey draws on NWaRAWP survey returns,
supplemented by local authority site visits and direct discussions with operators.
This dual approach ensures that published regional data is cross-checked against
site-specific information.

The RTS 2nd Review (2020) sets the following annual crushed rock
apportionments:

e Gwynedd - 0.955 million tonnes/year
e Isle of Anglesey - 0.321 million tonnes/year
e Combined total - 1.276 million tonnes/year

The NWaRAWP Annual Report 2023 records 1,212,563 tonnes of crushed rock
sales for Anglesey and Gwynedd combined (merged for confidentiality reasons).
This is slightly below the combined RTS2 apportionment by around 63,000
tonnes/year, suggesting—on paper—that supply is broadly in line with projected
need.

However, local operator evidence from February 2025 shows a different reality
for Anglesey:

e Output from the three main quarries (Bwlch Gwyn, Cae’r Glaw, and
Gwyndy) is more than double the RTS2 apportionment for Anglesey alone
(321,000 t/year).

e Remaining permitted reserves at these three sites (excluding Hengae,
inactive with an 18,000 t/year cap) are estimated at 4.3-5.3 million
tonnes.

e Caer Glaw has recently been reassessed, with surveys identifying
additional reserves.

¢ Rhuddlan Bach, heavily worked to the end of 2024, is almost exhausted..

¢ Nant Newydd contains limited reserves but is currently mothballed.

Even including Rhuddlan Bach, Anglesey’s total effective reserves equate to only
5-7 years’ supply at current extraction rates. If Nant Newydd were reactivated,

Page 407



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.0
4.1

4.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

this could extend the landbank to 9-10 years, but this remains marginal against
the MTAN 1 minimum requirement.

This highlights a significant inconsistency between:
e RTS2 assumptions (8.015 million tonnes of reserves in 2016, equating to
average 25 years at the apportionment rate),
e NWaRAWP combined sales data, which masks Anglesey’s higher
extraction rates by merging them with Gwynedd'’s, and
e Local operator and LPA information, which shows much higher recent
output and far lower remaining reserves than RTS2 suggests.

Recycled and Secondary Aggregates - NRW Waste Permit Returns for 2022
confirm Anglesey receives over 160,000 tonnes of inert and
construction/demolition (C&D) wastes annually. Of this, approx. 27,000 tonnes
were treated while more than 100,000 tonnes were landfilled. Limited treated
wastes are exported to other regions, but much of the recycled aggregate
produced is unrecorded once it passes the “end-of-waste” test. This explains the
discrepancy between “waste in” and “waste out” figures in the datasets. Updated
data from 2024 indicates broadly similar trends to the 2022 returns. However,
for consistency and until further verification and assessment of the 2024 data
have been completed, the 2022 dataset will remain the baseline for this Topic
Paper. Future updates will reflect the latest confirmed evidence once clarified
and confirmed.

The true contribution of recycled aggregates to supply cannot be precisely
quantified. This makes it impossible to accurately calculate their role in
prolonging the landbank or meeting apportionment levels.

The AMR therefore concludes that relying solely on RTS2 and NWaRAWP
datasets risks underestimating the urgency of Anglesey’s mineral supply issue.
For the new LDP, frequent direct engagement with quarry operators, combined
with improved monitoring of recycled aggregate outputs, will be critical to
maintaining an accurate and timely reserve picture.

CONTEXTUAL CHANGES

Since the adoption of the current JLDP, a number of changes in Anglesey’s
minerals sector have direct implications for the new LDP. These include the
concentration of production into a small number of sites, the exhaustion or
mothballing of others, significant demand pressures from infrastructure and
housing, the impact of environmental constraints, and the need to reconcile RTS2
assumptions with more recent, local evidence.

Production Concentration
Anglesey’s supply is already concentrated in three main active sites - Bwlch
Gwyn, Cae'’r Glaw, and Gwyndy - which collectively produce more than double

Page 408



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

the RTS2 apportionment for Anglesey (321,000 t/year). This heavy reliance on
three quarries increases the risk that supply resilience will be undermined if
reserves deplete or operational restrictions arise.

Rhuddlan Bach has been heavily worked up to late 2024, with an remaining
reserves now approaching exhaustion. Once worked out, its output will need to
be absorbed by one or more of the other three main quarries, increasing pressure
ontheirreserves and shortening the effective landbank. Historic production data
indicates that Rhuddlan Bach typically supplied material over the decade before
exhaustion. This average output provides context for how its closure will increase
pressure on other sites. The loss of this output also has longer-term implications
for supply resilience, as it increases dependency on a limited number of larger
sites.

Nant Newydd retains a reserve but is currently mothballed. If reactivated, it
could partially offset the loss of production from other sites, but the timing and
feasibility of reopening remain uncertain. The site has limited scope for
extension, so its contribution is likely to be short-lived within the LDP period.

At Cae'r Glaw, updated surveys have identified additional reserve capacity within
the permitted boundary. While this improves the short-term landbank, it does
not fundamentally alter the medium- to long-term supply picture, as overall
reserves remain finite and concentrated.

Demand Pressures

Large-scale infrastructure and development projects such as Holyhead Freeport,
Wylfa Newydd, the proposed third Menai Strait crossing, and major coastal
defence schemes could significantly increase aggregate demand beyond current
apportionments.

Local housing delivery, transport improvements and utility upgrades are also
expected to require substantial quantities of aggregate. This is important
because RTS2 apportionments are partly based on housing completions data and
a 30% uplift to reflect future construction activity, embedding housing growth
directly into supply calculations. It is therefore essential that LDP housing
trajectories are aligned with mineral supply planning.

Reserve Depletion vs RTS2 Assumptions

RTS2 (2020) assumed 8.015 million tonnes of crushed rock reserves in Anglesey
(2016 baseline) and extraction close to the 321,000 t/year apportionment,
implying a 25-year supply.

Current operator evidence (Feb 2025) suggests effective permitted reserves are
around 4.3-5.3 Mt at the main active sites, with limited remaining reserves at
Rhuddlan Bach and Nant Newydd. Even including these smaller sites, this
equates to only 5-7 years’ supply at current output. Without new consents, the
landbank could fall below the MTAN 1 minimum 10-year requirement well
before the end of the LDP period.

Page 409



4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

5.0
5.1

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

This inconsistency between RTS2 assumptions, NWaRAWP combined data, and
operator intelligence highlights the importance of strengthening local
monitoring to ensure that landbank calculations reflect reality.

Environmental and Heritage Constraints

A significant proportion of Anglesey’s high-quality limestone resource is located
within, or adjacent to, Corsydd Mén Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and
associated Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSls), restricting its availability for
future working. Safeguarding must therefore distinguish between constrained
and workable resources.

Beyond its role as aggregate, Anglesey limestone has enduring heritage
significance, being used extensively for walling, building stone, and conservation
works. The exhaustion of accessible limestone quarries could therefore have
cultural as well as supply consequences.

Infrastructure and Distribution

Anglesey benefits from strategic transport links via the A55, Holyhead Port, and
potential rail connections at Penrhos, supporting both local supply and exports
to regional and national markets. In addition, there is potential for the Valley-
Wylfa railway siding to be repurposed for alternative uses such as general freight
and mineral movement. This could provide a valuable rail-based outlet for
aggregates, reducing pressure on the road network and improving the
sustainability of mineral distribution. However, while exports are economically
valuable, they risk accelerating depletion of local reserves if not balanced with
the need to maintain a reliable landbank for the island’s own requirements.

Policy and Monitoring Implications

Current JLDP policies safeguard key resources and infrastructure, but the new
LDP may need to incorporate trigger-based allocation mechanisms, enabling
extensions or new sites to be brought forward once reserves fall below a defined
threshold.

Strengthening real-time monitoring with operators - through annual data
returns, drone surveys, and liaison meetings - will be essential to track reserve
depletion accurately and to anticipate the operational status of mothballed sites
such as Nant Newydd.

SAFEGUARDING

The current Joint Local Development Plan includes two key safeguarding
policies:

e Policy MWYN 1 - Safeguarding Mineral Resources - identifies and
protects Category 1 and Category 2 aggregate resources from permanent
sterilisation by non-mineral development.

Page 410



52

53

54

55

5.6

5.7

5.8

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

e Policy MWYN 2 - Safeguarding Mineral Infrastructure - protects
wharves, railheads, and other facilities important for the storage,
handling, and processing of minerals.

These policies are consistent with Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 12,
MTAN 1, and the National Aggregate Safeguarding Map (NASM) prepared by the
British Geological Survey (BGS).

Resource Categories

The NASM identifies: This approach follows the methodology for other Local
Authority LDP work and associated technical work, which remains relevant to
Anglesey.

e Category 1 - nationally important resources, including high-purity
limestones and high-specification aggregate (HSA) igneous rocks.

e Category 2 - regionally important resources such as other hard rock
deposits and lower-specification limestones.

Hard rock

On Anglesey, safeguarded areas include extensive deposits of limestone,
sandstone, and igneous rock in the central and north-western parts of the island.
However, a significant proportion of high-quality limestone lies within, or
adjacent to, sensitive nature conservation designations, notably the Corsydd
Moén SAC and associated SSSls. These constraints reduce the volume of
safeguarded limestone that is realistically workable. At the same time, limestone
has a unique heritage importance as a traditional building and walling stone,
meaning its safeguarding has cultural as well as supply implications.

Coal

The JLDP also noted the Malltraeth Coalfield. While safeguarded nationally, it is
not considered viable for future working and is excluded from Anglesey’s
resource base.

Metals

Mynydd Parys is safeguarded as a metalliferous resource under JLDP Policy
MWYN 1, recognising both its potential for re-working and its significant
industrial heritage.

Peat and marl

Live permissions to win and work peat and marl at Ynys Uchaf and Ynys Ganaol,
Brynteg, should also be acknowledged in safeguarding, even though national
policy is moving towards restricting peat extraction. These permissions remain
valid until 22 February 2042 and therefore require safeguarding protection until
such time as policy or consent status changes.

Sand & Gravel
Category 1 and 2 sand & gravel deposits are also mapped but are generally small,
isolated, and often constrained by environmental designations such as

Page 411



5.9

5.10

5.11

6.0

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

floodplains or coastal protection zones. The RTS 2nd Review (2020) concluded
that there are no commercially viable, unconstrained deposits capable of
supporting large-scale extraction in Anglesey. Earlier technical work, including
studies undertaken for the JLDP, reached similar conclusions. These deposits are
safeguarded to retain long-term flexibility, but their future contribution is likely
to be limited. Detailed studies by Capita Symonds and Liverpool University were
undertaken for the JLDP to assess sand & gravel. These confirmed deposits are
highly constrained, reinforcing RTS2’s conclusion.

Link to Supply Position

Under the current JLDP, safeguarding is primarily a long-term protection
measure. However, updated evidence shows that safeguarded resources may
need to be considered for release much sooner than RTS2 anticipated,
particularly if:

e Rhuddlan Bach is exhausted in the short term.

¢ Nant Newydd remains inactive and does not contribute to the landbank.

e Output from Bwlch Gwyn, Cae’r Glaw, and Gwyndy increases further to
absorb shortfalls, accelerating reserve depletion.

There has also been uncertainty around site ownership and operation, further
complicating the likelihood of reactivation at Nant Newydd. Road access to
Hengae also poses challenges, and while a direct haul route has been suggested,
no scheme is currently in place. This evidence highlights the need to link
safeguarding more explicitly to trigger-based allocation policies in the LDP.

Infrastructure Safeguarding
In addition to geological resources, key mineral infrastructure to be safeguarded
includes:

¢ Holyhead Port - strategic marine import/export facility.

e Penrhos Industrial Estate railhead - with potential for future minerals
handling.

¢ \Valley-Wylfa railway siding - with potential for reuse in general freight
and mineral transport, supporting sustainable distribution.

¢ On-site processing, coating, and batching plants at operational quarries.

Future Policy Direction for the new LDP

Safeguarding will remain a core policy approach in the LDP, but given emerging
reserve constraints, it should be explicitly linked to potential future allocation
decisions. This would allow safeguarded areas to be brought forward for working
where monitoring shows the landbank falling below MTAN 1 requirements,
ensuring continuity of supply for both local needs and regional exports.

MINERAL SUPPLY
RTS 2nd Review Position

Page 412



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

The RTS 2nd Review (2020) sets the following annual crushed rock
apportionments:

e Gwynedd - 0.955 Mt/year
e Isle of Anglesey - 0.321 Mt/year
e Combined total - 1.276 Mt/year

RTS2(2020) used 2016 reserves of 8.015 Mt for Anglesey and concluded no new
allocations were required, on the assumption that extraction would remain close
to the apportionment rate. However, this assumption has proven unrealistic, as
extraction has consistently exceeded the apportionment.

NWaRAWP 2023 Monitoring

The NWaRAWP Annual Report 2023 records 1,212,563 tonnes of crushed rock
sales for Anglesey and Gwynedd combined (merged for confidentiality). On
paper, this is slightly below the combined RTS2 apportionment, but it masks
significant variation between the two counties.

In reality, production on Anglesey is well above the level assumed in the
apportionment. Operator evidence (February 2025) indicates that the island’s
main active quarries continue to produce at a significant rate, though individual
reserve capacities vary. Recent survey work has provided revised estimates for
several operational sites, confirming that the overall reserve positionis limited in
duration. Given discrepancies between RTS assumptions, NWaRAWP data, and
operator evidence, future monitoring must incorporate independent
verification. Drone surveys of active quarries should be undertaken annually to
calculate stockpiles and extraction face progress, providing a robust basis for
landbank calculations.

Given discrepancies between RTS assumptions, NWaRAWP data, and operator
evidence, future monitoring must incorporate independent verification. Drone

surveys of active quarries should be undertaken annually to calculate stockpiles
and extraction face progress, providing a robust basis for landbank calculations.

Effective Landbank Calculation

Total effective reserve: 5.9-6.9 Mt, equating to only 8-9 years’ supply at current
output (~750,000 t/year). If Nant Newydd reactivates promptly, the landbank
could increase somewhat, but this remains marginal against MTAN 1
requirements. It should also be noted that if the estimated reserve at Dinmor
were to be added into this calculation, the apparent landbank could increase by
less than one year (approximately 0.6-0.7 years at current output rates). This
could create a false ceiling, as Dinmor is highly constrained and unsuitable for
bulk aggregate production. Its reserves should therefore be carefully caveated as
potential heritage/dimension stone supply rather than relied upon for meeting
crushed rock apportionment requirements.

Page 413



6.7

6.8

6.9

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Constraints on Future Allocations and Production

Large parts of Anglesey’s high-quality limestone resource lie within or adjacent
to the Corsydd Mén SAC and associated SSSls, reducing the proportion of
safeguarded limestone that can be worked.

Certain limestone quarries also supply heritage-quality stone for walling,
architectural detailing, and conservation. The loss of these could impact not only
aggregate supply but also the preservation of Anglesey’s built character.
Historically, sites such as Rhuddlan Bach and Nant Newydd supplied building and
walling stone following the exhaustion of other sources (e.g., Bryn Engan during
construction of the A55). This dual role must be reflected in policy. For example,
Aberstrecht has historically produced high-quality architectural limestone,
illustrating the importance of safeguarding heritage sources.

New LDP Policy Requirements - Mineral Supply
The new LDP mineral supply policy should:

e State the supply objective - Maintain a minimum 10-year landbank for
crushed rock in line with MTAN 1, based on both RTS/RAWP and
Anglesey-specific effective reserve calculations.

¢ Integratesite-specificintelligence - Require annual operator returns and
drone surveys to maintain up-to-date reserve estimates, recognising
revisions such as the Cae’r Glaw uplift.

e Account for constrained reserves - Exclude or caveat reserves that
cannot be worked within the plan period due to environmental
designations or operational restrictions (e.g., Hengae's cap).

¢ Plan for shortfall scenarios - Introduce trigger-based mechanisms to
bring forward extensions or safeguarded areas for allocation when the
effective landbank approaches 10 yearsor is projected to fall below within
two years.

e Balance heritage needs - Where quarries supply both aggregate and
heritage-grade limestone, ensure continuity of supply for both uses,
potentially via targeted extensions or retention of small-scale working.

¢ Prioritise extensions over new sites - Allocate extensions to existing
operational quarries where possible, maximising use of existing
infrastructure and minimising environmental impacts.

e Coordinate sub-regional collaboration and cross-boundary flexibility -
Work jointly with neighbouring North Wales authorities to address
shared mineral supply issues by balancing shortfalls and surpluses across
administrative boundaries. Support import/export arrangements under
RTS principles where this helps maintain an adequate landbank while
ensuring Anglesey retains sufficient supply for its own needs.

e Recognise potential reactivations - Treat mothballed sites like Nant
Newydd and Hengae as part of contingency planning but only count
towards the landbank if there is a credible prospect of reactivation during
the plan period.

Page 414



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.16

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

e Consideration of preferred areas or areas of search

Current and Emerging Planning Applications

In addition to the reserve assessments set out above, it is important to note that
there is a live planning application for an extension at Cae'r Glaw Quarry. This
application (ref: MIG/2024/1), submitted in 2024, seeks to extend the quarry to
release an estimated 3.4 million tonnes of additional crushed rock. If permitted,
this would significantly improve the island’s effective landbank position and
contribute to maintaining a 10-year supply in line with MTAN 1 requirements.

There have also been early-stage operator enquiries regarding potential
extensions at other existing sites. While no formal applications have yet been
submitted, these enquiries indicate that operators are actively considering how
to maintain production capacity in response to emerging supply pressures.
Together, these potential extensions represent the most likely future sources of
supply continuity for Anglesey within the new LDP period.

Dimension and Heritage Stone (Aberstrecht and Dinmor Quarries)
These sites are not included in the landbank table as their outputs are specialist
and related to heritage/dimension stone rather than bulk aggregate supply.

Aberstrecht Quarry (Moelfre) is an operational small-scale limestone quarry
supplying dimension/architectural stone. Output is capped at 4,000 tonnes per
annum by condition, with no blasting, working above the water table, and
progressive restoration. Its reserves serve a specialist heritage/conservation
market rather than the bulk aggregate market. A key question for the new LDP is
whether these reserves should be caveated for dimension stone purposes only or
excluded from the crushed rock landbank and apportionment figures altogether.

Dinmor Quarry (Penmon) is currently inactive/mothballed under IDO conditions.
If recommenced, it has a permitted cap of 30,000 tonnes per annum and a
working end date of 2042 (restoration by 2044). Reserves have been estimated
at around 0.5 million tonnes, but the site is constrained by access and is not
suitable for high-volume aggregate supply. However, Dinmor could contribute to
walling and conservation stone supply, especially as Rhuddlan Bach and Nant
Newydd close. Again, the policy question for the new LDP is whether its reserves
should be recognised as a safeguarded heritage resource but excluded from the
aggregate landbank.

Policy Implications: Both Aberstrecht and Dinmor are strategically important to
heritage and conservation supply in Anglesey but are unlikely to contribute
materially to the aggregate landbank. The new LDP must decide whether to:

e Safeguard these quarries for their heritage stone role;

e Caveat their reserves as dimension stone only within the evidence base;
or

e Exclude them entirely from landbank/apportionment calculations.

Page 415



6.17

6.18

7.0

7.1

7.2

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Their exclusion ensures that aggregate reserve figures remain realistic and are
not artificially inflated by resources unlikely to be worked for bulk aggregate
purposes.

Metalliferous and Other Non-Aggregate Minerals

Metalliferous Ore - Mynydd Parys. Mynydd Parys has a long history of mineral
extraction, being one of the most significant copper mining sites in Europe during
the 18th century. The site remains of major industrial heritage importance. A
valid planning consent exists to work metalliferous ore at Mynydd Parys until
2028. Ongoing discussions have taken place between the operator, the Local
Planning Authority, and the Minerals Service regarding the potential re-working
of the site under a modified application. Policy Context: Within the current JLDP,
Policy MWYN 1 (Safeguarding Mineral Resources) identifies Mynydd Parys as a
safeguarded metalliferous resource, protecting it from sterilisation by non-
mineral development. In addition, Policy MWYN 3 (Mineral Development)
supports proposals for mineral working within permitted sites and safeguarded
areas, subject to environmental and amenity considerations. The RLDP will
therefore continue this safeguarding approach, recognising both the historic
importance of Mynydd Parys and its potential for re-working under future
modified applications.

Peat and Marl - Brynteg (Ynys Uchaf and Ynys Ganol). There are two live
permissions to win and work peat and marl at Ynys Uchaf and Ynys Ganol,
Brynteg. These materials are primarily used for agricultural and horticultural
purposes rather than for aggregates. However, national policy is moving towards
restrictions and potential bans on peat extraction and sale, reflecting climate
change, habitat protection, and biodiversity priorities. The RLDP evidence base
should therefore acknowledge the existence of these permissions, while also
making clear that future policy constraints may limit their contribution during the
plan period / or consent status changes.

BUFFER ZONES

Current JLDP Policy Framework
The current JLDP baseline is contained in Policy MWYN 5 (Buffer Zones) and
identifies separation distances around mineral sites to:

e Protect residential amenity from adverse impacts such as noise, dust, and
vibration.

e Safeguard publicsafety by controlling development near active extraction
areas.

e Preservetheoperational viability of permitted and allocated mineral sites
by avoiding incompatible development.

Complementing this, Policy MWYN 2 (Safeguarding Mineral Infrastructure)
ensures that strategically important facilities such as Holyhead Port, the Penrhos

Page 416



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

railhead, Valley Railhead and on-site plants at quarries are protected from
sterilisation by non-mineral development. Safeguarding infrastructure in parallel
with buffer zones is essential to maintain operational flexibility, particularly if
imports are needed in the future or if mothballed sites are reactivated.

National Policy Guidance

The JLDP adopts the MTAN 1 approach of applying indicative buffers around
mineral sites and potential allocations, with distances reviewed on a case-by-
case basis. Paragraphs 40-43 of MTAN 1 advise:

e A default 200 metre distance from the site boundary for hard rock
quarries.

e That buffers protect the amenity of sensitive land uses and reduce the
potential for conflict between minerals operations and neighbouring
communities.

e That distances may be varied where topography, screening, or mitigation
measures change the potential for impact.

Furthermore, Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 12 (Section 5.14):

e Requires that local planning authorities protect both the function and the
amenity of mineral sites by preventing nearby development that could
prejudice their operation.

e Encourages clear definition of buffer zones on the proposals map, so all
parties are aware of potential development constraints.

e Supports flexible, evidence-led distances to balance mineral working with
the wellbeing of communities and the environment.

For non-aggregate minerals, buffer zones should also be applied. Mynydd Parys
requires buffer protection not only for amenity but also to protect its heritage
and environmental setting. Peat and marl sites at Ynys Uchaf and Ynys Ganol
should be treated in a similar way to sand and gravel, with a default 100m buffer
adjustable for hydrology, ecology, and site-specific mitigation measures.

Link to Current Supply Position

The three main producers (Bwlch Gwyn, Cae’r Glaw, and Gwyndy) are expected
to operate well into the new LDP period. Extensions to maintain a 10-year
landbank will need buffer protection now to prevent sterilisation by
incompatible development.

Rhuddlan Bach is nearing exhaustion and its production will shift to the other
main sites, increasing their output and associated environmental impacts.

Nant Newydd could be reactivated. Its safeguarded buffer must be retained to
avoid sterilising this reserve and to ensure the option of reactivation remains
open.

Page 417



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Both Rhuddlan Bach and Nant Newydd lie close to Corsydd Mén SAC and SSSls.
Buffer zones here must protect ecological integrity and site hydrology in addition
to human amenity.

Potential reactivation of sites such as Bryn Engan must also be considered.
Buffers for exhausted or dormant sites should remain until permissions are
relinquished, ensuring that future heritage or small-scale supply options are not
inadvertently sterilised.

New LDP Policy Requirements - Buffer Zones
The new LDP buffer zone policy should:

e Retain default distances - Apply the MTAN 1 indicative 200 m buffer for
hard rock quarries, with scope for adjustment based on site-specific
evidence (e.g. topography, bunding, environmental controls).

e Comprehensively map buffers - Apply to:

o Existing permitted quarries.

o Likely extension areas identified through monitoring and supply
assessment.

o Viable inactive or dormant sites, including exhausted sites where
reactivation may be considered.

¢ Integrate ecological protection - Ensure buffers around SAC/SSSI or
other designated sites protect biodiversity, habitats, and hydrology.

e Embed buffers into the supply strategy - Buffers should support
operational continuity and avoid unnecessary sterilisation of workable
reserves, particularly where extensions are likely.

e Allow flexibility for extensions - Modify buffer lines where evidence
shows that mitigation measures can protect amenity and environmental
quality.

e Clarify dual purpose - Make explicit that buffer zones safeguard both
community amenity and the viability of mineral operations. Proposals
within buffer zones should be carefully assessed for compatibility with
mineral working.

In summary, buffer zones are a critical tool to protect amenity and safeguard the
operational viability of quarries. MTAN 1 recommends a default 200m for hard
rock, adjustable for site-specific factors. PPW Edition 12 reinforces their dual
role in protecting both site function and community wellbeing. For Anglesey,
buffers should cover existing sites, likely extensions, and viable mothballed sites,
while also protecting SAC/SSSI from ecological impacts. Flexibility must be
retained to adjust buffer boundaries where robust evidence and mitigation
measures demonstrate that amenity and environmental quality can be
safeguarded.

Page 418



8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

MONITORING

Current JLDP Baseline

Monitoring currently occurs via the Annual Monitoring Report (AMR), drawing
on RAWP/NWaRAWP survey returns and local authority site intelligence. No
stand-alone monitoring policy exists, but monitoring is a statutory requirement
across the plan as awhole.

Issues Revealed by Recent Evidence
RTS2 and NWaRAWRP datasets are reliable for regional benchmarking but lag
behind operational reality. For example, in 2023 Anglesey sales were merged
with Gwynedd’s, masking Anglesey-specific figures and obscuring the much
higher production rate on the island.

Operator intelligence gathered in February 2025 materially shifts the picture:
Cae’r Glaw has gained additional reserves, Rhuddlan Bach is virtually exhausted,
and Nant Newydd, though mothballed, retains limited reserves that could be
reactivated.

Without direct, site-specific monitoring, the Council risks underestimating
reserve depletion rates and missing early warning signs of supply shortfall. Drone
surveys, for example, could independently confirm how much reserve remains at
Bwlch Gwyn, Cae’r Glaw, and Gwyndy.

Strengthened New RLDP Monitoring Approach
Annual confidential operator returns should be submitted to the Council,
reporting:

e Reserves by site (proved & probable).

e Extraction and sales by product.

e Operational status (active, mothballed, inactive).
e Expected three-year output profile.

It is acknowledged that quarry output is not linear and that producing one type
of aggregate (e.g. 10 mm clean stone) can generate by-products (e.g. dust or
scalpings) that may not sell at the same rate. Monitoring must therefore take
account of these complexities.

Annual drone surveys of each operational quarry should be undertaken to verify
permitted extraction boundaries, measure stockpile volumes, and monitor face
progress against permitted plans. This would provide independent estimates of
reserve depletion and stock balance.

Triggers should be activated when the landbank is less than 11 years, or where a
key site changes status (e.g. Rhuddlan Bach closure, Nant Newydd reactivation).

Page 419



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

8.8  Dualreporting in the AMR should ensure that:

RTS2/NWaRAWRP indicators are included for regional comparability.

An Anglesey-only “effective landbank” is calculated, excluding reserves
that are not realistically workable within the plan period.

The potential contribution of recycled aggregates is acknowledged, while
recognising that their true output is unrecorded once materials pass the
“end-of-waste” test.

Trigger Thresholds Tied to Policy Response
8.9 Thefollowing actions should apply when trigger levels are reached:

Landbank <10 years (crushed rock): initiate site search and extension
feasibility, and prepare a focused call for sites (safeguarded areas first).
Projected <9 years within 24 months: begin preparatory work on
allocation(s) or extensions in the new LDP (or SPG) so applications can be
determined in time.

Loss of capacity (e.g. Rhuddlan Bach closure without compensatory
reactivation at Nant Newydd): escalate to cross-boundary dialogue with
Gwynedd and other authorities under RTS collaboration principles.

New RLDP Policy Requirements - Monitoring
8.10 The new RLDP monitoring policy should:

Set the purpose - Ensure compliance with MTAN 1 landbank
requirements and enable early intervention where reserves are
approaching critical thresholds.
Specify data sources - Mandate the use of:

o NWaRAWP and RTS2 data for regional benchmarking.

o Confidential annual operator returns for Anglesey-specific

reserves, sales, and operational status.
o Annual drone surveys to provide independent reserve depletion
and stockpile volume estimates.

Define reporting - Commit to publishing both RTS2/NWaRAWP
indicators and an Anglesey-only effective landbank in the AMR.
Set action triggers - Establish clear thresholds for intervention, including
<10 years effective landbank, projected <9 years within 24 months, or
significant capacity loss.
Recognise heritage/dimension stone - Establish a parallel monitoring
strand for small-scale sites (e.g. Aberstrecht, Dinmor), recording their
operational status and reserves separately. These figures should not be
added into the crushed rock landbank but should be safeguarded in policy
to ensure continuity of supply for walling, conservation, and architectural
purposes.

Page 420



ANGLESEY LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 2024-2039
TOPIC PAPER - MINERALS v1.1

Link to supply policy - Make clear that monitoring results will directly
inform decisions on mineral supply allocations, safeguarded area release,
and buffer zone adjustments.

Ensure operational transparency - Use monitoring outputs to provide
public updates on Anglesey’s mineral supply position, while protecting
commercially sensitive data from operators. Monitoring indicators will be
reviewed to ensure consistency with RTS 3 regional guidance once
available.

Page 421



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén

Adroddiad i: Pwyllgor Polisi Cynllunio
Dyddiad: 15 lonawr 2026
Pwnc: Canlyniadau Astudiaeth Manwerthu ac Argymhellion

ar gyfer Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Newydd

Aelod(au) Portffolio: Y Cynghorydd Nicola Roberts (Cynllunio, Gwarchod y
Cyhoedd a Newid Hinsawdd)

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth / Christian Branch

Cyfarwyddwr: Pennaeth Gwasanaeth Rheoleiddio a Datblygu
Economaidd

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Laura Parry (Swyddog Polisi Cynorthwyol)

Ffon:

E-bost: lauraparry3@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

Aelodau Lleol: Mae’n berthnasol i bob Aelod Lleol

1.0 Pwrpas yr Adroddiad

1.1 Diben yr adroddiad hwn yw diweddaru Aelodau am ganlyniad yr Astudiaeth
Manwerthu a gomisiynwyd, a baratowyd gan Lambert Smith Hampton ar gyfer
Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén. Mae'r Astudiaeth yn cynnig sylfaen dystiolaeth er mwyn
paratoi polisiau am fanwerthu a chanol trefi, gan ddisodli Astudiaeth Manwerthu
Gwynedd a Mén 2012.

2.0 Penderfyniad sydd ei angen

2.1 I dderbyn canfyddiadau Astudiaeth Manwerthu 2025 fel y sylfaen ar gyfer datblygu
polisiau yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar y Cyd.

3.0 Trosolwg o’r Canfyddiadau

3.1 Mae’r adroddiad yn cynnig asesiad mwy diweddar ar yr angen manwerthu yn Ynys
Mén, a’i fwriad yw dylanwadu ar y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol 2024 - 2039 drafft.
Mae’r astudiaeth yn canolbwyntio ar y 10 pryder sy’n ymwneud & manwerthu:

e Canolfannau manwerthu trefol: Caergybi, Llangefni
e Canolfannau manwerthu lleol: Amlwch, Benllech, Biwmares, Cemaes,
Llanfairpwll, Porthaethwy, Rhosneigr, Y Fali.

3.2 Mae'’r astudiaeth yn amlinellu tueddiadau economaidd ac yn y farchnad
genedlaethol, a sut mae’r rhain yn cael dylanwad ar ganolfannau Ynys Mén.

Page 423


mailto:lauraparry3@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

Mae’n nodi bod tueddiadau cenedlaethol yn effeithio’n fwy ar ganolfannau mwy
yn hytrach na chanolfannau lleol.

3.3 Mae’r astudiaeth hefyd yn asesu ymddygiadau siopa cyfredol ac yn rhagweld sut
all hyn newid yn y dyfodol (yr angen mesurol am ddatblygiad manwerthu
newydd). Mae’r dadansoddiad mesurol yn seiliedig ar ddata gwariant gan
Experian Insights. Mae’r casgliadau’n nodi nad oes angen mesurol am
leoliadau manwerthu cymharol neu gyfleuster yn y Cynllun (2024-2039).
Rhagwelir y bydd llond llaw o leoliadau “dros ben” yn bodoli a nad yw ynddo’i
hun yn haeddu newidiadau I'r ffinau. Fodd bynnag, mae’r astudiaeth yn
argymell diweddariadau ffiniau bach yn Caergybi, Llangefni, Amlwch,
Biwmares, Cemaes, Y Fali, Benllech, fel bod ardal ddiffinedig pob canolfan yn
cyd-fynd yn well a’'r mannau lle mae mae siopau a gwasanaethau wedi eu
canolbwyntio bellach.

3.4. Mae’r astudiaeth hefyd yn cynnwys gwiriad iechyd canol tref ar gyfer bob un o’r
10 canolfan (a Gaerwen). Mae’r gwiriad yn ystyried iechyd, rol a swyddogaeth
canolfannau unigol er mwyn datblygu polisiau i gefnogi eu hyfywedd a’u
bywioldeb hirdymor. Mae’r gwiriadau iechyd yn ystyried amrywiaeth defnydd,
gwagleoedd a nifer yr ymwelwyr.

3.5 Mae crynodeb o opsiynau posibl ac argymhellion polisi wedi’'u cynnwys ar gyfer pob
setliad. Mewn rhai achosion, mae hyn yn cynnwys argymhellion i newid ffiniau
canol tref ac ardaloedd siopa cynradd sydd wedi’'u diffinio.

5.0 Hierarchaeth Manwerthu (Arfaethedig):

5.1 Mae’r astudiaeth yn argymell newid o 2 haen i'r hierarchaeth manwerthu presennol
(fel y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol ar y Cyd). | dair haen fel yr amlinellir isod:

Haen Canolfannau
Canolfannau Trefol Caergybi
Llangefni
Canolfannau Lleol Amlwch
Biwmares
Benllech
Llanfairpwll
Porthaethwy
Y Fali
Canolfannau Lleol | Cemaes
Bach Gaerwen
Rhosneigr

6.0 Argymbhellion Polisi

6.1 Mae’r astudiaeth yn argymell sawl diwygiad arfaethedig i eiriad y polisiau cyfredol
yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol. Bydd yr ystyriaethau hyn yn cael eu hystyried fel
rhan o’r gwaith o ddrafftio’r ddogfen Strategaeth a Ffafrir.

Page 424



7.0 Casgliadau strategol:

7.1 Nid oes angen unrhyw ddyraniadau manwerthu newydd. Yn hytrach, dylai’r polisi
manwerthu ganolbwyntio ar amrywio, ailddefnyddio a hyfywedd. Mae agen
adolygu ffiniau i adlewyrchu gwirionedd patrymau masnachu sydd wedi newid.
Dylid annog defnydd cymysg a datblygiadau hamdden er mwyn gwella
gwydnwch. Caergybi sy’'n cael y flaenoriaeth o ran adfywio, ac mae Llangefni
yn sefydlog ac yn perfformio’n dda. Mae canolfannau llai yn hynod bwysig yn
lleol ac i ymwelwyr, a dylid eu gwarchod a’u gwella yn unol & hynny.

8.0 Argymhelliad

8.1 Bod Aelodau’n derbyn yr adroddiad, a’i gasgliadau fel sylfaen ar gyfer drafftio polisi
yn y Strategaeth a Ffafrir.

Page 425



Isle of Anglesey County Council

Report to: Planning Policy Committee
Date: 15 January 2026
Subject: Retail Study results and recommendations for new
LDP
Portfolio Holder(s): CliIr. Nicola Roberts (Planning, Public Protection and
Climate Change)
Head of Service / Christian Branch
Director: Head of Regulation & Economic Development Service
Report Author: Laura Parry (Assistant Policy Officer)
Tel:
E-mail: lauraparry3@ynysmon.llyw.cymru
Local Members: Applicable to all Elected Members
1.0 Purpose of Report
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on the outcome
of the commissioned Retail Study produced by Lambert Smith Hampton for the
Isle of Anglesey County Council. The Study provides an evidence base to
inform retail and town centre policies, replacing the 2012 Gwynedd & Anglesey
Retail Study.
2.0 Decision required
21 To accept the findings of the 2025 Retail Study as the basis for policy
development in the LDP.
3.0 Overview of findings
3.1 The report provides an updated assessment of retail need in Anglesey and is
intended to inform the emerging draft Local Development Plan 2024 to 2039
(LDP). the study focuses on the on the 10 retail centres:
e Urban retail centres: Holyhead, Llangefni
e Local Retail centres: Amlwch, Benllech, Beaumaris, Cemaes,
Llanfairpwll, Menai Bridge, Rhosneigr, Valley.
3.2  The study outlines national economic and market trends and how these have

affected Anglesey centres. It notes that the larger centres are more affected by
national trends than local centres.

Page 426


mailto:lauraparry3@ynysmon.llyw.cymru

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

6.0

The study also assesses current shopping behaviour and forecasts how this
may change in the future (i.e. the quantitative needs for new retalil
development). The quantitative analysis is based on expenditure data from
Experian Insights. The conclusions are that there is no quantitative need for
additional convenience or comparison retail floorspace in the Plan period
(2024-2039). There is a relatively small forecast “surplus” floorspace which itself
does not merit boundary changes. The study does however recommend small
boundary updates in Holyhead, Llangefni, Amlwch, Beaumaris, Cemaes,
Valley, Benllech and Rhosneigr, and the creation of a new boundary for
Gaerwen, so that each centre’s defined area better matches where shops and
services are now concentrated.

The study also contains a town centre health check for each of the 10 centres
(and Gaerwen). The check considers the current health, role and function of
individual centres in order to develop policies to support their long term vitality
and viability. The health checks consider diversity of uses, vacancies and footfall.

For each settlement a summary of future prospects and policy recommendations
is included. In some cases this includes recommendations to change the extent
of the town centre boundaries and defined primary shopping areas.

Retail Hierarchy (Proposed):

the study recommends a change to the existing reatil hierarchy from 2 tiers (as
in the current JLDP). To three tiers as outlined below:

Tier Centres
Urban Centres Holyhead
Llangefni
Local Centres Amlwch
Beaumaris
Benllech
Llanfairpwll
Menai Bridge
Valley
Small Local Centres Cemaes
Gaerwen
Rhosneigr

Policy Recommendations:

The study recommends a number of proposed revisions to the wording of
current policies in the JLDP. These recommendations will be considered as part
of drafting the Preferred Strategy document.

Strategic conclusions:

Page 427



6.1

7.0
7.1

No new retail allocations are required. The focus for retail policy should shift to
diversification, reuse and vitality. Boundary revisions are necessary to reflect
the reality of altered trading patterns. Mixed use and leisure development
should be encouraged to enhance resilience. Holyhead remains the
regeneration priority and Llangefni is stable and well-performing. Smaller
centres continue to play a critical local and visitor role should be protected and
enhanced accordingly.

Recommendation:

That Members accept the report and its conclusions as the basis for policy
drafting in the Preferred Strategy.

Page 428



Lambert
Smith

Hampton

Isle of Anglesey Retail Study

Main Report

Prepared for:
Isle of Anglesey County Council

December 2025

Ish.co.uk

il

o oy



http://www.lsh.co.uk/

This document has been prepared and checked in accordance with the Lambert Smith
Hampton Quality Assurance procedures and authorised for release. If not signed off by a
Director in the Planning, Regeneration + Infrastructure (PR+l) division at LSH then this
document should be treated as a draft, and as being Private and Confidential. It should not
be for wider distribution without the sign-off and permission of Lambert Smith Hampton.

This report meets the PDF/UA (Universal Accessibility) standard, which is equivalent to the
WCAG 'AA' digital standard.

Prepared by:

Christine Reeves

Signed:

For and on behalf of Lambert Smith Hampton

Issued: December 2025

Page 430



Contents

1. INTRODUCTION .....oomieieiececeeceeseecee s 4
2. PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT ...ovvoiviieieceeceeseeseeseese e 5
3.  ECONOMIC AND MARKET TRENDS.........eoivureieeieereeseeseseesese e 12
4.  TRADING PATTERNS AND RETAIL CAPACITY ...ooovviveiieeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeenenn, 14
5.  HEALTH CHECK AND TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY
CONSIDERATIONS .....oooiviieieieiseestes e s 16
6. RETAIL AND TOWN CENTRE POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS...................... 32

Appendices

APPENDIX A: ECONOMIC AND MARKET TRENDS
APPENDIX B: RETAIL AND LEISURE CAPACITY ASSESSMENTS
APPENDIX C: HEALTH CHECK ASSESSMENTS

Page 431



INTRODUCTION

This report has been prepared by Lambert Smith Hampton (‘LSH’) on the
instruction of Isle of Anglesey County Council (‘the Council’ / ‘loA CC’). It provides
an updated assessment of retail need in Anglesey and is intended to inform the
emerging draft Local Development Plan 2024 to 2039 (LDP).

Background

The current Local Development Plan for Anglesey is the Anglesey and Gwynedd
Joint Local Development Plan (JLDP) which was adopted on 31 July 2017.

The two County Councils ended their joint working agreement on planning policy
matters on 31 March 2023 and therefore the new LDP for Anglesey will be
prepared by loA CC.

The purpose of this document is to provide the robust evidence required to inform
the emerging policies relating to retail and commercial uses that will supercede
those in the JLDP. It replaces the Anglesey part of the Gwynedd and Anglesey
Retail Study (GARS) prepared in 2012 by Applied Planning (AP), which is now out
of date.

A key purpose of this report is to update the primary evidence base on retalil
expenditure flows and market shares and to assess how recent and future
economic and market changes will affect the town centres in Anglesey. In doing so
it seeks to provide a robust evidence base which the Council can use to inform the
policies in the emerging LDP.

Report Structure

The report is structured as follows:

e Section 2 sets out the planning policy context for the study and Anglesey. It
looks at what is required by national planning policy in terms of local
development plan preparation and summarises the relevant policies in the
current JLDP;

e Section 3 looks at the economic and market trends that have and will continue
to affect retail and commercial leisure uses in Anglesey, with detailed
information on trends provided in Appendix A;

e Section 4 introduces the existing available information on the study area and
trading patterns within it, based on the new expenditure data for Anglesey,
with the detailed findings presented in Appendix B. It also summarises the key
outputs from our quantitative assessment of retail capacity/need;

e Section 5 summarises the key findings from the health checks of the main
centres. Full details are provided in Appendix C. It also provides our
recommendations regarding the future of the individual centres; and

e Section 6 provides a summary of our findings and provides advice to the
Council on the policy implications for the LDP.

Page 432



10.

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

National Policies

Planning Policy Wales

National planning policy is set out in Planning Policy Wales (PPW), the most
recent version of which was published in February 2024 (Edition 12).

To support the Government’s primary objective of ensuring that the planning
system contributes towards the delivery of sustainable development and improves
the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales, PPW
identifies a number of overarching objectives for retail and commercial centres,
which are recognised as hubs of social and economic activity and the focal point
for the diverse range of services which support the needs of local communities.
They are highly accessible by different modes of transport and are therefore the
most sustainable locations for new development (para 4.3.1).

PPW requires the planning system to:

e Promote viable urban and rural retail and commercial centres, as the most
sustainable locations to live, work, shop, socialise and conduct business;

e Sustain and enhance retail and commercial centres’ vibrancy, viability and
attractiveness; and

e Improve access to, and within retail and commercial centres, by all modes of
transport, prioritising walking, cycling and public transport (para 4.3.3).

These objectives are to be delivered by local planning authorities through their
development plans and development management decisions, ensuring their
maximum contribution to the well-being goals. National policy requires that:

e Retail and commercial centres should be identified in development plans (para
4.3.2);

e Development plans should provide a clear strategy for retail development,
supported by policies to achieve vibrant, attractive and viable retail and
commercial centres. These should set out a framework for the future of retail
and commercial centres in the area, taking account the strategies adopted in
adjoining areas (para 4.3.5);

e The strategies should be based on an understanding of the changing retail
pressures and opportunities affecting the centres and devise appropriate
responses. This could include planning for the expansion of a centre, its
reinvigoration, or managing a change in the relative importance of some
centres as others expand (para 4.3.6);

e Strategies and supporting policies should be based on robust evidence (para
4.3.6) and planning authorities should consult with the private sector and local
communities (para 4.3.7);

e If a need for additional retail development is identified, authorities should
consider the most appropriate form, scale and location for new provision to
best meet the requirement and improve social, economic, environmental and
cultural well-being (para 4.3.8). If sites are not allocated (para 4.3.17), then

Page 433



11.

12.

criteria based policies should be included in the development plan against
which proposals can be assessed (para 4.3.9);

A hierarchy of retail and commercial centres should be established and
boundaries for the centres should be shown on the Proposals Map (para
4.3.10). Centres should be categorised by their functions they perform, and
account should be taken of the size, scale, form and location of the centres
within an area (paras 4.3.11 & 4.3.12);

The development plan process should include an assessment of the need for
additional retail development. This should include a consideration of
quantitative and qualitative need (para 4.3.13). Precedence should be given to
establishing quantitative need before qualitative need is considered for both
convenience and comparison floorspace (para 4.3.15);

Qualitative need may be an important consideration in certain circumstances
where it supports the objectives of the local development plan or national
planning policy. However, it is for the planning authority to determine and
justify the weight given to any qualitative assessment (paras 4.3.16 — 4.3.17);
Policies should encourage a diversity of uses in a centre, recognising that this
contributes to vibrancy and viability, but the areas with a concentration of retail
uses should be recognised by the designation of primary and secondary
shopping areas on the Proposals Map (para 4.3.31 — 4.3.32). The types of
uses acceptable in these areas should be defined in policies (para 4.3.33);
Mixed use developments including leisure and entertainment uses should be
encouraged where appropriate (para 4.3.34);

The health of centres should be monitored and changes made to the policies
or boundaries if the right balance of use and activity is not being achieved
(paras 4.3.35 — 4.3.36);

Development plans should also include policies to protect existing retail sites
from inappropriate development, unless there is evidence that an existing
retail site is no longer required (para 4.3.24); and

Policies and supplementary planning guidance should support the
management of retail and commercial centres (para 4.3.39).

PPW is also explicit as to the types of other uses considered to be complementary
to retail and therefore appropriate in retail and commercial centres. These include:

Financial and professional services (A2);

Food and drink (A3);

Offices (B1);

Hotels (C1);

Residential institutions (C2);

Educational and other non-residential establishments (D1);
Leisure (D2); and

Other uses such as launderettes and theatres (para 4.3.21).

The contribution of a vibrant and viable evening and night-time economy is also
recognised, although the compatibility of the offer with nearby residential uses
should be considered (para 4.3.34). Similarly, creative and cultural business
clusters can be important catalysts for regeneration (para 4.3.45 — 4.3.46).

Page 434



13.

14.

15.

16.

Technical Advice Note 4: Retail and Commercial Development

PPW is supported by a series of Technical Advice Notes (TANs) including
Technical Advice Note 4: Retail and Commercial Development (TAN4) which
provides further guidance on retail and town centre policy, both in relation to policy
making and development management.

It sets out a requirement for local planning authorities to plan positively to protect
and enhance the vibrancy, viability and attractiveness of their retail and
commercial centres and to develop their retail evidence base. It also provides
additional guidance on:

e How to define retail and commercial centre hierarchies, including the need to
consider the future status of a centre;

e The types of policies that may be appropriate in relation to changes of use and
the degree of flexibility a local planning authority wishes to see;

e The development of a clear strategy for retail and commercial centres during
the plan period;

e The factors that should be considered in deciding how any identified retail
need should be met, or how decline should be managed to ensure that
communities retain access to the goods and services they require;

e The benefits of developing the night-time economy in relevant centres;

e How quantitative retail need should be assessed, noting that the outcome can
be sensitive to small changes in the assumptions. No particular methodology
is prescribed, but assessments should be prepared in a clear logical and
transparent way using robust and realistic evidence;

e The appropriate times to consider qualitative need and when retail
development may be justified on this basis;

e The ‘town centre first’ approach to development and how the sequential test
should be applied both in relation to development plan site allocations and
planning applications for retail or other town centre uses;

e The need to consider the impact any new site allocations may have on existing
retail and commercial centres;

e The use of designated Primary and Secondary Shopping Areas to promote
and maintain an effective distribution and balance of uses within a centre,
noting that the level of flexibility applied is likely to reflect the centre’s retail
performance and demand for space; and

e The need to undertake regular assessments or ‘health checks’ of centres as a
means of monitoring change over time, using a range of indicators to measure
vitality, attractiveness and viability. A number of specific measures are
referenced but TAN4 recognises that locally specific indicators may also be
relevant.

Other National Policy Guidance

Other documents that may be of relevance include Future Wales — The National
Plan 2040 (February 2021) and Building Better Places (July 2020).

Future Wales — the National Plan 2040 is the national development framework
and sets out the direction for development in Wales to 2040. It is the highest tier of
development plan and is focussed on solutions to issues and challenges at a

Page 435



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

national level. Its specific purpose is to ensure that the planning system at all
levels is consistent with and supports the delivery of the Welsh Government’s
strategic aims and policies.

As a result, it does not contain statements on all land use planning issues set out
in Planning Policy Wales but instead has policies on issues which the Welsh
Government considers to be a national priority or are matters which are distinctly
spatial and require national leadership.

In relation to retail and town centre matters, Future Wales is clear that existing
cities and large towns will be the main focus for development and identifies
Holyhead as a Regional Growth Area.

Future Wales sets out a ‘Town Centre First’ approach to development (Policy 6)
which extends the well-established approach for retail development to a wider
range of land uses including significant new commercial, education, health, leisure
and public service facilities as well.

This recognises the changing nature of town centres, which are moving away from
their traditional retail roles. Health and vibrancy however, can be maintained by
widening the uses accommodated in centres, which also benefit from good access
by public transport to and from the whole town or city and, where appropriate, the
wider region.

A sequential approach must be used to inform the identification of the best location
for these developments, with the aim of making town centres multi-functional
places and the focus of growth and regeneration. Intensification and diversification
in and around town centres is also supported.

Building Better Places (July 2020) seeks to consider the relevant place-making
responses to the Covid-19 pandemic. It sets out the Welsh Government’s planning
policy priorities in the recovery period. This includes ‘revitalising our town centres’
as one of 8 key issues to be addressed.

The Welsh Government recognises that the retail sector was already struggling
before the pandemic and notes that the planning system must respond to this
situation by ensuring that retail and commercial centres can operate as flexibly as
possible.

The starting point for this is considered to be:

e Aclear vision for each centre in LDPs;

e An assessment of the role and function of the established shopping areas; and

e Realistic and sensible boundaries for the centre, with the identification of sites
for redevelopment. In particular, Primary Retail Areas need to be reviewed and
there should not be an expectation that retail occupiers will return in the
numbers witnessed prior to the pandemic.

Linked to this, town centre assessments should replace retail assessments for
Development Plans and consider the wider array of use requirements, based upon
the evidence and vision for the centre in line with the Town Centre First Principle.

Building Better Places also notes the importance of:

e Considering the opportunities to use outside spaces within town centres;

Page 436



27.

e Making centres places where a variety of retail, employment, commercial,
community, leisure, health and public sector uses come together in a hub of
activity to make them viable as go-to destinations once more;

e Considering the introduction of flexible, local co-working spaces;

e Introducing/expanding residential uses to improve the vitality of centres,
provided that they do not curtail the commercial activities which take place and
soundscapes are considered; and

e Challenging unreasonable and inflexible policies as creative thinking will be
needed to reimagine and re-purpose these areas.

The Local Development Plan

The Local Development Plan (LDP) for the Isle of Anglesey is the Anglesey and
Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011 — 2026 (JLDP), which was adopted
in July 2017. The key retail and commercial centre policies are as follows:

e Strategic Policy PS 15: Town Centres and Retail which defines the retail
hierarchy within the Plan area as:

e Urban Retail Centre = Holyhead, Llangefni
e Local Retail Centre = Amlwch, Benllech, Beaumaris, Cemaes, Llanfairpwill,
Menai Bridge, Rhosneigr, Valley

e The centres are defined on the Proposals Map and their vitality and viability is
supported by:

e Encouraging a diverse mix of suitable uses;

e Ensuring investment is consistent with the scale and function of the centre
in terms of its position in the retail hierarchy;

¢ lIdentifying the location and quantum for new retail floorspace, including
492 sgm net comparison in Llangefni;

e Resisting the loss of retail units within Primary Retail Areas, as shown on
the Proposals Map;

e Maximising opportunities to re-use suitable buildings within town centres;

e Restricting the expansion of out-of-town retailing and leisure development;
and

¢ Encouraging suitable links between the workplace, home and town centres.

e Policy Man 1: Proposed Town Centre Developments which sets out the
considerations for new development proposals including the need to comply
with the sequential approach and demonstrate the need for any proposals
outside of a defined centre.

e Proposals for uses in town centres should enhance a centre’s vitality and
viability, be in keeping with adjacent uses and not create an excessive amount
of dead frontage. Proposals other than for retail uses should also not
undermine the retail role of a centre.

Page 437



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

e The policy also sets out the criteria for consideration where proposals would
lead to the loss of retail and leisure uses within a defined town centre (but
outside a Primary Retail Area).

e Policy Man 2: Primary Retail Areas (Retail Core) which designates Primary
Retail Areas (PRAs) for Holyhead and Llangefni and restricts changes from
ground floor retail to those proposals where the premises are no longer viable
for A1 use, have been marketed appropriately and the change of use would
not have an unacceptable impact on the retail function or other characteristics
of the PRA.

e Policy Man 3: Retailing Outside Defined Town Centres But Within
Development Boundaries which seeks to safeguard existing retail uses
elsewhere within the development boundary unless there are alternative
services nearby, the property has been marketed for at least 6 months and the
new use would not have a detrimental impact.

e Proposals for new small scale convenience shops are supported provided they
do not jeopardise the vitality and viability of existing town centres and do not
form part of an industrial estate.

e Major retail development and the sub-division of existing units outside of
defined centres will only be supported if certain criteria are met relating to
retail need, compliance with the sequential test and a consideration of impact.

e Policy Man 4: Safeguarding Village Shops and Public Houses which
seeks to protect existing uses unless there is a similar service within a
reasonable walking distance or it has been demonstrated that the use is no
longer financially viable.

¢ Policy Man 5: New Retailing in Villages which sets out the criteria needed to
support proposals for new or extended shops, including no negative impact on
the vitality of existing Retail Centres.

e Policy Man 6: Retailing in the Countryside which sets out the criteria
needed to support proposals in the countryside.

In addition advice on Hot Food Takeaways is provided in Policy Man 7.

Planning Policy Conclusions

National planning policy recognises the importance of town centres in economic,
social and sustainability terms and seeks to sustain and enhance their vibrancy,
viability and attractiveness as retail and commercial centres.

PPW sets out a number of objectives for town centres that are to be delivered by
local planning authorities through their development plans and these requirements
are reflected in the retail and town centre policies of the current Development Plan
for Anglesey.

Both the retail sector and the economy have however changed significantly since
the JLDP policies were formulated and shopping habits have changed. Town
centres need to diversify and broaden their offer, if they are to remain relevant and
successful.

The rest of this study looks to examine trends and future retail and commercial
floorspace requirements in Anglesey and to assess the current health, role and

Page 438 10



33.

function of the currently defined centres. It then provides advice on whether
current policies require revision, specifically in relation to:

e The retail hierarchy;

e The need to allocate new sites for retail or other commercial development;
e The extent of town centres (as currently defined on the Proposals Map);

e The extent of Primary and Secondary Retail Areas; and

e The policies relating to uses in these areas.

It also considers the extent to which individual strategies may be required for the
defined town centres.

Page 439

11



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

ECONOMIC AND MARKET TRENDS

Town centres have always been dynamic multi-functional places that have
developed in response to the evolving needs of their catchment area. As a result
their health and offer will change over time in response to wider external factors
including the general economic position, consumer shopping and leisure trends
and business practices.

The effect of these trends will vary depending on the mix of uses and occupiers in
a centre and its role and function in the hierarchy. In recent years the dominance
of retail has meant that the health of many centres has been closely linked with
changes in the retail sector. However, it is important to understand the wider
trends as a mix of uses and services is essential if planning for successful, vital
and viable centres is to be effective.

The economic, consumer and market trends that have most affected our centres
during the last decade and which are expected to continue to shape them in the
future are considered in detail in Appendix A of this report.

The overall effect of the changes, in terms of the mix of uses seen in centres
across the UK, is an on-going decline in the comparison retail offer, and also the
financial and professional services sector, as national banks reduce their network.
The Food & Beverage (F&B) sector, other Leisure services and retail services are
increasing and the late 2010’s saw a noticeable increase in convenience provision
as the national multiples opened a significant number new, small stores.
Vacancies have also been increasing.

Figure 1: Composition of UK Towns 2015 - 2025

Changes in Town Centre Compostion (UK % Units)

DEC-15

DEC-19

MAR-25

=

=10
Fep-23 B
—

| |

Convenience = Comparison ™ Retail Service ® Financial & Business * Food & Beverage = Other Leisure Service ® Vacant
Source: LSH Analysis of Experian Goad Reports

Town Centre Trends in Anglesey

The retail hierarchy for IoA has been set out above and includes the two Larger
Urban Retail Centres of Holyhead and Llangefni. These have been the focus for

Page 440 12



39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

retail and service provision and the locations most likely to attract national
multiples. As a result they are also the centres most likely to experience the
national trends outlined in Appendix A. This has included increasing out-of-centre
retail development in recent decades and, more recently competition from online
sales.

The eight Local Retail Centres vary in size and offer reflecting their different
catchments and functions. However, all are likely to have benefitted from the
expansion of the convenience retail offer in terms of smaller stores. They are also
likely to be more reliant on local businesses and therefore less affected by the
decisions of national multiples in terms of company rationalisations.

The relatively small catchment population of Anglesey’s centres however, does
make them vulnerable to changes in the financial sector and the closure of a
centre’s bank or post office may have a disproportionate effect. Those smaller
centres relying on visitor trade will also have experienced impacts from changing
vacation plans, initially benefitting in the immediate post-Covid period from an
increase in ‘staycations’ but now experiencing a potential decline in visitors as the
cost of living crisis reduces the number of holidays and short breaks being taken.

All these centres are likely to be seeing some benefits from the increase in leisure
spending, especially on Food & Beverage (F&B), with demand for new space
strongest in areas with high visitor numbers.

The smallest ‘local’ centres are likely to be seeing fewer changes as a result of
national trends given their greater reliance on independent businesses. However,
these businesses will be experiencing the challenges of rising business costs and
any vacancies arising from closures as a result of business failures or owner
retirement may be difficult to fill except in the strongest tourist areas.

In terms of non-retail uses, most centres would be expected to be seeing some
increase in demand from F&B operators, particularly café and takeaway operators
particularly in areas with high visitor numbers. However, the demand for additional
leisure uses operated by national chains is likely to be limited by the geography of
the Islands and the restricted resident population.

Page 441 13



44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

TRADING PATTERNS AND RETAIL CAPACITY

A key requirement for any evidence base of retail and town centre policies and
strategies is an understanding of current shopping behaviour and a forecast as to
how spending will change in the future, as this determines whether there is a need
to allocate sites for retail development in the LDP. This is set out in TAN4 which
states:

“The tests of retail need are the starting point for planning for new retail
development in both development plans and development management. The
quantitative needs test is based on forecasting of expenditure on a certain type of
retail good (comparison or convenience for example) over a period of time, which
is then assessed against the current level of provision. Any shortfall in the
provision is then expressed, using expenditure per square metre calculations, as
the level of new retail provision required” (para 6.1).

An understanding of the current performance of centres and how this may change
in the future, will also affect decisions regarding the appropriate retail hierarchy
and the future extent of defined town centres and Primary and Secondary
Shopping Areas.

In practice a full understanding of the current shopping patterns and future needs
can only be reached from a consideration of both quantitative and qualitative data
but PPW is explicit that when assessing retail needs for the purposes of
considering whether there is a requirement to allocate sites for development,
precedence should be given to establishing quantitative needs, with convenience
and comparison floorspace assessed separately.

The Welsh Government does not prescribe any particular methodology for
undertaking needs assessments but paragraph 6.3 of TAN4 indicates that they
usually include:

e Existing and forecasted population levels and distribution;

e Forecast expenditure for specific classes of goods to be sold, within the broad
categories of comparison and convenience goods;

e Sales density data for both existing and future retail provision which is realistic
and benchmarked against similar retail developments in the area; and

e Catchment areas for centres.

In this case our quantitative assessment of retail need on Anglesey has been
based on expenditure data obtained from Experian Insights relating to retail and
leisure spend. This has allowed us to look at retail and leisure spend on and within
Anglesey, as well as considering the main inflows and outflows.

Full details of the base data and key findings are presented in Appendix B to this
report.

Convenience and Comparison Capacity for Retail Floorspace

The retail capacity assessments provided in Appendix B conclude that:

e There is no quantitative need for additional convenience or comparison retail
floorspace in the Isle of Anglesey Council area and therefore there is no

Page 442 14



51.

52.

requirement to allocate development sites to accommodate future retail

developments; and

The forecast ‘surplus’ of floorspace that is expected to arise over the plan
period 2024 — 2039 is relatively small and as such, in itself does not suggest
that there is a policy requirement to adjust centre boundaries or reallocate

areas currently in retail use.

The summary capacity tables for both convenience and comparison floorspace are
reproduced below:

Figure 2: Convenience Expenditure and Floorspace Capacity

2024 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £180.7 £175.1 £172.0 £169.9
STEP2:  TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £180.7 £181.4 £182.3 £183.2
STEP3:  NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP4:  TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP5:  NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP6:  CAPACITY FOR CONVENIENCE FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ per sq m) £12,512 £12,537 £12,600 £12,663
(i) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -503 -818 -1,055
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 70% 70% 70%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -719 -1,168 -1,507
Source: Appendix B5, Table B5.6
Figure 3: Comparison Expenditure and Floorspace Capacity
2024 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £103.1 £112.9 £123.7
STEP 2: TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £108.8 £123.1 £139.2
STEP 3: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5
STEP 4: TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP 5: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5 ‘
STEP 6: CAPACITY FOR COMPARISON FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ persc  £6,000 £6,604 £7,472 £8,454
(ii) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -858 -1,356 -1,834 ‘
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 80% 80% 80%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -1,073 -1,695 -2,292

Source: Appendix B6, Table B6.6

However, in developing retail policies and strategies for town centres for the

future, it is also important to understand how a centre functions, its role and the
health of its current offer. This is considered in the following section.

Page 443

15



54.

55.

56.

57.

HEALTH CHECK AND TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY
CONSIDERATIONS

Whilst the preceding section has indicated that there is likely to be a small surplus
of retail floorspace across Anglesey during the LDP plan period to 2039 and
therefore there is no requirement to allocate sites for future retail development
based on quantitative need, it is also important to understand the current health,
role and function of individual centres in order to develop policies to support their
long term vitality and viability. Such an understanding may also identify other
qualitative reasons for supporting retail future development in line with PPW (para
4.3.16), or opportunities to support the introduction of new uses.

Health checks of the ten Urban and Local Retail Centres in Anglesey are provided
in Appendix C, along with a health check for Gaerwen. The location of these
centres is shown below:

Figure 4: Urban and Local Retail Centres in Anglesey

Cemaes Amlwch

@ @
_ Benllech
Holyhead
' .
Y Fali/ Valley
Holy Kiand ® Yoys Mon /
Anglesey i
Beaumaris
A : . \' .H
Llangefni
Menai Bridge
RBESHE o
osneigr ““Gaerwen Llanfairpwll

The health checks consider:

e Diversity of Uses
e Vacancies
e Footfall

The Diversity of Uses is informed by survey data provided by Experian Goad and
surveys conducted by LSH in September 2025. It examines the current number of
outlets and quantum of floorspace for each commercial category, namely:

e Convenience Retail (food and non-alcoholic drinks, tobacco, alcohol,
newspapers and 90% of non-durable household goods);
e Comparison Retail (all other retail goods);

Page 444 16



58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

e Retail Services (including health and beauty services such as beauty salons,
tattoo parlours etc, post offices, dry cleaners & laundrettes, travel agents,
photo processing outlets & studios, and other personal services);

e Leisure Services (including food and drink outlets, games of chance venues
such as bingo halls, gambling arcades, and betting shops, sports and leisure
facilities, night clubs, cinemas, theatres, concert halls and hotel/guesthouse
accommodation);

e Financial & Business Services (including banks, building societies,
employment and career services, legal and property services); and

e Other uses.

Vacancy levels are also informed by the Diversity of Uses studies. Analysis of
their location and size of unit can indicate whether the vacancies are an indicator
of over-supply or reflect natural churn in space. The length of time that a unit has
been vacant may also be relevant but is not shown from the health checks.

Pedestrian Flow data has been obtained from MSCI Property Intel (MSCI) who
harvest data from over 10 million mobile devices. All data is fully anonymised and
GDPR compliant. Data is collected daily.

The data presented comprises:

e Heat maps showing monthly footfall in February and August 2024. This
indicates the areas of greatest use and activity with green indicating lower
levels and orange/red higher levels of footfall; and

e Graphs showing monthly footfall for a specific point in the centre over the
period April 2019 to December 2024. This allows long-term trends and
seasonal variations to be seen.

We also provide a table below showing footfall levels in the larger centres in winter
(February 2024) and summer (August 2024):

Figure 5: Footfall comparisons for Anglesey Centres

Holyhead Llangefni (High ~ Amlwch (Lon Beaumaris Camaes (High Llanfairpwll Y Fali / Valley

Menai Bridge

(Market Street) Street) Goch) (Castle Street) Street) (Holyhead Road) (B4545)
February 2024 146,557 137,740 26,447 35,770 3,204 4,540 13,067 13,797
August 2024 141,430 142,388 32,358 50,995 8,292 4,498 14,790 21,466
Upliftin Summer (%) -3% 3% 22% 43% 159% -1% 13% 56%

This shows that Holyhead and Llangefni have similar levels of footfall, although
Llangefni appears to see more variation across the year, with a small uplift in trade
during summer months. Beaumaris is the next busiest centre, although it attracts
just a quarter of the number of visits seen in Holyhead. It does however see a
significant uplift in footfall during the summer (+43%).

Amlwch is the next busiest centre with a 22% uplift in the summer, whilst Menai
Bridge and Valley have lower but similar footfall in the winter. In summer Valley’s
footfall increases by over 50% whereas the uplift in Menai Bridge is just 13%.

Cemaes and Llanfairpwll are two of the smaller centres in terms of footfall
attracting less than 10,000 visitors a month even during the summer period. This is
less than a tenth of the levels seen in the two Urban centres. The two centres
differ though in that Cemaes has a large increase in footfall over the summer.

Page 445 17



65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

Information on footfall in Benllech, Rhosneigr and Gaerwen is more limited,
although in Rhosneigr the numbers indicate considerable visitor numbers in the
centre across both summer and winter months.

Other indicators of the health of a centre and its role are the absolute and
comparative levels of turnover for convenience and comparison goods which is
detailed in Appendix B to this report.

The level of interest from potential occupiers can also provide an indication of the
likely future demand for floorspace in an area and we have therefore obtained
information on retailer requirements from ‘The Requirements List’, a national
source of such information.

Figure 6: Retailer Requirements in Anglesey (2025)

Specified Min  Max
Location Operator Operator Type Sqm
Anglesey , ,

(A55) Travelodge Leisure Services 930 |3,700

Shaba Hair & , .
Anglesey Cosmetics Comparison Retail 70 -
Holyhead Kwik Fit Retail Services 460 | 930
Holyhead Canc?/(/Research Comparison Retail 110 | 460
ales

Holyhead Domino’s Leisure Services 88 110

Source: Retailer Requirements List, September 2025

This shows relatively little interest from national chains in locating in Anglesey,
with just two comparison retailer requirements.

It is important to recognise however, that this source of retailer interest is usually
restricted to companies operating at a national level. Smaller, regional or local
independent businesses are unlikely to publish their requirements.

We now turn to a consideration of the individual centres.

Holyhead (Urban Retail Centre)

Holyhead is the largest town centre on Anglesey with the Goad data indicating it
provides over 15,700 sgm of retail and town centre uses in 148 units.

The area surveyed by Goad extends beyond the defined town centre to both the
north and south and includes areas of secondary and tertiary space and areas
with relatively high vacancy rates. As a result the current vacancy rate of 36.5% of
units and 36.1% of space is likely to over-estimate of the position within the centre
itself.

The mix of uses provided in the centre is generally good, although convenience
provision and representation by national retailers is generally lower than would be
expected for a centre of this size. This reflects the lack of larger footprint outlets

Page 446 18



74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

available within the centre, which has led to the development of out-of-town
provision at the Penrhos and Holyhead Retail Parks (See Appendix C for details).

Financial services were well represented in December 2024 when the centre was
surveyed, which is likely to reflect the town’s importance as a ferry terminal and
port. However, banking provision is currently limited and the Santander branch is
due to close in 2026. The proposed opening of a LINK banking hub in the town
centre is therefore to be welcomed.

The leisure services offer within the centre compares relatively well to UK
averages but the range of offer is limited, with 15 of the 32 units in use as Fast
Food & Takeaway outlets. This, and the above average number of public houses
is likely to reflect the history of the town as a port.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

Despite being the largest retail centre on Anglesey and its proximity to the ferry
terminals, Holyhead as a town centre appears dated and is not performing
particularly well, given its relatively limited retail offer. Instead the main retail offer
is based in out-of-centre locations reflecting the need for larger footprint units that
cannot be accommodated in the town centre, given its topography.

The centre does however offer a range of services and recent investment on the
edge of the centre in the form of the conversion of the former Market Hall and
investment in the Empire Cinema represent positive steps which could support a
broadening of the leisure service offer to include more cafes and restaurants. This
is likely to be assisted by the improvements currently underway at the former
HSBC building on Williams Street, which is bringing holiday accommodation,
restaurant, brewery and a tap room into this strategically located building
(Planning Application Ref: FPL/2023/128).

Funding from the Transforming Towns initiative and smaller scale works bringing
vacant premises back into use by Mon CF will also assist.

Whilst outside of the defined town centre boundary the redevelopment of 91-97
Market Street is also likely to benefit the town centre, given its location as a
gateway into the centre.

In terms of defining boundaries for the town centre, the current mix of uses, lack of
retail anchors and vacancy rates, suggests the centre would benefit from a
reduction in extent. However, exact boundaries are likely to depend on the final
policy wording used in the LDP. The boundary may also need to be extended in
some areas to ensure key attractors are included. Consideration should therefore
be given to:

e Removing the section of Williams Street, south of Tower Gardens from the
town centre;

e Removing premises at eastern end of Boston Street from the town centre
(nos. 12 and 13a);

e Extending the town centre boundary to include the Empire cinema; and

e Extending the town centre boundary to include 91-97 Market Street as the
main gateway to the town centre.

These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Page 447 19



Figure 7: Holyhead Town Ce

Ltour S
\

ntre - Proposed Changes to Boundary (north)

i "/ "8 Remove from Town A

Add to Town Centre

Page 448



82.

Figure 8: Holyhead Town Centre - Proposed Changes to Boundary (south)

v's

We would also suggest that the need to separately define a Primary Shopping
Area may no longer apply, given the benefits of attracting a mix of uses to the
centre in the future.

Page 449

21



83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

Llangefni (Urban Retail Centre)

Llangefni is second retail centre on Anglesey with the Goad data indicating it
provides just over 14,000 sgm of retail and town centre uses in 106 units. Footfall
levels are similar to those seen in Holyhead. However, the Goad centre boundary
extends beyond the defined town centre to include the Asda foodstore and a
number of small units on Bridge Street. It also includes the former NatWest bank
on Mill Street.

As a result the floorspace figures will overstate the convenience offer in the
defined town centre, whilst there will be a small decline in the proportion of
financial services offered within the centre.

The mix of uses provided in the centre is generally good, although the comparison
retail offer is considerably below the UK average. Without the Asda the
convenience floorspace is also likely to be below average. This is likely to be partly
due to the out-of-centre retail offer in the town, which itself may reflect the lack of
suitable larger footprint units in more central locations.

The retail service offer however is very strong, as is the Financial & Business
services, with two national banks still represented in the centre.

The leisure services offer within the centre is close to the UK average in terms of
floorspace but is slightly below in terms of the number of units. However, the range
of offer is limited, with the maijority of units occupied by Fast-food & Takeaway
operators, and café and restaurant provision is limited.

Vacancy rates are close to the UK average in terms of units, but the unit size is
generally small and so floorspace vacancy rates are lower. There is however a
concentration of vacant units at the western end of the High Street.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

Llangefni appears to be a successful town centre and, although it faces
competition from out-of-centre retail units, it remains strong with two national
banks and a good range of retail services. It has also seen rising footfall since
2019.

However, whilst vacancy rates are not of a level to be a major concern, it does
appear that there is a pocket of vacant units and other uses at the western end of
the High Street, suggesting this area may no longer be commercially attractive.
Therefore, whilst there may be potential to increase the range of leisure services
provided through the reoccupation of some of the smaller vacant units, we would
suggest that the town centre boundary could be adjusted to remove this area
(Nos. 25-59 and 30-58) from the town centre. This does not prevent these units
continuing in retail or commercial use but also does not seek to such uses in the
longer term.

We would also suggest that consideration should be given to extending the
boundary to include the Asda store, given it is likely to be an important anchor to
the centre.

Page 450 22



92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

We would also suggest that the need to separately define a Primary Shopping
Area may no longer apply, given the benefits of attracting a mix of uses to the
centre in the future.

These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Figure 9: LIangefni Town Centre - Proposed changes to Boundary

' o coe S,
ot »| Addto Town Centre nans
) N
oot 3

" foiry >3
L ) \_
Remove from Town "

Centre

Mows s,

Amlwch (Local Retail Centre)

Amlwch Retail Centre is relatively extensive comprising 45 units primarily located
to the east, west and south of the junction of Mona Street, Market Street and
Salem Street. However, the retail offer is limited to small units and the centre
attracts very low market shares and limited visitor spend on retail goods. The main
visitor draw appears to be related to the centre’s Food & Beverage (F&B) offer.

The centre is also lacking any Financial & Business services following the closure
of the Barclays Bank in 2017 and vacancy levels are relatively high.

However, it is important to note that the current town centre boundary excludes the
Co-op store at Lon Goch, which in practice is likely to be the main anchor of the
centre, and which has seen increasing footfall since 2019. The Spar is also
located outside the boundary, as is Dinorben Arms Hotel.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

Amlwch Retail Centre as currently designated appears to be facing a number of
challenges relating to its relatively limited offer and lack of financial services. This
will not be assisted by the layout of the centre which lacks a retail centre or any
major anchors.

However, in practice the centre has a relatively good anchor in the form of a large
Co-op supermarket and an attractive setting around St Eleth’s Church. Going
forward we would recommend that the centre boundary is amended to include the

Page 451 23



99.

100.

101.

102.

Spar and Co-op stores on Lon Goch, given their importance to the retail offer of
the centre. The other units on the southern side of Lon Goch should also be
included but there is no requirement to extend the boundary to include premises
on the north side of the road.

The town centre boundary should also be amended to include the Dinorben Arms
Hotel.

We would also suggest that consideration should be given to the removal of some
areas currently in the town centre, including the southern end of Salem Street
(potentially all units south of Lon Goch i.e. Nos. 1 — 17 and 2 — 20) and the
western end of Mona Street (nos. 36-42 and 15-23).

These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Figure 10: Amlwch Town Centre: Proposed Changes to Boundary

vb? - Caroarh u:' ‘." . As .
A T e
4 | Remove from Town

Centre

Can

Terren

Py
Area

Add to Town Centre

Tals

Add to Town Centre

rn v

b sab s e

Beaumaris (Local Retail Centre)

Beaumaris is an important tourist centre with a strong retail and leisure services
offer within the Retail Centre, which is centred on Castle Street. The maijority of
retail occupiers are independents providing specialist goods, while the leisure
services includes a high proportion of cafes, restaurants and public houses.
Vacancy rates are very low.

Page 452 24



Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

103. Beaumaris Retail Centre is currently performing well despite a decline in visitor
numbers since early 2019 and there are few vacancies. As a result, no major
changes are recommended for the centre. However, minor changes to the town
centre boundary are suggested to include the Town Hall and adjoining retail units
(i.e. Town Hall and associated retail units, hotel and No. 17 Castle Street).

104. These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Figure 11: Beaumaris Town Centre - proposed Changes to Boundary

;/huwn
« Hame 5

Cemaes (Local Retail Centre)

105. Cemaes is one of the smaller Local Centres comprising just 14 units within the
defined centre. These include a single convenience store and a pharmacy that will
provide important local shopping facilities for local residents, with the remainder
aimed at the tourist trade which accounts for nearly half of all spend in the centre.

106. The centre also has an above average proportion of retail and leisure service
outlets, but no Financial & Business Services. Two of the units are currently
vacant.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

107. Cemaes Retail Centre is a small but important centre for both residents and
visitors and appears to be performing adequately.

108.  Minor changes to the centre boundary are recommended to include all relevant
No. 36 High Street and potentially the Stag Inn.

109. These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Page 453 25



110.

111.

112.

113.

8 S T
ben L~y ""» 9.,,,“

Figure 12: Cemaes Town Centre - Proposed Changes to Boundary

— :‘.v"‘/ :;" L

Vit Sany - —
Add to Town Centre

/ ! - ! rei
§ -t g
) f i § el

Hab Cormoa
Halt)

CoarPark

Llanfairpwll (Local Retail Centre)

Llanfairpwll is another small centre that serves the needs of both local residents
and tourists. Tourists are particularly drawn to the comparison offer (James Pringle
Weavers) which includes a national multiple retailer offer unusual for such a small
centre. However, it also meets the needs of local residents with a Co-op
supermarket.

The leisure service offer in the centre is also significant and at the time of the visit
there were no vacant units in the centre. However, it is of note that the high but
erratic footfall levels seen in the two years post-Covid have declined substantially.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

The offer at Llanfairpwll is unusual for a small centre and provides a distinct offer
for local residents and visitors alike. However, it appears to be successful with a
varied offer and no vacancies. As such no changes to the current centre
boundaries are recommended.

Menai Bridge (Local Retail Centre)

Menai Bridge Local Centre is a relatively large centre comprising 56 units and is
located close to the main access to/from the mainland. As a result shops in both
the defined centre and out-of-centre attract a proportion of trade from Gwynedd.
This is likely to be linked to the out-of-centre Waitrose supermarket.

Page 454 26



114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

121.

122.

123.

The centre has an above average proportion of comparison shops, many aimed at
the tourist market and a number of specialist convenience shops complementing
the Waitrose offer.

The centre also has a strong service offer and current footfall levels are similar to
pre-Covid times. Vacancies are low.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

Menai Bridge Local Retail Centre is one of the larger second tier centres on
Anglesey and benefits from its strategic location close to the mainland, allowing it
to draw trade from local residents, those living in Gwynedd and visitors.

The Waitrose is likely to be a key attractor for more local trade and the centre
appears to have developed a complementary offer that is generally performing
well.

As a result no changes are suggested to the defined town centre boundary.

Valley (Local Retail Centre)

Valley is a small retail centre split across two sites and contains a total of 20 units
across the two locations. This includes 6 comparison units which is relatively high
for a small centre. It also has 2 convenience stores and an above average leisure
services offer including 5 Fast-food & Takeaways. There is just one recorded
vacancy in the centre.

Footfall within the centre is fairly variable but has declined since a peak in August
2021.

The centre as defined appears to serve a primarily local catchment, but the
convenience offer is attracting around 20% of trade from visitors, reflecting the
summer uplift in footfall.

However, it should be noted that the centre boundaries do not include all retail and
other commercial uses and the boundaries appear to be relatively arbitrary.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

Valley Local Centre appears to be performing in line with expectations, with the
retail offer aimed at meeting local residents’ needs, also serving visitors during the
summer period. However, there are additional retail and leisure service uses close
to the Station Road/Holyhead Road junction that could be included in the centre,
given they will be functioning as part of it. We therefore recommend that
boundaries for this centre are reviewed and our proposed changes are illustrated
below:

Page 455 27



124.

125.

126.

127.

Figure 13: Valley Town Centre - Proposed Changes to Boundary

freRaton

Tum Bl Hmbed

T Daew

P37

Add to Town Centre

Benllech (Local Retail Centre)

Benllech is another small Retail Centre, split across two locations and as defined
only contains 10 units. This includes 4 comparison outlets, 3 fast-food/takeaways,
a café and a restaurant. There are no vacancies.

The expenditure data suggest these outlets attract a considerable proportion of
their trade from visitors. However, the units identified perform less well in terms of
market shares than the retail and leisure operators located outside of the defined
boundaries.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

The current boundaries for Benllech appear to be out-of-date and do not
accurately reflect the retail and leisure uses within the town. Both the Co-op and
Tesco Express which anchor either end of the centre are currently considered to
be out-of-centre yet would be expected to be the main attractors of trade and
linked shopping trips, particularly for local residents. As a result we consider that
retention of these uses is likely to be important in maintaining the draw of the
centre in the future.

We would therefore recommend that the town centre boundaries are extended to
include these and adjoining retail and leisure uses, in order to recognise their roles
in contributing to the vitality and viability of the centre. The centre could continue to

Page 456 28



128.

be defined as two separate sections but we would recommend that the boundaries
are amended as shown below:

Figure 14: Benllech Town Centre - Proposed Changes to Boundary

Fropwin
Latisnm
Muliar | Sawing Teovres
.“‘;'J‘ Ty's Threes Bch U“ G Counns
Tpdeye T Ata
o x v, . e Add to Town Centre
JE 7 : \l
2!
al B J © Sewlim Lo Pvh
aP

/
JU—

sl s ! k .

Garerwrg Dwee zs ‘/\ L1y oF
< Poye 7

LI -

hes A ay Serdoeh
Caoka 00, w4 71:?,.. uceat
Gt - L
Lyt et ' ,ﬁ"( & X
P b %
— LN
Remove from Town Centre
Kake
.
3 Suntar
" Lraggle
"I A
r‘ B e
B an
ol S
("‘.}*"" :"”" Dewys 4
4 - r
- I) €
- 4 ~ n Cotlage
3
" & i
| ,'.'G" I ~ L)
/ oy ) Add to Town Centre
iotds 7 ' I{' Dseare
Fest
J i .l
Bipeim
/ Pact yv 2o P
/ ta
/ / \\:a .
e M Do
4 h\v\" 0
!é T Mol L
o L Fras S"
o - el
" »
Usteyyts Corwon Cor Pk o
‘/ Meakh Temtyyt et
Sy g amer
= \'? ‘, Trigh '

Rhosneigr (Local Retail Centre)

Rhosneigr is a very unusual centre, comprising just 5 units but including 2
comparison outlets, one occupied by a national multiple retailer (Fatface). This
reflects the importance of visitor trade to the centre, which contributes at least 70%
of convenience spend as well.

Page 457 29



Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

129. Retaining a centre to serve the Rhosneigr community and visitors is clearly
important and as such it is recommended that current designation is retained.
However, the boundary of the centre could be revised to include the additional
retail use on High Street (currently Janet Bell Gallery).

130. The proposed change is illustrated below:

Figure 15: Rhosneigr Town Centre - Proposed Change to Boundary

~--‘",’-'d<"“ i &/ iy |
o ’ Mor [ - . ot {
% -~ J 3 I3
e ’
i
‘.\é
TN
J
‘| Add to Town Centre

febmont Hoyse

""‘"o :
: ;3"{: o .
R \"”/ : *‘v;\' ; /
> 4 e - Y o p
Gaerwen

131.  Gaerwen is not identified in the JLDP as a retail centre, but it provides a total of 7
units across two sites in the village. These include 2 convenience stores and
various service uses, which primarily serve the local community.

Future Prospects and Policy Recommendations

132.  Itis recommended that Gaerwen is defined as a Small Retail Centre and a town
centre boundary is defined. This could cover the two main areas with retail and
commercial uses is defined (see Figure 48, Appendix C) or seek to concentrate
the centre focus around the A5/Chapel Street crossroads, as the preferred location
should new retail or commercial uses be proposed in the future. This latter
approach however would mean that the Morrisons Daily would continue to be
considered as an out-of-centre retail unit and nay impacts on it would not be a
planning consideration.

Page 458 30



133. These proposed changes are illustrated below:

Figure 16: Gaerwen - Proposed Town Centre Boundary

Add Town Centre

.

Possible inclusion in Town

™| Centre

Page 459 31



134.

135.

136.

137.

138.

139.

140.

141.

142.

RETAIL AND TOWN CENTRE POLICY
RECOMMENDATIONS

Our quantitative capacity analysis has identified that the current retail provision in
Anglesey is likely to be sufficient to meet expected needs during the plan period to
2039 and there is no requirement to allocate new sites for retail development
based on quantitative needs.

Our review of the defined centres in Anglesey has also indicated that whilst some
changes to town centre boundaries are required in some centres, overall provision
appears to suitable for the centres needs and there is no qualitative need to
allocate new sites for development.

In the light of this we have also reviewed the current retail hierarchy on the Island
and would suggest that in practice the centre appears to have three tiers of retail
provision:

e Urban Centres (Holyhead and Llangefni)

e Local Centres (Amlwch, Beaumaris, Benllech (with revised boundaries),
Llanfairpwll, Menai Bridge, Valley (with revised boundaries)

e Small Local Centres (Cemaes, Gaerwen, Rhosneigr).

However, whether these latter two levels of centres need to be distinguished will
depend on future policy wording. If the proposed policies are the same for both
levels, then it may not be necessary to distinguish between the Local and Small
Local Centres.

Policy Review
Turning now to the current policies in the JLDP, we outline below our thoughts
regarding their need for revision:

Strategic Policy PS 15: Town Centres and Retail

In addition to updating the list of defined centres as outlined above, the wording of
this policy will need updating to:

e Remove the reference to the need for a set quantum of new retail floorspace;
and

¢ Review/remove the reference to the retention of retail uses in the Primary
Shopping Areas, given the importance of encouraging mixed uses. An
alternative range of uses considered acceptable may be referenced instead.

The remaining parts of the policy remain appropriate.
Policy Man 1: Proposed Town Centre Developments

This policy will need rewording depending on whether Primary Shopping Areas are
retained.

Consideration should also be given to whether the reference to retail uses should
be expanded to encourage an appropriate mix of uses suitable for a town/local
centre.

Page 460 32



143.

144.

145.

146.

147.

148.

The reference to compliance with the sequential test should be retained.
Policy Man 2: Primary Retail Areas (Retail Core)

It is recommended that this policy is revised. Even if PSAs are retained, the need
for marketing evidence should be reviewed given that in many areas it is not
necessary to do this to know it will be difficult to relet a retail unit.

Policy Man 3: Retailing Outside Defined Town Centres But Within Development
Boundaries

This policy is considered to remain generally appropriate, but we would suggest
that the initial reference to ‘shops’ may need clarification and could be more
specifically defined.

Policy Man 4: Safeguarding Village Shops and Public Houses

Whilst we agree with the principle behind this policy, we would recommend that
the marketing period is reviewed and/or alternative approaches are included to
assessing viability, as it is not desirable for any unit to remain vacant for in excess
of 12 months if it can be avoided.

Policy Man 5: New Retailing in Villages

We would recommend that the reference to retailing is reviewed, as it may be
appropriate to encourage other commercial/town centre uses in particular
locations. Alternatively a separate policy to consider such developments may be
required.

Policy Man 6: Retailing in the Countryside

As with Policy Man 5 we would suggest that the reference to retailing is reviewed,
as it may be appropriate to encourage other commercial/town centre uses in
particular locations. Alternatively a separate policy to consider such developments
may be required.

- Ends —-

Page 461 33



Lambert
Smith

Hampton

Isle of Anglesey Retail Study

Appendix A — Economic and Market Trends

Prepared for:
Isle of Anglesey County Council

December 2025

Ish.co.uk

AR
df e .b;. = vod
s T PO PESTEETS 04 | N P

I B ’:'yv \"eapyy .
! -ae
=
.
l "\ ' .
A €
‘N"‘ =
-“
>

-



http://www.lsh.co.uk/

This document has been prepared and checked in accordance with the Lambert Smith
Hampton Quality Assurance procedures and authorised for release. If not signed off by a
Director in the Planning, Regeneration + Infrastructure (PR+l) division at LSH then this
document should be treated as a draft, and as being Private and Confidential. It should not
be for wider distribution without the sign-off and permission of Lambert Smith Hampton.

This report meets the PDF/UA (Universal Accessibility) standard, which is equivalent to the
WCAG 'AA' digital standard.

Prepared by:

Christine Reeves

Signed:

For and on behalf of Lambert Smith Hampton

Issued: December 2025

Page 463



Contents

1. INTRODUCTION ...ttt e e 4
2. UKECONOMIC OUTLOOK .....ocoiiiiiiieeee ettt 5
3. RETAIL AND LEISURE SPENDING ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 6
4. RETAILER BUSINESS MODELS AND REQUIREMENTS ..........cccoiiiiieeeinne 12
5. LEISURE TRENDS AND EXPENDITURE ........cccoiiiiiieeeeee e, 16
6. THE PROPERTY MARKET ....oiiiiiiii e 25
7. THE FUTURE FOR OUR TOWN CENTRES AND HIGH STREETS ................ 28

3

Page 464



INTRODUCTION

This Appendix report provides information on the key economic, consumer and
property market changes that have driven the changes in the retail and leisure
sectors in the UK over the last decade. It also looks at the changes expected in
the future and considers how town centres can respond to these dynamic trends to
remain competitive and enhance their overall vitality and viability.

The report draws on a wide range of data sources including Lambert Smith
Hampton’s own research and is structured as follows:

Section 2 considers the UK economy and economic outlook;

Section 3 considers what this means for spending on retail activities and how
this is expected to change in the future. This includes looking at the role of
online shopping and the expected changes in markets, both of which are
important areas of spend which divert trade from physical shops;

Section 4 |looks at the retail sector and how retailer business models and
requirements are changing;

Section 5 looks at the commercial leisure sector. It considers how expenditure
is forecast to change in the future and what this is likely to mean for key
leisure sectors including Eating Out/Food & Beverage (F&B), cultural and
recreational and sporting services sectors;

Section 6 looks at the effect this is having on the property sector and vacancy
rates. This includes considering how town centres are faring compared with
out of centre retailing; and

Section 7 looks at how these trends are likely to affect our high streets and
town centres in the future.

Page 465



UK ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Over the past five years, the UK economy has endured multiple shocks including
the COVID-19 pandemic, high inflation, elevated energy costs, supply chain
disruptions, and trade tensions. Despite these challenges, the Office for Budget
Responsibility (OBR) (Economic and Fiscal Outlook — March 2025) projects a
gradual economic recovery, with real GDP growth expected to rise from near zero
in 2023 to 1% in 2025 and 1.9% in 2026. It is expected to stabilise at an average
potential growth rate of 1.75% through 2027/28/29, however, uncertainty remains
high due to UK labour force, GDP and productivity data as well as global
geopolitical disruptions on trade policy.

Inflation, measured by the consumer price index CPI, is forecast to increase from
2.5% in 2024 to 3.2% in 2025, peaking at 3.8% in July 2025, driven by energy
price caps, food prices, and utility bills. From mid-2026 inflation is expected to
return to the Bank of England’s 2% target as these pressures ease.

Experian Business Strategies (Experian) predict in their latest Retail Planner
Briefing Note 22 (March 2025) (‘RPBN22’) a slightly stronger GDP outlook for
2025, bolstered by early-stage government spending and a modest rebound in
retail sales, particularly in discretionary consumer categories, as real incomes
begin to recover.

However, consumer confidence remains ‘fragile’ meaning that households will take
a more cautious approach to spending, at least in the short term. There are also
uncertainties over how the US government’s recent increase on global trade tariffs
will impact on the global economy, which will ultimately increase the costs of many
household products in the UK. It is for this reason that Experian has downgraded
their UK retail sales forecasts to 2040 from what was published in last year’s
RPBN (RPBN21).

The 2024 Autumn budget also increased business costs with employer National
Insurance rates up by 1.2% to 15% from April 2025, while the threshold for
contributions lowered from £9,100 a year to £5,000. The national living wage (21
and over) also increased by 6.7%.

This has all contributed to increased operational costs and tax obligations and
retailers have responded by workforce reductions and redundancies, which are
thought to hit entry-level jobs the most. The British Retail Consortium revealed that
160,000 retail positions could be at risk over the next 3 years.

As a result of these trends, UK households are currently experiencing the biggest
fall in real disposable income and living standards in decades and there are on-
going employment uncertainties. This will have direct impacts on household
spending on retail goods and leisure services, and on the sales performance of
retailers and leisure operators.

Page 466



3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

RETAIL AND LEISURE SPENDING

The above trends have a direct impact on disposable income and consumer
confidence and this is reflected in the forecasts for future spending on retail and
leisure goods and services. This in turn will have a direct effect on town centre
businesses.

Convenience Spend

Convenience expenditure refers to the money spent on food, non-alcoholic drinks,
alcohol, tobacco, newspapers and 90% of non-durable household goods, including
items such as cleaning materials, and kitchen disposables®. They are generally
low-cost items, purchased frequently and usually relatively locally, with the main
outlets being the supermarkets operated by the national multiples such as Tesco,
the discounters Aldi and Lidl and the smaller shop operators such as the Co-op
and Spar. The category also includes spend in independent retailers and specialist
food and drink outlets.

As consumers have become more affluent, with more disposable income, the
trend has been for spending on convenience goods to remain relatively static, with
the proportion of total spend reducing in real terms (i.e. excluding the effects of
inflation). However, when budgets become tight, some reduction in spend will be
seen with customers becoming more price-conscious and seeking to reduce the
cost of their weekly shop, either by changing what they buy or where they buy it.

According to Experian, the impact of COVID-19 resulted in a significant +6.8%
surge in spend per head in 2020, as options for eating out were reduced but this
was followed by a contraction of -1.3% in 2021. Since then there has been
negative growth of -5.0%, -3.5% and -1.8% in 2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively.

In 2025 Experian forecasts a further reduction in spend at -0.8% but this reduces
to -0.6% in 2026. Longer term it is expected to remain below 0% at -0.3% per
annum for 2027-2031 and then -0.2% per annum to 2040.

Comparison Spend

Comparison expenditure refers to the money spent on all other retail goods, with
the relative importance of key types of spend in the UK set out below.

" Experian Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (RPBN22) (March 2025)

Page 467



16.

17.

18.

19.

Table 1: Average UK Spend per Head on Comparison Goods in 2023

Average Comparison Spend per Person in 2023 (Total) LR ez speid - LR AnerEae spand

(£) (%)
Clothing materials and garments £847 20.8%
Appliances for personal care £442 10.8%
Furniture and furnishings; carpets and other floor coverings £416 10.2%
Games, toys and hobbies; sport and camping; musical instruments £366 9.0%
Audio-visual, photographic and information processing equipment £279 6.8%
Shoes and other footwear £173 4.2%
Pets and related products £166 4.1%
Jewellery, clocks and watches £162 4.0%
Major household appliances (electric or not) £160 3.9%
Books and stationery £156 3.8%
Medical goods and other pharmaceutical products £138 3.4%
Tools and miscellaneous accessories £130 3.2%
Glassware, tableware and household utensils £126 3.1%
Household textiles £108 2.6%
Gardens, plants and flowers £107 2.6%
Recording media £95 2.3%
Other personal effects £70 1.7%
Therapeutic appliances and equipment £53 1.3%
Bicycles £29 0.7%
Small electrical household appliances £23 0.6%
Materials for maintenance and repair of the dwelling £23 0.6%
10% of Non-Durable household goods £11 0.3%

Source: RPBN22, Appendix 5

This shows the relative importance of sales for different types of comparison
goods, with clothing and garment sales representing the main spend area and
accounting for around a fifth of all comparison spend. The top five expenditure
categories of (i) clothing, (ii) appliances for personal care, (iii) furniture and
furnishings / carpets & other floor coverings, (iv) games, toys and hobbies/ sport
and camping/ musical instruments and (v) audio-visual, photographic &
information processing equipment combined account for 58% of all comparison
spend.

The presence or absence of retail outlets selling these types of goods in an area
will therefore be a major determinant in the amount of comparison expenditure
retained in a particular area or lost to stores elsewhere. It is also the case that
these expenditure figures make no allowance for online or other non-store-based
purchases and some categories of spend will be more likely to be made online
than others.

In terms of changes to expenditure per head on comparison goods, the trend has
generally been one of growth as consumers have become more affluent and have
more disposable income. However, much of this is discretionary spend and it can
be more influenced by economic variables and confidence in the short term than is
seen with convenience spend. Comparison goods are also more likely to be
purchased online and to be sourced from non-shop locations.

The most recent Experian estimates and forecasts for UK comparison spend per
head show that after the growth in 2021 and 2022 (+6.8% and +3.4%) which
largely offset the impact of Covid in 2020 (-8.3%), there has been negative growth
to 2024 (-3.2% in 2023 and -1.0% in 2024). The predicted (per capita) growth for

Page 468



20.

21.

22.

23.

2025 is a nominal +0.1%, rising to +1.3% in 2026 and then around to +2.5% per
annum to 2031 and +2.6% up to 2040.

Non-store Retail Sales (Special Forms of Trading)

In addition to spending in shops, an increasing proportion of retail spend is made
in other ways that do not require a visit to a physical shop. Historically this
predominantly related to sales in street and temporary markets and mail order but
now relates primarily to online spending. Collectively these are referred to as
‘Special Forms of Trading’ (SFT).

Online Spending

The growth in non-store retail sales through online purchases has had the most
significant impact on consumer spend and behaviour over the last decade, and on
our High Streets and traditional shops, although it should be recognised that the
proportion of sales varies between different types of goods.

As the figure below shows, SFT which in 2006 had a market share of just 5.4% (as
a proportion of total UK retail sales) increased to 21.4% at the end of 2019. During
the pandemic this rose sharply to a maximum 37.8% in early 2021 but has
decreased since then to around 26%. In other words, online spending now
accounts for over one in every four pounds spent on retail goods.

Table 2: Internet Sales as a Percentage of Total Sales (%) (to January 2025)

400

300

200

2019 DEC
2020 JAN
2020 JUN
2020 DEC
2021 JAN
2021 JUN
2021 JUL
2021 DEC
2022 JAN
2022 JUN
2022 DEC
2023 JAN
2023 JUN
2023 DEC
2024 JAN
2024 JUN
2024 DEC
2025 JAN

z z
E 5
S 2
2 2
5 s
~ N

Source: ONS: Retail sales, Great Britain: March 2025

In terms of SFT’s overall market share (as a proportion of total UK retail sales)
Experian estimates that comparison and convenience goods retailing achieved
market shares of 35.6% and 15.3% respectively in 2020. They further estimate
that comparison and convenience goods retailing will attain market shares of
32.1% and 17.5% respectively in 2025.

Page 469



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Figure 1: Estimated and Projected Market Shares of Non-Store Retail Sales
(SFT), 2006-2040 (Not Adjusted)

45 -

==Total Retail
40 -

e==Comparison Goods

35 -
Convenience Goods
30 - ) .
——Total Retail (Pre-Covid19)
25 4
20 4

15

Non-Store Retailing Market Shares (%)

10

— T T T T T T T T T T T’ T’ T’ T’ T T’ T+ 7" —T1T " ‘" ‘" " ‘" " ‘" " " " "1 71T T
© N ® @ 9 HA N ®Mm &£ W ©W KN ® O © o4 N ®m g ;v W N @ O O oS o4 O § v VW N QK a 9o
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN

Source: Experian Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025)

Looking forward Experian forecasts indicate that total SFT market shares will
increase to 34.8% by 2040, with comparison and convenience goods non-store
retail sales are reaching 39% and 24.4% respectively.

Experian attributes this to the rising share of internet sales. The ease of online
purchasing has continued to improve rapidly, with technological advances,
particularly around smartphones and connectivity. Faster delivery times, including
same day delivery, and easier returns processes have also encouraged the trend.
The expansion of 5G and fibre networks should ensure the momentum is
maintained over the medium term. The proliferation of the buy now pay later
business model and price tracker sites is also supporting growth.

With the growth predicted in online sales and market shares, it is clear that high
streets, town centres and physical retailers will need to work even harder to retain
their existing customer base and attract new customers over the short, medium
and long term.

In terms of forecasting the potential capacity for new physical retail floorspace,
Experian estimate that approximately 25% of all SFT sales for comparison goods
and 70% for convenience goods are still sourced through traditional (‘bricks-and-
mortar’) retail space, rather than through ‘virtual’ stores and/or ‘dot com’
distribution warehouses. On this basis, Experian adjust their SFT market shares
downwards for total retail to 16.9% in 2025, 18.9% by 2030 and 22.9% by 2040.

In summary, both retailers and high streets will need to compete for shoppers and
expenditure through a variety of means including creating experiences that will
attract the interest and attention of potential consumers across all age and socio-
economic groupings.

Page 470



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Street Markets

Street markets are another form of SFT and, although spend at such locations is
small compared with online, the presence of a street market can be an important
draw in a centre, adding to the variety and experience of visiting. As such markets
can play a significant role in the success of town centres.

The National Association of British Market Authorities (NABMA) is the leading
markets organisation in the UK and has been promoting the interests of its
members for over 100 years. In 2022 it undertook a National Survey of Markets
which indicated that:

e Market numbers have not changed significantly since the early 2000s, with
1,150 reported in 2005, 1,124 in 2009 and 1,173 in 2017/18;

e During the same period the number of traders has fallen from 45,000/46,000 in
2009 to 32,000 in 2018. Further, more of the traders are only working on a
part-time basis and are going to market events rather than traditional markets;

e The number of people working in retail markets has also declined from around
95,000 to 57,000 in the same period;

e There are no figures for the numbers employed in 2022, but they are believed
to have declined further;

e Traders are generally older, with 88% of survey respondents aged between 41
and 60. Only 8% are under 40;

e Nearly 85% of markets are operated by local authorities, up from around 60%
in 2009. There has been a corresponding decline in those operated by the
private sector;

e Stall occupancy rates have declined from an average 77% in 2018 to 72% in
2022. The highest occupancy rates (78%) are seen in indoor markets, while
the greatest decline has been in street and outdoor covered markets;

e Many markets are operating at a loss and this has increased from 21% in
2018 to 27% in 2022; and

e Some markets are benefitting from investment including 25 which have
received a total of £127m from the Government through various funding
initiatives.

This suggests markets are becoming smaller and have fewer operating stalls.

More of the traders are also only operating on a part-time basis.

However, markets remain significant assets to town centre vitality and support
local businesses. They can generate footfall increases of around 25% for town
centres and increase retail sales, with significant numbers (55% to 71%) of market
visitors spending money in other shops according to research in London.

Markets also provide affordable and flexible workspaces and provide a unique
opportunity to trade, test business ideas, or showcase new products.

Markets can also:

e create job opportunities for people to access, or return, to work;

e help build the distinctive identity of a neighbourhood and community:

e support social cohesion, helping break down stereotypes and bridge
differences; and

Page 471 10



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

e provide access to fresh and healthy food including for those on low incomes.

Indoor and street markets have also provided the basis for new businesses to
become established for a considerable period. The first M&S famously opened in
Newcastle’s Grainger Market in 1895, for example. However, there has recently
been a new emphasis on empowering younger people to start out in businesses
as market traders.

One initiative, Teenage Markets, was created to give young people a free platform
to showcase their creative talents. There is now a fast-growing network of traders
and performers taking part in Teenage Market events across the UK. In October
2023, there were 56 UK locations being used for Teenage Markets, with venues
including market halls, street markets and events.

The Teenage Market website summarises the benefits to young people and the
wider community, noting “When combined, the creative fusion of specialist retail
and live performance creates a thriving and bustling marketplace which succeeds
in attracting a new generation of shoppers and visitors to our nation's local
markets.”

Markets can therefore play an important part in supporting the local economy and
community and assist small businesses, including those led by women, young
people and minority groups.

However, just like other retail businesses, markets need to adapt to meet present
day needs. Traditional markets need to be modernised to make them fit-for-
purpose, including meeting the hygiene standards now required for food
preparation and sale.

Page 472 1



40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

RETAILER BUSINESS MODELS AND REQUIREMENTS

The recent challenging economic conditions and growth in online sales have had a
significant and permanent impact on consumer shopping and spending behaviour.
Retailers in the recent past have faced challenges across the supply chain,
inflationary pricing, economic uncertainty and geo-political factors.

This has created significant challenges for traditional “bricks-and-mortar” retailing
and the high street. Consequently, national multiple retailers are having to
constantly review and rapidly adapt their business strategies, requirements and
store formats to keep pace with the dynamic changes in the sector and consumer
demand. As retailers adjust to “new normal”, key trends shaping the future of
retail, include:

Hybrid ‘phygital’ shopping - through seamless integration across online, in-
store, mobile, social and virtual platforms is now essential;

Al driven personalisation - increasingly retailers are using Al for smarter
chat bots, personalised recommendations and data-driven promotions to
enhance customer engagement;

Social commerce - where social media is not just for marketing. Brands now
sell directly through platforms leveraging influencer partnerships and
sentiment analysis to drive sales conversions;

Monetising retail spaces - where physical stores and websites are doubling
as advertising channels and with services such as ‘Click-and-collect’ and ‘Buy
Online, Pick Up In Store’ (BOPIS) improving consumer convenience; and
Sustainability and the circular economy - eco-conscious consumers are
embracing reuse, repair and recycling prompting retailers to prioritise green
packaging, ethical sourcing and transparency.

The grocery market illustrates the shift vividly. Traditional giants like Tesco and
Sainsbury's have focussed on online and convenience formats over the last
decade while large store developments have all but halted.

At the same time the number of shops operated by the deep discounters ALDI and
Lidl have surged. ALDI now ranks among the top four UK grocers overtaking
Morrisons.

The discounter offer has also changed with the average store size gradually
increasing from the 1,200 — 1,500 sgm net previously seen, as the range and offer
within the shops also increases. This includes the introduction of bakery counters
in Lidl and the development of specialist and high quality food ranges, especially
during holiday periods.

Page 473 12



45.

46.

47.

48.

Figure 2: UK Grocery Market Share

Tesco I 27.9%
Sainsbury's I 15.2%
Asda I 12.5%

Aldi I 11.0%
Morrisons I 2.5%
Lidl I 7.8%
Co-op I 5.3%
Waitrose I 4.4%
Icleand I 2.2%
Ocado I 2.0%
Other Outlets I 1.9%

Source: Kantar (April 2025)

The non-food retail sector is under intense pressure and the pandemic has
accelerated the demise of a number of high profile retailers. National retailers/
multiples with extensive high street store portfolios are struggling to maintain
market shares and remain profitable in the increasingly competitive environment
created by falling sales and increasing costs/debt.

Many well-known retailers have either closed or have significantly reduced their
store portfolios in recent years, including Debenhams, Oasis, Warehouse, Laura
Ashley, the Arcadia Group and Cath Kidston. John Lewis also announced the
closure of four department stores and four ‘At Home’ stores and Marks & Spencer
continues to rationalise their store portfolio. The first half of 2025 also saw the sale
of WH Smith’s high street store portfolio and announcements from Poundland
regarding 25 store closures.

The challenges facing consumers, businesses and town centres have continued to
intensify since 2020. The latest industry research shows that over 13,479 stores
closed in 2024 due to businesses entering administration, with circa 169,400 jobs
lost. Data for the first two months of 2025 identified 1,483 store closures and 6,689
job losses. These figures are predicted to jump to 17,349 store closures, with
14,660 expected to be independent retailers, and 201,953 job losses by the end of
the year.

This continues the trend from 2024 which saw the highest number of store
closures due to major retailer failures, at 7,537. This exceeded the losses seen
after the 2008 recession and immediately after the pandemic (5,200). The number
of business failures however was lower, reflecting the size of the companies
affected.

Page 474 13



49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

Figure 3: Major Retail Failures (2007 — 2024 (June))

70 8,000
mmm Businesses Failing = No. Stores Affected

60 7,000
% © 6,000 Q‘
= 4
] =
% 5,000 3
& 40 7}
5 E:
0 4,000 <
] 0
o
E ” 3,000 §
£ &
@ 20 5
2,000 S

10 1,000

0 0

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Source: Centre for Retail Research (April 2025)

According to Centres for Retail Research, the main drivers for store closures are
linked to “changed customer shopping habits, inflation, rising energy costs, rents
and business rates” (UK Retailing Outcomes 2024: Lost Stores and Lost Jobs,
January 2025). In addition, and more specific to predicted closures in 2025 are
factors such as the cost of crime (from shoplifting) and increased labour costs
(increase in the national living wage, increase in the minimum wage for 18- to 20-
year-olds, and increase in employers NIC).

Retailers are also grappling with reduced business rates relief down from 75% to
40% and an uneven playing field, where High Street trading is costlier than online
or out of town alternatives.

However, while national retailers/ multiples account for the greatest proportion of
job redundancies in the retail sector, independents (operators with one to 3
outlets) accounted for 65% of store closures in 2024, and 75% in 2023 according
to Centres for Retail Research.

In addition ‘Bricks and mortar’ retailers are having to absorb higher than inflation
increases in year-on-year occupancy costs (for example, rents, business rates,
service charges, utility bills, staff costs, etc). This outpaces sales growth for many
retailers, eroding profitability and resulting in more store closures.

However, technology adoption offers a lifeline especially for agile small and
medium enterprises who are leveraging digital tools to expand their reach and
track consumer trends, but challenges like digital skills gaps and technology
affordability limit this potential, reinforcing the urgent need for transformation
across the sector.

In summary, although some retailers are better positioned to cope with the growth
in online shopping and the shifts in consumer behaviour and preferences, many

Page 475 14



are now struggling to position themselves quickly enough to absorb rising costs
and engineer the vital transition to a more technology-focussed business model.

Page 476

15



55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

LEISURE TRENDS AND EXPENDITURE

Having considered how retail and shopping in town centres has changed in recent
years in the previous section, it is also important to consider how changing trends
within the commercial leisure sector may affect the demand for new leisure uses
and facilities, as vital and viable town centres can only be achieved by providing a
wide mix of uses.

The main leisure, entertainment and cultural uses identified as town centre uses in
the NPPF are:

“...leisure, entertainment and more intensive sport and recreation uses (including
cinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs, nightclubs,
casinos, health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres and bingo halls); ...
and arts, culture and tourism development (including theatres, museums, galleries
and concert halls, hotels and conference facilities).” (NPPF, Annex 2).

The starting point for this assessment is a consideration of the relative importance
of various types of activity in terms of likely spend and expected growth. We then
consider the key town centre leisure uses in more depth.

Leisure Expenditure

Leisure spending is an important element of household expenditure and Experian
suggests that the average spend per head in the UK equates to around £3,001 per
annum, based on their definition of leisure which comprises:

e Recreational and sporting services (COICOP 9.4.1)

e Cultural services (COICOP 9.4.2)

e Games of chance (COICOP 9.4.3)

e Restaurants, cafes etc (COICOP 11.1.1)

e Accommodation services (COICOP 11.2)

e Hairdressing salons & personal grooming (COICOP 12.1.1)

This compares with the average UK spend per head on convenience and
comparison goods of £2,913 and £4,152 respectively (with all figures inclusive of
spending online and through other Special Forms of Trading).

Table 3: UK Leisure Spend per Person

UK Spend per Person (per annum) Spend per % of Total
Annum (£)  Leisure Spend
Accommodation services £258 8.6%
Cultural services £436 14.5%
Games of chance £147 4.9%
Hairdressing salons and personal grooming £119 4.0%
establishments
Recreational and sporting services £240 8.0%
Restaurants, cafés etc £1,801 60.0%
Total Leisure per person £3,001 100.0%

Source: Experian Location Analyst UK Leisure Spend

Page 477 16



A number of these spend categories are particularly relevant to town centres and
average UK spend for these is summarised below:

Table 4: Annual UK Expenditure per Head for Selected Leisure Activities

Expenditure Per Person Category of Spend Spend per % of Total
Annum (£)  Leisure Spend
Restaurant and café meals F&B £859 28.6%
Take away meals eaten at home F&B £368 12.3%
Alcoholic drinks (away from home) F&B £337 11.2%
Other take-away and snack food F&B £219 7.3%
Hairdressing salons and personal grooming Personal Grooming £119 4.0%
establishments
Lottery Games of Chance £110 3.7%
Leisure class fees Recreational and Sporting Services £81 2.7%
Participant sports (excluding subscriptions) Recreational and Sporting Services £57 1.9%
Live entertainment: theatre, concerts, shows Cultural Services £52 1.7%
Museums, zoological gardens, theme parks, houses Cultural Services £28 0.9%
and gardens
Bookmaker, tote, other betting stakes Games of Chance £25 0.8%
Admissions to clubs, dances, discos, bingo Cultural Services £23 0.8%
Spectator sports: admission charges Recreational and Sporting Services £20 0.7%
Contract catering (food) F&B £17 0.6%
Cinemas Cultural Services £12 0.4%
Bingo stakes excluding admission Games of Chance £12 0.4%
Total Selected Leisure Spend per Person £2,339 77.9%

Source: Experian Location Analyst UK Leisure Spend

This shows the significance of spend on Food & Beverage (F&B) activities, which
accounts for around 60% of total leisure spend, albeit this expenditure will be split
between a large number of locations and types of establishments.

Within this category meals out generates the highest overall spend accounting for
28.6% of all leisure spend. A further 11.2% is accounted for by the purchase of
alcoholic drinks, some of which will be spent during restaurant visits. Takeaway
meals eaten at home or elsewhere together account for a further 19.6% of spend.

The next highest spend is on hairdressers and personal grooming (£119 pa, 4.0%
of leisure spend), followed by spending on leisure class fees (£81 pa or 2.7% of
total expenditure) and participant sports (£57 or 1.9%) excluding lottery.

Spending on cultural activities is high at over £400 per annum, but much of this is
spent on TV subscriptions or similar within the home. On average 1.7% of leisure
spend is on live events such as the theatre, concerts and shows, whilst the
average spend on cinema visits is just £12 pa, or 0.4% of overall spend.

Spending on Games of chance other than the lottery is also low.

Going forward, there is expected to be relatively little growth in spend on leisure
activities overall, now that the period of significant fluctuation post-pandemic has
settled down. This reflects the discretionary nature of much of the spend and the
budget restrictions facing many households (outlined above).

The most recent leisure spend projections by Experian are set out in RPBN 22 and
show that following a dramatic -36.3% fall in leisure spend per head in 2020 due to
the pandemic, there was an upsurge in 2021 of 29.5% that continued into 2022,
when spend increased by 20.9%. In 2023 however there was a reduction of -2.9%
due the cost of living crisis and rising inflation. Experian predict a continued
reduction in 2024 (-1.6%) followed nil growth in 2025. From 2026 onwards, annual

Page 478 17



68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

growth will be minimal at 0.3% in 2026 followed by 0.6% pa to 2031 and then
0.7%pa to 2040.

Table 5: Leisure Spend and Projections (year-on-year growth %)

2027 2032 -
-31 40

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 | 2025 2026

Annual Leisure
expenditure -36.3% | 29.5% | 20.9% | -2.9% | -1.6% | 0.0% | 0.3% 0.6% | 0.7%
growth

Source: Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025)

However, these decreases/increases in available spend are unlikely to be
distributed evenly across the leisure sector. When combined with concentrations
of spending online and the specific locational requirements of some activities, it is
clear that from the perspective of planning for town centres, the focus of
commercial leisure activities is likely to be on:

e Food & Beverage (F&B) Spend — this is important for many reasons
including the scale of expenditure and the importance of this landuse within
centres at all levels of the retail hierarchy;

e Hairdressing and Personal Grooming — this sector is dominated by
independents and is often strongly represented in lower order centres;

e Cultural Services — most relevant for the higher order centres; and

e Leisure Classes.

Spending on Accommodation Services is unlikely to be of relevance in terms of
resident spend, as this is most likely to be spent outside of the home area.
However, it will be relevant for locations with a strong tourism offer or visitor
attractions.

Spending on Games of Chance other than the lottery is relatively small and much
of the spend is made online. Therefore, whilst the proliferation of betting shops has
been a planning concern in some locations in the past, it is unlikely to be a policy
concern, given that such uses are now considered to be Sui Generis.

Food & Beverage (F&B)

As outlined above, spending on F&B is the highest of all the leisure categories and
encompasses a range of different types of spend on food and drink. This spend is
usually dispersed across a large range of outlets and locations with a high
proportion linked to consumption within the home. A proportion of spend will also
be made outside of the resident’'s home area, being linked to holiday and leisure
activities, or at out of centre locations more locally.

Notwithstanding this, F&B outlets are an integral part of a town centre’s wider offer
and economy. Within larger centres a good choice and quality of F&B uses can
help to complement other town centre uses, by generating trips, stretching ‘dwell
times’ (i.e. the time people spend in centres), increasing ‘linked’ expenditure to
other shops and businesses as part of the same trip, and strengthening both
daytime and evening economies.

Page 479 18



73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

In lower order centres cafes can support daytime activities and footfall, whilst the
evening economy is often linked to hot food takeaways and public houses if
present.

Going forward the expected growth in leisure spend has the potential to assist the
F&B sector, but the degree to which this will benefit town centre businesses and
different centres in the retail hierarchy is unclear. The key trends that are driving
changes in the sector are identified below.

Restaurants

Prior to the pandemic, the increase in popularity in ‘eating out’ and the growth of
many casual dining and family-orientated restaurant chains had led to a
confidence that restaurants and the F&B sector generally would be able to take up
much of the town centre floorspace being vacated by retail uses. However, over-
investment in some casual dining brands and competition in the market meant that
stresses were obvious prior to the pandemic.

Just as in retail however, the pandemic accelerated these trends as well as
presenting new challenges to the sector. The initial closure of businesses and
subsequent requirements for social distancing meant business turnovers declined
sharply making those with debts particularly vulnerable. The economic challenges
since have seen rising business costs including utility costs, wages and NI
contributions and difficulties in attracting staff, at the same time as the cost of
living crisis has reduced many people’s spending.

The introduction of home delivery services which assisted many businesses during
the pandemic has also accelerated the popularity of ‘dining at home’ and this
continues to present both benefits and challenges for the sector. Restaurants have
been able to enter the home delivery market using online third-party delivery
companies, such as Just Eat, Deliveroo and Uber Eats, increasing their potential
market and appeal. However, balancing the needs of dine-in and delivery
customers can be a challenge and ‘dining at home’ reduces the potential for higher
margin sales to customers, whilst retaining many of the fixed business costs.

The short-term response for many restaurants, particularly in the independent
sector has been to reduce operating hours, with some closing completely on
quieter days of the week, allowing them to operate with a smaller number of staff.
Others have reduced their menu ranges. However, with inflation increasing the
costs of raw ingredients and business costs continuing to rise, challenges remain
across the sector.

The industry is also seeing increased competition from out of centre locations, with
the many chain restaurants seeking representation in out of centre locations
including existing retail and leisure parks, where property costs are usually lower
and it can be easier to provide delivery or ‘click & collect’ options. Such locations
have also seen an increase in the demand for ‘drive thru’ restaurants.

Coffee Shops & Cafés

Coffee shops have been one of the key success stories on UK high streets over
the last two decades and the sector continues to be resilient and innovative.

Page 480 19



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

With more than 11,450 branded outlets at the beginning of 2025 and annual sales
of more than £6.1bn, the UK branded coffee chain segment has achieved over 20
years of outlet growth — only briefly interrupted by the pandemic.

However, competition in the sector is high and many operators are currently
focusing on value-for-money to attract price-conscious consumers amid an
increasing range of coffee shop choices. This includes the expanding portfolio of
the major brands such as Costa, Greggs and Starbucks, increasing boutique
branded chains, a strong independent sector and value-driven non-specialist
operators.

The drive-thru coffee sector is also growing with 51 new sites added in 2024
bringing the total to 855 sites. This includes 373 operated by Costa.

The non-specialist operators include the likes of McDonalds and major
supermarkets which continue to expand their network and the likes of
Wetherspoons.

The return to the office, after the Working from Home (WfH) boom immediately
after the pandemic has increased activity for many operators and the overall
picture has been one of growth with 199 UK-based chains increasing their store
footprint in 2024.

This reflects positive sales growth in 2024, but there are on-going concerns
regarding the impact of high operational costs, and 40 operators saw a decline in
store numbers.

The overall market is expected to continue to grow over the next 3-5 years,
increasing the number of branded outlets to 11,800 by January 2026 and to over
13,200 by January 2030, with the most growth likely in the boutique operators and
drive-thrus?.

However, some rationalisation of company portfolios can be expected where
demand may have fallen as a result of WfH or other changes in footfall.

Public Houses and Bars

Public houses and bars are a traditional part of the UK F&B sector, with
representation in many town, district and local centres as well as an extensive
network of free-standing units in both urban and rural areas.

The number of public houses in the UK has been in decline for decades but recent
shocks, such as the pandemic and the energy crisis, have put them under more
pressure and closures totalling around 1,350 have been seen in the period since
20203, reducing the total number of outlets to around 45,000. This compares to
50,800 in 2015 and over 60,000 at the beginning of the millennium.

Like other operators in the F&B sector, pubs have faced the challenges arising
from higher costs (energy, commodity inputs, labour, and interest payments) and

2 https://www.teaandcoffee.net/blog/36125/the-uk-branded-coffee-shop-market-continues-to-rebound/

3 https://beerandpub.com/data-statistics

Page 481 20


https://www.teaandcoffee.net/blog/36125/the-uk-branded-coffee-shop-market-continues-to-rebound/
https://beerandpub.com/data-statistics

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

99.

weaker consumer demand due to the cost of living crisis. However, the diverse
nature of the sector results in particular challenges.

Overall half of pubs are independent, with around 30% of the remainder owned by
pub companies and the remaining 20% by brewers. In total 80% of pubs are SMEs
and are either independent or ‘leased and tenanted’. These businesses are less
likely to have financial reserves to draw on and have been particularly reliant on
the support from government. They are also less likely to be able to invest in
efficiency saving equipment, making it harder to mitigate the cost increases that
have been experienced*.

As a result, closures in the sector are expected to continue although the potential
to increase the food offer and potentially offer additional forms of leisure activities
may assist in supporting larger premises in defined centres.

Hot and Cold Food Takeaways

As outlined above, the takeaway sector is currently worth over £600 per person
per annum and comprises both takeaway meals eaten at home and hot and cold
food purchased during the day. Spending is therefore made in the types of outlets
outlined above or at specialist sandwich/lunch outlets and hot food takeaways.

The importance of these types of outlets varies between centres, with daytime
purchases often linked to work locations or transport hubs, whilst hot food outlets
tend to be located closer to residential areas or centres with a strong
evening/night-time economy.

The premises occupied are generally smaller than for other types of F&B offer and
will include a high proportion of independent businesses. As such changes within
the sector are common, with success likely to be linked to the popularity of offer
and business acumen of the owner.

Hairdressing and Personal Grooming

With increasing retail sales online, the retail service sector and specifically

services linked to hairdressing and personal grooming have the potential to
become increasingly important for town centres and high streets, given the
physical presence they require.

Independent businesses serving local communities have been regular features of
smaller centres serving local needs for decades, with specialist/larger chains more
likely to be found in larger centres. However, as disposable incomes increase the
demand for personal grooming services is growing as evidenced by the increasing
numbers of barbers and nail bars trading alongside or within hairdressers and
tanning salons.

These services will therefore be important draws for our town centres and high
streets in the future but, independent traders, are most likely to be interested in
occupying small amounts of floorspace in existing premises. Future requirements
are therefore most likely to be met through the reoccupation of existing space with

4 Impact of recent economic trends on pubs and breweries A report produced for the BBPA (Frontier
Economics, October 2023)

Page 482 21



the benefits of high footfall having to be offset against higher business costs. Such
uses are therefore likely to be attracted to smaller secondary premises or slightly
off-pitch locations rather than prime retail space.

Cultural Services

100. Cultural services such as theatres and cinemas are a major contributor to the
evening and night time economy, particularly in broadening the appeal to a wider
demographic and increasing the draw of a particular centre. In turn this can also
support the F&B sector. However spend is rarely restricted to a local area, with
higher spend most likely to be associated with visits to regional or sub-regional
centres or, in the case of live music, to specific specialist venues.

101.  This means that centres providing such higher order facilities are likely to benefit
from a more extensive draw and wider catchment than would be expected based
on retail provision alone. However, making changes to local provision will rarely be
within the remit of planning, instead being linked to maintaining or improving
existing facilities through commercial or arts funding sources.

Theatres

102.  Although the provision of new theatre space Is a relatively rare occurrence,
existing theatre provision is generally an important visitor attraction and a key
aspect of the evening/night-time economy in a local area.

103. In 2024, members of the Society of London Theatre and UK Theatre welcomed
over 37 million audience members, with the West End surpassing 17.1 million
attendees, and generating more than £1 billion in revenue for the first time in
history.

104.  Across the UK, regional theatres reported a 4% increase in occupancy since 2019
- evidence not just of recovery, but of renewed and sustained growth despite a fall
in the number of total performances of 8%. This points to a leaner and more
efficient operating model .

105. Data also highlights the seasonality of UK theatre, with weekly attendance and
performance numbers peaking in December reflecting the importance of festive
programming to the annual cycle.

106. There is also evidence of increasing numbers of theatre visitors, including those in
younger age groups. According to YouGov surveys, the proportion of respondents
visiting the theatre in the preceding three months increased from 22% in July 2019
to 24% in June 2025. However, in the same period the proportion of respondents
in the 25-49 age group increased from 20% to 25%. Attendance by 18-24 year
olds is also showing positive improvements.

107. Despite this the theatre sector is facing mounting challenges as operating and
building maintenance costs increase but the ability of patrons to pay higher ticket
prices reduces.

5 https://uktheatre.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2025/05/SOLTUKT-State-Of-British-Theatre.pdf

Page 483 22


https://uktheatre.org/wp-content/uploads/sites/2/2025/05/SOLTUKT-State-Of-British-Theatre.pdf

108.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

114.

115.

Music Venues

Music venues provide a wide range of facilities and experiences for visitors and
range considerably in size, from a room within a different form of venue to large
purpose-built concert halls or the occasional use of a large sporting or other
venue. However, whilst the biggest artists and venues are attracting sellout crowds
and profitable events, the grassroots music venue (GMV) circuit is continuing to
face many challenges, despite their integral role within the live music sector.

GMVs are also important for local communities. In 2022 they hosted approximately
21.9 million audience visits across 176,000 events with over 1.6 million individual
performers. They are a key fixture of high streets and town centres and support
both the night-time and wider economy. They also provide the starting point for
many artists, technicians and other industry professionals®.

Despite this the sector ha been in decline for many years. Since 2005 70% of
Britain’s late-night venues have closed and in 2023 125 GMVs closed representing
a 13% decline’. In 2024 a further 25 closures occurred while around 40% of the
remaining venues operated at a loss?.

This is due to the some of the same issues facing retail and other small
businesses, relating to rising energy, staffing and business rate costs. However,
the sector is also facing competition from changing consumer behaviour with
money instead being spent on the occasional ‘big venue’ or festival event.
Businesses also have the added challenge relating to licencing, sometimes due to
an increase in the residential population in a centre. Artists costs are also
increasing, reducing the numbers able to tour and overseas acts can face visa and
work permits problems.

As pressure for more housing in town centres also increases, the venues
themselves can face closure as a result of redevelopment plans, given many
operate in secondary locations or within a multi-use building. The future of live
music therefore depends in part on the planning system and an appreciation of the
need for suitable and often flexible accommodation,

Cinemas

Like the retail sector, the UK cinema sector is also seeing considerable change,
both in terms of consumer expectations and the physical offer.

In the late twentieth century many of the national multiple cinema operators such
as Odeon and Cineworld sought to replace their aging town centre properties with
new, multi-screen developments often in out or edge of centre locations. These
allowed a greater variety of films to be shown, increasing the potential audience,
whilst staffing and operating costs were lower. In many cases such developments
also allowed the co-location of a varied F&B offer, adding to the overall attraction
of the location from a customer point of view and increasing footfall.

However, the increase in streaming services has been an increasing challenge for
the sector for a number of years and the Covid-19 pandemic led to significant and

8 House of Commons Grassroots music venues — Report of Session 2023-24
7 https://www.economicsobservatory.com/live-music-in-the-uk-whats-the-state-of-the-industry
8 https://www.artsprofessional.co.uk/news/four-in-10-grassroots-music-venues-operating-at-a-loss

Page 484 23



116.

117.

118.

119.

rapid changes to customer behaviour. Unable to visit the cinema during lockdown
and facing restrictions on the household budget in the period since, subscriptions
to streaming services have increased dramatically since 2019.

The availability of streaming services has also changed audience expectations. An
increasing number of major releases are funded by these services and are now
routinely released online first, with just a short cinema release.

The result is that many of the major cinema operators are facing financial
pressures and are having to work hard to attract customers. However, there
continues to be a demand for cinemas and those providing a more personalised or
luxurious customer experience, such as Everyman and Curzon and other boutique
operators have sought to capitalise on this, being able to operate from smaller
properties, often repurposed from a different use. Easier access to films for
community groups also means occasional screening are being carried out in a
wide range of venues, often in smaller centres and settlements.

Leisure Classes / Health and Fitness

The end of the twentieth century saw increasing leisure time and disposable
incomes and with it, with the development of a number of private sector gyms and
health club chains. These have developed extensive property portfolios over the
last 20+ years and, whilst the State of the UK Fitness Industry Report 2024
indicates that the number of gyms has not recovered to the pre-pandemic levels
achieved in 2019, numbers have increased since 2023 and member numbers
were up by 4.1% in 2024 from 2023. Even more encouraging for the sector is that
the number of gym memberships indicate that 15.9% of the UK’s population have
a gym membership which is higher than for 2019 (15.6%).

The increases in member numbers were greater in the private sector than in the
public sector, with budget chains, PureGym and The Gym Group, the two leading
operators in terms of new gym openings. There is also increasing demand for
niche fitness and well-being related facilities, which are particularly popular with
younger generations (Gen Z and Millennials). This includes themed fithess venues
such as F45, Crossfit, and yoga studio chains such as HotPod. The increasing
emphasis on wellbeing, good health and preventative healthcare remain a positive
sign of the sector’s longer term resilience.

Page 485 24



120.

121.

122.

123.

124.

125.

126.

THE PROPERTY MARKET

The changes in the retail and leisure sectors has had a knock-on effect on the
property market, both within town centres and in out of centre locations.

Retail demand across UK centres has plummeted to historic lows dragging down
rents, property values and investor confidence. Since the 2007/8 financial crisis
the retail sector has consistently underperformed compared to other property
sectors and this has been further exacerbated more recently by the pandemic and
cost of living crisis, as shown below.

Figure 4: Property: Average Rental Growth (2006-2024) (%)

=—AIll =—Retail Office =Industrial

30.0

20.0

10.0

0.0

/

202
Dec2022
Dec2023
Dec 2024

Dec 2006
Dec 2007
Dec2014
Dec 2015
Dec 2016
Dec2017

-10.0
-200
-30.0

-40.0

Source: MSCI UK Quarterly Property Index (April 2025)

Retailers are leveraging this downturn to secure more favourable lease terms,
including turnover based rents, capped service charges, shorter leases, pandemic
clauses and generous incentives. However, with a relatively limited number of
potential occupiers, many UK retail centres suffer from an oversupply of outdated
or the ‘wrong type’ of spaces unable to meet modern retailer demands for larger
flexible units.

LSH’s research together with REVO titled ‘Shaping Tomorrow’s Places’ (June
2025) provides a barometer of the main issues and challenges facing our centres,
and the opportunities and potential interventions available (and/or needed) to
support their future recovery, reinvention and renaissance.

Theis research indicated that business rates have consistently been identified as
one of the main challenges impacting on the viability of our centres alongside an
oversupply of retail space and the growth of online retail spend.

Vacancy Rates

At the end of 2024, the GB national average ‘All Vacancy Rate’ (retail and leisure
combined) stood at 13.8% (a decrease from 14% in 2023). The current rate is still
higher than the pre-pandemic (Q4 2019) level of 12.1%, so the sector has yet to
fully recover.

Over the past five years, retail parks and shopping centres have shown an overall
decline in vacancy rates, while high streets have experienced an increase. From a

Page 486 25



127.

128.

129.

130.

131.

132.

133.

vacancy high of 19.4% in the second quarter of 2021, shopping centres dropped to
17.2% by the final quarter of 2024.

The LSH/Revo survey has consistently identified there is too much retail
floorspace in the UK. As a result, centres and locations are competing to attract
limited occupier interest.

This over-supply of retail floorspace and limited market demand is also placing
pressures on the viability of existing stores and shopping centres. In turn, this
makes it difficult for landlords, investors and retailers to justify additional capital
expenditure. There is also competition to secure public and private sector
investment to help deliver critical redevelopment and regeneration projects.

Out-Of-Centre Retailing

The development and take-up of retail and leisure out-of-centre space has also
slowed over recent years, in line with the trends impacting on high streets and
town centres. The main grocery retailers have pulled back from new larger format
superstore openings in edge and out of centre locations to focus on maintaining
and increasing market shares through online sales and opening smaller
convenience outlets, often in smaller centres. The exception to this is the
discounters, Aldi and Lidl, who continue to seek new sites in mainly edge and out-
of-centre locations.

Vacancy levels in out-of-centre retail warehouses and parks have also increased
over the last decade following the closure of major operators. such as Carpetright,
Toys R Us, and a reduction in the store portfolios of other major out-of-centre
retailers, including B&Q and Homebase. There are likely to be further increases in
closures, particularly in the poorly performing “first generation” and secondary
shopping locations, as leases come up for renewal and more retailers go into
administration. As a result, a number of out-of-centre foodstore and retail
warehouse sites are being repurposed and/or redeveloped for alternative uses,
including leisure, logistics and residential uses.

Notwithstanding this, most out-of-centre shopping locations retain their significant
competitive advantages over town centres and high streets in terms of their supply
of larger format modern outlets, ease of access, their lower occupancy costs and
extensive free parking as well as their ability to serve as last-mile delivery hubs.
This remains an attractive proposition for those retailers that are still seeking
space in the current market. For example, as part of its revised business model
Marks & Spencer has closed a number of its traditional high street stores and
“replaced” these with ‘Simply Food/Food Hall' branded stores in out-of-centre
locations.

According to the investment property forum (May 2025), modest rental growth is
expected in 2025; 1.5% for shopping centres, 2.3% for retail warehouses and
2.5% for standard retail indicating cautious optimism in a still-rebalancing market.

Retail Productivity

For those ‘Bricks and mortar’ retailers that continue to trade, occupancy costs
such as rents, rates, utilities and wages are rising faster than inflation and outpace

Page 487 26



134.

135.

136.

137.

sales growth. This squeezes margins and accelerates store closures. The
competitive imbalance between bricks and mortar stores and online or out of
centre retailers makes survival even tougher. To stay viable, retailers must
therefore maximise efficiency and productivity from existing space.

It is standard practice to make allowance for such changes in retail planning
assessments and the latest RPBN 22 provides forecasts of annual floorspace
productivity growth rates based on two different scenarios: (i) the ‘constant
floorspace scenario’, based on limited potential for new retail development,
resulting in greater efficiency of existing floorspace; and (ii) the ‘changing
floorspace scenario’, which takes account of the impact of new retail development
on average retailer sales performance. The table below sets out the differences
between the two scenarios.

Table 6: Floorspace Productivity Growth Rates (year-on-year growth %)
2023 2024 2025 2026  2027-2031 2032-2040

CONSTANT FLOORSPACE
Convenience Goods -2.4% -2.3% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Comparison Goods -0.5% -0.1% 0.5% 1.7% 2.5% 2.5%
CHANGING FLOORSPACE
Convenience Goods -2.4% -2.3% -0.1% 0.0% 0.0% -0.1%
Comparison Goods -0.5% -0.2% 0.4% 1.6% 2.3% 2.3%

Source: Experian Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025); Figures 3a/3b and 4a/4b

As Experian explains, sales density growth rates have been volatile in recent
years given sharp swings in retail spending due to temporary closures in
businesses during the pandemic, and subsequently the impact of high inflation.
There is anticipated growth in sales densities in 2025 as retail sales volumes
rebound, driven by the comparison component and aided by mildly improving
consumer affordability. However over the medium and longer term, budgetary
challenges from rising costs and tight margins will be a key factor underpinning
floorspace efficiencies over the coming years. These results reflect national trends
and there will be marked differences between local areas.

On this basis, budgetary pressures mean that retailers will have to increase
efficiencies from current floorspace including through redevelopment/repurposing
of existing floorspace; adoption of modern technology and innovations; more
effective marketing strategies; and adopting an ‘omni-channel’ strategy (refers to
the integration of different methods of shopping available to consumers e.g. via the
internet, in a physical shop, or by phone) that uses internet sales to increase the
sales performance of physical shops. This is against a backdrop of weak demand
for retail property, high vacancy levels and a significant fall in new retail-led
development in centres across the UK.

For these reasons we prefer to test higher ‘constant floorspace productivity’
growth rates for retail planning assessments, as they better reflect national trends
and the need for existing retailers to increase their sales potential and profit
margins to remain viable.

Page 488 27



139.

140.

141.

142.

143.

144.

145.

146.

147.

THE FUTURE FOR OUR TOWN CENTRES AND HIGH
STREETS

Town centres and our traditional high streets have always been dynamic, adapting
and evolving to meet the emerging needs of their customer base but the significant
and fast-moving structural changes seen during the last 10-15 years have made it
difficult for centres to adapt quickly enough, resulting in increased vacancies and
under-utilised retail space.

Our towns, traditional high streets and shopping centres have been challenged for
more than a decade by falling market demand, rising occupancy costs and
increasing competition from online and out-of-centre shopping. These trends have
been further accelerated and compounded by the COVID-19 pandemic and have
resulted in an increase in vacant shop units, often in primary shopping areas, as
retailers and occupiers either choose to downsize and/or close stores in some
locations (e.g., Marks & Spencer, John Lewis), or they are forced out of business
altogether due to failing business models and unmanageable debts (e.g., the
Arcadia Group).

The commercial leisure industry is also facing considerable challenges and
pressures.

Going forward, small increases in expenditure per head for both retail and leisure
activities are expected, but much of this will be offset by higher levels of online
sales and the improved productivity required by existing businesses if they are to
remain profitable and viable. As a result the over-provision of retail floorspace is
likely to persist both in town centres and out-of-centre locations, with a
corresponding impact on rental levels.

The critical challenge over the short, medium and long term will be how to retain
existing businesses, fill/replace the voids and attract new investment. The danger
is that an increase in long-term vacancies in centres will lead to a ‘spiral of
decline’, which will further engender feelings of neglect and lack of investment
confidence in town centres, and “push” more people to shop online.

The repurposing of existing retail space and increased diversity of uses will
therefore be key to ensuring that town centres at all levels of the retail hierarchy
are able to continue to evolve to meet the changing needs of their catchment.

As town centres evolve, residential provision in centres is already being
encouraged, including by previous national planning changes (such as office to
residential conversions through prior approval, and permitted development for two
flats above a shop).

In those cases where retail vacancies are long-term and more often than not
concentrated in secondary shopping streets/pitches, it will be necessary to plan for
alternative uses and/or consider options for redevelopment. As a result of the
increasing drive towards more flexible planning through changes to the Use
Classes Order and Permitted Development Rights, there will inevitably be more
mixed-uses within centres.

It will also be important to maximise intergenerational residential provision in the
most sustainable locations, particularly in centres, as part of a balanced mix of

Page 489 28



148.

uses. The LSH/ REVO research mentioned previously also indicated that
providing mixed tenure homes in and on the edge of centres is recognised as key
to delivering more viable and resilient town centres. Consideration also needs to
be given to enabling the growth of other uses, such as education, leisure and
recreation within centres, which, along with residential, are particularly positive in
terms of enhancing the vitality of centres.

The extent to which change is needed and the urgency for action will vary
depending on the individual location and the role and function of the centre. Some
areas are seeing a decline in footfall and retail demand as a result of increasing
online sales, more Working from Home or the national trends, but others are
continuing to maintain their retail draw. This includes locations where the offer is
attractive to local residents, as WfH and more online shopping for larger items
increases the potential for local purchases of day-to-day items. Centres with a
strong tourist draw or providing a unique offer and/or attractive environment are
also more likely to perform well.

Page 490 29



Lambert
Smith

Hampton

Isle of Anglesey Retail Study

Appendix B — Shopping & Leisure Patterns and
Retail Capacity Assessment

Prepared for:
Isle of Anglesey County Council

December 2025

Ish.co.uk :

|
d

il L
:’“»f; e (90 PETETY Lo oy

"
Ao

“. ‘u‘q wed
e b TRy - | N
=V e b 'v"_‘ I .
"' Y r " c ey -
v A ~ )
. [ ’ "= - seadaedlacel) '
r < 2 % .' ' .‘l t N ‘
LE LA '
' w4 T . ~ . Y |
. ~ y !. : \‘ w ol —a y=jv ¥ 2 s
N, y bEh \ .'3‘.%%" . ! 3
BT LS i S
= i e |
ol R AN o
[} ) 2 . - St v
' ™ ‘ G N7, - \
) |‘ "’ J .- e 4
PR ol
7] |3 4ompunwn -
o b
o A k ML
S ¥ iD 2t & J10
‘An » "‘ | .

'
t '
! ! '
R ‘ ‘2 B B
9‘: i t ; r
¢ Rt
e T '] . 1 =

RGP Boyded)


http://www.lsh.co.uk/

This document has been prepared and checked in accordance with the Lambert Smith
Hampton Quality Assurance procedures and authorised for release. If not signed off by a
Director in the Planning, Regeneration + Infrastructure (PR+l) division at LSH then this
document should be treated as a draft, and as being Private and Confidential. It should not
be for wider distribution without the sign-off and permission of Lambert Smith Hampton.

This report meets the PDF/UA (Universal Accessibility) standard, which is equivalent to the
WCAG 'AA' digital standard.

Prepared by:

Christine Reeves

Chinitss 11 Rovireq

Signed:

For and on behalf of Lambert Smith Hampton

Issued: December 2025

Page 492



Contents

1. INTRODUCTION ...ttt e e 4
2. THE STUDY AREA AND DATA SOURCES. ... 5
3. RETAIL AND LEISURE SPENDING PATTERNS .......oooiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 9
4. RETAIL CAPACITY ASSESSMENTS ..ot 12

3

Page 493



1.

INTRODUCTION

This Appendix report provides information on existing retail and leisure activity in
the study area and sets out the methodology and results of the economic capacity
(“need”) assessments for new retail (convenience and comparison goods)
floorspace.

The report is structured as follows:

e Section 2 provides details of the study area and the expenditure data source;

e Section 3 looks at retail and leisure spending patterns in the study area; and

e Section 4 provides the retail capacity assessment for convenience and
comparison floorspace.

Page 494



10.

THE STUDY AREA AND DATA SOURCES

Experian Insights Data

To provide the necessary information on expenditure patterns in the adopted
Study Area, data has been obtained from Experian Insights as an alternative to
undertaking a household survey of a sample of local residents.

Experian Insights uses actual transaction data from 4 million customers across the
UK. This information can be used to identify how much money is spent in specified
locations and the origin of that spend (i.e. customer home location), using different
levels of geography and against typical retail and leisure categories. This allows a
detailed understanding of actual customer behaviour.

For this study, the data has been provided for the following areas and spend
categories.

Study Area

The study area is focused on the Isle of Anglesey and divided into two zones
namely:

e Zone 1- Island of Holyhead
e Zone 2 — Rest of Anglesey

To better understand expenditure inflows and outflows from the Council area, we
have also defined two areas covering the adjoining populations and a ‘Rest of UK’
zone:

e Zone 3 comprises the area of Gwynedd County Borough
e Zone 4 covers the area of Conwy County Borough and
e Zone 5 (Outside the Study area) comprises the Rest of the UK.

A map showing the study area is provided at Appendix B1 to this report.

Spend Locations

Within each zone the key town centres and out of centre retail and leisure
destinations have been identified, with the rest of the spending in a zone grouped
as appropriate.

The table below sets out the settlements, including town centres, local centres and
other locations identified in the Experian Insights Analysis.

Page 495



Table 1: Identified Retail & Leisure Spend Locations in Isle of Anglesey

Merchant location Retail Location

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre
Holyhead Retail Park

Penrhos Retail Park

Elsewhere in Holyhead Town
Trearddur Bay

Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre
Elsewhere in Llangefni

Amlwch Local Centre

Elsewhere in Amlwch
Beaumaris Local Centre
Elsewhere in Beaumaris
Benllech Local Centre
Elsewhere in Benllech
Llanfairpwll Local Centre
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwill
Menai Bridge Local Centre
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge
Valley Local Centre
Elsewhere in Valley
Cemaes Local Centre
Elsewhere in Cemaes
Gaerwen Local Centre
Rhosneigr Local Centre
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey

In addition, spend from Anglesey leaking to other areas identifies the following
specific locations:

e Bangor Town Centre

e Elsewhere in Bangor

e Elsewhere in Gwynedd
e Anywhere in Conwy County
e Elsewhere in Wales

e Chester City Centre

e Cheshire Oaks

e Elsewhere in Chester
e Liverpool City Centre

e Elsewnhere in Liverpool
e Elsewhere in UK

Expenditure Categories

Given the purpose of this study is to determine the capacity / need for additional
retail floorspace and other town centre uses/ facilities and to examine commercial

Page 496



leisure trends, the expenditure data provided by Experian Insights relates to the
following expenditure categories:

Table 2: Experian Insights Retail and Leisure Food & Beverage Categories

‘ Category Name Sub Sector Name ‘
Supermarket (Convenience) Alcoholic Beverages
Confectionary
Convenience
Corner Shops and Newsagents
Health and Nutrition
Non-Alcoholic Beverages
Specialist Grocery
Supermarkets
Comparison Retail Baby and Childrenswear
Bags and Accessories
Beauty Products
Books and Stationery
Cards and Gifts
Department Stores
Discount Retailers
DIY and Interior Design
Electronics and Appliances
Florists

Furniture
Garden
Healthcare Providers
High Street
Household Products
Jewellery and Watches
Lingerie
Luxury Fashion
Menswear
Other - General Retail
Pets
Shoes
Sports Equipment & Clubs
Sportswear
Toys and Gaming
Unisex
Womenswear

Leisure Food & Drink Cafes and Coffee Shops
Fast Food Chains
Food Delivery Services
Mid-Tier Restaurants
Pubs and Bars
Restaurants

Entertainment Leisure Attractions and Experiences
Entertainment - Other
Live Shows and Events

Page 497



13.

14.

Experian Insights transaction data is provided for a 12-month period ending 315t
December 2024. As such, the data provides a good baseline for understanding
how residents and visitors spend money on retail goods and leisure activities,
taking account of variances that typically occur over a given year (e.g. seasonal
activity).

The base data is provided in Appendix B2 as follows:

e Table B2.1 Supermarket (Convenience) Spend
e Table B2.2 Non-Food (Comparison) Spend

e Table B2.3 Leisure Food & Drink Spend

e Table B2.4 Leisure Entertainment Spend

Page 498



3.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.

RETAIL AND LEISURE SPENDING PATTERNS

To inform our understanding of spending patterns in the area the Experian data
has been used to calculate the market shares for the centres and zones, providing
information both on where residents in a zone spend their money and how reliant
a particular centre is on local or visitor trade. The information is presented in
Appendix B3 and discussed below in more detail.

Convenience Retail Spending

Spending on convenience goods is usually undertaken on a fairly localised basis
with ‘convenience to home’ being a key determinant in the choice of shopping
destination.

The spending patterns in Anglesey are set out in Tables B3.1 and B3.2, with Table
B3.1 showing where spend in a zone is directed and Table B3.2 showing how
spend from different areas contributes to the overall turnover of a location.

This shows that most convenience expenditure is retained within Anglesey, with
82.2% of Zone 1 spend and 58.2% of Zone 2 spend going to stores and centres
on the Island. As would be expected, retention is higher in Zone 1 (Holyhead),
whilst Zone 2 (rest of Anglesey) sees 20.5% of spend going Gwynedd, mainly to
the out-of-centre stores in Bangor (18.4%).

Within Anglesey the destinations attracting the most convenience spend are the
out of centre stores in Llangefni (13.4% - Aldi, Asda and Lidl) and the Penrhos
Retail Park in Holyhead (13.1%). The latter includes Tesco Extra and Aldi. The
neighbouring Holyhead Retail Park (Morrisons) attracts 5.2% of spend, whilst the
Asda in Holyhead would attract much of the 3.1% of trade going to locations
‘Elsewhere in Holyhead Town’.

Very little convenience spend is made within the defined centres.

The use of online shopping is lower across the Study Area than in the UK as a
whole where 17.0% of spending is forecast to be spent online or via other types of
Special Forms of Trading (SFT). In Zone 1 only 8.8% of spend is online, whilst in
Zone 2 itis 14.4%.

In terms of where centres and convenience stores draw their trade (Table B3.2)
the importance of visitor spend is very clear for some locations including:

e Trearddur Bay (78% of spend from visitors from the Rest of the UK);

e Elsewhere in Holyhead (52% from visitors), with a further 3.5% from residents
in Gwynedd;

e Beaumaris Local Centre (49% from visitors and 5% from Gwynedd and Conwy
residents);

e Elsewhere in Beaumaris (32% from visitors and 5% from Gwynedd and Conwy
residents);

e Elsewhere in Benllech (40% from visitors);

e Llanfairpwll Local Centre (16% from visitors and 11% from Gwynedd
residents);

Page 499



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

e Menai Bridge Local Centre (21% from visitors and 10% from Gwynedd
residents);

e Elsewhere in Menai Bridge (21% from visitors, 15% from Gwynedd residents
and 4% from Conwy residents);

e Valley Local Centre (27% from visitors);

e Cemaes Local Centre (37% from visitors);

e Elsewhere in Cemaes (62% from visitors);

e Rhosneigr Local Centre (70% from visitors); and

e Elsewhere in Rhosneigr (54% from visitors).

In contrast the convenience stores in Llangefni, Alimwch and Gaerwen primarily
serve their local communities.

Comparison Retail Spending

The destinations for spending on non-food items tend to be more varied than for
convenience purchases, reflecting the greater range of the types of goods that
may be purchased, the frequency of purchase and their value. The information for
Anglesey, presented in Table B3.3, shows the importance of on-line sales, with an
average 43.2% of all comparison spend going online across Zones 1 and 2. This
compares with a UK average of around 31.6%.

The remaining spend is distributed across a wide range of centres and locations,
but only 19% of spend generated on the Isle of Anglesey is spent locally. Around
15% of spend goes to outlets in Gwynedd, mainly the out-of-centre retail units in
Bangor and a further 5% to locations in Conwy. There is also leakage of 10.6% to
a range of locations further afield.

Table B3.4 also shows the reliance of some comparison locations on visitor spend,
in a similar way to visitor spend on convenience goods. Of particular note:

e Other than Holyhead Town Centre, all locations on Holyhead draw more than
half of their trade from areas beyond Holyhead (Zone 1). This includes trade
inflow from the Rest of Anglesey (Zone 2) and visitors;

e Visitors account for around 43% of comparison spend in Treaddur Bay and
around 15% of spend in Holyhead;

e Comparison retailers in Beaumaris get between 62% and 68% of spend from
visitors;

¢ In Rhosneigr visitor spend accounts for 71% - 81% of comparison spend;

e Comparison retailers in Cemaes and Llanfairpwll local centres get around 40%
of trade from visitors, while Benllech gets around 31%;

e Retailers in Menai Bridge attract trade from Gwynedd residents as well as
visitors; and

e Locations in Llanfairpwll but outside the centre are popular with Gwynedd
residents.

Only Amlwch, Valley and Gaerwen local centres and out-of-centre locations in
Llangefni rely primarily on locally generated comparison trade.

Page 500 10



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Leisure Food & Drink Spend

Spending on food and drink encompasses a range of activities from purchasing
takeaways for consumption in the home to dining out. As a result any individual is
likely to spend money in a large number of outlets, including some when on
holiday or away from home. This is reflected in the Anglesey data (Table B3.5)
which shows around 17% of all Anglesey spend being made in more distant parts
of the UK, in addition to around 11% spent online.

The nature of the spend also means that much of the spend is likely to be made
outside of defined centres, as possible destinations include pubs, many of which
are free-standing. Destinations will also include cafes and takeaways in small
parades of shops and cafes and restaurants linked to transport termini etc.

Again this is reflected in the Anglesey data with ‘Elsewhere’ locations in the zones
attracting relatively high proportions of spend.

The data also confirms that spending locally is important with 42% of Zone 1
expenditure spent in the Zone and 36% of Zone 2 spend. However, spend on
visits to Gwynedd and Conwy are also important attracting 19% of Anglesey trade
overall.

Table B3.6 again shows the importance of visitor trade with many locations
attracting more spend from visitors than from local residents including Trearddur
Bay, Beaumaris, Benllech, Cemaes and Rhosneigr. Menai Bridge and Llanfairpwill
also attract significant spend from Gwynedd.

Leisure Entertainment

The Experian data on entertainment spend is of more limited assistance in
understanding the use of leisure facilities within Anglesey, as nearly two-thirds of
recorded spend is now made online (63.7% across Zones 1 and 2), reflecting the
way most cinema, theatre and live music tickets are now sold (Table B3.7).

Key findings from the data however include:

e Locations in Holyhead but outside the defined centre attract 17.7% of local
(Zone 1) spend, compared with just 2.9% within the centre;

e Llangefni town centre attracts 11% of Zone 2 spend; and

e There is leakage of over 18% of Zones 1 and 2 spend going outside of the
County Borough, although a proportion of this is likely to be linked to spending
on vacation.

As with the other types of spend, spending by visitors is often of greater
importance for Anglesey locations, especially in Trearddur Bay, Beaumaris,
Llangefni, Menai Bridge and Rhosneigr.

Page 501 1



36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

RETAIL CAPACITY ASSESSMENTS

Having used the Experian Insights transaction data to inform our understanding of
shopping spending across the Study Area, the next stage is to undertake the
economic retail capacity (‘need’) assessment for new retail (convenience and
comparison goods) floorspace in the Isle of Anglesey County Borough.

The capacity forecasts take account of the lifetime of the plan starting from 2024
(base year) up to 2039, although findings beyond 2035 should be treated with
caution on the basis that forecasts become less reliable after a 10-year period.

The detailed economic capacity tabulations for convenience and comparison
floorspace are set out in Appendices B5 and B6 respectively, with the base
population and expenditure figures provided in Appendix B4.

The CREAT® Model

The assessment utilises the CREAT® economic model which has been specifically
designed, developed and tested by the LSH team over more than 25 years to
assess the capacity for and impact of new retail (convenience and comparison
goods) floorspace development. The evidence-based model has helped to inform
and guide plan-making and decision-taking at the local, sub-regional and regional
level throughout this period. In brief, the CREAT® (Excel-based) model adopts a
transparent ‘step-by-step’ approach in which all the key assumptions and forecasts
can be easily tested.

The Experian Insights data provides the basis for the retail capacity assessment
which uses the CREAT® model to forecast capacity for convenience and
comparison goods.

At the outset it has been assumed for the purpose of the capacity assessment that
the local retail market in Anglesey is in ‘equilibrium’ at the base year. In other
words, all existing centres/stores are broadly assumed to be trading in line with
expected average (‘benchmark’) turnover levels. This is a reasonable approach as
it reflects the impact of the economic downturn and the significant growth in online
sales on the trading levels and performance of retailers and stores across the UK.
As a result any latent demand could normally be expected to have been met by
the occupation of available vacant floorspace.

In simple terms, this means that any residual expenditure available to support new
retail floorspace over the forecast period will be generated by the difference
between the forecast growth in ‘current’ (study-derived) expenditure levels and the
growth in ‘benchmark’ turnovers of existing floorspace, based on applying robust
year-on-year ‘productivity’ (‘turnover efficiency’) growth rates to all existing and
new retail floorspace.

It is important to restate that medium to long term forecasts should be treated with
caution, as they will be influenced by the dynamic changes in economic,
demographic and market trends.

Page 502 12



44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

The updated capacity forecasts set out in this section provide the Council with a
broad indication of the (quantitative) need for new retail (comparison and
convenience goods) floorspace in Anglesey.

The key steps in the retail capacity assessment, and the main assumptions and
forecasts underpinning the CREAT® Model are described below.

Base Year Population And Projections

The population estimates and projections for Anglesey over the study period (to
2039) are based on the most recent information available from Experian Location
Analyst. These provide a base year estimate for 2023, and these are projected
forward by Experian using ONS data.

The resulting population levels for the Study Zones are set out in Table B4.1 and
show that the total Study Area population is forecast to decrease by around 333
persons (-0.5%) between 2024 and 2034 and by a similar amount (340 or -0.5%)
over the whole study period from 2024 to 2039.

Expenditure Per Capita Levels And Forecasts

The baseline expenditure per capita (‘per person’) figures and forecasts are
presented in Table B4.2 for convenience goods and Table B4.5 for comparison
goods. The baseline average expenditure per capita figures derived from our in-
house Experian Location Analyst GIS are 2023 based and all expenditure and
turnover figures are expressed in 2023 prices.

The growth in the expenditure per capita figures by zone is informed by the
forecasts published in the latest Experian Retail Planner Briefing Note 22
(RPBN22), released in March 2025. Experian is currently forecasting more limited
year-on-year growth in retail expenditure than in previous years reflecting the
impact of long-term economic and market trends, which have been further
accelerated by the impact of the pandemic.

This is particularly the case for convenience spend, where spend per head is
expected to decline during the Plan period.

Special Forms Of Trading and other Adjustments

Special Forms of Trading (SFT) is deducted from the forecast retail (convenience
and comparison) expenditure levels over the forecast period to reflect that
proportion of retail spend that is not available to physical shops.

The base rate for 2024 is informed by the proportions of spend recorded by the
Experian Insights data which relates to that year. This has then been adjusted to
reflect the fact that a proportion of online convenience and comparison retail sales
are sourced from traditional (‘physical’) stores rather than from dedicated (‘dot
com’) warehouses. Experian assume 25% of SFT’s market share for comparison
goods and 70% for convenience goods are sales sourced from “physical” stores.

The expected annual growth in online sales/SFT is then applied to the forecast
expenditure per head for future years, in line with the RPBN22 figures.

Page 503 13



54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

The available spend per head has also been adjusted to reflect that not all
convenience spend is spent in foodstores and not all comparison purchases are
made in non-food stores.

Available Expenditure

The resulting expenditure per head is then presented in Tables B4.3
(convenience) and B4.6 (comparison), with the total available expenditure figures
presented in Tables B4.4 and B4.7 respectively. These show that over the study
period available convenience spend will decrease by between 4.8% (2024 — 2034)
and 6.1% (2024 — 2039). Comparison expenditure is expected to increase by
14.2% between 2024 and 2034 and (indicatively) by around 25% between 2024
and 2039.

The difference in expenditure growth between convenience and comparison goods
should be viewed in the context of the fluctuating levels of spend over the past 5
years. For example, comparison retail spend dipped significantly in the first year of
the Covid pandemic before recovering in 2021 as restrictions eased. However, this
was followed by a three-year decline in spend to 2024 as consumers held back on
spending due to the cost-of-living crisis. Growth in comparison sales is only
expected to occur from 2025 (+0.1%) before stabilising at 2.5% per annum from
2027 and at 2.6% per annum from 2032.

By contrast spending on convenience goods is generally more static. The uplift as
a result of the pandemic was noticeable in 2020 at +6.8% when eating out was
curtailed, but spending has since declined year on year. This trend is expected top
continue to 2040, although the rate of decline has reduced significantly to around -
0.2% to -0.3% per annum from 2027 onwards.

Market Shares and Centre Turnover Analysis

The next stage in the capacity assessment involves allocating the available spend
to the transaction-based market shares identified from the Experian Insights data.
From this we can identify the expected turnover of centres in the Study Area and
the monetary value of Study Area and zonal expenditure diverted to competing
centres.

The market share information for convenience and comparison spend is set out in
Tables B3.1 and B3.2 (Appendix B3) using Zones 1 and 2 which together cover
the Isle of Anglesey County Borough. The inflow of trade from the mainland has
also been calculated from the Experian Insights data.

For the retail capacity assessment, and in line with accepted approaches, the
market shares has then been adjusted for both convenience and comparison
goods to exclude SFT. The adjusted market shares are set out in Table B5.1
convenience (Appendix B5) and Table B6.1 for comparison (Appendix B6).

Forecast turnover for retail centres and destinations in 2024 — 2039 is then
provided in Tables B5.2 — B5.5 for convenience and Tables B6.2 — B6.5 for
comparison, with the results summarised in Tables B5.6 and B6.6 respectively.

These forecast turnovers are based on constant market shares, i.e. assuming no
change in where people currently shop. This ‘constant market share approach’ is

Page 504 14



63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

standard practice for strategic retail capacity assessments but does not take
account of the potential impact that new retail investment and development (both
within and outside the study area) or variances in visitor numbers may have on
market shares and turnover performance over time.

Retail Capacity Assessment

The final stage is to assess the retail capacity in the area going forward looking at
how much of the increased expenditure (if present) is likely to be available to
support new floorspace.

Floorspace Productivity

A key input to this is the application of a year-on-year floorspace ‘productivity’
growth rate to all existing and new retail floorspace. This represents the expected
increase in store turnover over and above inflation that existing retailers are
expected to achieve. This is required to cover their increasing costs (including, for
example, rising rents, business rates and wages). Achieving these higher annual
‘productivity’ growth rates is essential if businesses are to remain profitable and
viable over the short, medium and long term. This is particularly the case as the
competition from online retailing increases, a trend that has been significantly
accelerated by the impact of the pandemic.

Experian provides forecasts for productivity growth rates in the form of expected
changes to retail sales densities (RPBN22, Figures 3 and 4), with two scenarios
tested, assuming (i) constant floorspace and (ii) changing floorspace. For the
purposes of assessing capacity we have used the ‘constant’ floorspace
assumptions.

Convenience Capacity

The convenience capacity assessment for Isle of Anglesey is set out in Table B5.7
which is reproduced below.

Table 3: Convenience Expenditure and Floorspace Capacity (sqm net)

2024 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £180.7 £175.1 £172.0 £169.9
STEP2:  TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £180.7 £181.4 £182.3 £183.2
STEP3:  NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP4:  TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP5:  NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP6:  CAPACITY FOR CONVENIENCE FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ per sq m) £12,512 £12,537 £12,600 £12,663
(i) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -503 -818 -1,055
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 70% 70% 70%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -719 -1,168 -1,507

Source: Appendix B5, Table B5.7

As would be expected given the forecast decline in available convenience
expenditure, the capacity assessment indicates that there will be a small
oversupply of convenience floorspace in Anglesey during the Plan period, rising
from around 500 sgm net in 2029 to 1,055 sgm net in 2039.

The overall quantum of surplus spend and estimated floorspace is however small
in the context of the area as a whole. It is likely to result in an incremental change
to the quantum of convenience floorspace provided in a variety of outlets, or a
number of stores failing to achieve the anticipated levels of productivity growth.

Page 505 15



69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Whilst store closures cannot be ruled out, these would be more likely to be as a
result of company trading decisions than local store performance, given the
amount of surplus space in any single location will be very small.

Comparison Capacity

The comparison capacity assessment for Anglesey is set out in Table B6.7 which
is reproduced below.

Table 4: Comparison Expenditure and Floorspace Capacity (sqm net)

2024 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £103.1 £112.9 £123.7
STEP 2: TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £108.8 £123.1 £139.2
STEP 3: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5
STEP 4: TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP 5: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5 ‘
STEP6: CAPACITY FOR COMPARISON FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ persc  £6,000 £6,604 £7,472 £8,454
(ii) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -858 -1,356 -1,834 ‘
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 80% 80% 80%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -1,073 -1,695 -2,292

Source: Appendix B6, Table B6.7

For comparison floorspace, the assessment is again indicating an oversupply of
floorspace in Anglesey in the future, with the uplift in expenditure per head and
population increases insufficient to support the existing quantum of floorspace in
the Council area.

However, again the over-supply of space is small in the context of overall provision
and is the equivalent of the loss of a single medium-sized retail warehouse unit
over the period to 2039. Alternatively if the existing quantum of floorspace were to
be retained, existing businesses would be expected to see a slightly slower
improvement in floorspace productivity.

Committed Retail Floorspace

It is also important to note that the convenience and comparison capacity
assessments do not make any allowance for committed developments, which
have been granted planning permission but which were not trading during 2024
when the Experian Insights expenditure data was collected.

This would suggest that there is now no quantitative need for the approved
schemes, even if this had been demonstrated when permission was approved.

In practice however, whatever the overall quantitative assessment of need
indicates in a local planning authority area, there is likely to be a continuing
demand for new provision either as a result of identified gaps in retail provision, or
commercial operator requirements. Ther may also be some ‘churn’ in space, as
outdated floorspace no longer meets retailer needs and is replaced by other uses,
with retailers seeking new space. There will therefore remain qualitative or
localised requirements for additional retail provision, although at the present time
we are not aware of any major retail commitments.

Retail Capacity Summary

PPW requires planning authorities to assess quantitative need in their area but
recognises that this does not inevitably lead to a need being identified, and

Page 506 16



76.

77.

therefore the allocation of site for new retail development is only required where
capacity has been identified.

In this case there is no quantitative need for additional convenience or comparison
retail floorspace in the Isle of Anglesey and therefore there is no requirement to
allocate development sites to accommodate future retail developments.

It is also the case that the forecast ‘surplus’ of floorspace that is expected to arise
over the plan period 2024 — 2039 is relatively small and as such, in itself does not
suggest that there is a policy requirement to adjust centre boundaries or reallocate
areas currently in retail use. However, this is considered in more detail when
assessing the health of individual centres and considering an appropriate strategy
for their future.

Page 507 17



Appendices:

B1: DEFINED STUDY AREA & ZONES

B2: EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA

B3: MARKET SHARES AND EXPENDITURE INFLOWS
B4: POPULATION AND RETAIL EXPENDITURE

B5: CONVENIENCE CAPACITY TABLES

B6: COMPARISON CAPACITY TABLES

Page 508

18



APPENDIX B1: DEFINED STUDY AREA & ZONES

Page 509

19



I8 Zone 1 - Island of Holyhead

- Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey

- Zone 3 - Gwynedd County Borough
I Zone 4 - Conwy County Borough
© Zone 5 - Rest of the UK




APPENDIX B2: EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA

Page 511

20



Z1S abed

TABLE B2.1 EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA FOR 2024 - SUPERMARKET (CONVENIENCE) SPEND

Merchant location
Zone 1 - Holyhead

Retail Location
Holyhead Town Centre

Zone 1 Holyhead
64,711

Zone 2 - Rest of
Anglesey
13,926

Customer Location
Isle of Anglesey

County (Zones 1 &
2)
78,637

Zone 3 - Gwynedd
1,449

Zone 4 - Conwy

Rest of the UK
12,468

Total Expenditure
93,217

Holyhead Retail Park 362,683 599,528 962,211 27,295 10,822 268,916 1,269,244
Penrhos Retail Park 969,110 1,468,678 2,437,788 41,084 13,691 577,706 3,070,269
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 404,289 176,995 581,284 6,456 5,465 75,175 668,380
Trearddur Bay 10,196 3,783 13,979 272 363 52,036 66,650
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 1,261 1,311 2,572 204 27 2,997 5,800
Zone 1 Total 1,812,250 2,264,221 4,076,471 76,760 31,031 989,298 5,173,560
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 1,176 99,922 101,098 3,788 508 4,873 110,267
Elsewhere in Llangefni 36,410 2,458,350 2,494,760 90,500 19,706 247,445 2,852,411
Amlwch Local Centre 1,120 24,872 25,992 351 25 1,622 27,990
Elsewhere in Amlwch 820 631,988 632,808 3,220 1,137 74,332 711,497
Beaumaris Local Centre 72 26,816 26,888 797 741 26,970 55,396
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 2,105 137,070 139,175 6,578 4,077 70,738 220,568
Benllech Local Centre 295 73,670 73,965 1,165 150 14,903 90,183
Elsewhere in Benllech 510 416,688 417,198 5,414 3,481 288,761 714,854
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 1,260 17,412 18,672 2,986 335 4,319 26,312
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 1,210 365,826 367,036 23,194 3,595 47,377 441,202
Menai Bridge Local Centre 457 45,745 46,202 6,461 793 14,111 67,567
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 13,207 797,710 810,917 196,686 49,056 274,360 1,331,019
Valley Local Centre 27,354 121,366 148,720 4,175 1,132 57,057 211,084
Elsewhere in Valley 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cemaes Local Centre 342 49,763 50,105 371 620 30,467 81,563
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0 137 137 6 0 233 376
Gaerwen Local Centre 489 42,289 42,778 3,974 175 1,523 48,450
Rhosneigr Local Centre 927 26,728 27,655 477 263 66,495 94,890
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 30 1,949 1,979 19 15 2,389 4,402
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 68,399 1,853,971 1,922,370 51,380 14,183 350,787 2,338,720
Zone 2 Total 156,183 7,192,272 7,348,455 401,542 99,992 1,578,762 9,428,751
Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 1,922 29,859 31,781 63,456 11,790 17,414 124,441
Elsewhere in Bangor 72,865 2,987,998 3,060,863 4,299,884 455,387 758,272 8,574,406
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 17,207 315,202 332,409 12,050,895 211,577 4,753,938 17,348,819
Zone 3 Total 91,994 3,333,059 3,425,053 16,414,235 678,754 5,529,624 26,047,666
Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 24,046 256,321 280,367 454,443 13,484,095 3,231,107 17,450,012
Zone 4 Total 24,046 256,321 280,367 454,443 13,484,095 3,231,107 17,450,012
Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 14,235 145,515 159,750 854,128 1,666,397 390,954,057 393,634,332
Chester City Centre 570 6,600 7,170 9,119 12,038 2,216,770 2,245,097
Cheshire Oaks 476 9,874 10,350 19,813 21,821 4,151,421 4,203,405
Elsewhere in Chester 2,986 20,779 23,765 46,989 68,463 21,913,573 22,052,790
Liverpool City Centre 804 9,021 9,825 12,905 10,813 5,685,696 5,719,239
Elsewhere in Liverpool 1,053 16,763 17,816 31,631 18,597 54,669,632 54,737,676
Elsewhere in UK 78,147 665,549 743,696 992,995 805,591 2,542,282
Out of Area Total 98,271 874,101 972,372 1,967,580 2,603,720 479,591,149 485,134,821
Online Expenditure 211,635 2,332,272 2,543,907 3,531,759 3,300,142 9,375,808
Total Expenditure 2,394,379 16,252,246 18,646,625 22,846,319 20,197,734 490,919,940 552,610,618




€Tg abed

TABLE B2.2 EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA FOR 2024 -NON-FOOD (COMPARISON) SPEND

Merchant location

Retail Location

Zone 1
Holyhead

Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey
Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones
of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 3 -
Gwynedd

Zone 4 -
Conwy

Total

Rest of the UK  Expenditure

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 30,181 16,081 46,262 10,197 57,101
Holyhead Retail Park 167,469 319,283 486,752 21,572 3,973 79,341 591,638
Penrhos Retail Park 110,032 180,616 290,648 11,520 3,329 59,264 364,761
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 115,410 89,953 205,363 6,651 3,675 35,452 251,141
Trearddur Bay 15,471 8,040 23,511 500 464 18,506 42,981
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 8,798 10,670 19,468 2,064 1,946 111,304 134,782
Zone 1 Total 447,361 624,643 1,072,004 42,854 13,482 314,064 1,442,404
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 6,650 83,194 89,844 7,895 918 16,875 115,532
Elsewhere in Llangefni 32,105 1,134,543 1,166,648 61,804 12,405 93,899 1,334,756
Amlwch Local Centre 384 50,174 50,558 671 179 3,930 55,338
Elsewhere in Amlwch 25 82,127 82,152 564 8 7,027 89,751
Beaumaris Local Centre 1,299 44,338 45,637 9,008 3,710 123,076 181,431
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 1,269 46,693 47,962 7,435 4,039 100,758 160,194
Benllech Local Centre 0 9,907 9,907 63 19 4,661 14,650
Elsewhere in Benllech 9 44,962 44,971 1,772 257 11,921 58,921
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 11,689 118,695 130,384 32,850 8,159 111,867 283,260
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 410 58,627 59,037 17,974 83 879 77,973
Menai Bridge Local Centre 1,343 58,043 59,386 28,315 2,374 23,158 113,233
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 4,646 65,897 70,543 37,673 2,792 14,256 125,264
Valley Local Centre 11,555 50,320 61,875 1,940 726 1,598 66,139
Elsewhere in Valley 125 405 530 0 0 116 646
Cemaes Local Centre 61 5,690 5,751 79 38 4,677 10,545
Elsewhere in Cemaes 38 9,369 9,407 133 181 666 10,387
Gaerwen Local Centre 5,310 325,530 330,840 24,786 20,422 25,309 401,357
Rhosneigr Local Centre 2,162 12,652 14,814 1,080 828 71,625 88,347
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 998 11,441 12,439 880 192 33,579 47,090
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 83,049 743,233 826,282 80,863 22,689 198,072 1,127,906
Zone 2 Total 163,127 2,955,840 3,118,967 315,785 80,019 847,949 4,362,720
Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 18,683 287,909 306,592 393,661 30,666 64,950 795,869
Elsewhere in Bangor 113,813 1,664,013 1,777,826 1,896,971 288,631 446,816 4,410,244
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 15,360 415,971 431,331 4,701,153 150,265 2,587,896 7,870,645
Zone 3 Total 147,856 2,367,893 2,515,749 6,991,785 469,562 3,099,662 13,076,758
Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 75,904 795,867 871,771 1,099,949 8,317,486 4,412,616 14,701,822
Zone 4 Total 75,904 795,867 871,771 1,099,949 8,317,486 4,412,616 14,701,822
Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 13,565 226,098 239,663 859,104 1,567,151 224,545,634 | 227,211,552
Chester City Centre 9,399 74,111 83,510 145,153 174,955 9,885,289 10,288,907
Cheshire Oaks 11,215 147,435 158,650 171,777 238,301 20,494,635 21,063,363
Elsewhere in Chester 4,760 21,600 26,360 74,130 82,607 9,781,986 9,965,083
Liverpool City Centre 10,765 119,511 130,276 176,492 108,548 28,104,839 28,520,155
Elsewhere in Liverpool 2,722 44,088 46,810 45,853 32,899 33,136,767 33,262,329
Elsewhere in UK 119,070 936,969 1,056,039 1,373,815 1,374,960 3,804,814
Out of Area Total 171,496 1,569,812 1,741,308 2,846,324 3,579,421 325,949,150 | 334,116,203
Online Expenditure 847,259 6,241,682 7,088,941 9,295,501 8,667,516 25,051,958
Total Expenditure 1,853,003 14,555,737 16,408,740 20,592,198 21,127,486 334,623,441 | 392,751,865




vTG abed

TABLE B2.3 EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA FOR 2024 - FOOD & DRINK LEISURE SPEND

Merchant location

Retail Location

Zone 1
Holyhead

Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey
Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones
of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 3 -
Gwynedd

Total

Rest of the UK  Expenditure

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 50,331 26,626 76,957 2,135 1,363 23,888 104,343
Holyhead Retail Park 34,482 54,107 88,589 4,601 1,345 28,395 122,930
Penrhos Retail Park 2,789 1,878 4,667 509 73 3,083 8,332
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 124,797 110,976 235,773 7,424 4,287 71,978 319,462
Trearddur Bay 81,179 98,625 179,804 12,976 7,322 474,698 674,800
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 7,272 12,370 19,642 1,857 1,840 113,148 136,487
Zone 1 Total 300,850 304,582 605,432 29,502 16,230 715,190 1,366,354
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 1,065 47,389 48,454 2,043 533 7,145 58,175
Elsewhere in Llangefni 1,910 65,749 67,659 6,757 2,431 7,420 84,267
Amlwch Local Centre 377 41,472 41,849 506 217 6,591 49,163
Elsewhere in Amlwch 1,264 70,801 72,065 1,765 916 22,287 97,033
Beaumaris Local Centre 432 40,382 40,814 2,235 2,327 97,602 142,978
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 1,568 86,071 87,639 11,960 5,111 227,389 332,099
Benllech Local Centre 35 1,098 1,133 7 54 1,877 3,071
Elsewhere in Benllech 736 73,722 74,458 2,548 3,024 182,672 262,702
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 161 15,425 15,586 1,563 595 7,019 24,763
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 413 23,959 24,372 7,914 1,519 10,743 44,548
Menai Bridge Local Centre 2,656 144,738 147,394 41,978 7,223 80,994 277,589
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 7,290 261,052 268,342 100,972 23,332 331,434 724,080
Valley Local Centre 22,334 73,806 96,140 8,600 3,334 90,350 198,424
Elsewhere in Valley 109 3,073 3,182 370 70 1,187 4,809
Cemaes Local Centre 101 16,735 16,836 237 300 16,236 33,609
Elsewhere in Cemaes 167 9,662 9,829 319 284 21,767 32,199
Gaerwen Local Centre 89 1,064 1,153 85 34 406 1,678
Rhosneigr Local Centre 2,077 34,951 37,028 4,098 2,098 141,468 184,692
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 1,750 51,061 52,811 3,432 1,683 183,409 241,335
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 17,910 581,114 599,024 80,469 36,512 1,172,875 1,888,880
Zone 2 Total 62,444 1,643,324 1,705,768 277,858 91,597 2,610,871 4,686,094
Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 7,406 85,549 92,955 127,898 15,913 76,779 313,545
Elsewhere in Bangor 11,918 249,504 261,422 292,511 26,621 128,375 708,929
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 21,542 292,747 314,289 3,287,320 184,599 6,517,547 10,303,755
Zone 3 Total 40,866 627,800 668,666 3,707,729 227,133 6,722,701 11,326,229
Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 34,705 308,416 343,121 398,637 3,793,695 5,341,884 9,877,337
Zone 4 Total 34,705 308,416 343,121 398,637 3,793,695 5,341,884 9,877,337
Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 21,355 218,864 240,219 510,999 695,966 138,467,518 | 139,914,702
Chester City Centre 9,427 64,522 73,949 100,550 144,977 8,333,733 8,653,209
Cheshire Oaks 3,276 32,902 36,178 39,343 58,240 3,297,466 3,431,227
Elsewhere in Chester 2,296 14,153 16,449 17,308 33,921 3,762,668 3,830,346
Liverpool City Centre 9,677 89,047 98,724 124,721 103,682 24,188,590 24,515,717
Elsewhere in Liverpool 3,627 30,785 34,412 40,612 42,470 18,800,528 18,918,022
Elsewhere in UK 120,703 794,478 915,181 1,122,074 1,198,374 3,235,629
Out of Area Total 170,361 1,244,751 1,415,112 1,955,607 2,277,630 196,850,503 | 202,498,852
Online Expenditure 109,677 472,473 582,150 733,359 1,136,909 2,452,418
Total Expenditure 718,903 4,601,346 5,320,249 7,102,692 7,543,194 212,241,149 | 232,207,284




GTS abed

TABLE B2.4 EXPERIAN INSIGHTS BASE DATA FOR 2024 - ENTERTAINMENT LEISURE SPEND

Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey
Zone 1 Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones Zone 3 - Zone 4 - Total
Merchant location Retail Location Holyhead of Anglesey 1&2) Gwynedd Conwy Rest of the UK  Expenditure

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 4,752 6,518 11,270 1,172 13,049
Holyhead Retail Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Penrhos Retail Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 29,213 2,765 31,978 108 286 1,511 33,883
Trearddur Bay 103 660 763 5 0 829 1,597
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 105 314 419 21 16 1,032 1,488
Zone 1 Total 34,173 10,257 44,430 644 399 4,544 50,017
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 561 96,114 96,675 3,036 307 2,990 103,008
Elsewhere in Llangefni 8 280 288 316 96 2,796 3,496
Amlwch Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Beaumaris Local Centre 350 3,685 4,035 1,176 1,608 48,195 55,014
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 72 556 628 106 214 3,654 4,602
Benllech Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Benllech 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0 91 91 83 19 6 199
Valley Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Valley 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Cemaes Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Gaerwen Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0 33 33 0 0 29 62
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 3,098 39,378 42,476 13,632 7,267 117,605 180,980
Zone 2 Total 4,089 140,137 144,226 18,349 9,511 175,275 347,361
Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 141 622 763 852 7 582 2,204
Elsewhere in Bangor 14 499 513 1,802 110 1,540 3,965
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 3,664 30,642 34,306 185,790 23,088 929,977 1,173,161
Zone 3 Total 3,819 31,763 35,582 188,444 23,205 932,099 1,179,330
Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 3,383 28,006 31,389 33,649 254,272 538,129 857,439
Zone 4 Total 3,383 28,006 31,389 33,649 254,272 538,129 857,439
Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 2,358 15,146 17,504 38,868 39,233 10,331,467 10,427,072
Chester City Centre 75 487 562 1,031 1,116 117,287 119,996
Cheshire Oaks 595 4,946 5,541 6,077 8,378 413,765 433,761
Elsewhere in Chester 513 3,816 4,329 5,272 11,274 838,888 859,763
Liverpool City Centre 260 2,702 2,962 4,696 4,005 921,317 932,980
Elsewhere in Liverpool 316 1,141 1,457 3,028 2,154 1,388,289 1,394,928
Elsewhere in UK 12,077 77,980 90,057 100,164 116,243 306,464
Out of Area Total 16,194 106,218 122,412 159,136 182,403 14,011,013 14,474,964
Online Expenditure 103,390 559,303 662,693 712,443 876,206 2,251,342
Total Expenditure 165,048 875,684 1,040,732 1,112,665 1,345,996 15,661,060 19,160,453




APPENDIX B3: MARKET SHARES AND EXPENDITURE INFLOWS

Page 516

21



TABLE B3.1: CONVENIENCE RETAIL MARKET SHARES AND INFLOWS 2024 (INC SFT)

Merchant location

Retail Location

Zone 1 Holyhead

Customer Location

Zone 2 - Rest of
Anglesey

Isle of Anglesey
County (Zones 1 & 2)

% Inflow Total

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 2.7% 0.1% 0.4% 15.6%
Holyhead Retail Park 15.1% 3.7% 5.2% 24.2%
Penrhos Retail Park 40.5% 9.0% 13.1% 20.6%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 16.9% 1.1% 3.1% 13.0%
Trearddur Bay 0.4% 0.0% 0.1% 79.0%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 55.7%

Zone 1 Total 75.7% 13.9% 21.9% 21.2%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 8.3%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 1.5% 15.1% 13.4% 12.5%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 7.1%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 3.9% 3.4% 11.1%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 51.5%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.1% 0.8% 0.7% 36.9%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.5% 0.4% 18.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 2.6% 2.2% 41.6%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 29.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.1% 2.3% 2.0% 16.8%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.2% 31.6%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0.6% 4.9% 4.3% 39.1%
Valley Local Centre 1.1% 0.7% 0.8% 29.5%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% #DIV/0!
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 38.6%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 63.6%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.2% 11.7%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.0% 0.2% 0.1% 70.9%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 55.0%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 2.9% 11.4% 10.3% 17.8%

Zone 2 Total 6.5% 44.3% 39.4% 22.1%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 0.1% 0.2% 0.2%
Elsewhere in Bangor 3.0% 18.4% 16.4%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 0.7% 1.9% 1.8%

Zone 3 Total 3.8% 20.5% 18.4%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 1.0% 1.6% 1.5%

Zone 4 Total 1.0% 1.6% 1.5%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 0.6% 0.9% 0.9%
Chester City Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Cheshire Oaks 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Liverpool City Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in UK 3.3% 4.1% 4.0%

Out of Area Total 4.1% 5.4% 5.2%

Online Expenditure 8.8% 14.4% 13.6%

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Notes: Derived from Table B2.1

Page 517




TABLE B3.2: CONVENIENCE RETAIL TRADE DRAW BY CENTRE

Isle of Anglesey Rest of UK
Msichantzone Estalllocation Zone 2 - Rest of Isle of Anglesey Zone 3 - Grand Total
Zone 1 Holyhead Anglesey County (Zones 1 & 2) Gwynedd Zone 4 - Conwy Rest of the UK

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 100.0%
Holyhead Retail Park 28.6% 47.2% 75.8% 2.2% 0.9% 21.2% 100.0%
Penrhos Retail Park 31.6% 47.8% 79.4% 1.3% 0.4% 18.8% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 60.5% 26.5% 87.0% 1.0% 0.8% 11.2% 100.0%
Trearddur Bay 15.3% 5.7% 21.0% 0.4% 0.5% 78.1% 100.0%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 21.7% 22.6% 44.3% 3.5% 0.5% 51.7% 100.0%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey  [Llangefni Town Centre 1.1% 90.6% 91.7% 3.4% 0.5% 4.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 1.3% 86.2% 87.5% 3.2% 0.7% 8.7% 100.0%
Amlwch Local Centre 4.0% 88.9% 92.9% 1.3% 0.1% 5.8% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.1% 88.8% 88.9% 0.5% 0.2% 10.4% 100.0%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.1% 48.4% 48.5% 1.4% 1.3% 48.7% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 1.0% 62.1% 63.1% 3.0% 1.8% 32.1% 100.0%
Benllech Local Centre 0.3% 81.7% 82.0% 1.3% 0.2% 16.5% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.1% 58.3% 58.4% 0.8% 0.5% 40.4% 100.0%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 4.8% 66.2% 71.0% 11.3% 1.3% 16.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.3% 82.9% 83.2% 5.3% 0.8% 10.7% 100.0%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.7% 67.7% 68.4% 9.6% 1.2% 20.9% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 1.0% 59.9% 60.9% 14.8% 3.7% 20.6% 100.0%
Valley Local Centre 13.0% 57.5% 70.5% 2.0% 0.5% 27.0% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Valley
Cemaes Local Centre 0.4% 61.0% 61.4% 0.5% 0.8% 37.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 36.4% 36.4% 1.6% 0.0% 62.0% 100.0%
Gaerwen Local Centre 1.0% 87.3% 88.3% 8.2% 0.4% 3.1% 100.0%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 1.0% 28.2% 29.1% 0.5% 0.3% 70.1% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.7% 44.3% 45.0% 0.4% 0.3% 54.3% 100.0%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 2.9% 79.3% 82.2% 2.2% 0.6% 15.0% 100.0%

Notes: Derived from Table B2.1

Page 518



TABLE B3.3: COMPARISON RETAIL MARKET SHARES AND INFLOWS 2024 (INC SFT)
Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey 9% Inflow Total
Zone 1 Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones

Merchant location Retail Location Holyhead of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 1.6% 0.1% 0.3% 19.0%
Holyhead Retail Park 9.0% 2.2% 3.0% 17.7%
Penrhos Retail Park 5.9% 1.2% 1.8% 20.3%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 6.2% 0.6% 1.3% 18.2%
Trearddur Bay 0.8% 0.1% 0.1% 45.3%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 0.5% 0.1% 0.1% 85.6%

Zone 1 Total 24.1% 4.3% 6.5% 25.7%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.4% 0.6% 0.5% 22.2%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 1.7% 7.8% 7.1% 12.6%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 8.6%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 8.5%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 74.8%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.1% 0.3% 0.3% 70.1%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 32.4%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 23.7%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.6% 0.8% 0.8% 54.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.0% 0.4% 0.4% 24.3%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.1% 0.4% 0.4% 47.6%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0.3% 0.5% 0.4% 43.7%
Valley Local Centre 0.6% 0.3% 0.4% 6.4%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 18.0%
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 45.5%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 9.4%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.3% 2.2% 2.0% 17.6%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 83.2%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 73.6%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 4.5% 5.1% 5.0% 26.7%

Zone 2 Total 8.8% 20.3% 19.0% 28.5%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 1.0% 2.0% 1.9%
Elsewhere in Bangor 6.1% 11.4% 10.8%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 0.8% 2.9% 2.6%

Zone 3 Total 8.0% 16.3% 15.3%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 4.1% 5.5% 5.3%

Zone 4 Total 4.1% 5.5% 5.3%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 0.7% 1.6% 1.5%
Chester City Centre 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Cheshire Oaks 0.6% 1.0% 1.0%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.3% 0.1% 0.2%
Liverpool City Centre 0.6% 0.8% 0.8%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.1% 0.3% 0.3%
Elsewhere in UK 6.4% 6.4% 6.4%

Out of Area Total 9.3% 10.8% 10.6%

Online Expenditure 45.7% 42.9% 43.2%

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Page 519



0zs abed

TABLE B3.4: COMPARISON RETAIL TRADE DRAW BY CENTRE

Isle of Anglesey Rest of UK
Merchant Zone Retail Location
Zone 2 - Rest of Isle of Anglesey Zone 3 - Grand Total
Zone 1 Holyhead Anglesey County (Zones 1 & 2) Gwynedd Zone 4 - Conwy Rest of the UK

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 52.9% 28.2% 81.0% 1.0% 0.2% 17.9% 100.0%
Holyhead Retail Park 28.3% 54.0% 82.3% 3.6% 0.7% 13.4% 100.0%
Penrhos Retail Park 30.2% 49.5% 79.7% 3.2% 0.9% 16.2% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 46.0% 35.8% 81.8% 2.6% 1.5% 14.1% 100.0%
Trearddur Bay 36.0% 18.7% 54.7% 1.2% 1.1% 43.1% 100.0%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 6.5% 7.9% 14.4% 1.5% 1.4% 82.6% 100.0%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 5.8% 72.0% 77.8% 6.8% 0.8% 14.6% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 2.4% 85.0% 87.4% 4.6% 0.9% 7.0% 100.0%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.7% 90.7% 91.4% 1.2% 0.3% 7.1% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 91.5% 91.5% 0.6% 0.0% 7.8% 100.0%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.7% 24.4% 25.2% 5.0% 2.0% 67.8% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.8% 29.1% 29.9% 4.6% 2.5% 62.9% 100.0%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 67.6% 67.6% 0.4% 0.1% 31.8% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 76.3% 76.3% 3.0% 0.4% 20.2% 100.0%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 4.1% 41.9% 46.0% 11.6% 2.9% 39.5% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.5% 75.2% 75.7% 23.1% 0.1% 1.1% 100.0%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 1.2% 51.3% 52.4% 25.0% 2.1% 20.5% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 3.7% 52.6% 56.3% 30.1% 2.2% 11.4% 100.0%
Valley Local Centre 17.5% 76.1% 93.6% 2.9% 1.1% 2.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Valley
Cemaes Local Centre 0.6% 54.0% 54.5% 0.7% 0.4% 44.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.4% 90.2% 90.6% 1.3% 1.7% 6.4% 100.0%
Gaerwen Local Centre 1.3% 81.1% 82.4% 6.2% 5.1% 6.3% 100.0%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 2.4% 14.3% 16.8% 1.2% 0.9% 81.1% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 2.1% 24.3% 26.4% 1.9% 0.4% 71.3% 100.0%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 7.4% 65.9% 73.3% 7.2% 2.0% 17.6% 100.0%




TABLE B3.5: LEISURE FOOD & DRINK MARKET SHARES AND INFLOWS 2024 (INC SFT)
Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey 9% Inflow Total
Zone 1 Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones

Merchant location Retail Location Holyhead of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 7.0% 0.6% 1.4% 26.2%
Holyhead Retail Park 4.8% 1.2% 1.7% 27.9%
Penrhos Retail Park 0.4% 0.0% 0.1% 44.0%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 17.4% 2.4% 4.4% 26.2%
Trearddur Bay 11.3% 2.1% 3.4% 73.4%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 1.0% 0.3% 0.4% 85.6%

Zone 1 Total 41.8% 6.6% 11.4% 55.7%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.1% 1.0% 0.9% 16.7%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 0.3% 1.4% 1.3% 19.7%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.1% 0.9% 0.8% 14.9%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.2% 1.5% 1.4% 25.7%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.1% 0.9% 0.8% 71.5%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.2% 1.9% 1.6% 73.6%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 63.1%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.1% 1.6% 1.4% 71.7%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 37.1%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.1% 0.5% 0.5% 45.3%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.4% 3.1% 2.8% 46.9%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 1.0% 5.7% 5.0% 62.9%
Valley Local Centre 3.1% 1.6% 1.8% 51.5%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 33.8%
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.4% 0.3% 49.9%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.2% 0.2% 69.5%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 31.3%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.3% 0.8% 0.7% 80.0%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.2% 1.1% 1.0% 78.1%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 2.5% 12.6% 11.3% 68.3%

Zone 2 Total 8.7% 35.7% 32.1% 63.6%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 1.0% 1.9% 1.7%
Elsewhere in Bangor 1.7% 5.4% 4.9%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 3.0% 6.4% 5.9%

Zone 3 Total 5.7% 13.6% 12.6%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 4.8% 6.7% 6.4%

Zone 4 Total 4.8% 6.7% 6.4%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 3.0% 4.8% 4.5%
Chester City Centre 1.3% 1.4% 1.4%
Cheshire Oaks 0.5% 0.7% 0.7%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.3% 0.3% 0.3%
Liverpool City Centre 1.3% 1.9% 1.9%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.5% 0.7% 0.6%
Elsewhere in UK 16.8% 17.3% 17.2%

Out of Area Total 23.7% 27.1% 26.6%

Online Expenditure 15.3% 10.3% 10.9%

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Page 521



2es abed

TABLE B3.6: LEISURE FOOD AND DRINK TRADE DRAW BY CENTRE

Isle of Anglesey Rest of UK
Merchant Zone Retail Location
Zone 2 - Rest of Isle of Anglesey Zone 3 - Grand Total
Zone 1 Holyhead Anglesey County (Zones 1 & 2) Gwynedd Zone 4 - Conwy Rest of the UK

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 48.2% 25.5% 73.8% 2.0% 1.3% 22.9% 100.0%
Holyhead Retail Park 28.1% 44.0% 72.1% 3.7% 1.1% 23.1% 100.0%
Penrhos Retail Park 33.5% 22.5% 56.0% 6.1% 0.9% 37.0% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 39.1% 34.7% 73.8% 2.3% 1.3% 22.5% 100.0%
Trearddur Bay 12.0% 14.6% 26.6% 1.9% 1.1% 70.3% 100.0%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 5.3% 9.1% 14.4% 1.4% 1.3% 82.9% 100.0%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 1.8% 81.5% 83.3% 3.5% 0.9% 12.3% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 2.3% 78.0% 80.3% 8.0% 2.9% 8.8% 100.0%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.8% 84.4% 85.1% 1.0% 0.4% 13.4% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 1.3% 73.0% 74.3% 1.8% 0.9% 23.0% 100.0%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.3% 28.2% 28.5% 1.6% 1.6% 68.3% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.5% 25.9% 26.4% 3.6% 1.5% 68.5% 100.0%
Benllech Local Centre 1.1% 35.8% 36.9% 0.2% 1.8% 61.1% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.3% 28.1% 28.3% 1.0% 1.2% 69.5% 100.0%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.7% 62.3% 62.9% 6.3% 2.4% 28.3% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.9% 53.8% 54.7% 17.8% 3.4% 24.1% 100.0%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 1.0% 52.1% 53.1% 15.1% 2.6% 29.2% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 1.0% 36.1% 37.1% 13.9% 3.2% 45.8% 100.0%
Valley Local Centre 11.3% 37.2% 48.5% 4.3% 1.7% 45.5% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Valley
Cemaes Local Centre 0.3% 49.8% 50.1% 0.7% 0.9% 48.3% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.5% 30.0% 30.5% 1.0% 0.9% 67.6% 100.0%
Gaerwen Local Centre 5.3% 63.4% 68.7% 5.1% 2.0% 24.2% 100.0%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 1.1% 18.9% 20.0% 2.2% 1.1% 76.6% 100.0%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.7% 21.2% 21.9% 1.4% 0.7% 76.0% 100.0%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 0.9% 30.8% 31.7% 4.3% 1.9% 62.1% 100.0%




TABLE B3.7: ENTERTAINMENT LEISURE MARKET SHARES AND INFLOWS 2024 (INC SFT)
Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey 9% Inflow Total
Zone 1 Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones

Merchant location Retail Location Holyhead of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 2.9% 0.7% 1.1% 13.6%
Holyhead Retail Park 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Penrhos Retail Park 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 17.7% 0.3% 3.1% 5.6%
Trearddur Bay 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 52.2%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 71.8%

Zone 1 Total 20.7% 1.2% 4.3% 11.2%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.3% 11.0% 9.3% 6.1%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 91.8%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.2% 0.4% 0.4% 92.7%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 86.4%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 54.3%
Valley Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 46.8%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 1.9% 4.5% 4.1% 76.5%

Zone 2 Total 2.5% 16.0% 13.9% 58.5%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in Bangor 0.0% 0.1% 0.0%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 2.2% 3.5% 3.3%

Zone 3 Total 2.3% 3.6% 3.4%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 2.0% 3.2% 3.0%

Zone 4 Total 2.0% 3.2% 3.0%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 1.4% 1.7% 1.7%
Chester City Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Cheshire Oaks 0.4% 0.6% 0.5%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.3% 0.4% 0.4%
Liverpool City Centre 0.2% 0.3% 0.3%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.2% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in UK 7.3% 8.9% 8.7%

Out of Area Total 9.8% 12.1% 11.8%

Online Expenditure 62.6% 63.9% 63.7%

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Page 523



APPENDIX B4: POPULATION AND RETAIL EXPENDITURE

Page 524

23



Ges abed

TABLE B4.1: BASE YEAR POPULATION & PROJECTIONS (2023 - 2039)

2023

2024

2034

2039

Growth 2024 to 2034:

Growth 2024 to 2039:

% No.
1.4% 197
-1.0% -537
-0.5% -340

% No.
Zone 1 Holyhead 14,161 14,311 14,294 14,366 14,508 0.4% 55
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey 55,130 55,228 55,068 54,840 54,691 -0.7% -388
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): 69,291 69,539 69,362 69,206 69,199 -0.5% -333
Notes Population Projections from Experian Location Analyst (based on ONS)

TABLE B4.2: CONVENIENCE GOODS EXPENDITURE PER CAPITA FORECASTS (2023 to 2039)

Including SFT

2029
Zone 1 Holyhead £3,146 £3,089 £3,019 £2,989 £2,968
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £3,312 £3,252 £3,178 £3,147 £3,125
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £3,278 £3,219 £3,146 £3,114 £3,093
Notes: Average spend per capita estimates (2023 prices) are derived from Experian 'Location Analyst' Reports. The year-on-year expenditure growth forecasts have been

informed by Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025).
Forecast growth in available spend is informed by the year-on-year national growth forecasts as published in Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025).

TABLE B4.3: CONVENIENCE GOODS EXPENDITURE PER CAPITA FORECASTS (2024 to 2039) ADJUSTED FOR SFT AND SALES IN NON-FOOD OUTLETS
Excluding SFT

pLop 23 2029 2034 2039
Zone 1 Holyhead £2,868 £2,787 £2,743 £2,708
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £3,020 £2,934 £2,887 £2,850
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £2,989 £2,904 £2,858 £2,821
Notes: For 2024 an allowance has been made for the market share of retail expenditure per capita on non-store sales (SFT - including mail order and Internet shopping) using

the data from Experian Insights (Tables B3.1)
For 2025 - 2039 the growth in SFT is based on estimates provided in Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025)

Available convenience spend is decreased by LSH estimate of sales in non-food and variety stores

TABLE B4.4: TOTAL AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE GOODS EXPENDITURE (£million) (2024 to 2039)

Excluding Special Forms of Trading (SFT) (Em) Growth 2024 to 2034:

Growth 2024 to 2039:

Notes:

Derived from Tables B4.1 & B4.3

2024 2029 2034 2039 % No.
Zone 1 Holyhead £41.05 £39.83 £39.40 £39.28 -4.0% -£1.65
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £166.78 £161.56 £158.35 £155.89 -5.1% -£8.43
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £207.83 £201.39 £197.75 £195.17 -4.8% -£10.08

% No.
-4.3% -£1.77
-6.5% -£10.89
-6.1% -£12.66




9zs abed

TABLE B4.5: COMPARISON GOODS EXPENDITURE PER CAPITA FORECASTS (2023 to 2039)

Including SFT
pLop 23 2029 2034 2039
Zone 1 Holyhead £3,814 £3,776 £4,107 £4,674 £5,304
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £4,177 £4,135 £4,498 £5,119 £5,808
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £4,102 £4,061 £4,417 £5,027 £5,704

Notes:

Average spend per capita estimates (2023 prices) are derived from Experian 'Location Analyst' Reports. The year-on-year expenditure growth forecasts have been

informed by Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025).

Forecast growth in available spend is informed by the year-on-year national growth forecasts as published in Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025).

TABLE B4.6: COMPARISON GOODS EXPENDITURE PER CAPITA FORECASTS (2024 to 2039) ADJUSTED FOR SFT AND SALES IN FOOD OUTLETS

Excluding SFT

2024 2029 2034 2039
Zone 1 Holyhead £2,328 £2,435 £2,672 £2,926
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £2,549 £2,666 £2,926 £3,204
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £2,504 £2,619 £2,874 £3,147

Notes:

For 2024 an allowance has been made for the market share of retail expenditure per capita on non-store sales (SFT - including mail order and Internet shopping) using

the data from Experian Insights (Tables B3.1)

For 2025 - 2039 the growth in SFT is based on estimates provided in Experian's Retail Planner Briefing Note 22 (March 2025)

Available comaprison spend is decreased by LSH estimate of sales in food and grocery stores

TABLE B4.7: TOTAL AVAILABLE COMPARISON GOODS EXPENDITURE (£million) (2024 to 2039)
Excluding Special Forms of Trading (SFT) (Em)

2024 2029 2034 2039
Zone 1 Holyhead £33.31 £34.80 £38.38 £42.45
Zone 2 Rest of Anglesey £140.80 £146.84 £160.47 £175.25
Total Study Area (Isle of Anglesey): £174.11 £181.64 £198.85 £217.70

Notes:

Derived from Tables B4.1 & B4.6

Growth 2024 to 2034:

Growth 2024 to 2039:

% No.
15.2% £5.07
14.0% £19.67
14.2% £24.74

% No.
27.4% £9.14
24.5% £34.45
25.0% £43.59




APPENDIX B5: CONVENIENCE CAPACITY TABLES

Page 527

24



TABLE B5.1: CONVENIENCE MARKET SHARES 2024 (EXC SFT)

Merchant location

Retail Location

Zone 1 Holyhead

Customer Location

Zone 2 - Rest of
Anglesey

Isle of Anglesey
County (Zones 1 & 2)

% Inflow Total

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 3.0% 0.1% 0.5% 15.6%
Holyhead Retail Park 16.6% 4.3% 6.0% 24.2%
Penrhos Retail Park 44.4% 10.6% 15.1% 20.6%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 18.5% 1.3% 3.6% 13.0%
Trearddur Bay 0.5% 0.0% 0.1% 79.0%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 0.1% 0.0% 0.0% 55.7%

Zone 1 Total 83.0% 16.3% 25.3% 21.2%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.1% 0.7% 0.6% 8.3%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 1.7% 17.7% 15.5% 12.5%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 7.1%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 4.5% 3.9% 11.1%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.0% 0.2% 0.2% 51.5%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.1% 1.0% 0.9% 36.9%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.5% 0.5% 18.0%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 3.0% 2.6% 41.6%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 29.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.1% 2.6% 2.3% 16.8%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 31.6%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0.6% 5.7% 5.0% 39.1%
Valley Local Centre 1.3% 0.9% 0.9% 29.5%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% #DIV/0!
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.4% 0.3% 38.6%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 63.6%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.0% 0.3% 0.3% 11.7%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.0% 0.2% 0.2% 70.9%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 55.0%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 3.1% 13.3% 11.9% 17.8%

Zone 2 Total 7.2% 51.7% 45.6% 22.1%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 0.1% 0.2% 0.2%
Elsewhere in Bangor 3.3% 21.5% 19.0%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 0.8% 2.3% 2.1%

Zone 3 Total 4.2% 23.9% 21.3%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 1.1% 1.8% 1.7%

Zone 4 Total 1.1% 1.8% 1.7%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 0.7% 1.0% 1.0%
Chester City Centre 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Cheshire Oaks 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%
Liverpool City Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.0% 0.1% 0.1%
Elsewhere in UK 3.6% 4.8% 4.6%

Out of Area Total 4.5% 6.3% 6.0%

Online Expenditure

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Notes

Calculated from Table B3.1

Page 528




TABLE B5.2: AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE SPEND 2024 (EXC SFT)

0} e 0}
of Angle 0
e Re one 2 nend
e d ocatlio Re (o) 0} 0 €ad a glese

Available Convenience Spend 2024 £41.05 £166.78 £207.83

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.22 £0.17 £1.38 15.6% £1.60
Holyhead Retail Park £6.82 £7.18 £14.00 24.2% £17.39
Penrhos Retail Park £18.23 £17.60 £35.82 20.6% £43.20
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £7.60 £2.12 £9.72 13.0% £10.99
Trearddur Bay £0.19 £0.05 £0.24 79.0% £0.42
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.02 £0.02 £0.04 55.7% £0.06

Zone 1 Total £34.08 £27.13 £61.21 £73.67

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.02 £1.20 £1.22 8.3% £1.32
Elsewhere in Llangefni £0.68 £29.45 £30.14 12.5% £33.92
Amlwch Local Centre £0.02 £0.30 £0.32 7.1% £0.34
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.02 £7.57 £7.59 11.1% £8.43
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.00 £0.32 £0.32 51.5% £0.49
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £1.64 £1.68 36.9% £2.30
Benllech Local Centre £0.01 £0.88 £0.89 18.0% £1.05
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.01 £4.99 £5.00 41.6% £7.08
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.02 £0.21 £0.23 29.0% £0.30
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £4.38 £4.41 16.8% £5.15
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.01 £0.55 £0.56 31.6% £0.73
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.25 £9.56 £9.81 39.1% £13.64
Valley Local Centre £0.51 £1.45 £1.97 29.5% £2.55
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.0% £0.00
Cemaes Local Centre £0.01 £0.60 £0.60 38.6% £0.84
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 63.6% £0.00
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.01 £0.51 £0.52 11.7% £0.58
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.02 £0.32 £0.34 70.9% £0.58
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.00 £0.02 £0.02 55.0% £0.04
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £1.29 £22.21 £23.50 17.8% £27.68

Zone 2 Total £2.94 £86.17 £89.11 £107.01

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.04 £0.36 £0.39
Elsewhere in Bangor £1.37 £35.80 £37.17
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.32 £3.78 £4.10

Zone 3 Total £1.73 £39.93 £41.66

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £0.45 £3.07 £3.52

Zone 4 Total £0.45 £3.07 £3.52

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.27 £1.74 £2.01
Chester City Centre £0.01 £0.08 £0.09
Cheshire Oaks £0.01 £0.12 £0.13
Elsewhere in Chester £0.06 £0.25 £0.31
Liverpool City Centre £0.02 £0.11 £0.12
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.02 £0.20 £0.22
Elsewhere in UK £1.47 £7.97 £9.44

Out of Area Total £1.85 £10.47 £12.32

Total Expenditure £41.05 £166.78 £207.83

Notes

Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 529




TABLE B5.3: AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE SPEND 2029 (EXC SFT)

Anglese

e a ocatio Re 0 0 0 €ad g

Available Convenience Spend 2029 £39.83 £161.56 £201.39

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.18 £0.16 £1.34 15.6% £1.55
Holyhead Retail Park £6.62 £6.96 £13.58 24.2% £16.86
Penrhos Retail Park £17.69 £17.05 £34.73 20.6% £41.89
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £7.38 £2.05 £9.43 13.0% £10.66
Trearddur Bay £0.19 £0.04 £0.23 79.0% £0.41
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.02 £0.02 £0.04 55.7% £0.06

Zone 1 Total £33.07 £26.28 £59.35 £71.43

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.02 £1.16 £1.18 8.3% £1.28
Elsewhere in Llangefni £0.66 £28.53 £29.20 12.5% £32.86
Amlwch Local Centre £0.02 £0.29 £0.31 7.1% £0.33
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.01 £7.33 £7.35 11.1% £8.16
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.00 £0.31 £0.31 51.5% £0.47
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £1.59 £1.63 36.9% £2.23
Benllech Local Centre £0.01 £0.86 £0.86 18.0% £1.02
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.01 £4.84 £4.85 41.6% £6.86
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.02 £0.20 £0.23 29.0% £0.29
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £4.25 £4.27 16.8% £4.99
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.01 £0.53 £0.54 31.6% £0.71
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.24 £9.26 £9.50 39.1% £13.21
Valley Local Centre £0.50 £1.41 £1.91 29.5% £2.47
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.0% £0.00
Cemaes Local Centre £0.01 £0.58 £0.58 38.6% £0.81
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 63.6% £0.00
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.01 £0.49 £0.50 11.7% £0.56
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.02 £0.31 £0.33 70.9% £0.56
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.00 £0.02 £0.02 55.0% £0.04
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £1.25 £21.52 £22.77 17.8% £26.82

Zone 2 Total £2.85 £83.47 £86.32 £103.66

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.04 £0.35 £0.38
Elsewhere in Bangor £1.33 £34.68 £36.01
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.31 £3.66 £3.97

Zone 3 Total £1.68 £38.68 £40.36

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £0.44 £2.97 £3.41

Zone 4 Total £0.44 £2.97 £3.41

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.26 £1.69 £1.95
Chester City Centre £0.01 £0.08 £0.09
Cheshire Oaks £0.01 £0.11 £0.12
Elsewhere in Chester £0.05 £0.24 £0.30
Liverpool City Centre £0.01 £0.10 £0.12
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.02 £0.19 £0.21
Elsewhere in UK £1.43 £7.72 £9.15

Out of Area Total £1.79 £10.14 £11.94

Total Expenditure £39.83 £161.56 £201.39

Notes

Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 530




TABLE B5.4: AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE SPEND 2034 (EXC SFT)

Anglese

e a ocatio Re 0 0 0 €ad g

Available Convenience Spend 2034 £39.40 £158.35 £197.75

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.17 £0.16 £1.33 15.6% £1.53
Holyhead Retail Park £6.55 £6.82 £13.37 24.2% £16.60
Penrhos Retail Park £17.49 £16.71 £34.20 20.6% £41.25
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £7.30 £2.01 £9.31 13.0% £10.53
Trearddur Bay £0.18 £0.04 £0.23 79.0% £0.41
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.02 £0.01 £0.04 55.7% £0.06

Zone 1 Total £32.71 £25.76 £58.47 £70.37

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.02 £1.14 £1.16 8.3% £1.25
Elsewhere in Llangefni £0.66 £27.97 £28.62 12.5% £32.21
Amlwch Local Centre £0.02 £0.28 £0.30 7.1% £0.32
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.01 £7.19 £7.20 11.1% £8.00
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.00 £0.31 £0.31 51.5% £0.46
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £1.56 £1.60 36.9% £2.19
Benllech Local Centre £0.01 £0.84 £0.84 18.0% £1.00
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.01 £4.74 £4.75 41.6% £6.73
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.02 £0.20 £0.22 29.0% £0.28
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £4.16 £4.18 16.8% £4.89
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.01 £0.52 £0.53 31.6% £0.70
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.24 £9.07 £9.31 39.1% £12.95
Valley Local Centre £0.49 £1.38 £1.87 29.5% £2.43
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.0% £0.00
Cemaes Local Centre £0.01 £0.57 £0.57 38.6% £0.79
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 63.6% £0.00
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.01 £0.48 £0.49 11.7% £0.55
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.02 £0.30 £0.32 70.9% £0.55
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.00 £0.02 £0.02 55.0% £0.04
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £1.23 £21.09 £22.33 17.8% £26.30

Zone 2 Total £2.82 £81.82 £84.64 £101.64

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.03 £0.34 £0.37
Elsewhere in Bangor £1.32 £33.99 £35.31
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.31 £3.59 £3.90

Zone 3 Total £1.66 £37.92 £39.58

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £0.43 £2.92 £3.35

Zone 4 Total £0.43 £2.92 £3.35

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.26 £1.66 £1.91
Chester City Centre £0.01 £0.08 £0.09
Cheshire Oaks £0.01 £0.11 £0.12
Elsewhere in Chester £0.05 £0.24 £0.29
Liverpool City Centre £0.01 £0.10 £0.12
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.02 £0.19 £0.21
Elsewhere in UK £1.41 £7.57 £8.98

Out of Area Total £1.77 £9.94 £11.72

Total Expenditure £39.40 £158.35 £197.75

Notes

Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 531




TABLE B5.5: AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE SPEND 2039 (EXC SFT)

0 ead Anglese

e a ocatio Re 0 o] &

Available Convenience Spend 2039 £39.28 £155.89 £195.17

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.16 £0.16 £1.32 15.6% £1.53
Holyhead Retail Park £6.53 £6.71 £13.24 24.2% £16.44
Penrhos Retail Park £17.44 £16.45 £33.89 20.6% £40.87
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £7.28 £1.98 £9.26 13.0% £10.46
Trearddur Bay £0.18 £0.04 £0.23 79.0% £0.40
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.02 £0.01 £0.04 55.7% £0.06

Zone 1 Total £32.61 £25.36 £57.97 £69.77

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.02 £1.12 £1.14 8.3% £1.24
Elsewhere in Llangefni £0.66 £27.53 £28.19 12.5% £31.72
Amlwch Local Centre £0.02 £0.28 £0.30 7.1% £0.32
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.01 £7.08 £7.09 11.1% £7.88
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.00 £0.30 £0.30 51.5% £0.46
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £1.54 £1.57 36.9% £2.15
Benllech Local Centre £0.01 £0.83 £0.83 18.0% £0.98
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.01 £4.67 £4.68 41.6% £6.62
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.02 £0.19 £0.22 29.0% £0.28
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £4.10 £4.12 16.8% £4.81
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.01 £0.51 £0.52 31.6% £0.69
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.24 £8.93 £9.17 39.1% £12.76
Valley Local Centre £0.49 £1.36 £1.85 29.5% £2.40
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.0% £0.00
Cemaes Local Centre £0.01 £0.56 £0.56 38.6% £0.78
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 63.6% £0.00
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.01 £0.47 £0.48 11.7% £0.54
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.02 £0.30 £0.32 70.9% £0.54
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.00 £0.02 £0.02 55.0% £0.03
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £1.23 £20.76 £21.99 17.8% £25.91

Zone 2 Total £2.81 £80.55 £83.36 £100.10

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.03 £0.33 £0.37
Elsewhere in Bangor £1.31 £33.46 £34.77
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.31 £3.53 £3.84

Zone 3 Total £1.66 £37.33 £38.98

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £0.43 £2.87 £3.30

Zone 4 Total £0.43 £2.87 £3.30

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.26 £1.63 £1.89
Chester City Centre £0.01 £0.07 £0.08
Cheshire Oaks £0.01 £0.11 £0.12
Elsewhere in Chester £0.05 £0.23 £0.29
Liverpool City Centre £0.01 £0.10 £0.12
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.02 £0.19 £0.21
Elsewhere in UK £1.41 £7.45 £8.86

Out of Area Total £1.77 £9.79 £11.56

Total Expenditure £39.28 £155.89 £195.17

Notes

Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 532




TABLE B5.6: SUMMARY OF AVAILABLE CONVENIENCE SPEND 2025 - 2043 (EXC SFT)

SUPERMARKETS (CONVENIENCE) SPEND

2024 2029 2034 2039
Merchant Zone Retail Location
Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.60 £1.55 £1.53 £1.53
Holyhead Retail Park £17.39 £16.86 £16.60 £16.44
Penrhos Retail Park £43.20 £41.89 £41.25 £40.87
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £10.99 £10.66 £10.53 £10.46
Trearddur Bay £0.42 £0.41 £0.41 £0.40
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.06 £0.06 £0.06 £0.06
Zone 1 Total £73.67 £71.43 £70.37 £69.77
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £1.32 £1.28 £1.25 £1.24
Elsewhere in Llangefni £33.92 £32.86 £32.21 £31.72
Amlwch Local Centre £0.34 £0.33 £0.32 £0.32
Elsewhere in Amlwch £8.43 £8.16 £8.00 £7.88
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.49 £0.47 £0.46 £0.46
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £2.30 £2.23 £2.19 £2.15
Benllech Local Centre £1.05 £1.02 £1.00 £0.98
Elsewhere in Benllech £7.08 £6.86 £6.73 £6.62
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.30 £0.29 £0.28 £0.28
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £5.15 £4.99 £4.89 £4.81
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.73 £0.71 £0.70 £0.69
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £13.64 £13.21 £12.95 £12.76
Valley Local Centre £2.55 £2.47 £2.43 £2.40
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Cemaes Local Centre £0.84 £0.81 £0.79 £0.78
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.58 £0.56 £0.55 £0.54
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.58 £0.56 £0.55 £0.54
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.04 £0.04 £0.04 £0.03
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £27.68 £26.82 £26.30 £25.91
Zone 2 Total £107.01 £103.66 £101.64 £100.10
Total Expenditure £180.68 £175.10 £172.01 £169.87

Page 533




v€g abed

TABLE B5.7: ISLE OF ANGLESEY - CONVENIENCE GOODS CAPACITY

pLop2:3 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (E£m): £180.7 £175.1 £172.0 £169.9
STEP 2: TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £180.7 £181.4 £182.3 £183.2
STEP 3: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP 4: TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP 5: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£6.3 -£10.3 -£13.4
STEP 6: CAPACITY FOR CONVENIENCE FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ per sq m): £12,512 £12,537 £12,600 £12,663
(ii) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -503 -818 -1,055
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 70% 70% 70%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -719 -1,168 -1,507
Notes:
STEP 1: The (survey-derived) 'current' (or 'potential') turnovers assume constant market shares over the forecast period (derived from Table B5.6).
STEP 2: It has been assumed for the purpose of this assessment that Dorset's convenience retail market is in 'equilibrium' at the base year (i.e. 'benchmark' turnovers are equivalent to the survey-derived 'current'
turnover levels) with future turnover levels uplifted to reflect expected productivity improvements
STEP 3: The forecast residual expenditure capacity (pre commitments) has been derived from Steps 1 and 2. No account is taken of commitments at this stage.
STEP 4: It is assumed for the purpose of this assessment that all commitments will be opened and will have reached 'mature' trading conditions by 2030.
STEP 5: The 'net' residual expenditure capacity makes an allowance for the forecast turnover of all commitments (Step 4).
STEPS 6: The 'net’ residual expenditure is converted into a net/gross floorspace capacity estimated based on the average sales performance of superstore operators (i.e. Tesco, Asda, Sainsbury's, and Morrisons),

supermarket (e.g. Co-op, Waitrose, Marks & Spencer, etc) and limited assortment discount (LAD) operators (e.g. Aldi and Lidl).




APPENDIX B6: COMPARISON CAPACITY TABLES

Page 535

25



TABLE B6.1: COMPARISON MARKET SHARES 2024 (EXC SFT)
Customer Location

Isle of

Anglesey 9% Inflow Total
Zone 1 Zone 2 - Rest County (Zones

Merchant location Retail Location Holyhead of Anglesey 1&2)

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre 3.0% 0.2% 0.5% 19.0%
Holyhead Retail Park 16.7% 3.8% 5.2% 17.7%
Penrhos Retail Park 10.9% 2.2% 3.1% 20.3%
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town 11.5% 1.1% 2.2% 18.2%
Trearddur Bay 1.5% 0.1% 0.3% 45.3%
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead 0.9% 0.1% 0.2% 85.6%

Zone 1 Total 44.5% 7.5% 11.5% 25.7%

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre 0.7% 1.0% 1.0% 22.2%
Elsewhere in Llangefni 3.2% 13.6% 12.5% 12.6%
Amlwch Local Centre 0.0% 0.6% 0.5% 8.6%
Elsewhere in Amlwch 0.0% 1.0% 0.9% 8.5%
Beaumaris Local Centre 0.1% 0.5% 0.5% 74.8%
Elsewhere in Beaumaris 0.1% 0.6% 0.5% 70.1%
Benllech Local Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 32.4%
Elsewhere in Benllech 0.0% 0.5% 0.5% 23.7%
Llanfairpwll Local Centre 1.2% 1.4% 1.4% 54.0%
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll 0.0% 0.7% 0.6% 24.3%
Menai Bridge Local Centre 0.1% 0.7% 0.6% 47.6%
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge 0.5% 0.8% 0.8% 43.7%
Valley Local Centre 1.1% 0.6% 0.7% 6.4%
Elsewhere in Valley 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 18.0%
Cemaes Local Centre 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 45.5%
Elsewhere in Cemaes 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 9.4%
Gaerwen Local Centre 0.5% 3.9% 3.5% 17.6%
Rhosneigr Local Centre 0.2% 0.2% 0.2% 83.2%
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 73.6%
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey 8.3% 8.9% 8.9% 26.7%

Zone 2 Total 16.2% 35.6% 33.5% 28.5%

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre 1.9% 3.5% 3.3%
Elsewhere in Bangor 11.3% 20.0% 19.1%
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd 1.5% 5.0% 4.6%

Zone 3 Total 14.7% 28.5% 27.0%

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy 7.5% 9.6% 9.4%

Zone 4 Total 7.5% 9.6% 9.4%

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales 1.3% 2.7% 2.6%
Chester City Centre 0.9% 0.9% 0.9%
Cheshire Oaks 1.1% 1.8% 1.7%
Elsewhere in Chester 0.5% 0.3% 0.3%
Liverpool City Centre 1.1% 1.4% 1.4%
Elsewhere in Liverpool 0.3% 0.5% 0.5%
Elsewhere in UK 11.8% 11.3% 11.3%

Out of Area Total 17.1% 18.9% 18.7%

Online Expenditure

Total Expenditure 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Notes Calculated from Table B3.2

Page 536



TABLE B6.2: AVAILABLE COMPARISON SPEND 2024 (EXC SFT)

e a ocatio Reta ocatio O €ad g &

Available Comparison Spend 2024 £33.31 £140.80 £174.11

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.00 £0.27 £1.27 19.0% £1.51
Holyhead Retail Park £5.55 £5.41 £10.95 17.7% £12.90
Penrhos Retail Park £3.64 £3.06 £6.70 20.3% £8.07
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £3.82 £1.52 £5.35 18.2% £6.32
Trearddur Bay £0.51 £0.14 £0.65 45.3% £0.94
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.29 £0.18 £0.47 85.6% £0.88

Zone 1 Total £14.82 £10.58 £25.40 £30.61

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.22 £1.41 £1.63 22.2% £1.99
Elsewhere in Llangefni £1.06 £19.21 £20.28 12.6% £22.83
Amlwch Local Centre £0.01 £0.85 £0.86 8.6% £0.94
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.00 £1.39 £1.39 8.5% £1.51
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.04 £0.75 £0.79 74.8% £1.39
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £0.79 £0.83 70.1% £1.42
Benllech Local Centre £0.00 £0.17 £0.17 32.4% £0.22
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.00 £0.76 £0.76 23.7% £0.94
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.39 £2.01 £2.40 54.0% £3.69
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.01 £0.99 £1.01 24.3% £1.25
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.04 £0.98 £1.03 47.6% £1.52
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.15 £1.12 £1.27 43.7% £1.82
Valley Local Centre £0.38 £0.85 £1.23 6.4% £1.31
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.01 £0.01 18.0% £0.01
Cemaes Local Centre £0.00 £0.10 £0.10 45.5% £0.14
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.16 £0.16 9.4% £0.18
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.18 £5.51 £5.69 17.6% £6.69
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.07 £0.21 £0.29 83.2% £0.52
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.03 £0.19 £0.23 73.6% £0.39
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £2.75 £12.59 £15.34 26.7% £19.44

Zone 2 Total £5.40 £50.06 £55.46 £68.21

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.62 £4.88 £5.49
Elsewhere in Bangor £3.77 £28.18 £31.95
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.51 £7.04 £7.55

Zone 3 Total £4.90 £40.10 £45.00

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £2.51 £13.48 £15.99

Zone 4 Total £2.51 £13.48 £15.99

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.45 £3.83 £4.28
Chester City Centre £0.31 £1.26 £1.57
Cheshire Oaks £0.37 £2.50 £2.87
Elsewhere in Chester £0.16 £0.37 £0.52
Liverpool City Centre £0.36 £2.02 £2.38
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.09 £0.75 £0.84
Elsewhere in UK £3.94 £15.87 £19.81

Out of Area Total £5.68 £26.58 £32.27

Total Expenditure £33.31 £140.80 £174.11

Notes Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 537




TABLE B6.3: AVAILABLE COMPARISON SPEND 2029 (EXC SFT)

e a ocatio Retail Locatio O €ad 8 S

Available Comparison Spend 2029 £34.80 £146.84 £181.64

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.04 £0.28 £1.33 19.0% £1.58
Holyhead Retail Park £5.80 £5.64 £11.43 17.7% £13.46
Penrhos Retail Park £3.81 £3.19 £7.00 20.3% £8.42
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £3.99 £1.59 £5.58 18.2% £6.60
Trearddur Bay £0.54 £0.14 £0.68 45.3% £0.98
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.30 £0.19 £0.49 85.6% £0.91

Zone 1 Total £15.48 £11.03 £26.51 £31.96

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.23 £1.47 £1.70 22.2% £2.08
Elsewhere in Llangefni £1.11 £20.04 £21.15 12.6% £23.81
Amlwch Local Centre £0.01 £0.89 £0.90 8.6% £0.98
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.00 £1.45 £1.45 8.5% £1.57
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.04 £0.78 £0.83 74.8% £1.45
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.04 £0.82 £0.87 70.1% £1.48
Benllech Local Centre £0.00 £0.17 £0.17 32.4% £0.23
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.00 £0.79 £0.79 23.7% £0.98
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.40 £2.10 £2.50 54.0% £3.85
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.01 £1.04 £1.05 24.3% £1.30
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.05 £1.03 £1.07 47.6% £1.58
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.16 £1.16 £1.32 43.7% £1.90
Valley Local Centre £0.40 £0.89 £1.29 6.4% £1.37
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.01 £0.01 18.0% £0.01
Cemaes Local Centre £0.00 £0.10 £0.10 45.5% £0.15
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.17 £0.17 9.4% £0.18
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.18 £5.75 £5.93 17.6% £6.98
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.07 £0.22 £0.30 83.2% £0.55
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.03 £0.20 £0.24 73.6% £0.41
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £2.87 £13.13 £16.00 26.7% £20.28

Zone 2 Total £5.64 £52.20 £57.85 £71.15

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.65 £5.08 £5.73
Elsewhere in Bangor £3.94 £29.39 £33.33
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.53 £7.35 £7.88

Zone 3 Total £5.12 £41.82 £46.94

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £2.63 £14.06 £16.68

Zone 4 Total £2.63 £14.06 £16.68

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.47 £3.99 £4.46
Chester City Centre £0.33 £1.31 £1.63
Cheshire Oaks £0.39 £2.60 £2.99
Elsewhere in Chester £0.16 £0.38 £0.55
Liverpool City Centre £0.37 £2.11 £2.48
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.09 £0.78 £0.87
Elsewhere in UK £4.12 £16.55 £20.67

Out of Area Total £5.93 £27.72 £33.66

Total Expenditure £34.80 £146.84 £181.64

Notes Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 538




TABLE B6.4: AVAILABLE COMPARISON SPEND 2034 (EXC SFT)

e a ocatio Re ocatio olyneaad 8 <

Available Comparison Spend 2034 £38.38 £160.47 £198.85

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.15 £0.31 £1.46 19.0% £1.74
Holyhead Retail Park £6.39 £6.16 £12.55 17.7% £14.78
Penrhos Retail Park £4.20 £3.49 £7.69 20.3% £9.25
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £4.40 £1.74 £6.14 18.2% £7.26
Trearddur Bay £0.59 £0.16 £0.75 45.3% £1.08
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.34 £0.21 £0.54 85.6% £1.01

Zone 1 Total £17.07 £12.06 £29.13 £35.11

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.25 £1.61 £1.86 22.2% £2.27
Elsewhere in Llangefni £1.23 £21.90 £23.12 12.6% £26.03
Amlwch Local Centre £0.01 £0.97 £0.98 8.6% £1.07
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.00 £1.59 £1.59 8.5% £1.72
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.05 £0.86 £0.91 74.8% £1.58
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.05 £0.90 £0.95 70.1% £1.61
Benllech Local Centre £0.00 £0.19 £0.19 32.4% £0.25
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.00 £0.87 £0.87 23.7% £1.07
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.45 £2.29 £2.74 54.0% £4.21
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £1.13 £1.15 24.3% £1.43
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.05 £1.12 £1.17 47.6% £1.73
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.18 £1.27 £1.45 43.7% £2.08
Valley Local Centre £0.44 £0.97 £1.41 6.4% £1.50
Elsewhere in Valley £0.00 £0.01 £0.01 18.0% £0.01
Cemaes Local Centre £0.00 £0.11 £0.11 45.5% £0.16
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.18 £0.18 9.4% £0.20
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.20 £6.28 £6.49 17.6% £7.63
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.08 £0.24 £0.33 83.2% £0.60
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.04 £0.22 £0.26 73.6% £0.45
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £3.17 £14.34 £17.51 26.7% £22.20

Zone 2 Total £6.23 £57.05 £63.27 £77.82

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.71 £5.56 £6.27
Elsewhere in Bangor £4.34 £32.12 £36.46
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.59 £8.03 £8.61

Zone 3 Total £5.64 £45.70 £51.34

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £2.90 £15.36 £18.26

Zone 4 Total £2.90 £15.36 £18.26

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.52 £4.36 £4.88
Chester City Centre £0.36 £1.43 £1.79
Cheshire Oaks £0.43 £2.85 £3.27
Elsewhere in Chester £0.18 £0.42 £0.60
Liverpool City Centre £0.41 £2.31 £2.72
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.10 £0.85 £0.95
Elsewhere in UK £4.54 £18.08 £22.63

Out of Area Total £6.54 £30.30 £36.84

Total Expenditure £38.38 £160.47 £198.85

Notes Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 539




TABLE B6.5: AVAILABLE COMPARISON SPEND 2039 (EXC SFT)

e a ocatio Re ocatio olyneaad 8 <

Available Comparison Spend 2039 £42.45 £175.25 £217.70

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.27 £0.34 £1.61 19.0% £1.92
Holyhead Retail Park £7.07 £6.73 £13.80 17.7% £16.24
Penrhos Retail Park £4.64 £3.81 £8.45 20.3% £10.17
Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £4.87 £1.90 £6.77 18.2% £8.00
Trearddur Bay £0.65 £0.17 £0.82 45.3% £1.20
Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.37 £0.22 £0.60 85.6% £1.11

Zone 1 Total £18.88 £13.17 £32.05 £38.63

Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £0.28 £1.75 £2.03 22.2% £2.49
Elsewhere in Llangefni £1.36 £23.92 £25.27 12.6% £28.45
Amlwch Local Centre £0.02 £1.06 £1.07 8.6% £1.17
Elsewhere in Amlwch £0.00 £1.73 £1.73 8.5% £1.88
Beaumaris Local Centre £0.05 £0.93 £0.99 74.8% £1.73
Elsewhere in Beaumaris £0.05 £0.98 £1.04 70.1% £1.76
Benllech Local Centre £0.00 £0.21 £0.21 32.4% £0.28
Elsewhere in Benllech £0.00 £0.95 £0.95 23.7% £1.17
Llanfairpwll Local Centre £0.49 £2.50 £3.00 54.0% f4.61
Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £0.02 £1.24 £1.25 24.3% £1.56
Menai Bridge Local Centre £0.06 £1.22 £1.28 47.6% £1.89
Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £0.20 £1.39 £1.59 43.7% £2.28
Valley Local Centre £0.49 £1.06 £1.55 6.4% £1.65
Elsewhere in Valley £0.01 £0.01 £0.01 18.0% £0.02
Cemaes Local Centre £0.00 £0.12 £0.12 45.5% £0.18
Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.00 £0.20 £0.20 9.4% £0.22
Gaerwen Local Centre £0.22 £6.86 £7.09 17.6% £8.33
Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.09 £0.27 £0.36 83.2% £0.66
Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.04 £0.24 £0.28 73.6% £0.49
Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £3.51 £15.67 £19.17 26.7% £24.30

Zone 2 Total £6.89 £62.31 £69.19 £85.10

Zone 3 - Gwynedd Bangor Town Centre £0.79 £6.07 £6.86
Elsewhere in Bangor £4.80 £35.08 £39.88
Zone 3 - Elsewhere in Gwynedd £0.65 £8.77 £9.42

Zone 3 Total £6.24 £49.91 £56.15

Zone 4 - Conwy Zone 4 - Anywhere in Conwy £3.20 £16.78 £19.98

Zone 4 Total £3.20 £16.78 £19.98

Out of Area Elsewhere in Wales £0.57 £4.77 £5.34
Chester City Centre £0.40 £1.56 £1.96
Cheshire Oaks £0.47 £3.11 £3.58
Elsewhere in Chester £0.20 £0.46 £0.66
Liverpool City Centre £0.45 £2.52 £2.97
Elsewhere in Liverpool £0.11 £0.93 £1.04
Elsewhere in UK £5.03 £19.75 £24.78

Out of Area Total £7.24 £33.09 £40.33

Total Expenditure £42.45 £175.25 £217.70

Notes Calculated from Tables B5.1 & B4.4

Page 540




TABLE B6.6: SUMMARY OF AVAILABLE COMPARISON SPEND 2024 - 2039 (EXC SFT)
SUPERMARKETS (COMPARISON) SPEND

2024 2029 2034 2039
Merchant Zone Retail Location

Zone 1 - Holyhead Holyhead Town Centre £1.51 £1.58 £1.74 £1.92
Holyhead Retail Park £12.90 £13.46 £14.78 £16.24

Penrhos Retail Park £8.07 £8.42 £9.25 £10.17

Elsewhere in Holyhead Town £6.32 £6.60 £7.26 £8.00

Trearddur Bay £0.94 £0.98 £1.08 £1.20

Zone 1 - Elsewhere in Holyhead £0.88 £0.91 £1.01 £1.11

Zone 1 Total £30.61 £31.96 £35.11 £38.63
Zone 2 - Rest of Anglesey Llangefni Town Centre £1.99 £2.08 £2.27 £2.49
Elsewhere in Llangefni £22.83 £23.81 £26.03 £28.45

Amlwch Local Centre £0.94 £0.98 £1.07 £1.17

Elsewhere in Amlwch £1.51 £1.57 £1.72 £1.88

Beaumaris Local Centre £1.39 £1.45 £1.58 £1.73

Elsewhere in Beaumaris £1.42 £1.48 £1.61 £1.76

Benllech Local Centre £0.22 £0.23 £0.25 £0.28

Elsewhere in Benllech £0.94 £0.98 £1.07 £1.17

Llanfairpwll Local Centre £3.69 £3.85 £4.21 £4.61

Elsewhere in Llanfairpwll £1.25 £1.30 £1.43 £1.56

Menai Bridge Local Centre £1.52 £1.58 £1.73 £1.89

Elsewhere in Menai Bridge £1.82 £1.90 £2.08 £2.28

Valley Local Centre £1.31 £1.37 £1.50 £1.65

Elsewhere in Valley £0.01 £0.01 £0.01 £0.02

Cemaes Local Centre £0.14 £0.15 £0.16 £0.18

Elsewhere in Cemaes £0.18 £0.18 £0.20 £0.22

Gaerwen Local Centre £6.69 £6.98 £7.63 £8.33

Rhosneigr Local Centre £0.52 £0.55 £0.60 £0.66

Elsewhere in Rhosneigr £0.39 £0.41 £0.45 £0.49

Zone 2 - Elsewhere In Anglesey £19.44 £20.28 £22.20 £24.30

Zone 2 Total £68.21 £71.15 £77.82 £85.10
Total Expenditure £98.82 £103.11 £112.94 £123.74

Page 541




ZvS abed

TABLE B6.7: ISLE OF ANGLESEY - COMPARISON GOODS CAPACITY

2024 2029 2035 2039
STEP 1: TOTAL FORECAST 'CURRENT' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £103.1 £112.9 £123.7
STEP 2: TOTAL FORECAST 'BENCHMARK' TURNOVER OF ALL FLOORSPACE (£m): £98.8 £108.8 £123.1 £139.2
STEP 3: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE - EXCLUDING ANY COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5
STEP 4: TURNOVER OF ALL COMMITED FLOORSPACE (£m) Considered Separately
STEP 5: NET RESIDUAL EXPENDITURE AFTER COMMITMENTS (£m): - -£5.7 -£10.1 -£15.5
STEP 6: CAPACITY FOR COMPARISON FLOORSPACE:
(i) Estimated Average Sales Density of New Floorspace (£ per sq n £6,000 £6,604 £7,472 £8,454
(ii) Net Floorspace Capacity (sq m): - -858 -1,356 -1,834
(iii) Assumed Net / Gross Floorspace Ratio: 80% 80% 80%
(iv) Gross Floorspace Capacity (sq m): -1,073 -1,695 -2,292
Notes:
STEP 1: The (survey-derived) 'current' (or 'potential') turnovers assume constant market shares over the forecast period (derived from Table B6.6).
STEP 2: It has been assumed for the purpose of this assessment that Isle of Anglesey's comparison retail market is in 'equilibrium' at the base year (i.e. 'benchmark’
turnovers are equivalent to the survey-derived 'current' turnover levels) with future turnover levels uplifted to reflect expected productivity improvements
STEP 3: The forecast residual expenditure capacity (pre commitments) has been derived from Steps 1 and 2. No account is taken of commitments at this stage.
STEP 4: It is assumed for the purpose of this assessment that all commitments will be opened and will have reached 'mature' trading conditions by 2030.
STEP 5: The 'net' residual expenditure capacity makes an allowance for the forecast turnover of all commitments (Step 4).
STEPS 6: The 'net' residual expenditure is converted into a net/gross floorspace capacity estimated based on the average sales performance for comparison operators




Lambert
Smith

Hampton

Isle of Anglesey Retail Study

Appendix C - Health Checks

Prepared for:

Isle of Anglesey County Council

December 2025

Ish.co.uk

Page 543


http://www.lsh.co.uk/

This document has been prepared and checked in accordance with the Lambert Smith
Hampton Quality Assurance procedures and authorised for release. If not signed off by a
Director in the Planning, Regeneration + Infrastructure (PR+l) division at LSH then this
document should be treated as a draft, and as being Private and Confidential. It should not
be for wider distribution without the sign-off and permission of Lambert Smith Hampton.

This report meets the PDF/UA (Universal Accessibility) standard, which is equivalent to the
WCAG 'AA' digital standard.

Prepared by:

Callum Clements

Signed:

For and on behalf of Lambert Smith Hampton

Issued: December 2025

Page 544



Contents

1 ] (o Yo [T 4o o IR 4
2. Holyhead TOWN Centre........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 6
3. Llangefni TOWN Centre ........ooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 11
4. AMIWCh LOCal CeNIIe.....ccoieeeeeeiie e e e e e eeeeenes 16
5. Beaumaris LOCal Centre ........oooeiiiiiiiii e 20
6. Benllech LOCal CeNtre ......ccooiiiiiiie e 23
A =10 F= 1T Mo Tor= | B =T o) 25
8. Llanfairpwll LoCal Centre .........ooovieiiiiii e 28
9.  Menai Bridge Local Centre ..........coouvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 32
10. Rhosneigr LOCal CeNMre.........ouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 35
11. Valley LOCal CENIIE .....ooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 37
(P =TT Y o PSP 40
13. Penrhos Retail Park..........ooooeiiiiiiiiiece et e e eennens 41

Page 545



1. Introduction

1. This Appendix report provides information on the health of the ten Urban and
Local Retail Centres in Anglesey, along with a health check for Gaerwen. The
location of these centres is shown below:

Figure 1: Urban and Local Retail Centres in Anglesey

Cemaes Amlwch

(] @
Benllech
Holyhead e
@
Y Fali/ Valley
sioly Kiand . V:ys Mon /
ety Beaumaris
.. .
Llangefni
; Menai Bridge
RhGsAsi o—aud e
osneigr ~Gaerwen Llanfairpwll
2. The health checks consider:
e Diversity of Uses
e Vacancies
e Footfall
3. The Diversity of Uses is informed by survey data provided by Experian Goad and

surveys conducted by LSH in September 2025. It examines the current number of
outlets and quantum of floorspace for each commercial category, namely:

e Convenience Retail (food and non-alcoholic drinks, tobacco, alcohol,
newspapers and 90% of non-durable household goods);

e Comparison Retail (all other retail goods);

e Retail Services (including health and beauty services such as beauty salons,
tattoo parlours etc, post offices, dry cleaners & laundrettes, travel agents,
photo processing outlets & studios, and other personal services);

e Leisure Services (including food and drink outlets, games of chance venues
such as bingo halls, gambling arcades, and betting shops, sports and leisure
facilities, night clubs, cinemas, theatres, concert halls and hotel/guesthouse
accommodation);

e Financial & Business Services (including banks, building societies,
employment and career services, legal and property services); and

e Other uses.

Page 546



Vacancy levels are also informed by the Diversity of Uses studies. Analysis of
their location and size of unit can indicate whether the vacancies are an indicator
of over-supply or reflect natural churn in space. The length of time that a unit has
been vacant may also be relevant but is not shown from the health checks.

Pedestrian Flow data has been obtained from MSCI Property Intel (MSCI) who
harvest data from over 10 million mobile devices. All data is fully anonymised and
GDPR compliant. Data is collected daily.

The data presented here comprises:

e Heat maps showing footfall in February and August 2024. This indicates the
areas of greatest use and activity with green indicating lower levels and
orange/red higher levels of footfall; and

e Graphs showing monthly footfall for a specific point in the centre over the
period April 2019 to December 2024. This allows long-term trends and
seasonal variations to be seen.

Page 547



2,

Holyhead Town Centre

Town Centre Boundary

The figure below sets out Holyhead'’s defined town centre boundary.

pre

.

Figure 2: Holyhead Town Centre Boundary
Z ¢ - '. d £
g ‘ % ',I. P A

) 3
A : 2 £
S o ARG
u;: 2 goston Street
“op QVO5° +
Queen’ Park Wit SQUacg
Q\\f‘“ ot
ot 3
/€
&
S
P &
?
£
,/’o»,, f:- &
. 5 v (* =]
f, 5, & g8 F
< P U S
< $ :
g & 1 75
s by
S T 5
e \\5‘ ¥ Tabernad 2" v
) h's —\
b7 )¢ (N
2y % b
e )
af
& M 025 + «5 !

Diversity of Uses

Goad data from December 2024 has been used to assess Holyhead’s mix of uses.
The figure below shows the area covered by Goad and the uses found within the

centre.

Page 548



Figure 3: Holyhead Diversity of Uses Map

r X..

O

Goad Category Key

Comparison
Convenience
Retail Services

Leisure Services

Vacant

Other Uses

. Financial & Business Services

Source: Experian Goad, December 2024

The table below outlines Holyhead’s diversity of uses based on outlets and provides

a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 4: Holyhead Diversity of Uses - Outlets

No. of Outlets

% of Total Outlets

Holyhead UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 26 17.6% 26.4% -8.8%
Convenience Retail 5 3.4% 9.3% -5.9%
Retail Services 16 10.8% 15.9% -5.1%
Leisure Services 32 21.6% 25.8% -4.2%
Financial & Business Services 15 10.1% 8.3% +1.8%
Vacant 54 36.5% 14.1% +22.4%
Total 148 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, December 2024

Page 549




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The table below outlines Holyhead’s diversity of uses based on floorspace and
provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 5: Holyhead Diversity of Uses - Floorspace

Gross Floorspace % of Total Floorspace
(sqm) Holyhead UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 2,923 18.5% 29.4% -10.9%
Convenience Retail 947 6.0% 15.6% -9.6%
Retail Services 1,313 8.3% 7.3% +1.0%
Leisure Services 3,370 21.4% 26.7% -5.3%
Financial & Business Services 1,523 9.7% 6.3% +3.4%
Vacant 5,697 36.1% 14.2% +21.9%
Total 15,774 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, December 2024

The comparison retail offer in the town centre is relatively limited with few national
multiples but a correspondingly strong independent offer. Key occupiers include
national multiples such as Boots (chemist) and RSPCA (charity shops), whilst
independents include Clares (shoes and accessories) and Bargains Galore
(hardware and household goods).

The convenience retail offer is also limited, with the Co-op on Market Street
providing the main offer, supported by a Premier convenience store and three
independent traders.

The retail services offer is dominated by health & beauty operators (12 of 16),
including hairdressers, barbers and beauty salons. Other occupiers include the
Post Office and an optician.

The financial services offer appears to be closer to the national average but
Santander is the only operating high street bank (as of December 2024) and its
closure has since been announced (March 2025). No date for this has yet been
set for this and will not be until a replacement banking hub can be provided.
Other financial and business services include a building society branch
(Principality), estate agents, solicitors and accountants.

The table below outlines the mix of food and beverage operator types within
Holyhead. This shows a high proportion of fast food outlets and takeaways and an
above average proportion of public houses. However, provision of cafes, bars and
restaurants is low.

Figure 6: Holyhead Diversity of Uses, Food & Beverage Operators

% of Total Outlets % of Total Floorspace
No. of Outlets Gross Floorspace (sqm)
Holyhead UK Average Holyhead UK Average
Bars & Wine Bars 1 0.7% 2.3% 137 0.9% 2.4%
Cafes 3 2.0% 5.1% 304 1.9% 2.9%
Fast Food & Take-Away 15 10.1% 6.1% 1,265 8.0% 3.1%
Public Houses 5 3.4% 2.6% 672 4.3% 3.4%
Restaurants 4 2.7% 5.1% 261 1.7% 4.3%
Total 28 18.9% 21.2% 2,639 16.7% 16.1%

Source: Experian Goad, December 2024

Page 550



16.

17.

18.

Vacancies

There was a total of 54 vacant outlets in Holyhead in December 2024 (Goad)
which represents 36.5% of the overall outlets, significantly higher than the UK
average of 14.1%.The vacancy rate for floorspace is similarly high at 36.1%, which
also compares unfavourably to the UK average of 14.2%.

However, these figures included the former cinema unit at the north end of Stanley
Street which is outside of the defined town centre and has now re-opened. There
is also significant redevelopment happening at the former HSBC building, which is
being refurbished with plans for a restaurant and overnight accommodation.

Figure 7: Former HSBC Unit Refurbishment

Former HSBC Building ""“"’c'F &)

Refurbishment and Ex| t nsion Mén
Adnewyddu ac Ymestyn Hen Adeilad HSBC v haty
Q I ﬁ
CDNSTRUCTION ¢ ‘
. e i
Souny
-z con

Source: LSH Site Visit

Recent Changes in the Centre (December 2024 to September 2025)

Since December 2024 there have been a number of changes in the centre,
including the following which were noted on an LSH site visit in September 2025:

e Empire Cinema has re-opened following refurbishment;

e The former Chocolate Box/ Post Office unit is now a Family Shopper
convenience store which houses the Post Office service;

e The vacant 26 Stanley Street unit (former NatWest) unit has now opened as
Cybi Sports Bar;

e Feast Brothers (Italian restaurant offering takeaway) has opened on Market
Street;

e Rowlands Pharmacy has relocated from 62 Market Street to 15-17 Market
Street — 62 Market Street is now vacant; and

e Where Goad indicates a row of vacant units to the east side of Market Street,
close to the A5154, a series of these units have long been demolished.

Page 551



19.

20.

21.

22.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Holyhead in the form of a heat
map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024.
Footfall levels are strongest along Market Street, and at the junction of Summer
Hill, Williams Street and Thomas Street, and close to the Cambria Street car park.

Footfall levels during February 2024 and August 2024 remain consistent, with

monthly levels closely mirroring each other.

Figure 8: Holyhead Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

5 4 ] Q) 2 |27, r 4 vV 4 R S T —~ R
A VN ) AL (/N « DO\ X 07
‘ . v‘\ o \\\. A ‘\\ / o ”//(’i ,’( “ f Va (:,’f;/‘
T v .y D 4 A A VWA
. \ Y/ X {4
= | A g y N
=\ N A\ /4
) 2 L/ 4
) ¢ - =" J{ /
I | e/ \ / :
¥ V- /: A {
o . A 4
o™ &\ S‘::{\\ )’0#‘& *;«* 4 / ey
— 4 d 4 V., P, /
- /I / a p 44 ¥ W 02000
B Jf [ S W 20001-40,000
P / T SSS SR—- 40,001-80,000
/ . 80,001-150,000
/ 150,001- 300,00
j {1 E | 300,001-600,00
4 b ] J . 600,001-700,000
% £ 2| B 700,001:00,000
Py / B 500.001-1,000,000
Y 4 p - £ . >1,000,001

Source: Datscha

A central section along Market Street, near the Co-op foodstore, has been
sampled to assess footfall trends over the recent years.

The figure below shows how footfall levels have changed between January 2019
and December 2024 at Market Street. As can be seen, pedestrian activity has
generally increased since 2019, however it has not surpassed the peak of 180,000

recorded in December 2019. Footfall gradually rose throughout 2021, and by

2024, it has consistently ranged between 100,000 and 150,000, indicating a

stabilisation in monthly movements.

Figure 9: Holyhead Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 552

10




23.

24.

Llangefni Town Centre

Town Centre Boundary

The below figure sets out the defined centre boundary for Llangefni.

Figure 10: LIangefni Town Centre Boundary

F -
shcentr
8 centre
i i - Plus

Diversity of Uses

Goad data from October 2024 has been used to assess Llangefni’s mix of uses. The
figure below shows the area covered by Goad and the uses found within the centre.

Page 553 1



25.

26.

Figure 11: Llangefni Diversity of Uses Map

Rov\* k
ce
Qe o

h’?’d‘q

A
Ul |
Goad Category Key
- Comparison =
. Convenience F = \5 —

. Retail Services
Leisure Services

- Financial & Business Services

Vacant ©
' & Mill St
N3
|:| Other Uses 2

Q.

Source: Experian Goad, October 2024

The table below outlines Llangefni’s diversity of uses based on outlets and provides
a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 12: Llangefni Diversity of Uses, Outlets

% of Total Outlet
No. of Outlets o OF fotal DUTIets

UK Average Difference

Llangefni

Comparison Retail 20 18.9% 26.4% -7.5%
Convenience Retail 7 6.6% 9.3% -2.7%
Retail Services 26 24.5% 15.9% +8.6%
Leisure Services 21 19.8% 25.8% -6.0%
Financial & Business Services 16 15.1% 8.3% +6.8%
Vacant 16 15.1% 14.1% +1.0%
Total 106 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, October 2024

The table below outlines Llangefni’s diversity of uses based on floorspace and

provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Page 554

12



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Figure 13: Llangefni Diversity of Uses, Floorspace

Gross Floorspace % of Total Floorspace
(sqm) Llangefni UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 2,081 14.8% 29.4% -14.6%
Convenience Retail 3,832 27.2% 15.6% +11.6%
Retail Services 2,106 15.0% 7.3% +7.7%
Leisure Services 2,909 20.7% 26.7% -6.0%
Financial & Business Services 1,660 11.8% 6.3% +5.5%
Vacant 1,481 10.5% 14.2% -3.7%
Total 14,068 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, October 2024

The comparison retail offer in the town centre is relatively limited and is provided
primarily by independent retailers. National multiples operating the town are limited
to Boots (chemist), a pharmacy and charity shops. Key independents include DC
Williams & Son (furniture) and Anglesey Bikes.

The convenience retail offer is largely provided by Asda, although the store does
not sit within the defined town centre. Other convenience operators include Iceland
and SPAR and a small number of independents.

The retail service provision in the centre strong and is dominated by health &
beauty uses which occupy 20 of the 26 outlets. Other uses include two opticians, a
launderette and a Post Office.

The financial and business service offer was also above average in October 2024,
and included three high street banks (HSBC, Lloyds and NatWest), although
NatWest has since closed. The centre also has a building society (Principality) and
a number of estate agents and solicitors.

The table below outlines the mix of food and beverage operator types within
Llangefni. Overall provision is close to the UK average but the centre has an above
average proportion of fast food & takeaway outlets and below average restaurant
provision.

Figure 14: Llangefni Diversity of Uses, Food and Beverage Operators

% of Total Outlets % of Total Floorspace
No. of Outlets B Gross Floorspace (sqm) i
Llangefni UK Average Llangefni UK Average
Bars & Wine Bars 0 0.0% 2.3% 0 0.0% 2.4%
Cafes 3 2.8% 5.1% 370 2.6% 2.9%
Fast Food & Take-Away 11 10.4% 6.1% 1,087 7.7% 3.1%
Public Houses 3 2.8% 2.6% 734 5.2% 3.4%
Restaurants 1 0.9% 5.1% 137 1.0% 4.3%
Total 18 17.0% 21.2% 2,328 16.5% 16.1%

Source: Experian Goad, October 2024

Vacancies

There was a total of 16 vacant outlets in Llangefni town centre in October 2024
which represents15.1% of the overall and 10.5% of floorspace. This is similar to the
UK average, although the floorspace is slightly lower than the 14.2% average.

Page 555 13



33.

34.

35.

36.

Vacancies are distributed throughout the centre, but there appears to be a
concentration of smaller units at the western end of the centre on High Street.

Recent Changes in the Centre (October 2024 to September 2025)

Since October 2024 there have been a number of changes in the centre, including
the following which were noted on an LSH site visit in September 2025:

e NatWest has closed;

e William Hill (7-9 High Street) has closed; and

e The former Market Vaults pub, logged as vacant by Goad, has opened as
Market Inn pub — the pub opened in March 2025 after a year-long
refurbishment.

Figure 15: Market Inn Pub

ARKET IN

Source: LSH Site Visit

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Llangefni in the form of a heat

map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024. As
can be seen, footfall levels are highest along High Street and Llawr Y Dref. Footfall
is also higher near the Home Bargains (outside of the town centre) and around the
main car park.

Monthly footfall appears to be fairly consistent throughout the year, with no major
differences noted between February 2024 and August 2024, based on the footfall
categories used by Datscha. However, a more detailed review of the data does
indicate a small increase in footfall during the summer months.

Page 556 14



Figure 16: Llangefni Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

A = 4 —
fome Ty = ‘ |
~A ’ L
= : %{ ‘ e 6{_ }‘\3 lf;.
= n\ = *rn  § =~y r -
L 7‘ \ | \ = \j
-_ \ - a o . \%\t %‘v e 5‘_}\ ;
=y \ =ry §
e 2e ) }
. ) 4 N D L
N 4 — N | ) B i
¥V — ! < - 2
: \ : ‘-I = < J &S
@ i /'/ 2! N p < ==
5 \ ;
\ % / / g\ \ /
| | 8 / /
y. \ /| ¢ & \ [ | ¢ =
& \ | ¥ | H
< 5 'j’ \’ ; ]

Source: Datscha

A central point along Llangefni, near Boots Pharmacy, has been sampled to
assess footfall trends over the recent years.

The figure below shows how footfall levels have changed between February 2019
and December 2024. As can be seen, footfall has been gradually increasing since
2019, when footfall was regularly between 30,000 and 60,000 per month. In 2024,
footfall ranged between 100,000 and 150,000, with peak figures of 150,000
recorded both in May and July.

Figure 17: Llangefni Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 557 15




39.

40.

41.

42.

Amlwch Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Amlwch Local Centre.

Figure 18: Amlwch Diversity of Uses Map

’
D

Key
- Comparison
- Convenience
Y-Z'RetmlSeches
Leisure Services
. Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The table below outlines Amlwch’s diversity of uses based on outlets and provides
a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 19: Amlwch Diversity of Uses

% of Total Outlets

No. of Qutlets

Amlwch UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 13 28.9% 26.4% +2.5%
Convenience Retail 2 4.4% 9.3% -4.9%
Retail Services 9 20.0% 15.9% +4.1%
Leisure Services 8 17.8% 25.8% -8.0%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 8.3% -8.3%
Vacant 13 28.9% 14.1% +14.8%
Total 45 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

Comparison retail is the dominant use within the centre, with the offer made up of
charity shops, electrical goods, homeware, hardware and vehicle accessory
shops.

The convenience retail offer is limited, with only a bakery and butchers available
within the defined centre. The Co-op and SPAR which are likely to provide the
main convenience offer are located outside of the centre boundary, to the east.

Page 558 16



43.

44.

45.

46.

Retail services are predominantly health & beauty related (barbers, hairdressers,
tanning etc.), making up eight of the nine outlets. The other retail service is the
Alton Murphy opticians.

Leisure services in Amlwch are all food & beverage operators, with one café, one
restaurant, three pubs and three fast food and take-away outlets. However, there
is a further hotel/public house centrally located but outside of the defined centre
(Dinorben Arms).

Vacancies

There is a total of 13 vacant outlets in Amlwch which represents 28.9% of the overall
outlets, significantly higher than the UK average of 14.1%. These units include the
former Post Office, the former Mariners pub and the former NatWest bank on Mona
Street (see image below).

Figure 20: Former NatWest Bank Unit

Source: LSH Site Visit

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Amlwch in the form of a heat
map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024. As
can be seen, footfall levels are highest along Lon Goch, outside of the defined
centre and around the junction of Parrys Street, Bull Bay Road, and Queen Street
and these increase during the summer period.

Page 559 17



Figure 21: Amlwch Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

Source: Datscha

Two locations in Amiwch have been sampled to assess footfall trends over recent
years, the first at Queen Street (1) within the centre boundary and the second (2)
close to the Co-op, which is outside the boundary but is likely to be a major

customer draw.

Figure 22: Amlwch Footfall Locations

1 Queen Street

2 Lon Goch

oY
S (R 2 e

&

Source: Datscha

The figure below shows how footfall levels have changed between January 2019
and December 2024. As can be seen, footfall slowly increased in 2019, where
monthly movements were between 7,000 and 34,000. During 2020, this fell,

Page 560

18




49.

50.

reflecting early stages of pandemic restrictions. This was then followed by higher
monthly movements between 2021 to 2023, seeing highs of 49,000 and lows of
10,000. In 2024, footfall declined again, stabilising between 10,000 and 20,000,
although February 2024 saw a temporary spike to 28,000 monthly movements.

Figure 23: Queen Street Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

T

Source: Datscha

A section along Lon Goch, near Co-op Food, outside the town centre boundary,
has also been sampled to assess footfall trends over the recent years.

The figure below shows how footfall levels have changed between January 2019
and December 2024. As can be seen, footfall has gradually increased from 2019
to 2024. Footfall was between 8,400 and 22,700 in 2019, and between 19,500 and
28,900 in 2022, showing a gradual increase. This continued into 2024, where
monthly movements were between 16,200 and 43,800, with the highest peak in
November.

Figure 24: Lon Goch Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 561 19



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

Beaumaris Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Beaumaris Local Centre.

Figure 25: Beaumaris Diversity of Uses Map

Key
- Comparison
- Convenience

: Retail Services

\ Leisure Services
e LS .
: iy . Financial & Business Services

Vacant

L]

The table below outlines Beaumaris’ diversity of uses based on outlets and provides
a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 26: Beaumaris Diversity of Uses
% of Total Outlets

No. of Outlets

Beaumaris UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 19 41.3% 26.4% +14.9%
Convenience Retail 7 15.2% 9.3% +5.9%
Retail Services 2 4.3% 15.9% -11.6%
Leisure Services 15 32.6% 25.8% +6.8%
Financial & Business Services 2 4.3% 8.3% -4.0%
Vacant 1 2.2% 14.1% -11.9%
Total 46 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

Comparison retail is the dominant use in Beaumaris and is made up of a range of
charity, clothing, gift and antique shops.

The convenience retail provision is also above the UK average and includes
national multiples such as SPAR and a number of specialist independents
including Anglesey Hamper Co (deli) and Mercado (butchers).

The leisure services offer is also strong and includes six cafes (including The
Grove, Deli Dydd and Beau’s Tea Rooms), and a selection of restaurants and
pubs, reflecting the importance of visitor trade in the centre. However, the retail
services offer is limited, with only Home and Cruise (travel agents) and In Trim
Barbers recorded, as is the financial services offer.

Page 562 20



56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

Vacancies

There is just one vacant unit in Beaumaris centre, which represents 2.2% of the
overall outlets, significantly lower than the UK average of 14.1%) This vacancy is
the former Sanctuary of Scents store on Church Street.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Beaumaris in the form of a
heat map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August
2024. As can be seen, footfall levels are highest along Castle Street. There is also
a notable concentration of higher footfall at the corner of Margaret Street and
Steeple Lane, as well as on Church Street, near Market Square Shopping Centre
and Alma Street.

As can be seen from the figures below, footfall levels are higher during the
summer.

Figure 27: Beaumaris Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

. - f i
N, |
V lJ N
Y, N ‘ y 4
. 5 Py = / , e v
{ . N S : ) Py > y. " = :
X 4 < f .
b i A 4 ¢ » % S
\ ; g % ’
N N\
g A /}. P "\3 \ Y 4
-..i_‘ & " 3 4 4 "‘A:
4 \ e +
& b/ ¢ % P A\
3 &
P 4 b “
4 L ‘e >
‘ 2
/ & <
= ~ y 2
S 4
e

Source: Datscha

A central point along Castle Street has been sampled to assess footfall trends
over recent years.

As can be seen in the figure below, footfall in 2019 peaked during the summer
months, reaching highs of 140,000. After the pandemic footfall peaked at 63,000 in
summer 2020 and 57,000 in 2021. Since then, footfall has declined slightly, with
more modest peaks observed in 2023 and 2024. Summer visitor numbers
however increase footfall significantly, with the highest recorded in 2024, being
July at 51,000 and the lowest in May at 26,000.

Page 563 21



Figure 28: Beaumaris Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 564

22



62.

63.

64.

Benllech Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Benllech Local Centre.

Figure 29: Benllech Diversity of Uses Map

Key
- Comparison
- Convenience
| Retail Services
Leisure Services
- Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The table below outlines Benllech’s diversity of uses based on outlets and provides
a comparison to Goad’s UK averages. However, it should be noted that only a
relatively small proportion of the retail units within Benllech are located within the
defined centre.

Figure 30: Benllech Diversity of Uses

% of Total Outlets
Benllech UK Average Difference

No. of Outlets

Comparison Retail 4 40.0% 26.4% +13.6%
Convenience Retail 1 10.0% 9.3% +0.7%
Retail Services 0 0.0% 15.9% -15.9%
Leisure Services 5 50.0% 25.8% +24.2%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 8.3% -8.3%
Vacant 0 0.0% 14.1% -14.1%
Total 10 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

Comparison retail and leisure services dominate the offer within Benllech. The
comparison offer includes Pip’s Pet Supplies, International Aid Trust (charity shop)
and Lloriau Gorau - Finest Floors. The leisure services offer is made up of three
fast-food and takeaways, one café and one restaurant.

Page 565 23



65.

66.

67.

68.

The convenience outlet within the centre is the SPAR store. Co-op and Tesco
Express stores are present just beyond the centre boundaries.

Vacancies
No vacant units were recorded in the centre at the time of the site visit.
Footfall

There is limited footfall data available for Benllech, but the figure below illustrates
the pedestrian flows for central Benllech in the form of heat maps showing total
pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024.

As can be seen, monthly footfall appears to be fairly consistent throughout the
year, with no major differences noted between February 2024 and August 2024,
based on the footfall categories used by Datscha.

Figure 31: Benllech Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

Source: Datscha

24

Page 566



69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

Cemaes Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Cemaes Local Centre.

Figure 32: Cemaes Diversity of Uses Map

Far =
Athol Square
: -
7
&
&
-
S
<
S
7Y Pony <
—
e T
\; e
\’\\ Hé
<
=
>
=
>
o
50 =
£ <
o/‘
%C‘ Key
S, .
xg% . Comparison
v . Convenience
y —
@ | Retail Services
ps Leisure Services
%
of
% . . Financial & Business Services
('/":
P Qo( Vacant
(74
P +
a

The table below outlines Cemaes’ diversity of uses based on outlets and provides
a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 33: Cemaes Diversity of Uses
% of Total Outlets

No. of Outlets .
Cemaes UK Average Difference
Comparison Retail 4 28.6% 26.4% +2.2%
Convenience Retail 1 7.1% S5.3% -2.2%
Retail Services 3 21.4% 15.9% +5.5%
Leisure Services 4 28.6% 25.8% +2.8%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 8.3% -8.3%
Vacant 2 14.3% 14.1% +0.2%
Total 14 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

The comparison retail offer consists of Y Golchdy Bach (clothing), Rowlands
Pharmacy, Menter Y Pentre (gift shop) and Oriel Cemaes (artwork).

The convenience retail offer comes in the form of the Morrison’s Daily store, which
houses a Post Office.

The retail services offer is made up of Tracey Jane's Hair Salon, Cemaes Barbers
and Spectrum (hairdressers).

Page 567 25



74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

There are two cafes and a fast-food & takeaway in Cemaes (Y Wygyr Fish and
Chips), with the Stag Inn pub located just beyond the centre boundary and so not
included within the data.

Vacancies

There are two vacant outlets in Cemaes at the time of the site visit, which
represents 14.3% of the overall outlets.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Cemaes in the form of a heat
map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024.
Footfall levels within the centre are relatively similar, but higher footfall is seen
along Ffordd Y Traeth and Athol Street (outside the centre) during the summer.
This is likely to be due to the cluster of hotels in this area.

A similar uplift in footfall can be seen along High Street, particularly in the south,
towards Cemaes Bay.

Figure 34: Cemaes Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

— . —
a o =g
N /3 J | <
£ ~ N
B = X
» Y Y 4 »
)/’ i
) AW . Ll K
: o ] & & . &
= / / / , N g y :
Y/ ’/{’ Y 4 4 /
» P Y : N X
J Qb § *
/ ) ) //.é / y
* 4 i O,j‘ N y . LS P
- 4 § v :
v y »
' Q { y &
Y J
A 4
& [ /ﬁ?
b2 y \( A A “9'%
Y. \ ¥ 4 " 4 -

Source: Datscha

A section along High Street, near Cemaes Baykes and Y Wygyr Fish and Chips,
has been sampled to assess footfall trends over recent years.

The figure below shows how footfall levels have changed between January 2019
and December 2024. As can be seen, pedestrian activity declined sharply during
the pandemic, falling from pre-pandemic summer peaks of over 20,000 monthly
movements to below 5,000 between January 2020 to June 2021. A modest
recovery was observed in summer 2021, followed by gradual increases from 2022.
However, footfall has remained inconsistent, fluctuating between 4,000 and 10,000
monthly movements, with summer peaks no longer showing significant growth. For
2024, July recorded the highest footfall, reaching 9,300, while June recorded the
lowest footfall at 4,200.

Page 568 26



Figure 35: Cemaes Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 569

27




80.

81.

82.

Llanfairpwll Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Llanfairpwll Local Centre.

Figure 36: Llanfairpwll Diversity of Uses Map

b
Key
[l Comparison
- Convenience

| Retail Services
Leisure Services
- . Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The table below outlines Llanfairpwll’s diversity of uses based on outlets and
provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 37: Llanfairpwll Diversity of Uses

% of Total Outlets
Llanfairpwill UK Average Difference

No. of Outlets

Comparison Retail 4 26.7% 26.4% +0.3%
Convenience Retail 2 13.3% 9.3% +4.0%
Retail Services 2 13.3% 15.9% -2.6%
Leisure Services 7 46.7% 25.8% +20.9%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 8.3% -8.3%
Vacant 0 0.0% 14.1% -14.1%
Total 15 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

The comparison retail offer is led by the James Pringle Weavers department store,
which houses a range of clothing and footwear brands including Peacocks and
Pavers. Sidings café and Hootons Homegrown Farm Shop are also present here.

Page 570 28



83.

84.
85.

86.

87.

Figure 38: James Pringle Weavers Sign

|

BYD O SIOPA
WORLD OF SHOPPING

Source: LSH Site Visit

The convenience offer is dominated by the Co-op store to the west of the centre
with its dedicated car park. The store has an approximate gross floorspace of
1,500 sgm.

The retail services offer is made up of Sew Anglesey and Jemini Hair.

Away from Sidings café within the James Pringle Weavers department store
building, the leisure services offer is formed of one other café (Caffi Celt), two
pubs and two fast-food & takeaways.

Vacancies
No vacant units were recorded during the September 2025 the site visit.
Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Llanfairpwll in the form of a
heat map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August
2024. Footfall levels are highest close to the railway station, reflecting the
particular tourist draw to the station signage. However, monthly footfall variation

does not suggest a particular increase during the traditional holiday periods, based

on the footfall categories used by Datscha.

Page 571

29



88.

89.

Figure 39: Llanfairpwll Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

7

.fr.)"-"‘i’ 1/
e 4 v
y £
S
o
p
-
Llanfai ., o
{
‘A
<o < 4
1 .
o~
S
9
b
| o000
= . B 20.001-40,000
. | 40,001-80,000
‘ I 80,001-150,000
3 150,001- 300,00
- 300,001-600,00
{1 600,001-700,000
1 700;001-800,000
h e ridd
LlanfairpwitRe= ] B 500.001-1,000/000"
B >1.000,001

Source: Datscha

A central point along Holyhead Road, has been sampled to assess footfall trends
over the recent years.

As can be seen in the figure below, monthly movements declined during and
immediately after the pandemic but recovered steadily until 2022, once travel
within the UK was permitted. However, since 2022, monthly movements have
been decreasing with levels significantly lower in 2024 and ranging between 2,000
and 6,000 movements per month, compared to regular movements of over 20,000

in 2019.

Page 572 30



Figure 40: Llanfairpwll Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

Source: Datscha

Page 573 31



90.

91.

92.

93.

Menai Bridge Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Menai Bridge Local Centre.

Figure 41: Menai Bridge Diversity of Uses

Key
- Comparison
. Convenience
Retail Services
Leisure Services
. Financial & Business Services

Vacant

W w

The table below outlines Menai Bridge’s diversity of uses based on outlets and
provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 42: Menai Bridge Diversity of Uses

% of Total Outlets
Menai Bridge UK Average Difference

No. of Outlets

Comparison Retail 17 30.4% 26.4% +4.0%
Convenience Retail 4 7.1% 9.2% -2.2%
Retail Services 12 21.4% 15.9% +5.5%
Leisure Services 15 26.8% 25.8% +1.0%
Financial & Business Services 6 10.7% 8.3% +2.4%
Vacant 2 3.6% 14.1% -10.5%
Total 56 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

The centre has a relatively good offer, with comparison retail being the dominant
use. This includes a range of stores catering for both resident and visitor needs
including furniture and home-related goods, clothing (ladieswear) outlets, craft &
gift shops and charity shops.

The convenience retail offer is made up by Lifestyle Express (Off License), &
Caws (deli), Menai Deli Sandwich Bar and Dylan’s (bakers). The main
supermarket is Waitrose which is located outside the centre boundary.

Page 574 32



94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

Health & beauty services make up just over half of the retail services offer (7 of
12), with other operators including the Post Office, the launderette and two travel
agencies.

The leisure services offer is dominated by food and beverage operators, which is
provided in five cafes, five fast-food & takeaways, two restaurants, a pub (see
image below) and a bar.

Figure 43: Bulkeley Pub

Source: LSH Site Visit

Vacancies

There were two vacant outlets in Menai Bridge at the time of the site visit, which
represents 3.6% of the overall outlets, significantly lower than the UK average of
14.1%.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Menai Bridge in the form of a
heat map showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August
2024.

As can be seen from the figures below, footfall levels are slightly higher during the
summer (August 2024) compared with February 2024. Footfall levels along Bridge
Street and Water Street toward the coast show a noticeable concentration of
higher activity in August compared to February.

Page 575 33



99.

100.

Figure 44: Menai Bridge Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

Source: Datscha

A central point along High Street, near Menai Bridge Post Office, has been
sampled to assess footfall trends over recent years.

As can be seen in the figure below, footfall in 2019 ranged between 11,000 and
23,000, before dropping in line with pandemic-related lockdowns in early 2020.
Monthly footfall peaked in August 2021 at 50,000 and again in July 2022 at

40,000. However, monthly movements declined thereafter, fluctuating between
6,000 and 24,000 from 2023 to 2024. These figures are broadly in line with pre-

pandemic figures and the peaks seen during the summers of 2021 and 2022 have

not been sustained.
Figure 45: Menai Bridge Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

60,000

50,000

40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
) aC L O DD D > . :

T T T PR BT e, P ey 2z T 1 3 X ] T T T
GGG I NN xy > D D
S-S SHFHFIISTITHTFITTHTHTIL LTI YL
S S D ) > >
N \ o) Y 0 Y o) S \ \
PR P P PP PSR PBPPG PPDPES R PE
KR D7 TR T QT Y QT Y QT Y K P

Source: Datscha

Page 576



10.

102.

103.

104.

105.

Rhosneigr Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Rhosneigr Local Centre.

Figure 46: Rhosneigr Diversity of Uses Map

Key
. Comparison
’q"k.,./ Bl convenience
Retail Services

Leisure Services

[ Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The retail and leisure offer consists of Gecko (comparison retail), FatFace
(comparison retail), One Stop (convenience retail, with Post Office inside), Aydin’s
Pizza (leisure service) and Scarlett’s Fish and Chip Shop (leisure service).

Vacancies
No vacant units were recorded.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Rhosneigr in the form of heat
maps showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024.
As can be seen, footfall levels in the area are generally quite low, and appear to
be fairly consistent throughout the year, with no major differences noted between
February 2024 and August 2024, based on the footfall categories used by
Datscha. However, a more detailed review of the data does indicate some
variation across the seasons.

Page 577 35



106.

107.

108.

Figure 47: Rhosneigr Footfall Heat Map, February 2024 vs August 2024

Source: Datscha

A section within the centre, along Beach Road, has been sampled to assess
footfall between January 2019 and December 2024.

As can be seen in the figure below, 2019, 2020 and 2021 saw particularly
seasonal spikes in July and August. This trend has not continued, with the peak
month for 2022 being November and 2023’s high seen in March.

The peak for the whole period was August 2021, with a monthly count of 55,000.
This and the slightly lower peak in 2020 is likely to be attributed to the Pandemic
and the associated international travel restrictions/increase in staycations.
Pedestrian activity levels have since dropped and range between 8,000 and
30,000 per month but remain higher than was seen in 2019.

Figure 48: Footfall Graph, January 2019 - December 2024

70,000

60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000 )
0 i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
FELEEETLET I I IIIEEEEE IS

@15 & h:_z.Q'\ & & & & F W & e Q’Z"‘ @aﬁ- & L:,"’-‘Q‘- Qau @@\ & LQ'Z,Q‘-" Nl @;13 & %EQ“ Qe,-;.,

Source: Datscha

Page 578 36



11.

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

Valley Local Centre

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Valley Local Centre.

Figure 49: Valley Diversity of Uses Map

Key
[l Comparison
. Convenience
Retail Services
Leisure Services

. Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The table below outlines Valley’s diversity of uses based on outlets within the
defined centre and provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 50: Valley Diversity of Uses

% of Total Outlet
No. of Outlets o OF lotalutiets

Valley UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 6 30.0% 26.4% +3.6%
Convenience Retail 2 10.0% 9.3% +0.7%
Retail Services 3 15.0% 15.9% -0.9%
Leisure Services 7 35.0% 25.8% +9.2%
Financial & Business Services 1 5.0% 8.3% -3.3%
Vacant 1 5.0% 14.1% -9.1%
Total 20 100.0% 100.0%

Source: LSH Site Visit, September 2025

The comparison retail offer makes up almost one in three of the outlets and
includes Oriel Bay Tree Gallery, Kitchen and Bathroom Collection, Stermat
Hardware and Acacia Florist.

The convenience retail offer is provided by Premier and SPAR, both located along
the B4545. The Premier houses a Post Office and the SPAR a Subway.

The retail services offer consists of Michael Robert Salon, Jo B’s Beauty Salon
and a dry cleaners & launderette.

Page 579 37



114.

115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

The leisure services offer is dominated by fast-food & takeaways (five). There are
also two cafés in Valley.

Vacancies

One vacant outlet was recorded in Valley during the site visit, which represents 5%
of the total number of outlets in the centre. This vacancy is the former Agra
restaurant.

Footfall

The figure below illustrates the pedestrian flows for Valley in the form of a heat
maps showing total pedestrian movements for February 2024 and August 2024.
As can be seen, footfall levels are concentrated along B4545, close to the Spar
and Anglesey Fine Food outlets and footfall here is slightly higher than in the rest
of the centre.

Footfall levels in August are also slightly higher compared to February, with higher
footfall again recorded in sections along B4545 near Spar and on Holyhead Road,
near Flaming Grill and Sunny Valley, as well as Valley train station.

Figure 51: Valley Footfall Heat Map, August 2024 vs February 2024

: 4.\\\3 7= g A
3 B 4
‘i&:\'\ s }3‘\'@' v
W D w,
. / W
= _
N A
,vi.:: y 9 Q
V. .
7 ) Q % &
/// i [ h
§ y
A - A [ V. »
: 1 S .
4 I X 4 W 200014000
N h ¢ A\ P 000
A A N, 50,001.150,000
) N p 00,00
V 4 /"'0 300,001-600,00
D _ P 600,001.700,000
oy & T 700,001-800,000
o ‘1‘ = L y B 0.001.1.000000
y J W >1.000.001

Source: Datscha

A section along B4545, near Spar Valley, has been sampled to assess footfall
trends over recent years.

The figure below shows changes in footfall levels along the B4545 between
January 2019 and December 2024. As can be seen, pedestrian activity during the
period has fluctuated significantly, but appears generally to have decreased since
2019. Then monthly movements were between 18,000 and 45,000 (with an
anomaly in November). Figures slowly increased in 2021, reaching 40,000 in
August, but since then have fallen and stabilised between 11,000 and 22,000 a
month in 2024.

Page 580 38



Figure 52: Valley Footfall Graph, January 2019 — December 2024

Source: Datscha

Page 581 39



12.

121.

122.

123.

124.

Gaerwen

Diversity of Uses

A LSH site visit was conducted in September 2025 to establish the mix of uses within
Gaerwen.

Figure 53: Gaerwen Diversity of Uses Map

Key
- Comparison
- Convenience
Retail Services
Leisure Services
. Financial & Business Services

Vacant

The retail and leisure offer is split across two separate location and consists of
Stermat Hardware (comparison retail), Nisa Local (convenience retail), Morrisons
Daily (convenience retail), Lees Chinese Takeaway (leisure service), Gaerwen
Fish & Chips (leisure service) and Ty Crwn Garage (retail service).

Vacancies

One vacant unit was recorded, which is the former Gaerwen Arms pub. There was
a fire at the pub in June 2023, and it has yet to re-open. The pub was put up for
sale in 2025.

Footfall

Information on footfall for Gaerwen is not available.

Page 582 40



13. Penrhos Retail Park

Diversity of Uses

125. Goad data from October 2023 has been used to assess Penrhos Retail Park’s mix
of uses. The figure below shows the area covered by Goad and the uses found on
the retail park.

Figure 54: Penrhos Retail Park Diversity of Uses Map

&
o,

4

Goad Category Key
- Comparison
- Convenience

- Retail Services

Leisure Services
. Financial & Business Services
Vacant

D Other Uses

Source: Experian Goad, October 2023

126. The table below outlines Penrhos Retail Park’s diversity of uses based on outlets
and provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Page 583 41



127.

128.

129.

130.

Figure 55: Penrhos Retail Park Diversity of Uses - Outlets

% of Total Outlets

No. of Outlets
Penrhos Retail Park UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 8 34.8% 26.4% +8.4%
Convenience Retail 7 30.4% 9.3% +21.1%
Retail Services 2 8.7% 15.9% -7.2%
Leisure Services 3 13.0% 25.8% -12.8%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 8.3% -8.3%
Vacant 3 13.0% 14.1% -1.1%
Total 23 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, October 2023

The table below outlines Penrhos Retail Park’s diversity of uses based on floorspace
and provides a comparison to Goad’s UK averages.

Figure 56: Penrhos Retail Park Diversity of Uses - Floorspace

Gross Floorspace

% of Total Floorspace

(sqm) Penrhos Retail Park UK Average Difference

Comparison Retail 7,350 28.3% 29.4% -1.1%
Convenience Retail 13,308 51.3% 15.6% +35.7%
Retail Services 831 3.2% 7.3% -4.1%
Leisure Services 1,313 5.1% 26.7% -21.6%
Financial & Business Services 0 0.0% 6.3% -6.3%
Vacant 3,139 12.1% 14.2% -2.1%
Total 25,940 100.0% 100.0%

Source: Experian Goad, October 2023

The comparison retail offer is led by operators including Home Bargains, B&M,

Poundland and Argos.

The convenience retail offer is largely formed by Morrisons (5,600 sgm), Tesco
(3,600 sgm) and Aldi (2,100 sgm).

Vacancies

There is a total of three vacant outlets at Penrhos Retail Park which represents 13%
of all units and 12.1% of floorspace. These units take up 3,139 sgm of floorspace.

Page 584

42




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Presentation of Candidate Site Register
	Committee Report - CFS Register November 2025_CYM (2)
	Committee Report V3- CFS Register November 2025_ENG - Copy
	Call For Sites Register V2 (1)

	5 Draft Settlement Strategy Topic Paper
	Committee Report - Settlement Study V2 (2)
	Settlement Strategy Topic Paper Eng v6 (1)

	6 Waste Topic Paper
	cttee_report_waste_topic_paper_v1.1 (3) (1)
	Topic_Paper_Waste_v1.1 (2) (1)

	7 Minerals - Topic Paper
	cttee_report_minerals_topic_paper_v1.0 (2) (1)
	Topic_Paper_Minerals_v1.1 (2)

	8 Retail study results and recommendations for new Local Development Plan
	cttee_report_retail_assessment_v1.1_cy-GB (1)
	cttee_report_retail_assessment_v1.1 (1) (1)
	IoA Retail Study - Main Report Dec-25 (1)
	IoA Retail Study - Trends Appendix A Final Dec-25 (1)
	IoA Retail Study - Capacity Appendix B Final with Tables Dec-25 compressed (1)
	IoA Retail Study - Health Checks Appendix C Final  (1)


